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ATTENDANCE:

Councillors Present
e Cr Steve Jones (Mayor) (Chairperson)
Cr Tanya Milligan
Cr Peter Friend
Cr Jim McDonald
Cr Kathy McLean
Cr Derek Pingel
Cr Janice Holstein

Other People Present
e lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer
e Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager
Governance & Policy
e Dan McPherson, Executive Manager
Organisational Development & Performance
e Tony Trace, Acting Group Manager
Infrastructure Services
e Leo Jensen, Group Manager Community &
Development Services
e David Lewis, Group Manager Corporate
Services
Jamie Simmonds, Executive Strategy Adviser
Jason Cubit, Executive Liaison Adviser
Brendan Steinhardt, Communications Officer
Susan Boland, PA to Executive Manager
Governance & Policy
e Dave Mazzaferri, Manager Disaster
Management
e Caitlan Natalier, Solicitor
e Nick McGuire, Manager Community
Development & Cultural Services

Apologies
e Mark Piorkowski, Executive Manager Strategy &
Planning

The meeting commenced at 10.03 am
The Mayor was not present at the commencement of the meeting and Deputy Mayor Cr Tanya Milligan chaired
the meeting pending his attendance.
The Deputy Mayor, Cr Milligan opened the meeting and welcomed all present.

Rev Ewan McDonald from the Laidley Uniting Church led the meeting in prayer following a minute’s silence for
those persons recently deceased.
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1.0 LEAVE OF ABSENCE
No Leave Of Absence reports
2.0 DEPUTATIONS

No Deputations reports

3.0 CONDOLENCES/GET WELL WISHES

3.1 Condolences/Get Well Wishes
Date: 12 December 2012

Author: Jenny Pascoe, Executive Assistant
Responsible Officer: lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer
File No: 1.1/17/4

RESOLUTION:

THAT letters of condolence be forwarded to the families of the recently deceased
persons in the Lockyer Valley region.

Moved By: Cr Pingel Seconded By: Cr Holstein
Resolution Number: 2824

CARRIED
6/0
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5.0 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

5.1 Confirmation of Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting held 28 November
2012

Date: 12 December 2012

Author: Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager Governance & Policy

Responsible Officer: lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer

File No: 1.1/17/06

RESOLUTION:

THAT the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting held on 28 November 2012 be hereby
confirmed.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Pingel
Resolution Number: 2825

CARRIED
6/0

5.2 Receival of Minutes of the Audit & Risk Management Committee
held 12 December 2012

Date: 13 December 2012

Author: Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager Governance & Policy
Responsible Officer: Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager Governance & Policy
File No: 2.4/25/22

RESOLUTION:

THAT the recommendations of the Audit & Risk Management Committee held on 12
December 2012 be adopted.

Moved By: Cr Pingel Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2826

CARRIED
6/0

5.3 Receival of Lockyer Valley Traffic Safety (Safe4Life in the Lockyer) Committee Meeting
Minutes of 20 November 2012
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Date: 13 December 2012

Author: Joshua Ellis, Engineer Roads and Traffic Management
Responsible Officer: Anthony Trace, Acting Group Manager Infrastructure Services
File No: 2.4/10/101

RESOLUTION:

THAT the Minutes of the Lockyer Valley Traffic Safety (Safe4Life in the Lockyer)
Committee be received and adopted as the minutes of that meeting.

Further;

THAT Council request the removal of the pedestrian crossing on the Warrego Highway
at Withcott by Department of Transport and Main Roads in consultation with the
Lockyer Valley Regional Council.

Moved By: Cr Holstein Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2827

CARRIED
6/0

6.0 COMMITTEE REPORTS

No Receival of Committee Reports

7.0 BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES

Item Number: 7.1

File Number: 1.1/17/4

Councillor: Cr Tanya Milligan

SUBJECT: BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES

Ordinary Meeting 26 September 2012
ltem 13.4 Lockyer Better Business Request
Resolution Number: 2718

It was RESOLVED that the matter be deferred to Council’s Ordinary Meeting in January
2013 for further consideration pending further discussion to be facilitated by the Chief
Executive Officer between representatives of Council and Lockyer Better Business.
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8.0 EXECUTIVE OFFICE REPORTS

8.1 Chief Executive Officer's Report

Date: 14 December 2012

Author: Jason Bradshaw, Acting Chief Executive Officer
Responsible Officer: lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer

File No: 1.1/17/14

Summary:

This report is to update Council on the key issues currently being actioned and on the significant
items of information presently to hand.

Officer’'s Recommendation:
THAT Council resolves to receive and note the Chief Executive Officer’s Report.

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council resolves to receive and note the Chief Executive Officer’s Report.

And further;

The Council record its appreciation to the Acting Chief Executive Officer for his
contributions during the recent leave of the Chief Executive Officer.

Moved By: Cr Friend Seconded By: Cr Holstein
Resolution Number: 2828

CARRIED
6/0

Report
1. Introduction

This report provides an update on key matters arising and being addressed since the last
report.

2. Background

The previous reports provide the background information to date and only progress is being
reported during September.

3. Report
CEO Leave

The CEO returned from leave on Monday 10" December and this report has been compiled
by the Acting CEO.
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Awards

The Strengthening Grantham project has received more national recognition, this time in the
form of a Local Government Award at the National Resilient Australia Awards. Held at the War
Memorial in Canberra, Lockyer Valley Regional Council was given the accolade with more
than 100 entries across all the categories

The Resilient Australia Awards are an Australian Government initiative that recognise
innovative practices and achievements across the nation that are making communities more
resilient and better prepared to manage any emergency situation.

At the Awards ceremony Council also won a Highly Commended for Building Human and
Social Resilience: The Lockyer Experience and picked up an Encouragement Award for
Resilient Lockyer.

Remuneration for Councillors

The Local Government Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal has released the 2012 Report
which provides for a 2.5% increase in remuneration from the 1% January 2013. The Tribunal
received 40 submissions this year in making its recommendations. Seven (7) referrals were
made to the Tribunal on discipline matters, mostly related to confidentiality breaches or misuse
of information. The Local Government Amendments recently passed will impact on the
Tribunal and Councils are encouraged to follow the changes to ensure appropriate policies
and guidelines are amended. The only other change from the Tribunal relates to level 1
councils remuneration.

LDMG and Exercise

Council continued its preparedness for the upcoming season, with a regular meeting of the
Local Disaster Management Group, which provided an update on the weather forecasts and
training of the LDMG acknowledging changes in membership. An active exercise was also
conducted on an Earthquake scenario, with excellent participation from all agencies, and
successful learnings’ flowing back in the way of improvements.

Christmas Closedown

Council has committed to a Christmas closedown with the offices closing from Friday 21°
December 2012 at 1pm and re-opening on Wednesday 2" January 2013. The Council
operations will finish on 20" December and re-commence on Monday 7" January 2013. On-
call and emergency arrangements have been put in place to maintain services as appropriate.

Confidentiality

Councillors have recently adopted a series of polices and guidelines that assist in managing
confidentiality and a reminder was recently sent to Councillors. Given the penalties recognised
in the legislation for misuse of information, it is timely to ensure that the policies and guidelines
are appropriate and being followed.

Corporate Structure

With recent changes in the management and the ongoing challenges of the restoration works
in line with QRA guidelines, an opportunity will be taken to review the current organisational
structure to examine other options and possible efficiencies with the current environment.

Page 9



ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

LGAQ

The LGAQ Policy Executive met during early December and consider strategic matters
including the financial sustainability of councils, public opinion on levels of government, and
the federal elections policy plan.

Chambers renovations

The chamber renovations are almost complete with minor works to be finished early in the
new year, pending other planned works throughout the building.

Policy and Legal Implications

Policy and legal implications will be addressed in future reports on matters that arise before
Council.

Financial and Resource Implications

Budget impacts will continue to be addressed through existing allocation and re-prioritisation
as required.

Delegations/Authorisations
No further delegations are required to manage the issues raised in this report.
Communication

The matters arising from this report that require further communication will be addressed
through existing communication channels.

Conclusion

That the Chief Executive Officer's report be received and noted, and that the further
recommendations be endorsed.
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8.2 Lockyer Valley Regional Council Annual Report

Date: 14 December 2012

Author: Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager Governance & Policy
Responsible Officer: Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager Governance & Policy
File No: 1.1/20/19

Summary:

Council is required to adopt an Annual Report for each financial year prior to 30 November. The
report was adopted last meeting without the final financial statements which have since been
completed and is provided for re-adoption.

Officer’'s Recommendation:

THAT the 2011/2012 Lockyer Valley Regional Council Annual Report be adopted.

RESOLUTION:
THAT the 2011/2012 Lockyer Valley Regional Council Annual Report be adopted.

Moved By: Cr Holstein Seconded By: Cr Pingel

Resolution Number: 2829

CARRIED
6/0

Repo

1.

rt
Introduction

The annual report has been complied in accordance with the current corporate plan and details
achievements of the organisation in completing corporate outcomes over the 2011/12 financial
year. Under Section 108 of the Local Government Act (Finance, Plans & Reports) Regulation
2010, Council must adopt an Annual Report for each financial year prior to 30" November each
year.

Background

The audit of financial statements for the financial year 2011/12 was completed on the 30/11/12
and allows Council to finish the Annual Report on the statutory deadline. This report was
presented and discussed in detail last month and the resolution sought now is to finalise the
plan.

A copy of the document is attached for Council adoption. The Annual Report contains
information on the operations of Council over the report period. It can be seen that much been
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achieved, however, the document is meant only to be a snapshot and as such does not contain
information on everything actually done/planned over the year.

Report

The report has been compiled by Corporate Communications with content provided from
across the Council organisation on the achievements of each department throughout the year.
These have been reported against the activities of the corporate and operational plans over
the last 12 months.

Policy and Legal Implications

Council has complied with the requirements of the Local Government Act and regulations in
finalising the content of the Annual Report and with the sign off of the financial statements can
now meet the statutory timeframe of adoption prior to the end of November. This resolution
just seeks to confirm the adoption of the annual report.

Financial and Resource Implications

The Annual Report has been produced within approved budgets and is a significant change in
style from previous years with a more professional and story based approach to encourage
readership.

Delegations/Authorisations

Whilst the delegation to finalise has been acted upon, no additional delegation is required and
the report can be adopted in full.

Communication

When the report is adopted it will published on Council’'s website and hard copies will be
available for inspection and purchase.

Conclusion

That the Annual Report is to be adopted following finalisation of the audited annual financial
statements 2011/12.
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8.3 Executive Manager Governance & Policy Monthly Update
Date: 14 December 2012

Author: Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager Governance & Policy
Responsible Officer: Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager Governance & Policy
File No: 1.1/17/14

Summary:

This report is to update Council on the key issues currently being actioned.

Officer’'s Recommendation:

THAT Council resolves to receive and note the Executive Manager Governance &
Policy’s Report.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council resolves to receive and note the Executive Manager Governance &
Policy’s Report.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Pingel

Resolution Number: 2830

CARRIED
6/0

Report

Introduction
This report provides an update on key matters arising and being addressed since the last
report.

Background
The previous reports provide the background information to date and only progress is being
reported during November.

Report

Governance

A review of the amendments made to the Local Government Act has been undertaken to
identify the key actions that are required to address the changes with further detail still
expected in the regulations which are due for release later in December.

Most Councillors have been issued and trained in the use of the IPad and all council

documents for meetings and workshops will be delivered electronically to these devices. Only
large documents, maps and plans will be provided in hard copy.

Page 13




ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

Policy
Policy priorities continue to be progressed with a current focus on community funding and
privacy matters.

Risk Management

An update report was provided to the Audit and Risk Management Committee including the
Corporate Risk Register which will be listed for a future Council Workshop in early 2013. A
draft Business Continuity Plan has been prepared and be finalised through Council in 2013.
Internal Audit

The internal audit on contract governance was completed during the month. The Audit and
Risk Management Committee met on 12" December and those minutes will be considered
and adopted by Council.

Corporate Communications

The Corporate Communications report is attached for review, and the corporate
communications team continues to work collaboratively across all activities in contributing to
the successful promotion of events and activities across the region.

Legal Services

Internal processes continue to be redeveloped and a schedule of outstanding matters is
allowing prioritisation of old legacy issues. External resourcing for additional legal support has
been sourced to reduce the backlog of work outstanding.

Policy and Legal Implications

Policy and legal implications will be addressed in future reports on matters that arise before
Council.

Financial and Resource Implications

Budget impacts will continue to be addressed through existing allocation and re-prioritisation
as required.

Delegations/Authorisations
No further delegations are required to manage the issues raised in this report.
Communication

The matters arising from this report that require further communication will be addressed
through existing communication channels.

Conclusion

That the Governance and Policy report be received and noted.
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Media and Communication Report - 12 December

Below are some key statistics of media coverage and communications initiatives
since 22 November:

Media and PR
The table below shows media releases prepared and issued since 22 November on
the following topics:

Media release title / topic Print Radio/TV
Local businesses celebrate their 2
night of nights
The honour of winning an Australia | 2
Day award

Christmas spirit alive in the Lockyer | 1
Valley

Laidley pool to stay afloat

Santa Claus is coming to town 1

Join in the fun at the Lockyer 1
Libraries

A piece of history added to Lockyer 1
libraries

Council welcomes flood levee 1 1
planning funds

Council meeting highlights 1

Withcott volunteers recognised

Borrow books from your own home

The region of choice

Swimming pool fences save lives

National recognition for Council
project

CHANNEL Amount
CEO Announcements

Corporate Christmas Party
Movember Barbecue success

Social Club Christmas party

Staff Confidentiality

CEO Speech for Volunteer Christmas
Party

e Corporate Christmas Party

Attachment 1 8.3 Page 15
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Strategies
O Waste

Media responses

* Response to RFS claims — The Gatton Star had a call from a local firefighter
who claimed Council was holding onto funds which were intended for the
Gatton Fire Brigade.

¢ QUU - Gatton Star called about claims Council is profiteering from the funds
made from the sale of Queensland Urban Utilities.

o Black Duck Valley — The Gatton Star were visited by Steve Langford who had
a letter from Council about the access roads in and out of Black Duck Valley.

» Council clarification — Corporate Communications used the Your Valley Voice
space to provide a response to the Black Duck Valley claims and also made
mention of the QUU response which was not included in the paper the
previous week.

Marketing/Collateral Development

« Comms will also develop artwork for waste trucks including new messaging -
This will be coming to a Council meeting in due course.
Annual Report has been finalised and will be endorsed at Council meeting.
Storm Season collateral — bookmarks, billboard, video.

Facebook usage

e NewlLikes~-6
o Talking about This — 36 (-42.86%)
* Weekly Total Reach — 939 (-41.13%)

Recommendation

« That Council note this has been a short month due to Christmas, therefore,
there has been less activity.
* Council note the success of the Annual Report this year.

Attachment 1 8.3 Page 16
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Cr Steve Jones arrived to the meeting, the time being 10:34 AM

Cr Steve Jones left the meeting, the time being 10:36 AM

8.4 Delegations Register - formal delegation to the Chief Executive
Officer

Date: 11 December 2012

Author: Mark Allpress, Coordinator Business Support

Responsible Officer: Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager Governance & Policy; Leo Jensen,
Group Manager Community & Development Services

File No: 1.1/17/19

Summary:

In accordance with Section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, Council can delegate a power
under this Act, or another Act, to the Chief Executive Officer to allow for the more efficient and
timely resolution of a range of operational matters undertaken by Council. The purpose of this
report is to maintain the currency of Council’s Delegation Register. This is in line with the State
Government’s legislative programme by formally delegating to the Chief Executive Officer the
delegations outlined in the attached register so that further delegations to Council employees and
contractors can be formally made.

Officer’'s Recommendation:

THAT in accordance with Section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, Council delegate
to the Chief Executive Officer the delegations outlined in Attachment “A” “Additions to
Council’s Delegation Register 29" November 2012” and that these delegations be included
into Council’s Delegation Register.

RESOLUTION:

THAT in accordance with Section 257 of the Local Government Act 2009, Council delegate
to the Chief Executive Officer the delegations outlined in Attachment “A” “Additions to
Council’s Delegation Register 29" November 2012” and that these delegations be included
into Council’s Delegation Register.

Moved By: Cr Pingel Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2831

CARRIED
6/0

THAT Council forward correspondence to Minister for Local Government to review the
delegations legislative requirements and administrative processes in line with the
Government’s red tape reduction strategy.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Friend
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Resolution Number: 2832

CARRIED
6/0

Report

Introduction

In accordance with Section 257, of the Local Government Act, 2009, Council can delegate
a power under this Act, or another Act, to the Chief Executive Officer to allow for the more
efficient and timely resolution of a range of matters.

Since the last delegation review (21/12/2012), additional legislation has been identified for
inclusion in Council’s Delegations Register as follows:
o Waste Reduction and Recycling Act 2011

o Waste Reduction and Recycling (Local Government) Delegation No 1 2011

o Waste Reduction and Recycling (Authorised Persons) Delegation No 1
2011

o LVRC Certified Local Law 1 Administration 2011

o LVRC Certified Local Law 2 Animal Management 2011

o LVRC Certified Local Law 3 Community and Environmental Management
2011

o LVRC Certified Local Law 4 Local Government Controlled Areas Facilities
and Roads 2011

o LVRC Certified Local Law 5 Parking 2011

o LVRC Certified Local Law 6 Operation of Saleyards 2011

Details of the particular delegations are contained in Attachment A “Draft Addition to
Council’'s Delegation Register 29" October 2012”.

Background

In accordance with s259 of the Local Government Act 2009, the Chief Executive Officer
may delegate the Chief Executive Officer's powers to an appropriately qualified employee
or contractor of the local government. Further delegating can allow appropriately qualified
staff throughout the organization to undertake the operational tasks allowing the
management level more time to focus on strategic issues. It also enables a more efficient
and streamlined administration of local government functions.

Report

Council’'s delegations register follows the template prepared by King and Company in
conjunction with the Local Government Association of Queensland (LGAQ). This requires
regular updating in line with the State Government’s legislative programme. The current
proposal includes delegation of powers under the Waste Reduction and Recycling Act,
2011, and areas of delegation identified under Council’s suite of Local Laws. It should be
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noted that the current proposal will update administrative processes in respect to illegal
dumping, litter management and the administration of Council’s local laws.

A process has been developed where on a position basis, the delegation needs of each
position are identified and nominated by managers. This nomination is then subjected to a
review process before a final review by the Executive Manager Governance and Policy
and formal delegation by the Chief Executive Officer (refer Attachment B Concise
Delegation process for Council).

Policy and Legal Implications

Since the last update of the delegation register (21 December 2011) significant work has
been undertaken to develop work processes and review the delegation responsibilities of
a number key officers particularly in the Community and Development Services Group so
as to reduce the risk of Council not being in a position to properly discharge its duties,
particularly in the area of enforcement. This review is ongoing and is intended to
complement the development of a comprehensive policy register which includes a review
of all current policies to reflect changes to legislation, the enactment of new legislation and
the delegations nominated.

Financial and Resource Implications

An appropriate delegation register assists Council’s operations avoiding delays and
assists in minimising risks associated in discharging its obligations. Improved processes
and risk minimisation can result in significant operational savings over time to both Council
and the community.

Delegations/Authorisations

This report identifies a number of potential delegations from Council to the Chief Executive
Officer allowing for further sub delegations to appropriate officers. These will be contained
in Council’'s Chief Executive Officer's Sub — Delegation Register.

Communication

The development of the work processes and review of the delegation register has been a
joint process between Council’s Executive Manager Governance and Policy and the
Group Manager Development and Community Services. The process developed includes
a review of delegations by each manager for each position under their responsibility. This
nomination will then be reviewed firstly by the relevant Group Manager then by the
Executive Manager Governance and Policy before final sign off by the Chief Executive
Officer.

Conclusion
It is recommended that a resolution be formally made to give effect to the delegations to
the Chief Executive Officer immediately. Further delegations throughout the organisation

can then be nominated and appointed as soon as possible to minimise any risk that
Council may be exposed to.
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Attachment 1

Officer Appendix A
APPENDIX A ADDITION TO COUNCIL'S DELEGATION REGISTER (29th NOVEMBER 2012)
Delagation Delegate |Description of Power Section Legislation Date of Resolution | Conditions ta which
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ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

8.5 Application for Temporary Road Closure - Part of Forestry Road,
Vingar Hill Intersecting Lot 215 on RP886135

Date: 14 December 2012

Author: Caitlan Natalier, Solicitor

Responsible Officer: Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager Governance & Policy
File No: 1.1/17/14

Summary:

The Department of Natural Resources and Mines have received an application for the temporary road
closure of approximately 8.1949 ha being part of Forestry Road, Vinegar Hill intersecting Lot 215 on
RP 886135. The purpose of this report is to consider the application and provide Council’s views and
requirements that the Department of Natural Resources and Mines should consider in assessing the
application.

Officer’s Recommendation:

THAT with respect to the correspondence received from the Department of Natural
Resources and Mines dated 7 December 2012 requesting Council’s views and/or
requirements in respect of an application to temporarily close part of Forestry Road,
Vinegar Hill intersecting Lot 215 on RP 886135, Council resolves to write to the
Department of Natural Resources and Mines advising that it has no objection to the
application and requesting that the following views and requirements should be taken
into consideration when assessing this application:-

(1) the Queensland Fire and Rescue Service, Bush Fire Brigade and Queensland
Parks and Wildlife Service should also be given the opportunity to comment on,
or object to, the application on the basis that the road may or may not be
required for fire access;

(i)  the surrounding land is now described as the “Helidon Hills National Park”;

(iii)  the property owner currently has, subject to a reconfiguration application and
approval by Council, the potential to reconfigure the lot as it is currently
segregated by Forestry Road reserve. With the road reserve closed, even
temporarily, this circumvents the opportunity for a future reconfiguration;

(iv) itis unlikely that this road reserve would be required for any future road
network. If a future link road was required for this area it would most likely be within
the road reserve that traverses the forestry land between Wallers Road and Logans
Road where there appears to be an existing track that generally follows the road
reserve and allows vehicles to access the forestry land and travel between Wallers
Road and Logans Road.

RESOLUTION:
THAT with respect to the correspondence received from the Department of Natural
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Resources and Mines dated 7 December 2012 requesting Council’s views and/or
requirements in respect of an application to temporarily close part of Forestry Road,
Vinegar Hill intersecting Lot 215 on RP 886135, Council resolves to write to the
Department of Natural Resources and Mines advising that it has no objection to the
application subject to the investigation that the temporary road closure does not
comprise any existing pipelines and requesting that the following views and
requirements should be taken into consideration when assessing this application:-

(1) the Queensland Fire and Rescue Service, Bush Fire Brigade and Queensland
Parks and Wildlife Service should also be given the opportunity to comment on,
or object to, the application on the basis that the road may or may not be
required for fire access;

(i)  the surrounding land is now described as the “Helidon Hills National Park”;

(iii)  the property owner currently has, subject to a reconfiguration application and
approval by Council, the potential to reconfigure the lot as it is currently
segregated by Forestry Road reserve. With the road reserve closed, even
temporarily, this circumvents the opportunity for a future reconfiguration;

(iv)  itis unlikely that this road reserve would be required for any future road
network. If a future link road was required for this area it would most likely be
within the road reserve that traverses the forestry land between Wallers Road
and Logans Road where there appears to be an existing track that generally
follows the road reserve and allows vehicles to access the forestry land and
travel between Wallers Road and Logans Road.

Moved By: Cr Friend Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2833

CARRIED
6/0

Report

1. Introduction

Council has received notice that an application for the temporary closure of part of Forestry
Road, Vinegar Hill intersecting Lot 215 on RP 886135 has been received by the Department of
Natural Resources and Mines. Council has been requested to display the Gazette notice and
drawing at our office for the purpose of being viewed by the public in terms of Section 100 of
the Land Act 1994 and provide its views and comments in respect of the application.

The following Corporate Plan references and risks have been identified:-

0] Sustainable Growth — investigate opportunities for landholders to diversify land uses
where possible
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(ii) Leadership — Ongoing effective engagement with State and Federal Governments for
protection and enhancement of our communities’ interest.

Background

Council has been given notice by the Department of Natural Resources and Mines that an
application for the temporary closure of approximately 8.1949 ha of part of Forestry Road,
Vinegar Hill intersecting Lot 215 on RP 886135 has been made. It is noted that this road is not
formed or constructed and only provides legal access to the State Forest. It appears
alternative access to the State Forest is available and all surrounding lots have legal access.

A copy of the Government Gazette notice of 7 December 2012 and Drawing 12/079 is
currently displayed in the Gatton Reception notice board for the purpose of being viewed by
the public in terms of Section 100 of the Land Act 1994. A copy of the Gazette Notice and
Drawing 12/079 are attached to this Report for reference purposes.

Report

In addition to displaying the Government Gazette notice and Drawing 12/079 to the public,
Council is also requested to advise of its views and/or requirements relative to the application,
and in particular any views or requirements that may affect the future use of the land.

If an objection is offered to the application, a full explanation stating the reasons for such an
objection should be forwarded to the Department of Natural Resources and Mines. Any
objections received may be viewed by other parties interested in the proposed road closure in
accordance with the provisions of the Right to Information Act 2009.

A response is required to be received by the Department of Natural Resources and Mines by
close of business on 17 January, 2013. If no response is received, it will be assumed that
Council has no objections or requirements in relation to this matter.

The road sought to be closed is zoned as Rural Uplands and is unformed. The road traverses
a freehold property which is surrounded by State Forest, to which alternative access appears
available. All surrounding lots may be accessed by alternative formed and/or constructed
roads.

The applicants have advised that the proposed use of the subject area, if the temporary road
closure is approved, would be the grazing of horses. Council’s Solicitor suggests that a road
licence would most likely be granted by the Department of Natural Resources and Mines to the
applicants to provide exclusive use of the temporarily closed road area for an annual fee.

The Manager Business Development confirms that the proposed road closure does not
prevent access to private property or forestry land. It is unlikely that this road reserve would
be required for any future road network. If a future link road was required for this area it would
most likely be within the road reserve that traverses the forestry land between Wallers Road
and Logans Road where there appears to be an existing track that generally follows the road
reserve and allows vehicles to access the forestry land and travel between Wallers Road and
Logans Road. The Manager Business Development does not have any objection to the
application.
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The Manager Planning and Environment has no objection to the application and suggests that
the Department of Natural Resources and Mines be advised that:-

0] in respect of whether the road is required for fire access, the Queensland Fire and
Rescue Service, Bush Fire Brigade and Queensland Parks and Wildlife Service should
be given the opportunity to comment on, or object to, this application;

(ii) the surrounding land is now described as “Helidon Hills National Park”; and

(iii) the property owner currently has, subject to a reconfiguration application and approval
by Council, the potential to reconfigure the lot as it is currently segregated by Forestry
Road reserve. With the road reserve closed, even temporarily, this circumvents the
opportunity for a future reconfiguration.

Policy and Legal Implications

If Council objects to the temporary road closure application, the applicant is still able to apply
for a permit to occupy this portion of road reserve. There is no requirement for the road to be
either temporarily or permanently closed for a permit to occupy to issue, however a permit
would only provide rights for non-exclusive occupation of the land. Either a road licence, or a
permit to occupy, may be cancelled at short notice (generally three months) without the
payment of compensation.

Financial and Resource Implications

Budget impacts will continue to be addressed through existing allocation and re-prioritisation
as required.

Delegations/Authorisations

No further delegations are required to manage the issues raised in this report.
Communication

This information has been provided to Council in confidence for the purpose of seeking
Council’s views in respect of this matter. It is not to be used for any other purpose, or
distributed further to any person, company, or organisation without the express written

permission of the department.

Council’s Solicitor will advise the Department of Natural Resources and Mines in writing of
Council’s resolution prior to 17 January 2013.

Conclusion

There are no planning or environmental issues of significant concern that could not be
adequately protected by conditions imposed by the Department of Natural Resources and
Mines and therefore Council should not object to the application. The points raised by the
Planning and Infrastructure Departments should also be advised to the Department so that
they can take these issues into consideration when assessing the application.
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Application for Temporary Road Closure - Part of Forestry
Gazette & Map

Road, Vingar Hill Intersecting Lot 215 on RP886135

Land Act 1994 TEMPORARY CLOSURE
OBJECTIONS TO PROPOSED ROAD CLOSURE South Reglon, Ipsyich Office
NOTICE (No 44) 2012 § An area of 8.1949 ha being part of Forestry Rosd

Short title

1. This notice may be cited as the Obyjecrions o Proposed
Road Closire Notice (No 44) 2012,

Application for road closure |s.100 of the Act]

2. Applications have been mnde for the permanent and
termparary closare of the reads mentioned in the Schedule
Objections

3.(1) An objestion {in writing) to & propased rood chosure
mentioned in (he Schedule may be lodged with the Reglonnl
Service Director, Department of Natural Resources and Mines,
at the regional office for the region in which the road Is
situated,

(2) Latest day for lodgement of objections is 17 January
13

(3) Any objections received may be viewed by other parties
interested in the propesed road closure under the provisions of
the Right ta fnformation Act 2009. It you lodge an objection,
please include in your vhiection letter whesher you would like
to be consulted if this issue becomes the subject of an access
request uicler the Right to Informarion der 2009,

Plany

4. Inspection of the plan of the proposed road closure may
be maode at-

(a) the Department of Nslurnl Resources and Mines
Offices at Caims, Innisfail, Toowoombs, Warwick and
Ipswicly; and

(b) the Local Government Offices of Caims Regional,
Etheridge Shire, Toowoomba Regional, Southem
Downs Regional and Lockyer Valley Regional;

for a particular plon in rthat disteict or that local government
ares.
SCHEDULE
PERMANENT CLOSURE
North Reglon, Cairns Office

1 An arca of about 240 m2 (about 720 m3) located 8 m in
strata, being part of Grove und Lake Streets abutting Lot 1 on
SP216459 and Lot | on SP227613 (parish of Cairns, locakity
of Caims North) nnd shown as plan of Lot A, (proposed road
closure in steata) on Drawing ONS12/049A. (2012/006045)

North Region, Innlafail Office

*2 Arcas totslling about 3.905 ha intersecting Lot 52 on
SE144125 (parish of Noel, locafity of Lynhurst) and shown as
plan of Lot |, proposed road closures on Deawing TSV2012-
63, (2012007 196)

Soath Region, Toowoomba Office

3 An arca of ubout 1460 m2 abutting the northern boundary
of Lot 1 on 015223 (parish of King, locality of Oskey) and
shown us road w0 be closed permanently on Drawing
DD2012/186A, (2012/005765)

South Regior, Warwick Office

4 An arca of 45,8231 bn being the road intersecting Lot §
on CVES4 (parish of Aitkins Flat, locality of Mingoola) and
shown as permanent rood closure on Drawing DD2012/222,
(201 2/006399)

intersecting Lot 215 on RP886135 (purish of Lockyer, locality

of Vinegar Hill) and shown as romd proposed to be temporarily
closed on Drawing 12/079, (2012/002058)

*The proposed closure of this road is in conjunction with the
proposed opening of another rewd,

ENDNOTES
I Published in the Gazette on 7 December 2012,
2. Notrequired fo be lnid before the Legislative Assembly.

3. The administering agency is the Department of Natural
Resources nod Mines,

Gov. Gaz.. 7 December 2012, No, 90 page 461
Government Pringer, Brisbune
O The State of Quesnstand 2012
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Application for Temporary Road Closure - Part of Forestry
Road, Vingar Hill Intersecting Lot 215 on RP886135

Attachment 1
Gazette & Map
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oew"':m“: Tmmlg; : ROAD PROPOSED TO BE TEMPORARILY CLOSED % . e
Queensland WVIRONNENT ane NOTE. Ad copy = secuced
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8.6 Lockyer Creek Alert Network Installation Report December 2012

Date: 12 December 2012

Author: David Mazzaferri, Manager Disaster Management/Local Disaster
Coordinator

Responsible Officer: lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer

File No: 1.1/17/14

Summary:

The second stage of the Lockyer Creek Alert Network included the installation of 6 new rain gauges
and 3 new rain/river sites. The 6 new rain gauges at Goltz Road, Upper Blackfellow Creek, West
Haldon, Mt Sylvia, Withcott and Fifteen Mile were installed by staff from the Lockyer Valley Regional
Council and Bureau of Meteorology from 3™ to 7" December 2012. The 3 river height stations at
Upper Lockyer, Moon Road and Junction View had been installed by contractors and they were
commissioned during this field trip.

Officer’s Recommendation:
THAT Council review and acknowledge the new Alert Gauge locations and endorsee
the locations of the Lockyer Valley Alert Network.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council review and acknowledge the new Alert Gauge locations and endorse the
locations of the Lockyer Valley Alert Network.

Moved By: Cr Holstein Seconded By: Cr Pingel
Resolution Number: 2834

CARRIED
6/0

Report

1. Introduction
On the 3™ of December to the 7™ of December 6 new rain gauges at Goltz Road, Upper
Blackfellow Creek, West Haldon, Mt Sylvia, Withcott and Fifteen Mile were installed by the

Lockyer Valley Regional Council and Bureau of Meteorology.

3 river height stations at Upper Lockyer, Moon Road and Junction View that had been installed
by contractors were also commissioned during this week.

2. Background

In consultation with the Bureau of Meteorology and Lockyer Valley Flood Engineers work
began to highlight areas that would benefit from a Flood Alert Gauge to provide situational
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awareness and early warning for communities, this is the second stage of this work with a
possible gauge to be installed later 2013 if required.

3. Report
Goltz Road.

Location: 27°51°57.5", 152°10°52.8"
Alert IDs: Rain 4047. Battery 4048

Land Ownership: Station is located on private property. Property owner was consulted and was
agreeable to having the station located on his property.

Installation Details: Standard Alert “tree” with ERRTS 5 watt canister transmitting on 151.525Mhz,1
watt solar panel, 3db colinear aerial and 1 mm Tipping Bucket Rain Gauge. Station transmits to the
existing repeater at Mt Petersen.

New battery 12.5volts, solar output 18.0 volts and 89ma. Consumption was 0.4ma, Charge current
was 75ma and regulated voltage was 15.3 volts. SWR: 5.0 watts forward and 0.0 watts reflected.
TBRG calibration error was +4%.

Goltz Road
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Goltz Road.
Upper Blackfellow.

Location: 27°54'54.4", 152°16°25"
Alert IDs: Rain 4049. Battery 4050

Land Ownership: Station is located in Main Range National Park.

Installation Details: Standard Alert “tree” with ERRTS 5 watt canister transmitting on 151.525Mhz,1
watt solar panel, 3db colinear aerial and 1 mm Tipping Bucket Rain Gauge. Station transmits to the
existing repeater at Mt Petersen.

New battery 12.5volts, solar output 19.3 volts and 94ma. Consumption was 0.2ma, Charge current
was 83ma and regulated voltage was 16.1 volts. SWR: 5.0 watts forward and 0.0 watts reflected.
TBRG calibration error was +4%.
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Upper Blackfellow.

Upper Blackfellow.
West Haldon.

Location: 27°46°40.7°, 152°4°49.1”
Alert IDs: Rain 4041. Battery 4042

Land Ownership: Station is located in road reserve on MacGinleys Road.

Installation Details: Standard Alert “tree” with ERRTS 5 watt canister transmitting on 151.525Mhz,1
watt solar panel, 3db colinear aerial and 1 mm Tipping Bucket Rain Gauge. Station transmits to the
existing repeater at Mt Petersen.

New battery 12.6volts, solar output 19.9 volts and 49ma. Consumption was 0.6ma, Charge current
was 39ma and regulated voltage was 16.1 volts. SWR: 5.0 watts forward and 0.0 watts reflected.
TBRG calibration error was 0%.
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West Haldon.

West Haldon.
Withcott.

Location: 27° 33" 57.2", 152" 1" 38.2"
Alert IDs: Rain 4045. Battery 4046

Land Ownership: Station is located at Urban Utilities reservoir.

Installation Details: Standard Alert “tree” with ERRTS 5 watt canister transmitting on 151.525Mhz,1
watt solar panel, 3db colinear aerial and 1 mm Tipping Bucket Rain Gauge. Station transmits to the
existing repeater at Toowoomba.

New battery 12.6volts, solar output 17.6 volts and 58ma. Consumption was 0.5ma, Charge current
was 58ma and regulated voltage was 15.4 volts. SWR: 5.0 watts forward and 0.0 watts reflected.
TBRG calibration error was +4%.
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Withcott

Mt Sylvia.

Location: 27°43°15.2", 152°13'9.8"
Alert IDs: Rain 4039. Battery 4040

Land Ownership: Station is located in road reserve on Back Mt Sylvia Rd.

Installation Details: Standard Alert “tree” with ERRTS 5 watt canister transmitting on 151.525Mhz,1
watt solar panel, 3db colinear aerial and 1 mm Tipping Bucket Rain Gauge. Station transmits to the

existing repeater at Mt Petersen.
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New battery 12.6volts, solar output 19.5 volts and 98ma. Consumption was 0.5ma, Charge current
was 69ma and regulated voltage was 16.2 volts. SWR: 5.5 watts forward and 0.0 watts reflected.

TBRG calibration error was +8%.

Mt Sylvia.

Mt Sylvia.

Fifteen Mile.

Location: 27° 23" 55.4", 152° 4" 23.3"
Alert IDs: Rain 4043. Battery 4044

Land Ownership: Station is located in road reserve on Collingwood Rd.

Installation Details: Standard Alert “tree” with ERRTS 5 watt canister transmitting on 151.525Mhz,1
watt solar panel, 3db colinear aerial and 1 mm Tipping Bucket Rain Gauge. Station transmits to the

existing repeater at Toowoomba.
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New battery 12.6volts, solar output 19.8 volts and 104ma. Consumption was 0.5ma, Charge current
was 91ma and regulated voltage was 16.2 volts. SWR: 5.0 watts forward and 0.0 watts reflected.
TBRG calibration error was +4%.

Fifteen Mile.
Sandy Creek at Moon Road.

Location: 27° 39" 42", 152" 19" 12"
Alert IDs: Rain 4033. River 4034. Battery 4035

Land Ownership: Station is located in road reserve on Mood Road.

Installation Details: Stainless steel cabinet with ERRTS 5 watt canister transmitting on
151.525Mhz,1 watt solar panel, 3db colinear aerial and 1 mm Tipping Bucket Rain Gauge. River
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height is measured with Druck pressure sensor and gas purge system Reports are transmitted to

existing repeater at Toowoomba.

New battery 12.9volts, solar output 19.0 volts and 140ma. Consumption was 0.4ma, Charge current
was 140ma and regulated voltage was 16.2 volts. SWR: 4.0 watts forward and 0.0 watts reflected.
TBRG calibration error was +6%. Druck calibration carried out.

Survey Details:

TBM bolt in concrete slab: 8.985m gauge height.
2011 flood level: 5.85m at 0800 on Tuesday 11/1/2011

Crossing level: 0.86m
Orifice level; 0.00m

Estimated flood classifications:
Minor: 2.0m

Moderate: 4.0m
Major: 5.0m

Moon Road
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L B A

Moon Road

Blackfellow Creek at Junction View.

Location: 27° 48" 3", 152° 11" 15~
Alert IDs: Rain 4036. River 4037. Battery 4038

Land Ownership: Station is located in road reserve on Mt Sylvia Road.

Installation Details: Stainless steel cabinet with ERRTS 5 watt canister transmitting on
151.525Mhz,1 watt solar panel, 3db colinear aerial and 1 mm Tipping Bucket Rain Gauge. River
height is measured with Druck pressure sensor and gas purge system Reports are transmitted to
existing repeater at Mt Petersen.

New battery 13.4volts, solar output 19.2 volts and 620ma. Consumption was 1.4ma, Charge current
was 530ma and regulated voltage was 15.7 volts. SWR: 5.0 watts forward and 0.0 watts reflected.
TBRG calibration error was +6%. Druck calibration carried out.

Survey Details:

TBM bolt in concrete slab: 5.02m gauge height.
No 2011 flood height available

Crossing level: 0.72m

Orifice level: 0.00m

Estimated flood classifications:
Minor: 1.0m

Moderate: 2.0m
Major: 3.0m
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Junction View

Junction View
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Lockyer Creek at Upper Lockyer.

Location: 27° 29" 317, 152" 4" 54~

Alert IDs: Rain 4030. River 4031. Battery 4032

Land Ownership: Station is located in private property at the end of Nobes Rd.

Installation Details: Stainless steel cabinet with ERRTS 5 watt canister transmitting on
151.525Mhz,1 watt solar panel, 3db colinear aerial and 1 mm Tipping Bucket Rain Gauge. River
height is measured with Druck pressure sensor and gas purge system Reports are transmitted to
existing repeater at Toowoomba.

New battery 12.8volts, solar output 19.9volts and 620ma. Consumption was 0.6ma, Charge current
was 590ma and regulated voltage was 17.1 volts. SWR: 5.0 watts forward and 0.0 watts reflected.
TBRG calibration error was +6%. Druck calibration carried out.

Survey Details:

TBM bolt in concrete slab: 12.746m gauge height.

2011 flood level: 8.78m (estimated) at 1420 on Monday 10/1/2011
Orifice level: 0.00m

Estimated flood classifications:

Minor: 2.0m

Moderate: 4.0m
Major: 6.0m

ML,

Upper Locyer.
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Upper Lockyer.

4, Policy and Legal Implications
Lockyer Valley Regional Council will have further information regarding rainfall and
flooding, and Council’'s endorsement will support any further enquiries and legal actions in
Council discharging its legal obligations.

5. Financial and Resource Implications
There are limited financial implications for this advice and Council staff will continue to use
the available resources to better inform and prepare for emerging risks and responses.
The gauges were funded by NDRP funding which is a combination of Federal, State and
Local Grant monies.

6. Delegations/Authorisations

The existing delegations provide appropriate guidance in accordance with the current
legislation and disaster arrangements.

7. Communication
The matters arising from this report that require further communication will be addressed
through existing communication channels.

8. Conclusion

That the Lockyer Creek alert network installation report be received and locations
endorsed.
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8.7 External Assessment of the Lockyer Valley Local Disaster
Management Plan - Disaster Management Act 2003

Date: 13 December 2012

Author: David Mazzaferri, Manager Disaster Management/Local Disaster
Coordinator

Responsible Officer: lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer

File No: 1.1/

Councillor Cr Steve Jones attended the meeting, the time being 10:45 AM and assumed the
Chair from Cr Milligan.

Summary:
On the 7™ November 2012 The Executive Officer of the Toowoomba District Disaster Management

Group and the Regional Director Emergency Management Queensland, South West conducted a
formal external review of the Lockyer Valley Local Disaster Management Plan.

Officer’s Recommendation:
THAT Council review and adopt the attached External Assessment of the Lockyer
Valley Local Disaster Management Plan — Disaster Management Act 2003.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council review and adopt the attached External Assessment of the Lockyer
Valley Local Disaster Management Plan — Disaster Management Act 2003.

Moved By: Cr Holstein Seconded By: Cr Milligan
Resolution Number: 2835

CARRIED
710

rt
1. Introduction

Under Division 3, Disaster management plans for local governments, of the Disaster
Management Act 2003 it a requirement that the Lockyer Valley Regional Council have a
Disaster Management Plan that include provision for the following—

= the State group’s strategic policy framework for disaster management for the
State, and the local government’s policies for disaster management;

» the roles and responsibilities of entities involved in disaster operations and
disaster management in the area;

= the coordination of disaster operations and activities relating to disaster
management performed by the entities mentioned in the act.

= events that are likely to happen in the area;
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= strategies and priorities for disaster management for the area;

= the matters stated in the disaster management guidelines as matters to be
included in the plan;

= other matters about disaster management in the area the local government
considers appropriate.

This plan must be reviewed annually.
Background

As a result of a Risk Assessment and rewrite of the Local Disaster Management Plan, version
4.0 was endorsed by Council on 26 September 2012.

In consultation by Manager Disaster Management and the Executive Officer Toowoomba
District Disaster Management Group it was agreed to conduct an external assessment leading
up to the Summer Season.

Report

On the 7th November 2012 The Executive Officer of the Toowoomba District Disaster
Management Group and the Regional Director Emergency Management Queensland
conducted a formal external review of the Lockyer Valley Local Disaster Management Plan.
This Assessment was based on Legislative Requirements under Section 57 of the Disaster
Management Act 2003 (DMA 2003).

In summary the Lockyer Valley Local Disaster Management Plan is compliant with all
elements under the DMA 2003, and meets guidelines as required by the State Disaster
Management Group.
The Plan was assessed as good practice for the following elements:
» Does the plan set a purpose?
= Has AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009 been applied?
= Does the plan implement community awareness programs?
= Does the plan address the governance of recovery?
* Isimpact assessment addressed?
Policy and Legal Implications

Lockyer Valley Regional Council and the Lockyer Valley Local Disaster Management Plan
is complaint under the Disaster Management Act 2003.

Financial and Resource Implications

There are limited financial implications for this advice and Council staff will continue to use
the available resources to better inform and prepare for emerging risks and responses

Delegations/Authorisations

The existing delegations provide appropriate guidance in accordance with the current
legislation and disaster arrangements.
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7. Communication

The matters arising from this report that require further communication will be addressed
through existing communication channels.

8. Conclusion

That the External Assessment of the Lockyer Valley Local Disaster Management Plan —
Disaster Management Act 2003 report be received and noted.
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8.8 Rainfall Outlook & Background December - February 2012-2013

Date: 14 December 2012

Author: David Mazzaferri, Manager Disaster Management/Local Disaster
Coordinator

Responsible Officer: lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer

File No: 1.1/1

Summary:

Lockyer Valley has a high risk from natural disasters and a history of experiencing the devastating
impacts upon its communities.

On the 12" December 2012 Rob Webb released a report on the seasonal outlook for the December
2012 to February 2013 period for Queensland.

Officer’s Recommendation:
THAT Council receives and acknowledges the Rainfall outlook and background -
December 2012 — February 2013 as provided by the BOM.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council receives and acknowledges the Rainfall outlook and background -
December 2012 — February 2013 as provided by the BOM.

Moved By: Cr Holstein Seconded By: Cr Pingel
Resolution Number: 2836

CARRIED
710

Report

1. Introduction
In consultation with Rob Webb, Regional Director (QLD), Bureau of Meteorology and the State
Disaster Management Group a rainfall outlook for December 2012 and February 2013 has
been compiled. This forecast is subject to change once further information comes to hand from
the Southern Oscillation Index.
2. Background

Climate Comparison to 2010-2011 and 2011-2012

e In 2010-11 and 2011-12 ocean conditions in the central Pacific Ocean (La Nifia), eastern
Indian Ocean, Coral, Arafura and Timor seas were all favourable for above average rainfall
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over the continent. In 2012-13 only Indian Ocean patterns are clearly favourable. This would
suggest that while the potential for above average rainfall in eastern Australia exists in the
summer of 2012-13, the odds of widespread extreme rainfall is not as high as in previous
summers

Report

Wetter than normal summer more likely over southeast Queensland and a drier than normal
summer more likely for the northern half of Queensland.

Based on the current conditions over southeast Qld, 6-7 years out of 10 would be above
average and 3-4 would be below average.

Both key ocean and atmosphere indicators of the El Nifio-Southern Oscillation (ENSO) are
now at neutral levels (neither La Nifa or El Nifio), after approaching, but generally not
exceeding, El Nifio levels in winter.

Sea surface temperatures in the Indian Ocean off the west Australian coast were equal 2nd
warmest on record for October. Warm Indian Ocean temperatures off Western Australia in
spring are associated with increased summer rainfall across far eastern parts of the continent.

Given the relative strengths of the Indian and Pacific Ocean signals, the Indian Ocean is
expected to have a greater role in influencing Australia’s climate over the summer months.

Changes in the model outlook from one season to the next are to be expected, and are the
result of changing climate drivers, plus the addition of a new month and the subtraction of an
old month, in the outlook period. Each outlook is independent from the previous one.

Tropical Cyclones

Normally we'd expect around 4 cyclones to form in the Eastern Region but the numbers are
highly variable. Not all cross the coast

In years like the current one, we expect numbers to be suppressed but only slightly
The chances of multiple crossings are reduced in non-La Nina years

Policy and Legal Implications

Policy and legal implications will be addressed in future reports on matters that arise before
Council.

Financial and Resource Implications

There are limited financial implications for this advice and Council staff will continue to use the
available resources to better inform and prepare for emerging risks and responses

Delegations/Authorisations

The existing delegations provide appropriate guidance in accordance with the current
legislation and disaster arrangements.

Communication
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In conjunction with Corporate Communications we are conducting a Summer Storm Season
campaign and working closely with Queensland Fire & Rescue Service (QFRS) and National
Parks, Recreation, Sports & Racing (NPRSR formerly known as QPWS) to raise awareness
over the coming months.

Conclusion

Floods happen every year in Queensland and remain a possibility during the upcoming wet
season. They are unlikely to be as widespread as previous years. This report is to keep
Council updated on current weather forecasts for the season.
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Rainfall Outlook & Background December - February 2012-
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QLD SMD
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Pacific Ocean summary
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QLD SMD

What's changed?

Rainfall Outlook and Background
Dec-Feb

New window — Dec-Feb
Changes in the Pacific and Indian Oceans
Indian Ocean had more influence in outlook than Pacific

6-7 years out of 10 would be above average and 3-4 would be below

average

Flood happen every year
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QLD SMD

Australian Government
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season
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QLD SMD

The MJO is the major fluctuation in
tropical weather on weekly to monthly
timescales.

Eastward moving "pulse" of cloud and
rainfall near the equator that typically
recurs every 30 to 60 days.

It influences the timing, development and
strength of the major global monsoon
patterns, including the Indian and
Australian monsoons.

Tropical cyclones are also more likely to
develop in association with certain
phases of a strong MJO event.

Tracking through the season — the MJO
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4.0 MAYORAL MINUTE

4.1 Mayoral Minute

Date: 12 December 2012

Author: Steve Jones, Mayor
Responsible Officer: lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer
File No: 1.1/17/06

The Mayor provided the meeting with an update on key issues currently being progressed.

° Queensland Reconstruction Authority (QRA) Update re: Lockyer Valley Restoration Program
o Federal Attorney General will be visiting the region in January 2013.

. Council Corporate Christmas Function.

RESOLUTION:

It was RESOLVED that the Mayoral Minute be received and noted.
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8.9 Executive Manager Strategy & Planning Monthly Update
Date: 14 December 2012

Author: Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager Governance & Policy
Responsible Officer: Mark Piorkowski, Executive Manager Strategy & Planning
File No: 1.1/17/14

Summary:

This report is to update Council on the big issues currently being actioned.

Officer’s Recommendation:

THAT Council resolves to receive and note the Executive Manager Strategy &
Planning’s Report.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council resolves to receive and note the Executive Manager Strategy &
Planning’s Report.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Friend

Resolution Number: 2837

CARRIED
7/0

Introduction

This report provides an update on key matters arising and being addressed since the last
report.

Special Projects

Following stakeholder consultation and input from Councillors the scope of the staged
development for the multipurpose facility at the Laidley Recreation Reserve was finalised for
input to the RDAF submission.

Input was provided to the Special Projects & Funding Coordinator who prepared the Regional
Development Australia Fund (RDAF) expressions of interest submissions for both the Laidley
Recreation Reserve Multi-purpose Facility (Round 3) and the join QUU submission on the
recycled water pipeline proposal (Round 4).

A Council submission was prepared in response to Queensland Agriculture Strategy
Discussion Paper. It reiterated the significance of agriculture to the Lockyer Valley, raised
issues of concern, highlighted Council’s approach and made recommendations on approaches
for consideration in the State wide strategy.
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Digital Hubs funding negotiation with the Department of Broadband commenced on Monday
10 December 2012. The only potential impediment to the project going forward will be the
timing of delivery of the link. A key condition will be to have the facility operating March 2013
with full capacity.

A license agreement for the helipad location at Lake Clarendon has been negotiated. That
licence area will now include the larger area without compromising the airport design or
approvals. That license has been signed off by the proponents and forwarded to Council.
Establishing the timeframe for construction and determining a likely rating regime for the site
remain outstanding issues.

Background research and internal meetings were held to discuss a LVRC Climate Change
policy and strategy as referenced in the Operational Plan. Key issues will be the purpose and
scope of the documents and the extent of stakeholder consultation that will be required.

Major Events

Australia Day Award entries have closed and event planning continues. Road closures are
being worked through with Infrastructure Services in order to submit closure applications
before Christmas.

Christmas decorations have now been installed in all areas of the region.

COMSEQ
Report from the meeting held on Friday 7 December 2012.
Topic Discussion

Budget Mayors broke into a closed session to discuss the budget and

Discussion future strategic direction of the organisation.

COMSEQ e Performance plan will need to be modified from its current form.

Performance |e Endorsed as an interim Performance Plan and will change

Plan subject to recent budget discussions and presented at next
meeting.

Planning e Debate ensued regarding whether DA benchmarking should be

Reform made available publically or internal to other Councils.
Benchmarking currently consists primarily of assessment
timeframes.

Waterway e COMSEQ proposed a regional corridors map for endorsement.

Priorities Mayors agreed to take away and discuss with their Councillors
to see if it was in the best interest of SEQ Councils.

Media Policy | e Will allow other mayors to comment through the media on
COMSEQ issues.

o Cr Steve Jones raised the point that the message needs to be

consistent and that solidarity is the key.
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Infrastructure | ¢ Heading into the federal election, it was strongly agreed that

Advocacy pressure needed to be maintained on the Federal Government
to secure infrastructure funding.

e Advocacy needs to focus on community agreement and
lobbying in Canberra.
o Mayors agreed to email ideas on strategies to COMSEQ.
¢ Need to reduce the priorities list from 6 to 3.
Regional ¢ Need to understand the State’s current position on the regional
Plan plan
o COMSEQ officers re seeking to increase pressure to have a
seat at the table to discuss the future of the regional plan

Regional

Planning and | ¢ Discussed the States single State Planning Policies.

Growth e Discussed infrastructure charges and looking at review for non-

Committee residential developments.

Rural o Looking at tools to integrate agriculture better into planning

Communities schemes.

Taskforce e Discussed the Rabbit Board.

e Regional Tourism roundtable met and discussed food and wine
festivals, events and better access to national parks.

LGAQ Three (3) main platforms:

Update 1) Infrastructure charges — currently not engaged by the State
Government on this review. Need to be strong and get state to
recognise the debt levels of council for infrastructure. Push to
remove the cap on IC.

2) Constitutional Recognition — encouraging Councils to put in
submission to the public enquiry.
3) DTMR super contracts — raised to LGAQ by Cr Steve Jones,

LGAQ met with Minister Crisafulli to discuss and he will meet
with LGAQ and DTMR on the super contracts advocacy.

Policy and Legal Implications

Policy and legal implications will be addressed in future reports on matters that arise

Financial and Resource Implications

Budget impacts will continue to be addressed through existing allocation and re- prioritisation

2.
before Council.
3.
as required.
4,

Delegations/Authorisations

No further delegations are required to manage the issues raised in this report.

Page 80



ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

Communication

The matters arising from this report that require further communication will be addressed
through existing communication channels.

Conclusion

That the Strategy and Planning report be received and noted.
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8.10 Executive Manager Organisational Development & Performance
Monthly Update

Date: 14 December 2012

Author: Dan McPherson, Executive Manager Organisational Development &
Performance

Responsible Officer: Dan McPherson, Executive Manager Organisational Development &
Performance

File No: 1.1/17/14

Summary:

The Executive Manager Organisational Development & Performance spoke to his report on an update
of the staff climate survey, the intention was to do a presentation but time did not allow hence a verbal
summary on achievements thus far was provided.

Establishment of LVRC Staff Intranet

Introduction of Performance Appraisal system

New policies for Customer Service including a Customer Charter and Strategy
New policies for Attraction & Retention of staff

Employee and Team of the Year introduced

CEO Road Shows completed

Staff Communications increased via, the “Hub, Ask the CEO a Question, the Water Cooler
and the Loop”

Regular staff meetings are being held

Project based work teams introduced

¢ New Grantham completed

The full presentation will now take place next year.

Officer’'s Recommendation:
THAT Council resolves to receive and note the Executive Manager Organisational
Development & Performance Report.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council resolves to receive and note the Executive Manager Organisational
Development & Performance’s Report.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Milligan
Resolution Number: 2838

CARRIED
7/0
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9.0 CORPORATE SERVICES REPORTS

9.1 November 2012 Corporate Services Summary Report
Date: 11 December 2012

Author: David Lewis, Group Manager Corporate Services
Responsible Officer: David Lewis, Group Manager Corporate Services

File No: 1.1/17/14.1

Summary:

This report provides Council with a brief summary of key operational activities undertaken by the
Corporate Services Group during November 2012.

Officer’s Recommendation:
THAT Council resolves to receive and note the November 2012 Corporate Services
Summary Report.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council resolves to receive and note the November 2012 Corporate Services
Summary Report.

Moved By: Cr Pingel Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2839

CARRIED
7/0

Report

1. Introduction

This report provides Council with a brief summary of key operational activities undertaken by
the Corporate Services Group during November 2012.

2. Background
Council should be aware of group activities to guide future decision making.
3. Report

A brief summary of the key outcomes of the Corporate Services Group during November by
functional grouping follows.

Customer Services
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The installation of Council new phone system was completed during November. The
system is working well, with the processing of corporate e-mails to be transitioned to the
Customer Service Centre from Records in early December.

A significant and positive impact in service levels has occurred since the realignment of
the Customer Services officer's hours with a greater focus on part-time employment.
This change has given us the flexibility to more appropriately cater for peak and trough
customer service times.

The rebuilding of the Gatton Customer Service Centre has been further hindered by the
discovery of asbestos.

Customer Services officers have been working closely with officers from Facilities and
Parks over processes for Cemeteries, Halls and Park bookings and the transition of the
administration of these activities to Customer Services.

Information Services

>

Detailed planning for the Data Centre project scheduled for the Christmas shutdown is in
progress; however, at this stage, given the additional risks that have been identified
through initial investigations it highly unlikely that the original scope of works can be
executed in the proposed timeframe. Further investigation is a priority in order to provide
sufficient information for a considered review and further planning of this critical
foundational project.

The procurement process for the implementation of Exponare and Maplnfo Manager has
been initiated. These GIS products are extensions of Council’s existing suite of software
solutions and are key inputs required for the integration of GIS into the new corporate
software solution, One Council.

Details of works undertaken during November on other current significant information
technology projects follows.

Strategy / Activity / Update Next step
Project

Hardware Audit.  |A process has commenced to audit |(Ongoing audit and
and subsequently recover under equipment

utilised desktop infrastructure (ie [redeployed to
PCs, printers, etc). ensure the best
use of Council ICT
assets.
Call Centre | Final configuration of the call| Monitor project
Software centre  software has been| progress.

completed. Some minor issues
with  email queues remain
outstanding.

End Point Security | 30% of Council’'s computer fleet| Monitor project
have been upgraded with| progress.
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Symantec End Point security.

Council have developed and
confirmed a project
implementation schedule in
conjunction with a third party
vendor. Project is scheduled for
completion in January 2013.

Package design
work to be
commenced in
early December.

Strategy / Activity Update Next step
/ Project
Secure Large File| A ‘tender exemption’ has been| Finalize
Transfer / Internet| endorsed by Council so that the | procurement
Bandwidth necessary services needed to| processes -
meet the aggressive timeframe for | review of
a dependant project (the digital| contract terms
hub) can be accommodated. by legal.
Mobile Device | Deployment is going as per| Complete
Management project schedule. All Council iPads | deployment.
and 50% of smart phone fleet| Final draft of
have been ported to this| smart phone
management platform. and tablet
policies to be
approved.

Right to Information

» At 30 November, there were 3 active Right to Information applications with Council.

Finance

»  The Certified General Purpose Financial Statement for the 2011/2012 Financial Year
and 2011/2012 Independent Auditor's Report were received from the Queensland
Auditor-General. A separate report on this issue will be tabled at Council’s December
2012 Ordinary Meeting.

»  Council’s cash balance continues to be carefully managed to ensure that we have the
financial capacity to deliver our 2012/2013 Capital Works and Infrastructure Recovery
Programs. At 30 November, Council cash balance was $36.08 million. A graph of recent
movements in Council’s cash balance follows.
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MEQISNAL COURCIL

Weekly Cash Balance from 17.08.12
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»  Throughout November, Council officers and our debt recovery agents were actively
engaged in the recovery of outstanding rates and utility charges. At 30 November 2012
outstanding rates and utility charges were $3.96 million which is an improvement of $0.6
million on the end of October 2012 position.

Outstanding Rates Recovery $million
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»  During November, the corporate overhead allocation model for 2012/2013 was also
substantially completed. This is a key tool in the calculation of our annual fees and
charges.

»  Work also continued on the development of a chart of accounts for Council's new
corporate software and on the development of revised procurement policies and
procedures including a procurement handbook and manual. Substantial work also
occurred on the development of Council conditions of offer and conditions of contract

Human Resources
» At 30 November, there were 365 full time equivalent employees employed by Council.

»  During November, Human Resources officers continued to work on the finalisation of
outstanding position descriptions and performance plans which are now substantially
complete.

Page 86



ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

» A significant amount of training focused upon change management and changes to
Council's business models linked to the implementation of Council’'s new corporate
software also occurred during November.

» At 30 November 2012, there were four outstanding workplace health and safety issues
and three outstanding disciplinary issues.

»  As mention in the Customer Services’ section, asbestos was discovered within the
Gatton Administration Building; the asbestos kitchen floor tiles will require assessment
and removal prior to the scheduled refurbishment project continuing.

Policy and Legal Implications

There are no policy or legal implications associated with this report.

Financial and Resource Implications

There are no financial or resource implications associated with this report.
Delegations/Authorisations

There are no delegation or authorisation issues associated with this report.

Communication

No communication is required in relation to this report.

Conclusion

A significant workload continues within the Group as we continue to enhance the finance,

procurement, customer services, human resources and information technology units of
Council.
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9.2 General Purpose Financial Statement - 2011/2012
Date: 12 December 2012

Author: David Lewis, Group Manager Corporate Services
Responsible Officer: David Lewis, Group Manager Corporate Services
File No: 1.1/17/14.1 1.2/1/14

Summary:

Under Section 161 of the Local Government (Finance, Plans and Reporting Regulation) 2010, a copy
of Council’'s general purpose financial statement for the 2011/2012 financial year is required to be
given to the auditor general no later than 15 September 2012.

Under Section 162 of the Local Government (Finance, Plans and Reporting Regulation) 2010, a copy
of the auditor-general’s report about Council’s 2011/2012 general purpose financial statement must
be presented by the mayor at the next ordinary meeting of Council following receipt of the report by
Council.

Attached are copies of Council’s certified General Purpose Financial Statement for the 2011/2012
Financial Year and the Queensland Audit-General’'s Independent Audit Report on this statement.

The Queensland Auditor-General has issued a qualified audit opinion on Council’s General Purpose
Financial Report for 2011/2012 Financial Year in relation to Council’s comparative asset information
for 2011.

Officer’s Recommendation:
THAT Council resolves to receive and note the certified General Purpose Financial
Statement for the 2011/2012 Financial Year and the 2011/2012 Independent Auditor’s
Report on this statement.

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council resolves to receive and note the certified General Purpose Financial
Statement for the 2011/2012 Financial Year and the 2011/2012 Independent Auditor’s
Report on this statement.

Moved By: Cr Pingel Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2840

CARRIED
7/0

Page 88




ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

Introduction

Under existing legislation and current Accounting Standards, a general purpose financial
statement is to be prepared by Council and independently audited by the Queensland Auditor-
General each financial year.

Background

In the Queensland Auditor General’'s report on Council’s General Purpose Financial Statement
for the 2010/2011 Financial Year, Council’s statement was qualified on the basis that Council
could not demonstrate the written down value of its roads and drainage assets at 30 June
2011 due to the extensive damage to its road, bridge and drainage assets caused by the
January 2011 natural disaster.

Report

Under Section 161 of the Local Government (Finance, Plans and Reporting Regulation) 2010,
a copy of Council’'s general purpose financial statement for the 2011/2012 financial year is
required to be given to the auditor general no later than 15 September 2012. This statement is
also to be accompanied by a certificate in the approved form given by the mayor and chief
executive officer, certifying that the statement has been prepared in accordance with the
relevant accounting documents and that the statement accurately reflects Council’s financial
performance and position for the financial year.

Council complied with these legislative requirements.

Under Section 162 of the Local Government (Finance, Plans and Reporting Regulation) 2010,
a copy of the auditor-general’s report about Council’s 2011/2012 general purpose financial
statement must then be presented by the mayor at the next ordinary meeting of Council
following receipt of the report.

Attached are copies of Council's certified General Purpose Financial Statement for the
2011/2012 financial year and the Queensland Auditor-General’s Independent Audit Report on
this document.

The Queensland Auditor-General has issued a qualified audit report for the General Purpose
Financial Report for 2011/2012 Financial Year in relation to Council’'s comparative asset
information for 2011. In relation to the 2011 asset information, in the opinion of the
Queensland Auditor-General, Council was unable to demonstrate the written down value of its
roads and drainage assets due to the extensive damage to road, bridge and drainage assets
caused by the January 2011 natural disaster. This is basically a carry-over from the audit of
Council’'s General Purpose Financial Statement for the 2010/2011 Financial Year.

Apart from this qualification, in the Queensland Auditor-General’'s Independent Auditor-
General’s report audit opinion, the auditor states that

“) the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of accounts
have been complied with in all material aspects; and
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i) the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed
accounting standards, of the financial performance and cash flows of Lockyer Valley
Regional Council for the financial year 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012 and of the financial
position at the end of the year.”

Apart from the issue with the 2011 comparative information, the Queensland Audit-General’

Independent Audit Report represents a good result for Council and reflects favourably on
Council’s financial policies and procedures and the professionalism of our officers.

Policy and Legal Implications

There are no policy or legal implications associated with this report.

Financial and Resource Implications

There are no financial or resource implications associated with this report.
Delegations/Authorisations

There are no delegation or authorisation issues associated with this report.

Communication

No communication is required in relation to this report.

Conclusion

The Queensland Auditor-General has issued a qualified opinion on Council’s General Purpose

Financial Report for the 2011/2012 Financial Year in relation to Council’s comparative asset
information for 2011.

Conclusion
The Queensland Auditor-General has issued a qualified opinion on Council’'s General Purpose

Financial Report for the 2011/2012 Financial Year in relation to Council’s comparative asset
information for 2011.

Page 90



General Purpose Financial Statement - 2011/2012

Attachment 1
QAO Statements

LOCKYFR VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCII,

Finauocial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012

Note

Table of contents

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Statement of Fluancial Position
Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the financial statements
Significant accounting policaes
Anafysis of resules by function
Revenue analysis
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Capital income
Giadn (Joss) on the disposal of capital assets
Employee benefits
Materials and services
Finance costs
Depreciation
Capital expenses
Loss on write-off of capital assels
Cash assets and cash equivalents
Trade sad other reccivables
Inventories
Cash investments
Nen-current assets classified ay held for sale
Equity investments
Investinent properties
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Borrowings
Orther liabilitics
Assct revaluation surplos
Rerzined surplus
Reserves
Commitmerts for expendituce
Events after balance date
Coatingent liabilities
Superannuation
Trust funds

Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow (outfiow) from operating activities

Attachment 1

9.2

Page 91



General Purpose Financial Statement - 2011/2012

Attachment 1
QAO Statements

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL

Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012

39

Table of Contents - continued

Background to Water reform in South East Queensland

Related Party Disclosure

Minor correction for assets not peeviously recognised

Financial Instruments

National competition pelicy comprising:

(a) Activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied

(b) Financisl performance of activitics subject (o competition reforms
Prior Peciod Ermor

Management Certificate
Independent Audit Repont

Attachment 1

9.2

Page 92



General Purpose Financial Statement - 2011/2012

Attachment 1
QAO Statements

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL

Statement of Comprehensive Income
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2012 2001
Note s s
Income
Revenue
Recurreat revenue
Rates and levies i@ 23,892,320 21,777,034
Fees and charges 3ib) 4,761,602 4,050,030
Rental and icvies 3{c) 439366 338,584
Imerest received 3 (d) 3,231,633 2948 647
Sales of contract and recoverable works N 3348546 2,484,748
Other recurrent sncoeme I(g) 700,167 672,454
Distribution from EGLWB I 2,245 702,013
Grants, subsidies. contnbations and donations 40 61,979,149 44,956,660
Total recurrent revenue 9%,404,968 77,931.77
Capitul revenue
Grants, subsidies, conlributions and donations 40 21,427,245 10,430,119
21,427,245 10,430,119
Total revenue 119832213 85,361,889
Capital income s - 438,757
Total income 2 119,832.213 88,800,646
Expenses
Recurrent expenscs
Employee benefits 7 (26,360.278) (19,245,767)
Materials and services 8 (77.790.312) (44 456, 159)
Finance costs v (463,971) (44,266)
Depeeciation 10 (10,678 627) (8 049.024)
Total recurrent expenses {115,293 188) (71,795.216)
Capital expenses
Loss on transfer of assets to Queenstand Urban Utifities R - (18,911,502}
Other capital expenses I (22,224.316) (879,590
Total expenses __(137,517.504)  (91,586.308)
Share of profit from associate ie) 1,194,434 1,192,186
Net result {16,490,857) (1,593,476)
Other comprehensive lnconte
Increase |n ass=t revaluation surphus 25 32,754,930 31,383
Total other comprehensive (ncome 31,754,930 31,383
Total comprehensive income for the period 16,264 (73 (1,562,093)

The ubove starement should be read in conjunction witk the accompanying rotes and Summary of Significant Accounting Folicies.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2012

Current Assels

Cash assets and cash equivaleats
Cash investments

Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Non-curment assets classified as held for sake

Non-current Assets

Trade and other receivables
Investment in Associate
Other Financinl Asscts
Invesiment properics
Property, plant and equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Provisions

Borrowings

Other

Non-current Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Provisions
Boerowings

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET COMMUNITY ASSETS

Community Equity

Assct revatuation surplus
Retained surplus (deficiency)
Reserves

TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY

Note

13

14(a)
15

14(b)
18(a)
18(b}

20 ()

2l
2

23

o ore
o -

w

wn

[
- O

2012 2011
5 S
25,983,214 26,790,668
11,500,000 2
8,007,505 9,596,892
879679 599,615
46,370,398 37387175
93,600 93,000
46,463,308 ITABYATS
14,734,969 14,734,969
24,048,175 23,532,457
40,000 40,000
3,230,000 3,480,000
361300642 317.651.516
403353786 359,438,042
9817184 396.919.117
11,87591) 14,628,600
450,000 500,000
941,890 122,696
3475
13.271.676 15,251,296
1,255 487 1,099,536
17,498,357 2,608,993
23 869,264 300,964
42,623,108 4,009,493
55,804,784 19,260,789
393,022400 377658128
79,321,711 46,566,781
292,569,865 313839954
22,030,824 17,251,503
393922400 _ 377.658.328

Tie above staiemeni shoulif be read in conjunciion with the acconpanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2012

Cash Nows from operating activitics :

Recelpts
Receipts from cusiomess
Dividend received
income tex equivalent receaved
Interest received
Payments
Payments to suppliers
Interest expenye
Net cash inflow (outflow) frem operating activities

Cash Nows from investing netivities:

Commonwealth goverranent grungs

State Governunent subsidies & grants

Othes Non-Goverrment Subsidics

Capetal contribations

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Peyments far investment property

Net trunsfer (1o} from cash investiments

Proceeds fram sale of property plant and squipment
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activitics

Cash Mows from financing activities:
Prooeeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities

Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held
Cash ind cash squivalents ot beginmag of the finencual yepr
Cash und cash cquivalents at end of the financial yeur

2002 2001
Note h 8 5
N, 121,326 78,423,637
534,589 183,510
394 233 204,292
3324300 3,006,970
106,660, 266) {60,061,073)
(54,297} (32,0423
33 (6,340,115} 21,724,893
2,806,821 454,021
14228473 2,213,530
194,819 -
508,044 1,098,223
(26,879, 283) {24,483 ,952)
- {2,456,505)
146 {11,500,000} -
6 1,786,203 242,321
(18.854,833) (22.932452)
23 24,510,183 .
23 (122.689) (114.362)
24,337,494 (114,362)
(807,454) (1,321,919}
26,790,668 28,112,587
13 15983214 26,790,668

The above sictement shodd b read in confuncrion with the accompying rotes and Summary of Significant Accownting Policies
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Nodes 10 the Fusincial Starements
For the vear ended 30 June 2012

| Significant acconntiag policies

L Basis of preparation
These genen) purpose financeal statements are for e period | July 2011 to 30 June 2012 2nd have been prepared in
coenpliance with the requirements af the Locul Gavemment Act 2009 and the Local Govermmsent (Finance, Plans and
Reporting) Regulation 2010. Consequently, these financial siaterments have been prepared in sccordance with all Australian
Acocounting Standards, Australion A ing Interpretations and other authoritative prosouncements isssed by the
Austrlinn Acconnting Stundards Board,

These financial starements have been prepaced pnder the listorical cost convention except for the revaluntion of ¢ertain non-
CUITeNT assels

1.2 Statement of compliance

These generul purpose firancial statesments comply with all accounting standards and interpretations issued by the Austradian
Aceounting Standards Board (AASB) that are refevant to Council's operations and effective for the curenl reparting peniod.
Because the Counc is 2 not-for-profit eatity and the A lian Accounting Standasds inchude roqul for pot-for-
profit entitics which are i with | ionul Financial Reposting Standards {IFRS), 10 the cxtest these

i ies aec applied, these financial do pot comply with IFRS. The main impaces are the offsetting of
revaluation and impalment gains and losses within a class of assets, and the timing of the recognition of non-reciprocal
gragl revenue

Busis of consolidation
Lockyer Valley Regional Council hud no controlied emities ar the 2012 finmncial yeas,
Lockyer Valley Regional Council has four members out of six members o the boasd of the Esk-Gatton-Laidlcy Water
Bourd. Esk-Guton-Lasdicy Water Board is & jointly controlled local govermment entity under the Local Govemment Act

2000,

1.3 Constitution
Lockyer Valizy Regional Councal is constituted under the Qu el Local Go Act 2009 unxd is domicited in
Australia,

14 Date of authorisation

The financial statements are authorised for issue on the date they wene submitted o the AuditorGeneral for final signature,
This is the date the management certificate is signed,

15 Curreney
The Council wses the Australian dollar 25 s functional currency and its presentation currency,

CE%%F
STATEMENTS
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Notes to the Financ@al Statements
For the yeur endad 30 Juse 2012

1.6 Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standsrds
In the current year, Counce adopred all of the mew and revised Standands s Ierpretations isswed by the Australian
Accoanting Standards Board (AASB) that are selevant to its operaticns and effevtive for the curment reporting perfod. The

adoption of the new and revised Standards and [ntespretations has not resulicd in any masteniol changes 1w Council's

accounting pobicies.

Al the date of authorisation of the finanzial , the Standucds amd loterpretations histed below were in issue but noEiTective fur

yet elfective, Inewal ropan

perivds beginning
am are afier.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments {Decomber 2009) 1 Jangary 2013
AASB 10 Consolidated Fi LY 1 Januaary 2013
AASD 1] Jaint Amrangements 1 January 2013
AASS 12 Disch of i odher entats [ Janimey 201 3
AASS 3 Fair Value Measurement | January 2013
AASB 119 Emgloyee benefits (complercly repl lng stancdurd) Fdaminey 2013
AASB 127 Sep Financial St (replaces ihe existing standand together with AASH 10} | January 2013
AASB 128 Investments in Associutes and Joint Ventures (repiaces the existing standsrd) I January 2013
AASB 1053 Apphication of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards | July 2013
2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accountmg Standards arising from AASB 9 (Decenber 2009) | January 24113
AASB 2010-2 Amendmens 10 Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure Regquiremems | July 2013
AASB 2010-7 Amendiments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (Doecember 2010) | Jonwary 2013
AASB 2010-8 Amendments o Australian Ac ing Standands - Defemed Tax: Recovery of Undeslying Assets I Jonuary 2012
AASB 2010-10 Further Amend 1A lian Ac ing Standards — Removal of Fixed Dates for Finst-time Adopters I Jooary 2013
AASH 2011-2 Amendments to Awstralion A g Standards arising from the Trans Tasman Coavergeoss Praojest Redoced | July 2013
Disclosure Requirements
AASB 2011~} Amendments to Australian Accounting Standunds- Ordedy Adaption of Changes 1 the ABS GFS Munual snd 1 July 2012
Refated Amendaients
AASB 20114 A g 10 A lian A Tng Standands w R Iralividual Key Manngement Personnel Disclosure | July 2013
Requirements
AASE 2011-6 Amends to Australian Accesnring Standards- Extendiog Rebiet from Consebidution, the Equity Mcthed and | July 2013
Proportionate Consoladation — Reduced Disck Requil
AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australion Accounting Stundards arising from the Cansolidativa and Joint Amang 1 Jamary 2013
Standards
AASB 2011-8 Amcndments to Australiom Accounting Standards arising (rom AASES 11 I Jonusry 2013
AASB 201 1-9 Amendments 10 Austratian Accounting Stapdards = Peesentation of ltems of Other Camprehensive Income 1 July 2012
AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Awsiralian Accounting Standards anising from AASB 119 (September 2011) | fanuaey 2013
AASB 2011-11 Amendments to AASB 119 (September 2011 yanising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements | July 2013
AASD 2011-12 Amendments fo Austratian Accoanting Standards srising from loterpretatson 20 (AASS 1) | Janwary 2013
AASE 2011-13 Amesxdments to Australian A g Standand - Improvements ko AASH 1049 | July 2012
Interpretation 20 Stnppig Costs in the Praduction Phase of a Surface Mine 1 Jasuary 2003
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AASB 9, which repluces AASH 139 Fissncial Instruments: Recognstson sad Messuremen, is effective for reparting periads
bcgumlng onror afler [ Junuary 2013 and nust be upplied retrospectively. The inin vmpn of AASB 9 is 1 change the
requir for the classification moat and discl fated walls G al asscts, Under the aew
roquireinents the four cuirent categuries of financial assets stipolated in AASB 139 will be replaced with two measureinent
catcgories; farr vatdue and amortised cost and fisancial agsets will only be able 10 be measured ; amonised cost where very
specific conditions are met,

As a resalt, Counell will be required {0 measure its finaocial assets ot fair value.

Consolidation Standards
The AASB msued a suile of six relsied accounting standurds which arc effestive for annual repoting periods beginaing on
or after 1 January 2013. These standards;

AASB 10 Consulidated Financial Stvcinents

AASB 11 Joimt Arungements

AASB 12 Disclosure ol hlm:us in Otler Entities

AASB 1275 Fingncs

AASH 128 lnveﬁmm in Associates and Joimt Ventures

AASB 2011-7 Amendmests to Australisn Accounting Standards arising from the Consalidstion and Joint
Amgunenu Sundands
#i 0 improve the acc for lidated financial Jjuim amungements and off balapce sheet
vehicles. The AASB is still cnmndcﬂng whiether these standards reed to be modified fur spplication by not-for-profit
entitics. Consequently, not-for-profit entiries are not cumrently permitted 10 apply tiese standards priar to the mandatory

spplication date, As council is u nit-for-profic emtity. no assessment has been made of the potential impact. An assessment

of the anpract will be imade when the pot-for-prolit requirements are finalised

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement (AASB 13)
AASB |3 applies to reponting periods beginning an oc after 1 January 2013, The standard scts out a new definition of “fair
valuc”, as well 2¢ new pnnciples ta be applicd when determining the fair value of assets and Habilities. The new
requirements will apply to all of the Council's assets and liabilities {excluding Jeases) thut are messured andior disclosed ut
fair value or snother mewsurement hased on fair value. The potential impacts of AASB 13 redste to the fair value

i methodologies used, and financial statement disclosures made in respect of, such assets and labitities.

Lockyer Valley Regional Council has commenced reviewing its fair vadue methodologies (including instructions to valuers,

data used and sssumptaans made) for all items of praperty, plant and equipment measurad at fale value 10 datermine whether
those methodologses comply with AASE 13,

To the extent that the methodologses do not comply, changes will be mecessary, While the Council is yet 1o complete this
review, vo significant changes are anticrputed, based on the fair value methodologics presently used. Therefore, und at this
sage, M corsequential material impacts arc expected for the Lockyer Valley Regiomsl Council's propesty, plant and
equipment in 2013-14

AASB 13 will require an increased anwouat of information 10 be disclosed in relation to fair value ncasuresnents far both

assots and liabilities. To the extent that any Rir value measurement for an asset or liahility uses data that is not “observablc®

vaiside the Council, the of infk 10n 10 be disclosed will be relatively grester,

u= ED
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Amendments to AASE 101 Presentation of Financial Statements

The AASB 101 Amendments require council %o group ilems 1 d in other comprehensive incomne inta those that, in
accordanse with other standards: (a) will not be reclusiBed subsequently to profit or lass and {b} will be reclasgificd
subsequently ta profit or loss when specific conditions are met. 1t i3 applicable for annual periods beginning on or slter |
July 2012. The Counvils management expeces thes will change the cumvemt presentation of items in other comprehensive
imcome, hawever, il will ot pffact the o¢ recogmition of such ftems.

Amendaents to AASB 119 Employee Benefits

A revised version of AASB 119 Emplayee Benefits applies from reporting periods begioming on or after | Favssry 2043
The revised AASB 119 i generally to be applsad retrospectively.

The revised Jurd includes changed caiteria for sccountmg foe employee benefits as “shon-tenm employee benelds”.

Had the Lockyer Valley Reglonal Council applied the revised standard this year nonual leave currenly classified as 2 shon.
term bewefit’ would hisve been rechissified a5 a Song-term benefit. However, o reparted amounts woudd bave been nmonded

us the Council alrcady discounts the anoual leave liability 1o p value i respect of noe expecied 1 be senled
within 12 months {refer Note §21)

The Pt of "teonination beaefits™ is clarified and the recagnition criteria for lubilities for ieeminatiaon benelits will be
deflezent. 1€ cenmination demcfits ineet the timels cricenon for “shon-term employee benefits®, they will he measurcd
according 1o the AASA 119 requircinents for “shodt-derm employee henefits". Otherwise. tenmination bevelits will meed w
bo measured acconding to the AASE |19 requiremons for “other long-Lerm employee hanefits”, Under the revised standand,
the recognition and measurement of employer obligations for “athier Jong Lenn emplayee henefits® will need to be accoanted
for acconding 10 most of the requirements for defined benetit plans,

The revised AASEH 119 also Includes changed requs for the of emplover labilitiesassets ansing from
defimed benefit plang, and the measurement snd presentation of changes in such liabilities ussets.
Lockyer Vallcy Regional Council ® w0 1he Local Gov S tion Scheme (Qld) as disclased in note
31. The revised standard will require Lockyer Valley Regional Council to mnke additional disclosures regardimg 1he Defined
Benefns Fund edement of the scheme,
The reported results and position of the 1 will vot change on adoption of the ather pronouacements as they do nat
result in any changes to Couecil's eaisting i licies. Adoption will, however, result in changes to information
currently disclosed in the financial statements. The muncll docs not intend 10 adopt any of thase pronouncements before
their effective dates.

(P Critical accounting [udgements and key sources ol' estimation wncertalnty
In the application of Councl's 1 gement is required 1o make | i and

aboul carrying values of asscts and liabitities that are not raadnly apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumplions are based on historical expericace and other facives that ar: cansidered 10 be relovant, Actual results anay difler
from lixcse estimates. The estimates and ongoing assumptions sre reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions Lo accounting
estimates arc recognised in the penod in which the estimate is revised and in falire pedods as r&levant,

Judg i and P that have a p ial significant effect are outlined in the lollowing Gimancial
sEMement notes:

Valuatson and dopreciation of proparty, plant and equipment - note 1,17 and pote 204b)

Impamnent of property, plang and cquipaient - note 1,18 und note 20 (a)

Provissons « note 1,23 and note 22

Contingencies - note 30

Vage 8
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3 Revenue
Rates, Jevies, grants and otlier sevenue are recagnised a5 revenue on recsipt of funds or earlier upon uncoaditional
entstiement ta the fuds

LR (0) Rates nnd levies
Where rate monics are received peioe (0 the commencement of the mting/levying period, the amount is recognised 25
revenue in tee penad in which they are received, otherwise rates are recognised ut the commenscment of rating pestod

Lockyer Valley Reglonal Courcil Rates Concessians Policy - 2011 Natural Disaster

This palicy ok effect from 16 Febeuary 201 | anid provides for:

|, Remission of ell or part of the mtes and charges Jevied on properties which have been severcly Impacted by the natund
disaster which oceurmed chmg January 201 |: and

.C 0 he d in el 10 the payment of rates on other properties impacted by the astursl disaster which
occuned dunng January 201 | where the propeny owner can demonstrate the paymcm of the rates by the due date would
otherwise cause financa hardship,
DEFINITIONS
Properties which have been teverely impacted:
Inclades:

Propetties where the home or busi premises has been demolshed or reg demalishing as a result of the naturs]

disaster i Janwtry 2011,

Properties where suthoritics have prevented the habitation of the building for a period of more than 4 weeks from the 10
Janaary 2011 due o safety and health concerns.,

Properties where there has been o Joss of life of sn owner or family member of the awner as a result of the natural
dissster.

Ocer propurties impacted by the maheral disaster includes;
Properties which have suffesed inundation in the home or business premises but not included in the severcly impacted
usiegory above,
Prapestics which kave suffered access prablems for a period greater than 4 weeks.

faver Comeessions - 201! Natural Disaster
The following Rates concessions will be extended by Council in relation to the rates issued for the six mooths January - June
2001
Properiies which have beey sevorely impacted by the Jonuary 204 ) Nanwa! Disaster.
Council will remit [00% of all rates and changes applicable for the peried January to June 2011 including inerest, but
axchading apy rate amears

Qrivgr propertivs affected by the Janwary 201 1 Nanwal Disaster
In the case of other praperties affecsed by the natural disaster and the propecty owner making application demonstrating
that the paymient of the rates and charges by the due date would cuuse financial hardship;

Council allowed extended time for the payment of the rates and charges, Provided thet payment was made i full by the
next discount dare, Council would credit o the assessiment an sanount equivalent to the discount and allowed no interest
be chargad i respect of the extended period

or

10 exceptional ¢ evid d by fi ial hardeh | damage or inability 1o imde, Council allow 3
reanission of 100%% of mies and charges applicable fr the pcnod January 0 June 2011,

For the finamcial vear onded 30 June 2012, $26,787 (201 1-394,3 1) was granted in 1ons and
This policy has now boee rescindad,

CERTI-
. STATEMENTS
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1.8 (W) Grants and subsidies
Grants, subsidies amd contributinns that are non-reciprocal in nacues are recognised a5 cevenue i the vear in which Counesl
obtaing comtrol over them, 1f Council hzs an obligasion 10 use @ non-reziproeal grant o suhsidy in a panicular manacr, the
amount is transfemed from reained g8 10 the C inedd Grants, Subsidies & Contributions Reserve until the funds

arc expended,

Whene grants are received that are reciprocal i mature, revenue 15 ncognisad a3 the various performance obligations undes
the funding smangements are fulfilled. Council docs rot curmemly bove any reciprocal grants

I.X (o) Now-cash contributions
Nan-cash contrily are recognised as and a5 BO-CUment assels

Phyml uscts comtnduied 1o Council by developers in the form of ood werks, stonnwater and park equipment arc

d as revenue when the dovelop becomes “on maintenance® {i.e. the Council obtains control of the assets and
hccomcs tiable far any ongoing mainienance) and there is sullicient data in the fonm of drawings and plans 1o detenmne the
approximate specifications and vadues of such assers. Al non-cash contributions are recognised at the fair value of the
coneribution received on the date of acquisition.

LR (d) Cash contributions
AASE [nterpretstion 18 has been applied praspectively from | July 2009, All cash ians from PEFs Were
recognised as reveaac on receipt prior 1o | July 2009

LE (e Rental income
Reatal revenue from invest and other property is recogiused as on # penadic straight Hec basis over the lease
term.

LK Intercst & Distribation Revenue
Interest received from term depesits is accruad over the rerm of the investiment. Distributions are recognisad once they are
Sormally declared

L8 (g Sales of Contract and Recoverable Works
The council g from for road and eurthworks. Revenue is measured at the fir value of
consideration received o receivable in relation ta that activity, Where comsideratron is reoeived for the service in advance i
is included in other lisbilitics (mote 24) and is recognisad as reveauc in the peried when the service is performed,

The sed in relation W extenal works as at 30 June 2012 is propartional to the porcentage of works
completad as msus'.d by the Works Manager, hased upon the stage of cumpletion. Thene ire no conracts in progeess o the
ond of the period and the contract work camied out is mot subject & retentions.

QAO
IFIED
STATEMENTS
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1.8

1.8

1.9

h)

1

)

Fees and Charges
Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entitlement w the funds Generally this is upon Judgement of the
refevant applications or documents. issuing of the infringement notéce or wlien the service is provided,

Serting Cost Recovery Fees
When determining Commercial Chaeges, Council takes Into account user pays prnciphes and market conditions.

1

When determining Regulatoey Fees. Council takes inno accoans “user pays" pei iptes and sots y fees at o level
sutficient 10 recever ni mare than the fill cast of providing the service or taking the sction fir which the foe is charged.

All fees set by Council are included in 3 Registor of Fees and Charges.

I from Inv in Assocd

Parsicipation retirn

As 8 panty 1o the Participation Agreement, Councld will receive a proportional share of net profits as = participation returs.
Retums will he paid for post-tax operating profies (aler adjusting fr copital receipis)

Tax equivalenis

Queenisland Urban Utilitics operates under an income tax equivalent regime; with afl tx paid being distributed to tise
participant Councils on a pro-rata basis to their panicipotion nghts. Tax is payable quancely based on 4 pereentage of the
Queensiand Utban Utilities gross revenue.

Other Revenue
Other revenue is recognised as a receivable when it is probable that it will be receivad and the smount is known. otherwise

the amount is recegriised upon receipt.

Financial sssets and Gabilities

Council recagnises a financial asset or u financinl lisbility in i Statement of Financial Position when, and only when,
Council becomes 2 party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Lockyer Valley Regional Council bos categonised and measured the financial assets and financial linbilities held at balance
date as follows;

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents (nate 1.10)

Reccivables - measured at amontised cost kess any impaisment {nose 1,11}
Orher fimancial assets - measured at fair value (note 1.1(b))

Investments in Assocrates (note 1. ) 3(a))

Financial labilities
Payables « measwed at amontised cost (note | 20)
Baorrowings - meusured ut smanised cost (note .22}

Finameial asseis and fmuncaal Mshilities arc presented separately from cach ofher and offsetting las not been applicd,

CERTIFIED
STATEMENTS
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The fuir vatoe of fingescial Instruments fs detemitined as’ llows:
The fake valoe of cash and cash cquivalents and non-interest bearing y financial assets und financial liabiliies
approximate their carrying amounts and are not disciosed separasoly.
The fhir volue of bonuw:nps. as disclased in pote 23 to the financial staccinents, is detemiined by l:la‘muc w
published price guotations in an active market 2nd‘or by reference to pricing models and valuation tech h
refleces the value of the dobe of the Councal repasd 5t m full ot balunce dute. As it is the intention of the ('omcnl to hold
its borrowings for their full term, pao adjustiscnt provigion & made i these fancial statements.

The fair value of trade receivables approximates the amortised cost less any impainnent, The fais valwe of payablcs
upproximates the amoetised cost

Lockyer Valley Regiomal Council does nar recagise flnancial assets or financial Labilitics af fair vafuc . the Stagement of

Financial Position,
All wther disch 3 relating to the und (inanceal risk I of fiancial wre included in
nate 37

(N [{] Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, all cash and chey ipted but not hanked at tise year cud, deposits
beld at call with financia! insitutions, other shan-term, highly liquéd in with original wies of theee hs or
less that are readity convenible 10 known amounts of cash und which ane subject to an insignificant ek of charges in vahe,

and bank overdrufis,

LIl Receivables
Tiade recesvables are recognised ¢t the amousts due ut the time of sale or service delivery i.c. the agread puichase price /
coatrmet price. Setthement of these emounts is reqeired within 30 days from invoice date.

The collectabality of recervables is d periodically and if there s objective evidence that Council will not be able 1o
collect all amounts due, (he carrying 15 reduced for impal The loss 5 recognised in finunce costs. The
of the impai 15 the diffe b the asset cuimying smount and the present valwe of the estimoted cash

flows discounted at the effective Interest rate.

Al known bad dehts were wrinea-off a1 30 June. Subsegaent recoveries of amounts previously wiitten of! in tye sume
period are recognised as finance costs in the Stateenent of Comprehensive Income. If an amount is reeovered ina
subsequent period it is recognised as revenie.

Where Council is empowered under the provisions of the Local Govemaient Act 2009 to sell an owner's propesty 10 recover
outstanding rate debts, Cauncil does no¢ impaic any e receivables.

Loans and advances are recognésed in the same way as other reczivables. Loan rerms and interest charged are subjoct
agrecd raves and tenmrs. Securidy i not narmally obtained,

Qo
S$A EMENTS
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182

Inventories

Stomes and raw materals held for resale are valued ar the Jower of cost and met realisable value and include, where
applicable, direct maserial, direct labour snd an approprinte portinn of varishle and fixad overheads. Costs are assigaed on
the basis of weiglwed average cost.

Invemarics held for distriburion {intemal consemption) are:
* gouds 1o be supplied ul no, o nominal, charge, and
* gouds 1 be used for the provision of services at no, or nomina), charge.
Inventoey for distrihution is valued ol cost, adjusted when applicable for any Joss of service potential

13 (@) Investenent m Assockate

114

LS

116

Panticipation rights held in Quevnsiand Urban Utilities (e “Authonty”) (refer vote [8(a)) are accounted for using the squily
method o refloct Council's significans influence on the Authority. The initiol vatue of the panticipating rights on | July 2010
has been caleulsted using 3 ragulatany aszes base (RAB) valuation and by applying a ratio agreed by the panticipatiog
Councils und the Authority (refer nate 34). The value at year end incledes Council's share of the Authority’s peofit and other
comprehenssive tncome at 30 June 2012,

(b} Other Financial Assels

Courcil's Share lavesiment i SEQ Regional Recreational Facilities Pty Lid (Note 18(8)) does no¢ have a quoted marke
prece in an notive market and 0 is valued at oost less any enpairment.

Nos current assets held for sale

ltems of property, plant and equipment sre reclassified as non-current assets a3 beld fur sale when the canying amount of
these assets will be recavered principally through s sales transaction racher than cominulng use. Non-current 25sets chassified
05 beld for sale are availabie for immediase sale in their present candition and management believe the sale is highly
probable. Non-current assets held for sale sre measured at the Jower of their carying amaunt and fair value kss cost 1o sel!
and are not depreciated. On the eventual sale of these assets a gain or loss is recognised

Investments

Tenn deposits in excess of three months are reported us imvestments, with deposits of less than three mombs being repomed
as cash equivilents,

Investmemt property

investinent property 15 property held for the primssry purpose of eaming reneals andior capital app ion This inchud
land held by Cuuncil for o carently undetermined future use,

Investment propenty is measured usimy the f2ir value model, This means all invesiment property is initially recognised al
cost {including Lrensaction costs) and thea subsequentfy revalued Iy st the bal sheet date. Whete investasent
peopernty is sequired M po or inal cast it s recognised at fair value,

Giaing o losses arising from changes in the fir value of investment Propernty arc recogiiised us incomes or expenses
respectively for the period in which they arise. Investment property is not depraciated and is not 1ested for impainnem.

QAO
CERTIFIED -
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L Property, plaat and equipment
Each class of propenty, plant and equspment ts stated at cost ar fair valuc Jess, where applicable, any lated

(a)

(b)

(c)

deprecintion and accumulated wpninnent kosa. [tems of plunt und equipment or groups of like assets with a total value of
less than §5,000, and infrustructure assets and bulkdings with o total value of less than $10,000 are treated as un expense in
the year of scquisiticn. All other items of property, plart und equipmens are capitaliscd

The classes of propenty plant and equipment recognised by the council ave reported in tote 20 (a).

Acquisition of asseds

Acquisitioes of assets are initiily recorded at cost, Cost is detennined a3 the fair vakue of the assels given as cansidention
plus costs incideneal to the acquisition, including freight inwards, architect's lees and engineering design fuss and all ather
cstablislnent cosis,

Propeny, plant and equipment received in the form of physseal contributions, are recognised 35 assets and revenues # fir
value by Council. Fair value means the ainount for which a0 assel could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length trapsaction,

Capital and opernting cxpenditure

Wage and matenials expenditure mcuned far the acquisition or cunstruction of assets are d 23 capital expendi
Rewtine opersiing maintenance, repair costs and minue reewils 1o maintain the operational capacity ol the non-curent 4sset
i3 cxpensed as incurred, whale expenditure that relares 10 eeplacement of 2 major component of an asset to mamtain its
service patential s capitalised.

Valuation

Land, buildings, bores and all infrastructure assets ase f on the luation hasis, at fair valuc, in gccordance with
AASH 116 Property, Plant & Bquipment. All other propery, plant and equipment and wark in progress are measored at
cost.

Nomvcarrent physical nssets measared at fair value are revalued, where regaired. so thut the carrying amownt af cach elass of
assel does pol materially differ from its fair value at the reporting date, This is achieved by engaging independent,
peotessionalty qualified valuers to @ ine the fuir value for each class of property, plant and equipinent assots st Jeast
onee every S yeans. This prooess invalves the valuer plwsscally sighling a represencative sample of Council assets scross ol
x55et classes and making their own assessments of the conditlon of the assets al the date of inspection

In the years between ind ! aation, the rel index is obtuined from the Australian Buvesu of Statistics website
and applied if the movement in the index is material,

Any revaluation increment arising an the revaluation of an asset is credited (o the appeopriate class of the assct revaleation
surplus, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previonsly recognised as an expense. A
decrease in the canying amoual on revaluation is charged as an expense 10 the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the
revalustion sumlus of tha assel chass.
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On I accwnlared deprecs is restated proportioeately with the change in the caying smount of the asset snd
any chamge in the estimate of remaining wseful fife.

Scparately tdentitiod companents of assets ane measiurad on the same basis a5 the sets w1 which they relste.
Further details m relation to valuers und the mothods of valuation are disclosed in note 20 (b),

{d) Capital work in progress

The cost of property, plant and cquip being ed by the Counzil includes the cost of purchased sarvices,
materials, direct labour and an appropeate proportion of lebour pverheads. Details of cagwinl work in peogress can be found
in Nots 20¥a).

{e) Depreciation
Land is not depeeciated as it has an unlunited usefisl fife, Depreciation on other propeny, plant and cquipment assets is
calculuced on a stevight-lose basis 50 as 10 wnte<ff the net cost o¢ lued of cach depreciable asset, less its
cstimated residenl value, progressively over its estimatad wsefil life to the Council, Managemend believe that the stright-
line basis appevpeiasely reflects the pattem of comsumption of all Couacil assets

Assers are deprecisted from the date of acquisition of, in respest of intsmally constructed assets, from the tme an s4set &=
leted and copunissioned ready for use.

*

Where assers have separately idomifiable camponmts that are subject w regules repl 1, these comy #re pssigned
useful lives distinet from the asses g0 which they relate Any expenditure that increases the ipinafly | capacity or
service potential of an asset i capitalised and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining wsefu! life of
the asset to the Coureil,

Majar spares parchased specifically for particalar assets that are above the asser recogrativn threshold are capitalisad amd
depreviated on the same basis us the asset to which they relate,

Deprectation methods. estimated usclul Hyes and residual values of property, plamd and equipment assets are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and adjusted wliere necessary to reflect any changes in the pattem of consumpeion, pliysical
wesr and tear, lechnical or ¢ ind obsok L8, o gement inlentions. The condition assessments perfonmed as
part of the anaual val p for assces d at depreciated pl cost are usad to estimaie the
wseful bives of these assers at cach repocting date.

Detatls of the runge of estimated wseful lives for cach cluss of asser are shown in note 20 {a)

n Land under roads
Land under ruads acquired before 30 June 2008 is recognised 3 3 non-current asset where the Council holds title or a
financial lease over the asset. The Lockyer Valley Regional Council currently does not iave any such land hokdings.

Land under the road nctwark within the Council srea that has beey dedicated and opened for public use under the Land Act
1994 ar the Land Title Act 1994 15 not controlled by Coencil but is controlled by the state pursuant to the eefevam
legiskation. Therefore this land (s niot recognisod in these financial statements.
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1,20

LR

(E}]

(b}

(€

[mpairment of non corrent assets

Esch nan-cumrent physical and intangible asset aod group ol assets ss assessed (ur indicators of impatrment annually. 1fan
indicator of possible impairment exists, the Council detenmines the asset’s recoverble amount Any amoumt by which the
assel’s camying amount exceeds the rocovenable = ded s an impai loss. The recoverable amnouni of an
usset is the higher of its fair value fess cosrs to sell and s volue in use

An impaimacnt less i« recogaised immediately in the Statemen of Comprehensive Incomss, unbess tle asset is camied ot o
revikued amount. When the asset is measured at a revatlued ainount, the impainnent loss is offsel againss the assel
revalustion surphns of the relevant chass o the extent available

Wihewe an impainnent loss subsequently revenses, the corrying amaunt of the asset is increazed to (he revised estimole of its
recoverabic amount, bat 50 that the imcreased camyivg amouant does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
d ined had no impad loss been recognased for the asse1 in prior yeas. A revensal of an impaimment loss is
recogrised as incorme unless the ssset i camied at a revalued amount, in wikich case the reversal of the impairmen foss is
treated as a revaluation surplus increase.

Leases

Lenses of plant and cquipment usder which the Council as lessee ussumes subszancially all the risks and bewsdits incidental
10 the ownership of the asset, bot not the legal ownership, arc classified as finaace dexses. Other leases, where substantially
adl the risks and benelits remaim with the kessor, are classilied as opetsting feases. Council had ao finance or operating leases
2 30 June 2012,

Payshies

Trade ereditors are recognised upos receipt of the goods or services omdered and are ineasured st the agreed
purchase/contract price net of applicals discounts cther than contingert discounts. Amounts owing ure umsecured

Lisbilities - employee benefis

Liabifities are recognised for employee bonelits such us wuges and salarics, anaual leave and long secvice leave in respect of
services provided by the employees up to the repocting date. Lishilities for emploves benefits sre assessed al each reponing
Oate. Where it is expected that the leave will be paid in the next twelve moaths the liability is treated as 8 cument liability,
Orthervwise the liability is treated as non-cerrent,

Salaries and wages

A llabiliry for salasies und wages is recognised and measuved as the amouns unpaid at the repomng date al current pay mates
in respect of employees' seevices up 4o that date. This liadility represents an accrued expense and is included in note 21 as 2
payable,

Annual leave

A lsbilicy for anoual leave is recognised. A pected 10 be settled wrhin 12 moaths ¢the currens portioa) are
caiculaled on current wage and salary levels amd includes related eenployee on-cosis. Amounts not expected 1o be settled
within 12 hs {the no partio) are calculated on prajected futwre wage and satary levels and reluted employee
on<asts, and are discountied to present values.

Sick leave
Sack-feave taken in the future will be met by future entitlements and hence 1o recoguition of sccrved sick Jeave estitlements
Lsxve been made in thess fiiancal statements, No entitlement vests with the employos on tenpination
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(d) Superanoustion
The superunmuation expense for the reporting penied is the umount of the contnbution the local government makes o (he
supeeannintion plan which provides benefits w iis employess.
Deraits of those amangements are set owt in note 31

(<) Long service leave
A labilty lor long service leave is messured as the peesent value of the est d future cash ourflows 10 be made = respact
of services providded by employees up ta the repoeting date. The value of the lishifity is calculnied using current pay rites and
projected future increases in those ruses and includes related employce on-costs. The estimates are sdjusted for the
probability of the canployee remaining in the Council's employment or ather ussociated employisent which would resull in
the Cauncil being required o meet the lizbility. Adjustments are then made to allow for the proportion of the benefit canied
10 date, and the result is discounted 1o present value. The intersst mies ataching Lo C Ith G guarantcod
secunties at the reporting date are wsed Lo discount the estimated future cash outflows 1o thelr present value.
‘This Hability 18 reported in note 22 28 a provision

1.22 Borrowings
Barrowings are initially recognisad at fair valee ples any diroctly anrbutable transaction costs. Subseguent % initial
recoghition these Hahifities are measured at amotised case,

I sccordance with the Local Government (Finance, Plans and Reporting) Regulation 2010 council adopts an annual debt
polisy that sels out council's planned barawings foe the next nine years, Council aims to comply with the Queenstand
Treasury Corporstion’s bomowing guidelines and ensure that sustainsbility indicators remain within acceptable levels a1 afl
laimes

It is Councils poticy thsat mew borrowings will anly be raised to fund capital expenditure where the expenditure is raquired to
accommidute growth or 1o ofherwise expand on the scrvices provided 1o the region o 1o develop projacis where there is o
fikcdihood of & commercial redum

Mlh!mwhgomwcatmadhﬁcmiodh-hlchlheyxeim

1.23 Restoration provision
A provision is made for the cost of restoration in respoct of refuse dumps and quarrics where it &s probable the Council will
be liable, or vequired, 10 incur such a cost on the cessation of wse of these facilitiss The provision is measura at the
expected cost of the work required, discounted 1o current day vilues using the interest rutes artaching to Commoaweéalth
Gavermment guarantecd ities with & ity date panding to the anticipated date of the restortion

Within each restoration provision there iy be many site locations svme of which con be on council controlled fand and

seme which are nor, The following t apply depending on the site location
$ PP

Restoratian on land sot controlled by Council

Where th restoration site is an State reserves which the council does mot control, the cost of the provisions for restorativn of
Uese sitess has to be treatedd 2% an expense in the year the provision is flrst grised. Changes in the provision doe 10 eillyer
time, discount mte of expeoted future cost are treated as o exp of i in the repontiag period in which they anise.

Restoration oa land controtled by Council

Restaration sites that are situated o Council conerolled land are classified as land und improvement assets, The provision
for restoration i, therefore, includod in the cost of the lasd and amortised aver the expected usefil life of the improvements.
Changes in the provision pot arsing from the passing of tie sre sdded tn or deducsod from the asset revalkuation surplus for
land. If there is no available revaluat Plus, i in the provisian are treated 23 an expense and recovered owt of
fulure decreases (if any).

Changes to the provision resulting from the passing of time (die unwinding of the discount ) are trested 33 o {nance cosz,
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1.24

1.25

1.26

The council has the following restoration peovissms:

Refuse sites

The provision reprcaents the preseat value of the anticipated future casts 2ssociated with the closure of the refisse sites,
decontamination and maonitoring of hissorical residucs and leaching on twese sues.

The caleulution of this provision requires assomptions such a8 application of environmental legishcion, site closure dates,
available technologies and enginsering cost esti These w jes nsay result in future actual expesdilure dilfening
from amounts carrently pravided, Because of the long-1zom nature of the Jability, the most significant uncertainty in
estinuling the provisson is the costs that will be incusred.

The peovision recogaised for refuse sites is reviewed ¢ Jeast anaually and updated based on the facts and clecumsiiances
avanlable at the time.

Management estimares that 1he cost is expected Lo be incurmed periodicafly from 2014

Quarry sites
The provision represeats the present valoe of the anticipated At costs associaled with the closure of the quamy sites,
reclamation and rebabilisation of these sices.

The ealeulation of this provision requires assamptions such as application of enviroamental kegislation, site closure duses,
avadlable technologies ard cigineering cost estimates. These uncertaintics nay resull in future sctuzl expenditure differing
from amaunts ¢ Iy provided. Be of the Jomg-term nature of the liability, the most sigmificant uncertamty in
estimating the provision is the costs that will be incurred, The provision recognised fur quany sites rehabslitatiost is reviewed
at bzast annaally and updated based on the fbets and circumstances available at the time

Management cstimaccs that the cust is expected to be incurred periadically frum 2014

Asset revaluation surplus

The asset revaluntion surplus comgnses adj relating 1o changes in valus of propenty, plant and cquipment that do
008 cesolt from Lhe wse of thase assets, Net incremental chunges in the carrying value of classes of pon-curvent assets since
their imicial recognition are accumulsted = the zuset revatuation surplus.

Increases and decreases oo revakation ure affset within a class of assets.

Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation, that decrease is offset finst against the g 10 the asset
revaluation surpius in respect of that class, Any excess i3 treated a8 an cxpense

When an ssset is disposed of, the amount reporsed in sumlus in respect of that asset is retained in he assct revaluation
seplus and mot ferred to retained surphs,

Retained surpius (deficit)

Thig represents the amoant of Couredl's net funds net set aside in reserves 1o mecs specific future needs.

Reserves held for funding future enpltal expenditure

These reserves are credated from varous revenue . that are lated o meet anticipated futuse capital asset
fanding requiremnems. In esch case the amount relates 10 & perceived furuee requirement which is sat currely o ability.

Council resolved to creste these reserves of its mecting on 12 Sepeember 2012,

Constrained grants and subsidy contributions reserve

This reserve is credited with all non-recapeocal grants, subsidics aod comributions of y revemwe received dunng the
repoated period uxd constrained for 1ho purpuse of funding capital expenditure, As the funds an: expended on capital assels
the equivalent amounts are transfemed fron the reserve to Cauncil's Copital accoust. Tl closing halance reported o the
period end represents the unexpended amounts and must be retained wntif the odligation’s specified by the comtributor is
satisfied.
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1.27

Grants, subsidies and contributions reimbersed reserve
This reserve is credited with all grants, subsidies and contribucions of monetary revenue roceived during the reponted period
which are a reimbursement of capital funds expended or are funds that are uncommitted at time of receipt

Regtonal Aqaatic Centre Reserve
This reserve was created maindy Lo fund the construction of the Regronal Aquatic Centre. This reserve is expectad to he
utifised within 3 years,

Laidley Recreation Reserve Community Facility
Thas reserve was created mainly to fusd the construction of o multl parpose sports facility in Laidley. This reserve is
cxpected 1o be utilised within 3 years.

Lund Development reserve
This reserve was crested for the future purchase and develop of land. Manag pocts this resssve 1o be wilised
within 3-5 years.

Roadworks Extractive Industry reserve
This reserve was created 1o hiold volumary comtributions fram cxtactive industry operators to fund future cepital roadwirks.
Management may utilise these funds it any time,

Roads - Property Access reserve

This reserve wis created for fiture capital road expenditure and construction of property accesses, This reserve s wtilised as
property accesses are created and fonds cquivalent t the cost of these propeny seoesses are transfanved from the reserve
cach year,

Regional Infrastructure reserve
This reserve was created to sex aside funds for the purpose of funding future capital infrastructure within the region.
Managemenr will utilise these funds s projects are approved,

Reserves held for funding future recurrent expenditure:

These reserves have heen created to ineet anticipated luture recurrens or operatimg expenditure needs, [n each case the
aenount relates to a perceived future requirement which is not currently 2 Fabitity.

Council resolved %o create these reserves at its meeting on 12 Sepeember 2012,

Legal Expenses rescrve
Thas reserve was created fur the purpase of funding

pectcd legal

Rates Levies reserve

This reserve was created 1o hold the batance of unspent funds from the Stare E ¥ Services, Envir 1, Waste
Callection und Disaster Management rates levies These funds will be utitised ta fund disaster management, State
Emergercy Setrvice, envi al and waste functions as necded

Election Expenses reserve
This reserve was created 10 contribute tawards the cost of futire Local Government Electivas. This is expecied 1 be unlised
within 4 years,

Prepaid Graots reserve
This reserve is crodited with operationa] grants prepaid 1o the Cosmeil bt relating 1o the follawing year and grants paxd
during the 2012 year but not Fully expensded by 30 Jusc 2012 This reserve will be expended within 2 years,

Self Insurance reserve
Tlus reserve was areated for the purpose of previding funds 10 contribute lawards the custs of future works or PAYIENLS 1ot
covered by Council's insurance policy.
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NDRRA reserve

This reserve is credited with the balince of funds provided by the Queensland Reconstruction Autharity as an advance of
fundling under the Nazural Dissster Relict snd Recovery Amang 5. [t 32 specalically for funding approved expenditure
incurred sn the cost of Council's Counter Disaster Operatioas; thr funding of Emcrgent Works and [or restoration of
Council’s Essential Fublic Assets danaged during tie 201 | Natural Disaster in the Lozkyer Valley region. Managetnent
expect these fands 1w be utitised within 3 years.

1.28 National competition policy
The Council has reviewed s1s sctivities and hus identified four activities that are busivess sctivities. Details of these

activities can be found im note 38,

1.9 Reounding and comparatives
The financial stasements have beers rounded b the nearest $1

C ive infe has been d where necessary 10 be consistens with disclosuscs in the cunrenl reporting peniod

par

1.30 Trust funds held for ourside poarties
Funds beld in the trust account on belall of outside partes include those funds from the sale of lamd for arrears in mfes,
deposits for the contmauted sale of Iand, seeerity deposits lodged fo guamintee performance and unclaimed momes (e.z.
wages) paid into the trest account by the Council. The Council pedorms caly a custodiun role ia respact of these monies
ard because the monics cannot be used for Council purposes, they are nor considered revenme nor brought 1 seeount in the
financil stalements.

For details see pote 32,

L3 Taxation
Incaine of kocal suthoritics and public suthornities is Pt from Ci Ith taxarion cxcept for Fringe Benelits Tax
and Goods and Services Tax (GST). The et amount of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATO i3 stiown as
an ssset or liability respectively

The Council does not pay payvroll tax to the Queensland Govemment as its activitics are under tse threshold,

1.32 Related Party Disclosure
Lockyer Valley Regional Council has four members out of six members on the boord of the Esk-Gatton-Luidley Waser
Baard {joind local govermment estity).
The Chict Executive Oficer of Lockyer Valley Regional Couecil is the Cliel Exccutive Officer of the Esk-Gatton-Laidley
Waler Board. Admiénistmation is undertaken by staff of the |Lockyer Valley Regioml Councel.

Details of all relwted paety lons for the financial year are demiled in noce 35

Follawing the transfer of the Boark water infrastnucrure assers 10 Quesasiand Urban Utilities on the (st Jaly 2010 the
Board's onginil purpose 1o operate a¢ a water board po knger exists, At s inocting liedd on 28 June 201 |, the Baord
formally resolved to wind wp its alTairs. This is expected (o occur during the 2092-13 financial vear following the passing of
stute legisiation to ubolish the Board whdch is 3 jointly controiled local govermment entity under the Local Gavemiment Act.

All lisbidties have been seetled and ofl assets kave boen distrbuted 10 the member councils in accondanes with the members
agreement

Page 20

Attachment 1 9.2 Page 112



General Purpose Financial Statement - 2011/2012

Attachment 1
QAO Statements

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL

Notes to the Financlal Statemenzs
For the year esded 30 June 2012

1.32

1.34

Grantham Land Swap

In the 2012 financesl year, Lockyer Valley Regional Council entered into 2 land swap amungement with eligible residents
wio were cffected by the fanuary 2011 Natural Disaster. In 2011 Cuuncil purchased a biock of land high on the hill near the
Cimncham aownehip and began developing a porticn of the block. This puction of the land known as Stage | Grantham was
subdivided und roads, wastewater, water and packs fucilities were constructed.

Land in flood affected areas was swappsd for blocks on the hill. Seventy-four residenss nok up the swap option. The land
was independently vulued by Asset Val Ply Lud during the 2012 financial year peiar 10 the swap transactions being processed

mn Council’s 1ecords. There was o significant increase in the value of the tand in Stage | Gruntham as it had beon subdivided
and zoned for residenrial living, The land valuat d the assel revaluation surplus by S10.9335m. Land vabued at
$8.252m was sold for the comtractia] price of $1.60 1t resulting in 8 doss of $6.65in. Noe 6(b) is peincipally made up of this
Smount.

Ervors

Management of Lockyer Valley Regional Council huve identified an emue i the revaluation adjustment fo the ssset
revaluation suplas lines in the Property, plant and equipeient note.

Murag have idenlified that the discl of this evor will resull in & material change to the previously reported 2011
figures foe the Cloging Gross value, closing accumulated depreciation amd impainment balance as well as 2 material change
10 the Revaluation adjustment o the asset revaluation surplus Lines in both the BuiMings and Total columns in fise Praperty,
Plant and Equipment note, The ermoe in the Asset values section of the note was compensated by & crror of the same amount
in the Accumulated depreciation and impairment section of 1he note therefare the net offact was 2eto. The reparted 2011
ligures for Comprchensive Incoine, Council Capital, and net Propenty, plant and equip remaits uschanged. The impact
on the financial sextement tine isems hus been disclosed in Noie 39,
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1

(a) Components of council funetions
The activates relating to the Council's components reporied on in Note 2 (b) are as lollows

Corporate Governance
T ensure sccoustable & transparent prooesses that enable efficient and effective service delivery.

Essential Services Roads
To muintain snd develop 2 core roads and deaimage inf) Lure ok witich satisfies the needs of
our growing community whilst contributing to the protection and eshancement of the natural 4o

physical envizoament

Essential Services Water
T maintain and develop an effective and =ficient process fr the treatment, storge und distribution of
waer to meet the soctal, bealth, ece iz and envi | needs of our growing iy, whelst

CRCOUTAZING CONSEIVATION,

Essential Services Wastewater
To maintsin and develop infrastractire far the effective and eflicient collection, treatment and disposal
of wastewater to meet the social, health, ec ic and envin | needs of our grawang commenity

Essential Services Waste Management
To maintain and develop infrasiructare for the collection and disposal of damestic, recyclable,
commercial and industrial waste i an envicoamentally sceeptable and cost MR tive manner so as 1o
meet the needs ol our growing commanity,

Landscape
To eahance and mastain the patueal and butll envir for the ity's enjoyient

Sustainable Growth
Tor promote and manage sustainahts growth and economic development throughout the region

Leadership
lo provide dynamic, innovative leadership and active ly

Community Lifestyic
To provide and a6sist in be developeneat of services & facilitias 1o ensich commmnity litis

Community Recovery
To suppart the flood de | ities' loog term recovery vecds for the reconstraction of the
physical infrastrecture as well as the restoration of emativeal, sucial. ecomomic and physical welllecing.
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2 Analysis of results by fusction

(b) Revenue, expenses and assets have been attribured (o the following functions :
Functions Income Total Total Net Assets
Grants Other income eXpenses result
for period
20012 2012 2012 012 2012 2092
s S S s ) $
_Componate Governance 3193675 | 2R4R498 [ 27042173 GATTIRR | 17664985 | 94,118,358
Essential Services Roads - 2,799,583 7,925,823 10225406 | 15574215 (4,848 HO9)| 268872615
[Essential Services Waste Management nonel 3136168 3,146,264 | 17324387 [ (14,178023)] 3363014
| Landscape mn| 6S1369] 651369 573,364 78,005 110,000
Sustainable Growth 1 2400392 2515238 | 4455630 $,587612 (4131,982)] 9,341,663
Leadership o o 1088874 | (0 OBY574) 7,564
_ Commuaity Lifestyle L0781 | 2085075 | 3245956 | 1237928 [ (9.601972)) 58052859
Community Recovery 69,590,345 974,970 70,565,315 70143936 | (1878621} 15751106
Total TX.6%.776 41,137,437 119832213 137,517,504 (l?,ﬂﬂ‘)lj 449817184
Prior Year
Functions income Total Total Net Assets
Giranss Other income expenses result
for peried
21 2011 2011 2011 2010 2011
] S S 3 M S
_ Carporate Governance 2140259 | 23191723 25331582 | S052673 [ 20179309 | 84354747
|__Essential Services Roads 3260630 | 10419015 ) 14688645 10,894,700 3793948 [ 234860315
_Esscatial Services Water _ : ez ossen|  ensds| ussesoam| .
Essential Services Wastewater I B el . 00» 0
__Essential Services Waste Management 139374 2751535 2890909 2,641,957 248.952 1,119,152
_ Londscape - We632| 399,632 _ 181548 205688 | 350,652
Sustainable Growth 139.300 | 2,510,550 2,649,850 | 6153284 | (3.503404) 9,662,584
_Leadorship g i - m228s | qsmass) 10250
Community Lifestyle LB | esTLIOT] 298498 BT95630 | (6BI0S4)] 6380171
Community Recovery 39,734,956 152,300 39887456 37,030,262 2857 164 9972246
__'l'o_tul 47,537,398 4II203,248 38}00&6 91,586,304 {2,785 662\ 396_.?]9,] 17
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2012 Wi
Nute s b
3 Revenve unslysis
(8 Rates s heviex B18)]
Geueral reaes 21,357,537 W55
Separiee s 1087005 2202041
Special Charpes 81.96) 2L,
Water communpsion, ceniyl 3nd sandem - (33,031)
Sewerage - (NRH
Wasse Collection Charges 1146624 | (37431
ates and weility chaeps rovmoe WA 23465874
Less: Discoants (981409 11176849,
Net maees and sy churpes 23492320 2177704
(b)  Statutory fees and churpes
Animal Cenral 299 |85 s
Palding & Developaos 1536510 1545, 160
Refuse Tip & Rooycling 408642 268677
Childzare & KACC 413,729 40187
Fasace & Conporate Govemasn 210218 198,022
Ulser Fees 30d changes. 1.747.320 1,293,933
4.76) 400 4,080,411
i) Reotal and levies
Commnmity housiag cestal mcome 457 73,004
Otliee peoperey restal mesine iseTn 265420
450368 338584
(] Toderest vecivved
Invescoents 1,646,022 16 460
Ingerest an debion & QUL 951,607 1,000,389
Orvwr due rates and unlity charges 15954 143,798
232'62! 24K 547
(e} Share of profit from sssocixic
Quecsaland Urban Uillines | 104 204 LLYZ 188
1,104,634 1192 186
() Sales uf contract wod recoverable works
Reverve 3,393 546 2,484,745
3.3, 440 2,484,748
The amoum racogaised a8 feverns oo mmtraat wirks during
1he period i the smomt receivable in sespect el lavoices
issucd duning the perind,
There are no contracts 1 progress at the perod end
The contrect wiek carried ot i n3t subject in neeotions,
() Other vecurrent income
Inzoec se cquivalent reosived 421688 s e
Othar Revenae 210282 168014
Sole of sendey sziall value inems 65,137 #6949
Refird of Q.U U establistumsot cosrs - 101.710
00, 107 672.454
th) Desiribation fram Esk-Gatton-Laidbey Warer Board 2246 N3
“ Grants, subsids b nnd daaark 1.4k}
W R - graats, subsidies and conty
are analysed s follows:
General purpes: grams 4518515 1017
Commonezahh Govermmemnt g S1054, 150 1695542
Ste Govemimeot subrsdies & praats 4276957 21157120
(Mer Non-Govermme Suhsidies Ma587 .
Contribytions - 51
Tota) recurrent reverue 61,970,140 44,950 8460
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The 13 quaresr of the 201) Fimnciol Assisisace Gran for dhe
s of $1.745 926 was paid 1 Council in Jane 2012

Ouring the 2012 fismacal, the Queensizad Reconstnction
Autharity provided fusding of $50.233 willisa weder the
Naroral Disasier Redscl aml R y Arng progr
i apecifically for fouting spproved espeaditure incurmed in
the cost of resterstion of Council's Fssential Public Assets
Secraged during tha 2011 Naturad Disesrer in the Lockyer
Valtey regioa

In the 2012 flasacial year the
Authoney provided fuading ol S18m . lewas specifically fur
fanilinyg approved espenditure scurred @ the zost of Councily
G owrehip |

) Caplesl - grants, sehsidies, toneributions
and dosatives sre analysed as followy:
(i) Monstary stvaawe desigraned for capital faeding pumuses:
Coenmuuweenlth govemineot grases
Statw Government psbsidies & granis
Other Nus-Goverament Subsidios
Contribunons

y 2 ,
ol iy

) N

Y ftvue ysed as follow 1 Afe)
Developer asyos coatritured hy developers #t Hir vake
Donaricus frven ihird porsies af fair vahos

Toul capenl revenun

Douwstions from third pames 1 cenpriscd of plame, » ded, »
ek aned park matarials donated 1o aid the Nood recovery
modes,
4 Caphtul income

Caur on the sale of capifal aves

Revahotlon of bvesmient propeny « land sad buiddegs

Chaint aryving from recogmesiog asseis that were aot previcusly

recugned

6 Gaia (lesx) on the disposal of capital soety
(8} Proceeds from the sale of plaot and eqelpment

Lass: Rook vabe of plass axd equipmen sold

(b1 Troceeds fram (he sale of lasd and buildings
Lesar Book value of Laad and buildingy sold
1

San

Totad g (hoss) o the dipassl of capital pssots

2012 2011
] §
2806821 54,021
42328403 223,80
194319 Y
$05 044 | AR 2123
17,723,157 165738
3,540 405 S 818008
0 820250
3489088 G664 345
21.427.245 13450,119
- 0%
- 43408
- 230,276
. 434787
172,202 242321
20,1633 (182.233)
(47.981) 60076
1514091 o
(R262
16687909 -
lSMSA!m M)IOM
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Notezy o the Geancaal saicacons
For the yeter ended 30 June 1012

2012 2008
Note $ )
T Empleyrr beorfity

Opcraicoad srall wages and salanies 1783470 12,530, 51

Councllless' remesceation 333,005 5782

A, sick and long servico beave aunitlesens 4654004 1IN A

Superasueion Rl 2632936 1970268

15855712 15.819.851

Oy emphory e velsied expences T 508 G316

0,36027% 10245767

Wages acsd satanus vachide capitatised wagss clanged 10 the

sonsruciion of capiial asscts.

Counilior remusesation teprcicnts salaty, sed sther

allorwances paid it reipott of carmying ost their duties,

Tomal Council employocs st June 2012: Wi 2011
Flected members 7 7
Adeninisiration sl 265 175
Dvpot 2ud outdsors staff 167 168

Toud full thse equivalas emphoyoss 419 150

B Meterials wnd services

Andx of sl franciel ssements v the Avdace Generel of

Quecnstand 99340 2400

Advertiving 3z 2347

Consaltancy Services I,752,003 737

Dopataes Paid 38911 247913

[avestmont propony expetses 26 34

Facilities mamiciamce VI8 L66 230,897

Ruildings mainemnce 1337510 1,25.410

a0t mainienancs 2402772 2,551

Read aperatioes 1552941 1.120,91%

Repairs - flocd damaged aisets 45.504. N0 20053340

Rosdi mainterance 307218 1308997

Remls - Operating keases - 6124

Other insterisd wnd services 2 LAGE 782

77,950,312 tﬁlﬁ&la
9 Fisance comts

Fustnce custy zharged by the laad Treasury O “urn S2442

Bank charges 11081 95753

Impainseess of receivables sl tod debis wrinten off 2 (E4.92%)

468571 44.265
M Deprecimtion 1L1%e)

Depreciation of mem-current wssees
Buildings 1,327,600 1205 046
Plara asd other equpaent 2588298 2566330
Road and Dusiosge Natwork 6453507 4285007
Bore 11,8920 1nsae
Ober Assers 459,552 AN

lﬂéﬂgﬁ? !&‘},014
11 Copliad expenses

Less on the sade af capiind msets ° HAISAN .

Leas on wnie-o 7 of capital assees 12 Nisaz ET0.5%0

Revaduntion down ol prepenties 19 150000

£035 g8 addcti previously grised i dy 36 22

[uceease i the rebabillation provision die ke necogaiion of

shes ressinmy future expandinre -

2 14,7585 402 .

Toul capnal exgrsics 22 224116 179590

QAO
ERTIFIED
S%ATEMNTS
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Nokes 1o the flsas: il ustemeuts

Fc the year endod 10 June 2012

FITH] 2011
Nede s 5
12 Loss on wrikewdT of capitn! asyees are s follows:
Buikdimys 204.505 26,352
Plast and cther equgmioy 2671 A5 852
Hossd 2od Drainage Nerwork . 166030
Other Assats 10,3 143308
" 513662 87539
13 Cood assets nad ciih equivabents 110
Cash in operating bask accoent 10,571,382 L341967
Cash ln cabier barks and on bond 13290 14290
Irvestiments leeld on fixed impecest rates 15.000.000
Deponlts and evvertments held with QTC 3t varastde infemst
e 13,650,042 104a3¢411
Halase per stasement of cash flowy 2503718 26,700,664
Evkcrsally soposed di i a1 the reparvag date
tefiie 10 Ohe Tollowing cash assets
Unspeek govemmeint grants and sutvadey I7 (o} 132725 21687
Urspent developer contribations bR Rt 492269 K5, 540
Prepaid graeus (pee) 27(h43) - 72,140
Usnepent NDRRA grane 27(h)42) 5911530 5,799,266 _
Tomal waspenn restnzsed cash fie capit| projeces : El Si‘ A498.048
Cash and depoeits a1 call arc hedd wit e Natios! Ausadiy
Bauk w wonml basiness cherse azcouns and ot call with QTC.
Shoet sers fved jnerest owestments ane held with varloos
inzludiag Sweooep. Beadigs Sank and the
Cemmonwenkh Bank Maturity daces cu the stor senn fisod
irtorest investmenss mange Ao 61 10 90 days wnd interest Taes
aange o $% 0 £ 55%,
14 Trade and ether recelvables il
a) Currem
Raseahle reverse sed utilicy charges 3,943 950 3539668
L2ss: Impaimecs prevision (355.242) (45441
3553708 1494 187
Acerued go eraling granes med \d» . 1000000
Accrued imepsst {mscluding Q1,13 196,557 289214
Accrued Pantjcipation Righe - QUL 39630 395,500
Azorued inconse ws equivalenis 140,331 1ex7
GST secoverable 36036 [RURE LY
Onher debeors 148i20 2473303
Lany, Impairmene peovision (1.147) 27,560
3442618 5727210
Prepayments 79,059 195495
Land Receivable $92.0%
18) New-currest
Losus 0 Q0L 4,734 960 14,734 059
AT T T e
Inezrest &5 Changed on Owsstnding Tates at 3 rate of |2% per
arnu. Dby invoiced dening the 2011712 fiesmcia] year and
which penaln oscseanding for grealer them 50 days, dhall Sear
stlerdal af the rale of 7%, No imerest is changed an debtoay
oveiced prior (o 30 June 201 | usiess » gecifis smangomen
s bocn stade
The Paticipating Comncils of Q1 lsad Urbes Exines
QUL mchading Lozkyer Valley Regioeal Council hrce
peoviilent kang %0 Oueenstand Urban Utibinkes weder a separmte
ks (*Partizipacg Locsl G Fiored Rate
Loan Agrecament (Senior Dabt)") This koo is saject jo u Mxed
mleeest rate of 6 7534% with manihly lomerest-only topmymeants
%o 30 June 1014, Tha anigiral loan was foce 3 yese ponnd 0
30 June 2013 et Coooes] and the Quacnstand Tocasarer lave
given writhen approvel 1o exvend rhe loaus 3 30 June 2084
The senns will be yeacgotisned prity +o 30 June 2013
M. i Isted inspsi losses {rads and other receivables)
is as follows:
Opewing talsne 1050 17195
Fepatninent adjustment s period _— 200330 (104T04)
Clising balasos m!"" mﬂ 030
CERTIFIED
STATEMENTS ./,
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Notrs 3o the fnascdl sateoods
For the year eaded 30 June 2017

2012 200t
Note s 5
15 faventonss 192
Current
Invemnories beld for sale
Talz Sk 2408 2956
Soavenir stock 14,493 15,120
41282 44,100
Inversoches for mieenal s
Quarry and road maieriais 182,437 410,417
Sasces andd masesinly 473960 415082
£36.397 935,309
Valued a1 cont, sfusied when applicabic for sy boss of
sorvice posrocial
379479 00615
1% Cashilovesiments
Fixed senn isvedment 11.500.20¢ -
11, 900.00¢ -
—————ux1
Torm deposits at ixed Inserest miss pee beld with the (olineing
fltsanciad astitulione: Natioral Asseralio Bask, Couuncawalil
Bark, ING. Heritage Bank, Bank West, Bandips Bunk and the
Bank of Quecnsland Maturiy rarges from 01 to 133 days and
bear imerost raecs from 4.99% oo 6%,
1T Nog-cwrrewt ascets chassified as heid for sale
Opening balmce a1 vihation 21600 ATS.0M
Transfer from ocker non cument asset catcgory PSRRI W [ <! L
3,000 91,000
Ihis is Band af 17 Mile Road, Helidon. Courwil tus decided 1o
scll B¢ lind us it s no longer required. I has been placed with
real esane 2ents and (s expected to be sold witlos oo yer,
Theex lndd i widond 2t the lower of cost and selling price less
0ot o sell,
15(0) Tovesiment in Associate
lavestnent in Queeimidare! Lrban Ukilities 14,043,175 13012487
Heconzilionion of the cacrying ssowst sl the hegiening sod end
of the Current and pezviont period is st out below:
Tevesrmest in Queensiand Urbas Utiities
Fals value 1 beginsing of finanzisl year 21532457
Participution Rights recalvad from ner sssets wanslormad
o QUL - 21919384
A Le) 0.905% sham of QUL Income 1,196 43¢ 1092184
Less distributions peatipsabile 1 Council (878.716) (320018
Fair valoe st end of fimancial year 24745 175 233512 487
I8 (b} Oher Financial Assees
Shurr imvstment In SEQ Reglonal Reereational Faritaics Pty Lid
Carrying Mnoant at begiming of peried S0.000 .
Cash injected in the kerveitnont in the period - 40000
Balanze o end of the financid pear 40,000 40.000

Thiss s 2n uelisred wo for pofit covry & Councif's (nvesuneat
s conrgriced of 40,000 31 shares.
Thet Sovestimenl i esponed o i cost value

QA
ERTIFIED
STATEMENTS
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Nodes 10 the fmoacsl suicncs
For the year endad )& June 2012

2012 200
Noee ) s
19 Investment propertics 116
Preperty held fiee reatsd incume and capmal growek 1,230,000 3,480 000
Fale vadee ot end of finyrcial year 3.230.000 3 430 100
Movemead o wisets during rihe regarting g riod:

Propesty held for rental incomo and capiead growth
Fair value o depinniag of flasocisl year FAROO .
Fair valuc of weves mansfamed from odier assct caleygory 17 . 7500
Acqumitions . 1456305
Re oo adj % inzome 1250.000) 188,405
Fair value at end of fiunzisl yow 1,230 000 1,450,000

Allinvestmen peopeny wax valued w faor value by Jeag Plang
Kuan (Aden), Cerifiod Pracusiag Valuer, Registmtion No.
3503 of AsseVal By Lol Aswaal Py Lid have extensive
experience 2 valuing properties of dis nature in the Lockyer
Valley Reyional Cogneil and surmmnding sreas. Falr valus was
determined by reference 10 markes hased evidence inciuding
observabile historical sslcs data in vhe redevare murker for
proparmies of sexular nature and spesificaton,

Investment property campriscs

Land &l Lakevicw Drive, Gamron and lead ot Woodlaads Reas
Gannn. No inceme has been receivad on these propenses fir
2012 s both propertion are vacast bad. Expenses s dlschoscd
in Noie 8.

CERTIFI
STATEMEE?S
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Nedes 10 the finsacil sinerecis
For the year =sdad 39 Jans 2012

n m "

012

Nove s

pesty, plnr and equip were derermined by refecence

to the follawing!

The fair valae of lend i mesared of cormom inarke: vokio 23 a1 30 Juoe
2012 as independendty docrminnd by Jeng "tang Kuan (Adex),
Certificd Fractisiag Valuer No. 3508 of Asser\V'al boy Led Foer value
was dervved by refermce 10 market based evideece incloding
obieralils historical sdes data foe peopenies of s Ve paoue snd
specification within the Lackyer Valley Regional Couocit aad
esrending aress

Land under coads sequirsd before 30 Juse 2008 & recogread % 3 1o
corren asscs where the Cosncil 3ol tithe or 2 fancial kease over the
wsset. The Lockyer Valiey Reglonal Councd cumetly does not have
any sach tand RoMings

Land wnder the road nerwork withis the Cosncil srew that has been

dedicated md opened for pelilic use eader the Lazd Act 1086 or the

Land Tithe Act 199 1s pot cootrobled by coenil but & cusirolied by

the stne parssant 10 the redevent Segislation. Thersfure thiv band 1 wot
sed in these Fuasncial

Huildinge

Ihe last independen ¢ i leston of baild: u (ar
value, 35 3 30 Jure 2001 was provaded by Shoux | mdarsoa, Cemified
Poacridug Valass No, 2952 of AssetVal Pry Lod

Huildings are valued at Depraciaied Replacerncst Coal or Markst
Vatue (whichever baing most apgeoprine).

Boilings were nat indexed a6 fie moversent for De Soancial year (v
the Nea L tuillng ioer Quesnstand index (Index
neuibor 3020} was kecrial,

Plant aed other equipment

Other plant and equipareet (s e o1 oflgiad cos fosy
secursalated deprecianion

Road and Dreirage Netwrok

The fir value of made and dmizege infraswuciere as a3 June 2012
was andependently valied by Jolin Paul Messerger, Conifind
Pracrising Valeer of AsictVad Py Lid Roads a0d dradnape &5405 were
valued i Deprecined Repbeement Cour 25 there Li o tnarket for these
oty which are hel 10 provids essential services 1o the cotnoanicy,

A comprebensive ceview of the uieful Sves axd residus] vabies of
roads and dainage sssow hay been undertaken by Asset Val Pry Ly
stafl. Assers have been rated acooeding 1o cosd

canging Gom [ 1o 10, Ore being of poor (enservivesbie) ceadiion,
five being of average sondition sad ep 00 ten being in exeellem
otodiio.

Average S for cach of @e key comporents wee:

Romd Scal - Speay oW
Roed Seal - Asphait 15.00
Kerb & Channet .63
Footparis N5

Scabd Unsealed

roads foads

] s

Formartien #19 18.10
Pevcman ITm 1.9

Fam 2
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Hotes to the fuvacial cnsmens
Tor 1l vear eaded 30 Jane 2012

Valeation ol beee wdromocare asiews, of fur viber, 35 31 30 Juge 2012
wis determrined by applvang s indes of |01 %, Council ndugred e
Index ABS 1029 Non-residesta] builéing corstruction Qaecashind
ibe appeepniace ndex. This indor was soorced doms the Azstralian
Pearess of Sunhoics webwite, A h I of bares
was but wndemben & the 2000 finarcil yeor by Councl's engicers
and tecknical wulf

A cteeprehenvive roview of the usedel lives mnd sesichial vahues of
hoes his Bece wnberaben by Cosncils eagineers and technical s,

Other Assetr

Oches asiets inchade arafany, 7arks equipinet sd ipoetisg foknes
Artclaces Rave deen valuod 21 con. (ther amets srqered since 15
Marck 2NG are valued s wrinen dows, hiswrcsl coat.

21 Trade 4ad wher puyahles

Carrent
Accreals
Creditoes
G5 T payable
Employee eelaied sccranly
Sawe Fie Levy
Aanzl levee
TILKCOParennl lesve

Non Caerent
Arsueal beavs

Emplnyee beselit sxponsrs are calowboad ot cunest pay Jevelds and
adunad fur inflanes sod bkely fovere heoges = alary lovel

The noa-currest pertion of anowl keave aad boag service loive (s then
diicrasted 10 the presens value. Farfher detads o employer
eatitleponts are reponad tn Nows | 71

13 Provisioes

Curreat
Loag srvice kave

Noa-Current
Leng tervice have
Prepemy resiocuion
(1} Refuse yiley
&) Qearry sitas

Haluse a0d OQuamy T wane d e
owrment year utllinisy an ndependeot calociand Cemakes by ATan
Warson and Asseciatious mad the ALC Croup. The angwny
recogriied fepresent the net present vakie of the peojected coes mver
the cout dwesty yeurs,

2012 201
Nete s 3
120
7952 11,222,684
|, 710282 53930
- 26
418260 177,552
64,216 57,483
1.2140) 1.6)2,979 13572604
254,660 2015656
llé‘la‘)!l 14,628,600
1alh) 1.255.287 |
l&‘ﬂ | 099 316
121t 450,000 SO0
456& mg
1. 2ivet 2,713,208 08593
14,104,107 -
660955 .,y
l7.£9au1 2 MK 99

RTIFIED

CERTI
STATEM
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Nukes o the financil stateweents

Fer the yex ceded 30 Jeae 2012
nn1n 2010
Nowe ] 5
Detalls of movewents in previsians:
Lang service leave
Balsace of the deyiening of fiemcol yasr 2,108991 " 30854027
Artowen provided for i e pernd ) 507 G10,048
Anown paid @1 e perod _(767.205) 1554,
Balsace 2l end of Ge Saencial yosr _3m___°v_s_ ,_2%
{i) Refuse vites
brencass in peavisin « Dew e L& 105,107
faderze 3t and of dhe Gosncial yewr |4 I(“lm!
Current portion . -
Nos-Came postion 14,104,107 -
14,104,107 -
Thiis b the: peesent value of the esmnaned (usen: cost of resoning the
Landfil sitzs 10 & wicabls condumon o the =xd of their uicfel Bf:
The peajecuad cout is $22,704,200 and fhis 202t 15 crpocied o be
rourred periodically freen 2014
) Quwrry sites
Incrzase i peovicion - new nte 50055 -
Dalance 2 eod of the farcal your %955 -
Currets povtion -
Nro-camrest porion 3,
(1955 -
This &5 fhe present vales of the estinated faure cost of ressonig the
Quarry shes to 3 useshie condition,
Tha peojected cost 15 $715,000 aed iy cxut 15 expecied tn be incerved
perndically from 2014,
23 Barrewings b3
(2} Baok averdraft
The zoansil docs wot ave o beok ovente® ficiy,
ib)  Urmsccured barruwings
Unsecured bamowings arz peovidod by the Queenstand Trensury
Camporatios.
All borrrwings are in SA deooninsied amacats aad carried o smonaod
cout, ilereit boisg enpersed o6 it acorses, Mo anicreat bus been capitalisad
sring e cumst o comparative roponting perind. Expectnd final
repayment dnes vary from 6 Janssey 2014 10 17 May 2002
There have Sewn 30 defialis of breschies of ¢ loun sgresnem durisg G
peniod.
Principal md wieres raperroncals 412 mads quarierly @ ames.
Detuils of borrowlags a1 basnce date are:
Current
Queeesland Treasury Corpoestion 041 590 122,69
Nea Curreat
CQuoenshand Tressury Corporstion 23369764 300 4
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Hiwey 10 the (hacisl walerrenty
For the year ended 30 Jane 2012
003 001
Note s 5
Details of maversents In Sorroulngs:
Q Tressury Corpacati
Balance at 1he deginaing of francal yee 423680 Seon
Loans ralsed 16510188 .
Prncipal repayments (123680 (114.362)
Balasce 3t end of te fisanciad yoar 24511154 423,650
Clanified ny ;

Curane 41590 122,656
Neoroumeo ke 30,564

MELLES 234660

The foes murter valee o the soponing date wag $24,758 992

Vi represents the value of de debe i Couscd mpaid & 1 s dake.
A3 it is the snzotion of Couneid 10 bol the debt for 45 1erm, 1o
peovichn & reguirad oo be stids (n these accownts.

No wsets ko boon plediecd as scouriey by she comnal for sy

Fsbilites.

Bemonssgs we all o SA and ace snderwrimes by the Qusssslond Sie

Gowsmment

13 Orber Nasitices

Currees

Uneamerd sevesus JATS
3375 E
25 ) Aswet revaluation surplus 124
|51 0 the auet hanon sumples wero a follows:
Balenes o the begisning of fnanckl year 40,566,781 43,1008
18] Adusiments 10 peogenty, phett and cquipment frough
realuanias: 0
Lead 0544218 (1.016,556)
Buldiogs . 1.046,220
Road and Desnags Network 21794 649 .
Nore 1.0 16719
55,0022

Fevalusthon on wewets sobd transfermed o fhe capial - (6.605.43%)

Balance 3t end of te fimancial yoar pe AT 1 46,566 781

() Assat revabanrion serples ansiyss

e clesing halance of fhe ssset rovalustion Samles ks compeised of e

following e5ser sarcygoriay:
Land ez 3G, 96
Uuildings 4265010 4265011
Foard and Deadaape Netwirk 62,009 668 B8
Hure 12,562 11,758

ML 45566781

T
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LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL

Nooes 1o the financil sawnens

Fee the year exded 30 Juse 2012
MWi2 01
New 5 s
36 Retained serpleg 125

2

Mavement In recalned sarplas
falance a1 the bepainng of fiesncial year
Net resul

K054 MA031L444
116450857 (1,593.470)
207,349,057 341438958

Teassters (o) o copital rzeerves Sor fanre capital progect
(g, oc (rom seserves feeds an have Been sxpendad

Cenmesined grasis s subnidy cormbenions resery 1,242 157431
Cirmnts, pubaidbex s ib d reserve 551698 155302001
Libeary Books resenw - 25,000
Park improveromis cesenve . RLIE At
Hoads conritation reserve - 2587385
Roads infrcmraciwe scicrve - 124,610
Roads - Tropeny scces ceserve S48 19,49
Regiomal Aguatic Centre reserve {2.775.000) .

Laidicy Recreeiomal fesarve Costtmndty Facility seserve {2200 000) -

Rrglenal mirastroaure reserve 2368681

Transfors (10} recusrenl reserves Sor fature pradoct fundisg, or
from reserves fnds St hive boos oxpemded

(317608 13,5A5.574

Fates Levies mperve 1550.4%) (275.540)

Blection cxpoises neserve 100,560 .

Prepaid Grante regarve (408482 199M4,915)

Self lnsarsuce reserve (400,000 -

NDRRA reserve 487.736 (65299266}
(46E 624 (3.070.027)

Odyer ransfers:
Tansferred Bom the 3wt revahiation smumpha - 080580

Balance of ead of the fironcial yeur

Rescrves
{3} Restricted caplml reserves

Constraired grants and ssbaidy contributlons reserve

Balance o the begionng of feancud year

202 560555 111.835.954

Transher fom reaned ramings aoa recizrocal grames, scheider
and conrihutions received and allocatsd 10 specific cagital

prajscts
Traesfer 10 renaieed camings funds expemded
Balerce at ead of the firancial yoor

Total nestnicied capial reserves

) Other reserves

(1) Summary of eagizal reserves held for funding futere prejects:

(il Grases, wbeidics sd

() Labrury Books reserve

(&) Park Impoovenons sesenve

(wh Lang Developmast reserve

v} Roads Coatribetion rescrve

v} Raads nfraswucnre rejerve

{vil) Readwerks Exvactive Indastry resarve
(vii) Roads - Property Aocess resarve

(i) Regiomal Aguatic Centre resecve

(x)  Laidey Roc Res Comsmendty Facility regprvg

() Xeglonal Infrasvuctrs eeserve

12 Summary of recurrest reservey held for famding feture projects:

1) Legal Expeases reserve
iy Rates Levies resocve

) Eleccion Esperces reicrve
vl Frepaid Grasis reserve
(vl Selflrsurnce resarve
i) NORRA recerve

Tolsl geacral reserves

I
120,20 e LT
171375639 376410
(17,234851) 34016210
629.594 72w
029,994 127236
d reserve 449M.001 5531200
L pA b 40118
ME56) 245,063
€511 43,165
2500 -
2,200,000 -
24,305 24,003
[TNTEXITI L.087452
156,000 150,003
1478,219 L= bkl 1}
WA 002
1268340 1,T9.R58
400600 -
SIL50 GI93266
10298509 9436,505
2NN, TeSM ST
—
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LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL

Nates # the finuscial vatemonis
Fur the year cided M) June 2012

Muveneats ln capital reserves sre anatysed as follows:

Ll

1y

()

liv)

i

il

i)

livy

[

ixl)

@

Grasts, and r Teverve

Halaace w the boginsing of Sesecist yesr

Teansfer from r=ualeed earsings gonts. subsidies and
sopitanors received & fhe poried which are
Travoders 10 the Appropaston Sinemsent

Balance 2t end of e fissacial yenr

Libvary Baoks reserve

Baluoe @ e begnming of firanom| yeae
Traasfer % resamod carnings funts exgended
Halsore i end of the fnancisf year

Park Improvements reserve

Halance o the beginalng of fassozial year
Transfer w retained camings fusds axpandal
Balance »t end of the firemcal yeor

Lund Developmont reserve
Balarax: wl e beginniag of finyacil year
Babmcs #t end of the Bnancial year

Koads Comtribution reserve

Nalence m the begnsng of fizoncial year
Teansfer to retvined camings funds espended
Balance 2 end of Ihe financial yeu

Reads Iafrastructurg reserve
Balance at the begining of financial yess
Tranefor 1o retoed camiings fonds experded
Balarce ar end of dhe fasaciel yoar

Rendworks Extiractive lodestry reserve
Dakmce o the baginssiy of Gsmoial yzar
Dalance o cad of the finanzial yeur

Runtads - Property Access reserve

Salace ar the dbegiming of Gasecisl year
Tranader o retaned cemings finds sxpseded
Balance 31 end of he finmcil peac

Regionsl Aquatic Ceatre reserve
Tronsfer froan sewsined camings for fusire expecdinure
Balasce a1 exd of the fimancial vear

Laidley Rec Res Commanity Facildy reserve
Toasfer fros resized cormings Sor fuwe expeadingre
Balance ot end of the financial yeor

Regna Infrastrecture reserve

Balanoe ot e begianing of financal year

Trasafer fren retaned cambigs for faners expendinge
Traaafir to retamed earmings funds expended

Dalyzen o end of the fnancisl yesr

Murementy In recureent resenvis sre axalysed se fnlaws;

Legal Espessey reserve
Balince at the Sogmming of finencisl vear
Balsnce st end of the finascial yow

{i Rates Levies ceserve

Balancs ot the begwning of fnancial year

Trarsfer from retanicd camisgs Gor fuloes expondisers
Frasster s cetninad exrnings fmds expended

Balasce o cod of fie fmancnl year

012 2011
Note s 5
55301200 -
w0518 1.021.584
11152217 L.509616
4979501 5531,
20,000
— o
IDRTIS
- [ERILSAEN)
9 45,116
49110 AM3.119
- 2,597,385
— Q.O7IRSH

124,610
5 1124,610)
48563 238,863
MES6 145441
434,185 44014
(BAS: LIS 348)
425,718 434,103
27500 .
1775000 -
2300000 .
2.200.000 .

24508 12392,%86

144,610
- {12.513.291)
24, 4.3
15000 150000
150000 __150.000
M ©15.938
i 2R6,498
150.868) L1065
1473319 357,781
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Nowes o the frtanzial unenenn
For e vets ended 30 Juse 2012

W12 0k
Nese . 3
(F) Elecrion Expenses reserve
Balence a1 he bepasing of Snancisl yoae 200,060 2K
Trsadir 10 reaised carnings fuads expended (19,5501 .
Salzncs ot end of the financil year 03,440 200,000
(v} Propsid Grasts recerve
Balacos m the bogimung of Cosscisl year 1,935 S0 00
Tranalir from resaimed esmuings for fusere sxpesdinae 1258880 LML
Trasafer to resaned cunbigs foods expendod (1,790,507, 12095
Balmce & cod of the financiel yese 2,708,340 1.9985%
(¥} Seif Inserence reerve
Traansfer foom reminnl camings foe funure expaaidmre 400,000 -
Bakwce 2t end of the flssocu) year 40000 .
1 NDRRA recerve
Halance a1 e bepnring of foansial yoar 479,266 -
Teamifer frown retnined cenms for fuore exgensinire - 6,198,266
Trarafer 15 meyioed earmings fusds exponded (382,730} —
Balarce ot ond of the finascizl yeie 5911330 0.0%5.2606
A CommMments foe expentiture
Contractosl Commirsents
Cortraziual comenitments a1 balwace dare but ot pecogt iaed
in the foancial somonts s w follows:
Waste Collectne, Recysling and Waire Daiposal
Corezacts « per year 2063375 2005375
2063.375 2.005.375
Capltat Commitisents
¢ foe the: en of the Sallowing agers for
o the weporng thate bat st recognised 23 lisbditics 2ro a5 fallows
Strengthesing Ceaban, Infra L &
Disacer Managament 3,268 0% £,.255.263
Faciliey, deiblings, pheat and cqepmen oxpendines 152396 [E NG )
Lockye Vallcy Pooning Schome & Studies - 163,151
Rasé Opermnons & Bridpe Costruction 15301 02 AW
5,786,753 A, 772467
——
These expenduices anc payubie -
Wittin oee year . 5.786,753 8.510915
Laner thans § year brat pot later than § years - 61,252
Laser dhan § yeary - -

754,75 R ‘7’.'=‘ 467

29 Eveass afrer nalance date
Strenpohening Gravsbom Frogece - Lund Swap
The Sxaegthbening Ormfian: project is an Sitiaive of the Lockysr Villey Regumal
Coamcil that offirs ehgitle flood devastated residents from acrms (he Lockyer Valley
segion a volustary land swap S their Nood sffected land. Land
on higher ground agocest 1o the camrenl Gramth dp was p and
A poeticn of tha wi develuped with roads. parks, winor ind wasiewatey serces consiructsd.
As a1 30 Jure 2012, there wars still 3 blocks avadiable foe swapping bat diese are

currently noc being offered 0 residenss.
The cveral] fioancial effecn of des funber round of knd swags was
wnahls 0o be & med 31 e lire of fisale of the

Sk
S%ATEMENTS
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Negos 10 the fnmicial sseemmis
For the yrar cnded 10 June 2012

2082 Wil

Noke 3 s
Wind vp of £3d-Gowsw Laidley Waver Sasrd
Followng the Tansfer of the Dowrd 's water (nfiasineciure sxicts (o
Quesmaland Urhan Unihons on e [t day 2010 the Board's teiginal pucpose
10 operate 252 water boaed 00 Joager exiss. Al it waceting Behl oo 2K Jura
2001, the Boawd forsaady residved Lo wind op its offairs. This is expected 10
acour doring Mie 201 2-13 finaacinl yoar Sollowing e passiog of wooe
legislenon 10 sbulih e Boord which de 3 Joint local govemment sreased
snder e Lo Govemment Act

All Babduies bave been setled zad 2l smaels have heen Astriuncd o the
der coenzils i accondance win the b

Wazie Tender

Comiedl is b the grocow of calling for sendiers for we Wame collsction and
Plulk Havkage service contracts. The seccessful render’s will be kuown aflzr
Deccrober 2012, The sew conract tenns are expecsad 10 be 8 vears wilh (wo
hy ane year extension opricas.

The financial efleces of @3 tender prozess were wabls 1o be deternined o
the tigee of frualisstion of the statemeras,

Carbor pricing

In 2011 the Aestration Govermacor introduced o Clem Eaergy Leyistaion
pockage. One aspect of this legeslaion package, which will iirpect upon
councit direcdy and ly. &5 dhe introd of s pricog wadunis for
a5 emissions ie the Awitral y.

The prcing mechanion comumesces oo | July 2012 and sew & fised e
path for the fiest Sheze yeurs ($23 per umne of CO2-equivalent emitioay
adjustad in real tenns by 1.5 percent per aiuin) before moving w 3 lexible
pnoe mechanizi from | Sy 2015, It pruposes o [romework for setling 3 cap
on presthiuee ou emiviions by cpping the nusiber of cvban wnas
available guce the Mexibe prcs period commences, which can be adjoned
oeer lime 3 o thal the wivernmens's recachion rpets e mel

Courcil esnimates Sax 13 Gamoe feodfill will cxzend e eclevant emissions
dureshold =1 2005 eseby Uigpering 4 Srect lishaty i that financial year.
N Bability artses b respacs of wase processad prioe o £ uty 1012

Couned is wnablke 1 cstimane the Snmcial effects of this tobekty a5

madelling % not yet complere. bn adduion, St due the
Followeing factors:
preerhouse g2 15 fninsd Mot wass over & vary loay period (40
years); ded

e pricetorne of emdssicas, after the it et price pesiod has
qupired, is ouremly uskaown

COryanic marerial withia wagte dogosisod ot landSls akes tisee b begin
deooupeniag. This waste wil cootimes I generace aambisions over the
next 40 years, This means that councll wil have o Sabdlly ¥ panduic
carhon permets in respoct of thal wasie as bong 23 wial esissicns froe the
(W v contimie 10 be above e degislated Rsd E acility Uweshold
uf 25,000 swanes of cachon dioxide squivabou.

In addron 10 diis drecy lahikay for waite facilet, couacd wxpacty
Waregied 205t Mroug Soes the carhon pricisg mechmism. The moet
significast ol Shese will be elecariciey aud fael. O Treasury
wodeiling pubkahed 3 July 2001 in the docwnese Sorong groath, low
polletion modefing o carbon peod’ indicues than carhos pricing is
axpected 10 locnease elericity prcas by 10% within $ yeaes fom | July
2012 and inerexse othex 20as by 47% cn mflstion In additien feal 2an
credits will be pregressively reduzed aver the mitind fined prics ponod

Page 2%
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Noes 10 the fissoacial wncmors
Fw.cyc-uukﬂﬂigﬂll!

w12 wn

Nete s b4
33 Coutirgent lInblities
Dietails asd af 1 of ponl liabdies are as fulbiws:
Nagive Tide Claim
A Nairve Title Clhiim QUDGH 403 hag bose lodged over the Lockysr Vilicy Regional
Cownzil aves by tho Jagera Poople 82 e lnpact 1 say. of M clai, - -
3 1ot ablk 10 be desereined o the dote of dis epea

Legwl Clrims

The Couscdl is o deficadant of sy be calledd upen o deford clrines hae aree s 3
result of aperntivny of the Cosncil and 0w corship o pubik: ussets,
Cuevently, there wee fivs puschle <lhims pending, a1 an sppessiesste vakes lotlliag
$36Tk. The Canpacil is of the opiewon that 1he clairs can be miccessfislly defended
fafunnation w respeot of ay individual clasms his sot Sood dischased o 3ooey
with AASILSY tmvampL“nﬂ(mmm o0 the

b, thar Coecl iders sach disel Ty the

of S claim.

Laval Geveromenr Wovkrare

The Lockywr Valley Regional Councll is & mesnbes of dae Queersiand Ineal
workers el wheas, Local Govermnox

thwt. Under diis scheme e Comnal haj proveded 3 benk pesrsiee

0 coer bod dcbts which may remain shoald the solf nseasce Reece

be canceliad and there wir intfTicict fusds avadable 10 cover sutsoeding
labiliviea. Oty S On & r's workers suthnnty
irexy call oo any pove of the guareniee should the ¥30ec circameances

ariw. As x 55 Jone 2001, dhe Snancial sadesoents foe Locat

Gevermimeat Workeare show scoumalised meober furds (aquity) of

S22 008,045,

The Crncils maxk 1 the bank pasraster iy; 610.175 6.1

Locol Gosermment Matus!

The Coure iy 0 memnber of the bocal govermnen matual Kabifiny self-iaserasce poel.
LGM Quexnstand. o the event of e pool bekay wuend up o il sizhle to aee iy
ddeber s ey Bl due. tie tum deenl and rules peovide hat aay scounmlared detion

will b met by O Aaal paol bers m ¥he s oy u their
contrbenon is v Ge Wkl pool coesibtions i respect 9 Mgy veer that & deficd
anses.

As i 30 Janc 204 | the Fnaocial neputed m Foted surples and it
te not ancivipated amy Habdity will orise.

A Supersnnuation
The Leckyer Valley Reponst Councll hares (o e Lozal G
Superaoneation Scheme (Qid) (the schere), The schene is & Multi-employer Fan
33 defircd in the Aaninalien Accoantiag Susdsnd AASBI 1S Enplovee Beoelits

The O tand | ocal G s won Board, the sumeo of the sehese,
nﬁwdmmhnl‘mmmmmumumnmbm
wporamution schewne foe dic parpase of the Commonaeairh Supsrareuticn
Indusry (Supervisicn) lewidanon.

The schewe has ews elerncnts sokomed n o the Defiaed Benefits Fund (DBF; and the
Accanlsioe Beowlits Fund {ABF), Thz ABF & & defined coatrintion scheme s
defioed in AASH 119, Couneil bas ac Kabiey 1 of intees in fie ABF otbar itan de
paymicit of the senuory conmieaions w requited by te Local Govemmen A<t 2009

The DBF & » defined benett plan s defined i AASBL 1%, The Cowncil i not abde i
acootl foe the DBF o » defined dens Ok plan is acosednzy with AASH |19 bocause
the scheras i omabke 0 acciant & fhe Comnsil for its prsponionse shove of the
defimod benef obligntian, plan woats and coss

Asy aueonant by which cier fand is over o2 ioader fandal weald maly sffect Astes
Renelis and comritutions 0 the DEF, and & not 3 3som or lishilky of the Cosril
Accerdingly shere s wo cecognition i the fi | 0f amy ever of whricr
fanding of the schewe.

The sudied gencrul purpam fiaancind repact of e scherss s ot 10 June 2011 (ihe
10061 cecent availebies whizh was noc sobject 10 azy sudil galificanon, trdicates thar
the aisets of dic wehene are saffic st 10 meet e veeed Sensfits.

The mox recem scwanal assessment of e scherse was indartaken 55 a1 | faby 2000
The acteary méhcaned o “e DEF ks in 3 vory medest flssacial pusivion wirh regend
85 the net nssst coveraps of vemed labilitics. livestmeat retwms will be vobide upder
e oguied nvesman sstogy. partioularly over shirt peniod, The DAF bmefore
needs sullicxn rearrves 4 he able o wink ° Nz rape of sk i)
Heczase fe DAF i oow nunaling doen aad casd Nows 3w negaenee, the VBI (vesned
bezclil insdex) should not be wthwal whesever pozsible o cetrest beliw lm Crace
betow 1009, berefits drvwe roduce the avallable assats for g meuibers and
heace the e aiset coverage of vested beedite dectines ferther.
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LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCII,

Nows 10 O finasciel umemenss

For e year ended 3 Juze 2012
o TH a1
Not s s
In ordex 10 withatam! 2 coe in ben ‘low setum’ outsome, the DEP wesdd acod iseves
of e ooder o€ % 10 LI Raving regant 10 = ivemsscn! Eaicpy sdupled. Oives the
currzat posinen of e DHE, ek roicrve ca nsentially oty evestio from edicr
excoss investmen aeteoes over saly | Ut eddithond ooy L
Comsil hat bezs phvased by $e trwsies of the schome, following advioe feem e
scheeme's sty St additional sonmbuncos may be lmpassd in the fmie o u lovel
nacessary 10 prococs the catltements of DBEF meahers 1inder e Lacsl Ooveramen
Azt 2009 it mumes of ihve sbzine has e powes 0 levy mléswml comedations
o cuuacdi which have empioyees in te DO when ®e aossory advises such
addtom) contsibutions we prysbic - nommally whes the asscs of e DAF ae
frsuffcian ) mer members’ benefis
The ment acounsial nveigarion will he seade s ot | iy 2012
Tto meeaot of wgermamaton soambusons pad by Lockyer Valley Kegioual Coanci!
1o the schane in fis period for the bereflit of employees wis 2532936 19712658
32 Vrust funds )
Trust fends held for outside pacties:
Security depasits 1384238 1.523330
134,236 | 523330
—
Ta¢ Lockyer Valley Regiomal Courci] pert; only 3 duad rule
in rexpec nf thess meaics, and besause the monies casnat be sssd for
Cownsil paposss, they 2ne rol booeght 50 socrunt 1 Theso Soancal
stalemezzs The cagh is beld with QTC, NAD and the Commonweadh
Bk,
Thiese Sepznith bear fixed sd Neating inlersd rates. Inocsst caved is
shurwn in geaenal opsrising reverue
33 Recomcilintion of vet result for (he year m net Lok
nfow (setflow) from agerating activiches
Nex resalt 16A085T) 3,390,876)
Non-zash operstng s
Impsirnen of recetvables and bad debis wrinen off 2 9R623 (84,929)
Change n retalilianon peovisiess 1 14,765 062 .
Depozciation mnd amnrkiaton w [ X red 8,049.005
25742312 7,964,054
Irvesting mé devek "
Caphal gramis, subsidies md coatribarion: 4 (21,427,.245) {10,470,119)
Cophal sscome s B (434,757
Capiall experies 1" 743524 19,9192
Nt eqaity mcume from tvesrments (513,018, (6§3.17%)
(14,453, 205 8306543
Changes in operating assets and liablities
{k ) d in bl i,7492.99 (2,118,530
{ d in o ding larat} 119,935 (lesa1T)
Ircrease (Seocesac) in payable (3.088,898) 9007459
leercase (decremns) in provisions 74302 3RO
acrenss (docicass) in other liabilidies 383 (20.50%)

Net cash inflow frao opesating activities

11,107,851} T0432%)

340,18 21724 893
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LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL

Naovex 10 the Faencel wsemens.
Fa¢ the yrar coded 30 Janc 2012

a2

33 Backgruund ts Water refarm b Souih East Queensiand

Dinrisennys s Reavil Waser refoum

The SouthFag Queensiand Waner (Disnibetion and Retul
Restructanng) Azt 2009 (the Acr) established a ssamnory body calied
the Contral SEQ Digritator-Rensher Autlreity va 3 Nevenber 2009
1o deliver waner and waste waler senvices 1 cinaorears widiin the focl
govermanent arsas of panicipating Cusncils: Lockye Vidloy Regineat
Ceunal, Brobase City Councd, Ipswich Caty Courl, Szeo Rim
Reglowal Cowazil aed Somersat Regional Council

On | Jaly 2010 the Aathority scqured degisietine power o Laggin
kg, osing ¢ busiecs sseme Quernsland Urbax Utlines

Undar the Ace, g ) for the Authooey weie

blished n & Paticigetion Agr which was oporative fram |
Joly 2010 The agresmest prosidss fee purticipation right % be held
by the pamiipenng Councils, with Lockyer Valley Regiosal Coancil
balding 0.500% of hese tights

Councll’s Paizipaion Righix in QM Ushar Utilces are mvcloded a5 o
b inA @ the § of Fisancni Position {refer 1o
Nete 180) o innied vales addees Council's share of Q4 Urban
Uslives prefiotoss sficr dissitetions

Asseciacs e entties thal Lockyer Valley Reglonal Counell hes
wwificont infl . Sigaificsat infl Hthe pover i
pocticipaos in de (1 ) aou! cperating palicy decisions bt in 201
swotral or bt conrol. | in - dfxm
the Sapncal stmemonrs esing the squily meethod mad are carvied of the
lower of cos and recorenable anount

Exmract frum Sirement of Comprehansive Income » Q04 Urhan $000
Revesus 914,519
Net FroGt 122,274

Exieact fom Soeement of Finoaclal Position « Q4 Lybas Utilises
Curresr Assers 236,700
Near-Cuavene Assets 4338997

I

SO0
74243
130934

53,552
4,350,936

4795347
Cucrent Liadslities 538728

Nor-Cumeat Lisbissses 1.520.524
2129282

Net Assers 2,036,095

QA
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4,604 253

226,984
1,797 K24
2,004 03

2,279,460
————————
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Transivions! Arranpeneny

Infraatrectase charges collected by Comnest which relate (o e sonsrossien
of wast sad wintewater assets are resstied 45 (4 |irban Utilities. Asy
amcens dae oo O 1ihan U6hitos ac 30 Yene 2012 aes incladed i Trade
At Obes Paysbles frefer Now 21}

rm!g‘*l 116775

Esalvrioew Cawy

Daring the yeor, 3 chun foe cliphle cines iecsrred by Cowacd for he

exublishinees of (Hd Uehas Driltics was appooved by the appropnias:

Miloeser and rebabuciod W Comncl v Qb Urban Utiliizs. The amoun

recorod Wi, ! (01,710

Cowricil revwns

Parnepesion renin

As 2 parmy 10 1 Pastaipation Agreemes, Coancil will receive o
proporuional share of pet prodas w2 paniapatica reurs, Resan will be
Faid fov posia op g profies {atter ad 2 lor coual p

SIE0 179013

Tay eguialenrs

Queessland Urbast Utilitices cpwrates under am inooee 1ax squivabend regiee

with it pad heog dismbeced 1o the paticipaticn Councils 09 3 pro-cats

basts o thear pation nghes A #eed and receivable in e '
2012 yvar are 28 658 1 5&

Shorekolider lboses

Sharehobder boors pravide Sor @ fiaed wterest rare of 6 7504%, with moathly

latcrestonly paproests Gor thres years, On matinty. e teres will be

renegaavad wath Quconaland Urton Ulilities. Inserest received and

receivible m 2012 xe N)!g“ m,}ﬂ_

35 Refared Party Disctosury
Datads of all relazed pany wasisecsices Sor the Francial vear are doualled Seluw:

Trcoume frows ER-Ganoa-Laidiey Water Board ) 3
Refand of water precepis 702143
HKenobarconent of member faes - k3]

!J
&

Thare were no expesics pald to the Ksk-Gamon-Lastiey Waner Board
in e 2008 on 2012 year. There was uo ncoste Sus the Eak-Ciatton.
Laitley Weearboaed i o 2912 year.

Al e Waler Boand 18 in tho prosess of beue woend up, there will be
A0 snectiens goumg forwand

3 Mioer coerection far ansets not previously recegnived
During the Mransol year Council became mvsee of some axseis n
raperty phaet a0d squipment At were 201 previoudy recogaisod as
woll 3 sounr assets previnusly racognised thal diosld st bave besn
recegrsed
The agizt =lesoes affocred e dsciused in noces indicaicd

Summary detials of asscts met previsasly reoogmised 2re as foliows
Groes value of propeny, plwn sl sguipment 2014} . 4010185
Letv: Accusulsted degrecistion iay - 13.T85.90%)
Gain from meseis st peeviously recognised 3 - 1302%

Suzunary dotals of asse1s peevivudy rezogrised mcorcecty ano us foliows:
Gress vabee of propeny. plaet and squpmens plUFT) 25,858
Low Aczemubed depreconion 2a) (485.176)
L0353 on assels previnsly recognied iscomrcetly " 22 -

Net rewuh of recogeisal'éeracognined gascts 032 319,06

cAn)
seéﬁ?s

Paget2
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Foc the year ended 30 June 2042
37 Financkal Instruments

Lockyer Valley Regloeal Cowncifs activilaes cxpose Lo a vanety of & ia) rsks including & race risk, ercdd risk,
and Nguidaty sk,
E 0 1 Gl ks i ged in accuntunce wich Council appeoved policies va (inancial nsk management. These

+

policies focus on masaging the voluikty of fimancial murkets and seck to mininisc potential adverse effects on the financist
pertormance of the Council. The Council minmises its expasare ta financial risk in the folkowmg ways:

- Investments in fioaocul assets are anly made whete those assets are with a bank or otver inancial institwion in A It
The Council does not mvest in denvatives or other high rigk investments,
« When the Cosawcll boerows, it boeyows from the Emd Treasury Carporation winkess encther (i 3

can offer u more beoeficial rate, taking wilo account any risk Bormwing by the Council is constrained by the provisions
of the Statutury Bodies Financisl Armangements Act 1982,

Lockyer Valley Reglonal Council Tisk using a vatiety of methods as follows:

Measurement method
Ageing snalysis |
Maturity analysis |

Sensitivity analysis

(i) Credit Risk
Credit risk exposure refers o the siatica where the Council may incur financial hogs as 2 resoll of another pasty
to 4 linancial instrument failing 0 discharge their obligations,

T the case of rate receivables, the Council kas the power 1o sell the property to recover any defaulted amounts.

In effect this power peotects the Council against eredit risk i the case of these debes,

In other cases, e Council assesses the credit risk hefore providing gouds or servioes and applics norsal business
credat protection peocedures 10 minimsse the risk,

The Council &5 exposed 10 credit risk theough its in with the Q fand Treasury Carporation (QTC)

and deposits held with banks. The QTC Cash Fund is an assel management

portfofio that invests with a wide variety of high credit rating counterpartses. Deposits arc capint guarsniced. Other
investments ure beld with highly ratediregulsted banks/fizancial institutions and whilst not capital guarantced, the
JikeEbood of' s credir failure i remote

By tbe nature of the Counclls operaticas, there 1 a grographical concentration of risk in the Council's aren. Because
the area is largely agricaltural, theve i also a concentration in the sgricitural secsor,

The maximum exposure (o credit risk af alasce date in refution to cach class of recognized financial asset is the
gross caerying amount of Bose agsats inclusive of any impaimeent,

Na coliatera) is beld 25 ity relating o the financial ssseis beld by the Cauncil,

The tallowing sable represents the Council's maxiovam exposure 1o credit risk:

Council
Noge 2012 2011

Financinl Assets s $

Cash and cash equivalents - Bank 13 10,436,872 1,341,967

Casgh and cash equivalents - QTC 13 15,406,342 1434411

Investmeats with approved depasit

wking instinations 13& 16 11,500,000 15,000,000

Equity ipvestmenss 1%{a) 24048175 23532457

Onhier Finnncial Asscts 14%) 40,000 40,000

Reseivables - rates 14 3,593,708 34% 187

Receivables - other 14 18,177,607 20462179
Other credit exposure

Guaranies kit 610,173 $61,731

Taral 81982870 73743470

Page &2
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37 Financial Instruments - continued
Past due or impaired

No [inancial assets have had their terms reaegotisted 50 a5 to prevent them from being past due or impaired, and are
stated ot the Carrying amouats 3s indicated
The following table ropresents an analysis of the age of the Coanci¥s financial assets that are eisher fully perfonming,

past due oe fmpaired:
Fully Past due Less Tenal
Perfocming Less thas 30 Jlwéd 6l to 9 Over 90 Impaired
days Gayy days days
S s s S b S )
Recervables:
2042 21,060,566 176,504 392934 304,700 (363,389) 21,7M,318
2011 23,892 406 35 1,063 115,912 173,050) 23,956,366
(i) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers 1o the situation where the Council may encouster difficulty in ing obligations d with

financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or anather fimancial asset.
The Council is exposed ta liquidity risk theough its trading in the narmal coarse of lesiness and borrowings from the
Queenshand Treasury Comporation for capaal works.

The Council mamages its cxpasure to bquidity risk by

verm, to cater for uncxpected volatility i cash flows. ‘Ibese facilities arc disclosed in the bormowings note 23,

g surticient und focilities, both shan and long

The following eble scts oo the liquidity risk of ficanczal liabilitics hekd by the Council in & format as it might be provided
10 managerment. The amounts disciosed in the mutirity analysis represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows a1

halmce dute (excluding employec entirh

W12
Trade aod other payables
Loaas QTC

2011
Trade and otber pavables
Loans Q1C

The cstflows in the abave table are not expected W ocour signitleantly cartier and are not expected 10 be for

a3 defined by AASBI32 Financial [nstruments para 4(b)):
0w lyear | 1toSycars | Over § years | Total contractial|  Canrying
cash flows Fmount
S ) S S s

5,496,206 - - 9,456,206 9,496,206
2,087,275 1680297 2827710 ISU45282 MRBILiIS4
1 I.S&llll I 7.680£ﬂ 28277710 47.541 488 34‘107..\60
12 869 683 - - 12, %59 681 12,869,683
146 804 251,938 125,827 524,569 423 660
lmm!m 251,933 125,427 13,394£SZ 13291 343

sagnificastly different amaunes than indicated in the wble.

(ME) Interest rate risk

The Councel is exposed 10 interest rate risk through i1$ barrowings from the Queensland Treasary Corporation
and inv leld with fi ial insteutions,
The risk in barrowing is effeetively managed by borrowing iwainly from the Quesrsland Treasury Carporation
and having #coess 10 a eax of Soating and fixed fundi

L

nsk exposure can be constructed. Interest rate risk in ather areas is windmal
The Council dees not undertake any hedging of interess (e risk.

coAn?
TAEE?S
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Interest Rate Sensttivity Analysis

The ollowing increst rate seositivity analysis i3 based on 2 repart simalar Lo that which woulé be pravided 1o
mankgement. depvling the cutcame ta profit and Jass should there be a 1% increase in markeq mserest rates.

The calculations assume thal the rate would be held constant over e pext finsncial year, with the change
occurring at the beginning of that year, It is ssswned that mlerest rates on overdue rstes woald not change.

11 the rates devreased by 1% the impoact woald be equal in amouss in the reverse direction

Financial assets and lisbitities that are
held at varisble interest (pies total:
Financial asscts
Fizancial Rabilities
Net wtal

(Iv) Fair Value

Net carrying amount Proflvibess) Equity
012 200 2012 011 012 2011
s s $ s 3 | s
26,996,342 | 10434411 2695163 104,344 269,963 | 104,544
24411154 423,660 (245.112) (23| (248,112) (4237)
2185188 | 10,010,751 21852 300,108 21,852 100,108

Lovkyer Valley Regional Couacil does not recognise linancial assets or tiabélities at faie vadue in f1s Stasement of Fiansnciaf Positive,

STAT

QAO
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38 Nationsl Competitivn Policy

{a} Activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied
A "business activity” of & local govemment is divided info twe categanies ;
(a) Roads business activity:
(i) the construction or maintenance of State controlled roads for which the local government submits an offer to
carTy out work in response o 3 tender invitation, other than through a sole supplier arrangement,
{xi) berission of a competstive tender for conssruction of road maintenance on the local government's roads which
the focal government has put out to terder, of called for by another local government,

(b} Other business activiry, referred to a3 type three activities, means the following:
(11 tading in goods and services 1o clients in competition with the private sector, or
(it} the submission of a competitive tender in the local government’s own tendering process in competition with others
tar the pravistan of goods and services 1o its self. Excluded activities are {a) library services, and (b) an activity ar
part thereof prescribed by legisiation,
Local government may élect to apply a Code of Competitive Conduct (CCC) to their identified business activities. This requires
the application of full cost pricing, identilying the cost of commwnity service ohligations (CSO) and climinating the advantages
and disodvantages of public ownership within that scrivity, The application of the CCC to the roads business activity
1s compulsory,

The CSO value iz determined by Council, and represents an activities cost(s) which would not be incurred if the activities prmary

abjective was 1o make a profit. The Council provides funding from general revenue 10 the business activity fo cover the cost of
providing non-commercial community services or costs deemed to be CSO's by the Council, Notwithstanding CSO's, the council
i5 commustad 10 operating these activities as business activities in accordance with the CCC.

Staging Post

Other Roads

Childcare

Building Cenification
The following table sumemartes the financial results for these, including competitive neutrality adjustments if applicable.
Full information is available for inspection a1 the council offices,

(b) Financlal performance of activities subject to competition reforms:

Other Roads Childcare Building Cerufication
012 2011 2082 201t 2012 0
5 b} s b S )
Revenue for services provided 1o external clients 2.033.066 2,061,997 921 059 871,597 278 422 283,560
Less : Expenditure 2,019,992 1,755,680 969,239 $34.008 264,793 307 880
Swples (deficincy) 13,074 266317 {46,180) 17,589 13629 (23,920
Staging Fest
2012 2011
s S
Revenue for services provided W extemal clients 652,044 546,292
Less : Expenditre 1,218,240 1,012,722
Surplus {deficiency) (365,199) [$66.430))
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39 Prior Peclod Error (Refer Note 1.34)

Financial Report Line ltem / Balunce afTocted Note 06 Carrection Restaed
2011
$ $ S

Property, plant and equipmsent - prior year 20 ()
Assce Valves

Revaluion sdjustiocnl o e ARS* 29,949,560 24,620,390 33290

Closing pross value 96,579,991 =24 620,390 71,959 603
Accumulated deprecistion and kmpaicesest

Itevahation adjestmeen 10 e AMS® 28,001 240 =20,620, 350 4,282 950

Clasing necamulased dopreciation 33444 485 -24,620 350 28,825 (WS

and impatronent balance

AO
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 30 June 2012

MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE
For the year ended 30 Junc 2012

These gencral purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to Section 102 of the Local Government
(Finance, Plans and Reporting) Regulation 2010 {the Reguiation) and other preseribed requirements,

In accordance with Section 161 of the Regulation we cortify that these general purpose financial staements:
(1) have been prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting documents; and
(i) accuratety reflect the local govemmens financial performance and position for the financial vear

In addition we certify that, in our opinion;

(i} the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and associsted Regulations for the
establishment and keepmg of accounts have been complied with in all material respects: and

(i) the general purpose financial statements, as set out on pages | 10 48, have been prepared in accordance

with Australian accounting siandards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations and other authoritative

pronoutcernents issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board); and

(uii) the general purpose financial stateasents present a trus and fair view of the Council's
financial posstion as at 30 June 2012 and of its financial periormance and cash flows for the financial

g

year ended on rhat date.

Cr. Tanya Milligan

Jason Br/'khw
Depury Mayor Acting Chief Executive Officer
Date. 29112012 Date: 23/11,2032

CE?(%IQED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Mayor of Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Report on the Financial Report

| have audited the accompanying financial report of Lockyer Valley Regional Council, which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 3C June 2012, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and certificates given by the Deputy Mayor and Acting Chief
Executive Officer.

The Council's Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Local
Government Act 2009 and Local Government (Finance, Flans and Reporting)
Regulation 2010, including compliance with Australian Accounting Standards. The Council's
responsibility also includes such internal control as the Council determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The
audit was conducted in accordance with the Audifor-General of Queensland Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require
compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the
audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
report is free from material misstatement,

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal centrol, other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed
requirements. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reascnabieness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.
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Independence

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the Independence of the Auditor-General and all
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector
entities and can be removed only by Parliament

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised.
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents
and property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are
significant.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
My report for 2010-11 was qualified on the following basis

In January 2011 flooding caused extensive damage to the Lockyer Valley Regional Council's
road, bridge and drainage assets. The Council was unable to quantify the impact the ficods
had on its road, bridge and drainage assets, accordingly, the Council was unable to
demonstrate that the written down value of its road and drainage network assets of
$215,460,026, reported in Note 20(a), did not differ materially from their fair value at
30 June 2011 as required by Australian Accounting Standard AASB 116 Property, Plant and
Equipment. | was, therefore, unable to and did not express an opinion on the reported
written down value of these assets, the associated depreciation expense of $4,258,007,
disclosed in Note 10, and the associated asset revaluation surplus balance of $39,220,019,
disclosed in Note 25(ii). Further, as the Council did not write off any road, bridge or drainage
assets destroyed by the floods, | was unable to and did not express an opinion on the
reported loss on write-off of capital assets of $879,580, reported in Note 11, and the net
result attributable to Council of ($1,593.476) and totai comprehensive income of
($1.562,093), both reported in the statement of comprehensive income. The impact on the
financial report was unable to be quantified due to the absence of reliable data”

| still remain unable to form an opinion on these 2011 comparative balances as reported in
the financial report for the year ended 30 June 2012

Quelified Opinion — 2011 Comparatives

In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009 -
(a) | have received all the information and explanations which | have required; and
(b) in my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraphs -
(i) the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(i) the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the
prescribed accounting standards, of the financial performance and cash flows of
Lockyer Valley Regional Council for the financial year 1July 2011 to
30 June 2012 and of the financial position as at the end of that year

Attachment 1 9.2 Page 144



General Purpose Financial Statement - 2011/2012 Attachment 1
QAO Statements

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report

This auditor's report relates to the financial report of Lockyer Valley Regional Council for the
year ended 30 June 2012, Where the financial report is included on Lockyer Valley Regional
Council's website the Council is responsible for the integrity of Lockyer Valley Regional
Council's website and | have not been engaged to report on the integrity of Lockyer Valley
Regional Council's website. The auditor’s report refers only to the subject matter described
above. It does not provide an opinicn on any other information which may have been
hyperlinked to/from these siatements or otherwise included with the financial report. If users
of the financial report are concemed with the inherent risks arising from publication on a
website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to confirm
the information contained in this website version of the financial report.

These matters aiso relate to the presentation of the audited financial report in other
electronic media including CD Rom,

MeAd..

M R HYMAN CA
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland) Queensland Audit Office
Brisbane

~GUEENSLANS
3 0 NOV 2012

~duoir oFFICE

N
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ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

9.3 Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs Budget to 30
November 2012

Date: 12 December 2012

Author: Karen Pegler, Manager Financial Services
Responsible Officer: David Lewis, Group Manager Corporate Services
File No: 1.1/17/14.1 1.2/8/8

Summary:

In accordance with Section 152 of the Local Government (Finance, Plans & Reporting)
Regulation 2010, a financial report summarising the progress of Council’s actual performance against
budgeted performance is to be presented to Council.

This report provides a summary of Council’s financial performance against budget to 30 November
2012.

Overall, Council’s financial results are within expectations for this time of the year. However, given
Council’'s dependency on operating grants and subsidies, care must be taken to ensure that
expenditure is matched carefully to revenues as only 14% of this revenue stream has been received
to the end of November.

As at 30 November 2012, Council had achieved operating revenues of 24.3% of the 2012/2013
Budget against operating expenses of 23.7%.

Against a benchmark target of 42%, capital revenues of 19.4% and capital expenditure of 19.6% have
been achieved.

Officer’s Recommendation:
THAT Council resolves to receive and note the Summary of Council Actual Financial
Performance versus Budget to 30 November 2012.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council resolves to receive and note the Summary of Council Actual Financial
Performance versus Budget to 30 November 2012.

Moved By: Cr Pingel Seconded By: Cr Holstein
Resolution Number: 2841

CARRIED
7/0
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Introduction

In accordance with Section 152 of the Local Government (Finance, Plans & Reporting)
Regulation 2010, a financial report summarising the progress of Council’s actual performance
against budgeted performance is to be provided to Council.

Background

Monthly reporting of Council’s financial position reinforces sound financial management
practices throughout the organisation and allows a rapid response to any unfavourable trends.

Report

The following report provides a summary of Council’s financial performance against budget to
30 November 2012.

Operating Revenue - Target $59.0 million Actual $34.2 million or 24.3%

At 30 November 2012, operating revenue is well below budget expectations at 24.3% with
42% of the financial year elapsed.

Operating grants and subsidies continue to fail to meet budget expectations with $13.6 million
or 14% of Council’'s $97.3 million budget received to 30 November. Grants relating to the
recovery program totalling $9.6 million have been received out of a budget of $91m, with
further recovery grants dependent upon approvals from the Queensland Reconstruction
Authority.

Council has also received an additional $2.5 million of previously disallowed recovery claims
from the Queensland Reconstruction Authority. These funds have been separately accounted
for and if not required in the current financial year may be utilised as part of Council’s future
debt management strategies.

Excluding the recovery program, year to date grants and subsidies have achieved only $1.4
million or 26% out of a budget of $5.4 million. This is mainly due to the early part-payment of
$1.7 million of the 2012/2013 Federal Assistance Grant (general purpose and roads). Grants
and subsidies will be adjusted in the first budget review of 2012/2013 with the revenue
adjustment funded from a transfer from operating reserves.

Recoverable works income is below budget at 25.2% with revenue from fees and charges also
underperforming at 36.6%.

Partially offsetting these shortfalls are gross rates and utility charges and interest revenue
which have achieved 49.9% and 64.4% of their respective budgets. Other revenue is also over
budget by $905k through the recovery of costs associated with debt collection process ($211k)
and an insurance payout for Council park assets ($400k).

In June 2012, Council approved the forwarding to debt recovery agents of $2.63m in
outstanding rates. Of this amount, Council has recouped just over $1,049,000 to date. This
equates to about 39% of the debt with a significant number of ratepayers entering into
payment arrangements.
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Operating Expenditure - Target $59.5 million Actual $33.5 million or 23.7%
At 30 November 2012, total Council operating expenditure was well under budget at 23.7%.

Goods and services expenses are significantly under budget with only $16.3 million or 15.8%
of the budget expended to date. This is largely due to delays in expenditure associated with
the Recovery Program, which makes up approximately 87% of total budgeted goods and
services expenditure.

Revenue and expenditure associated with the Recovery Program will also be significantly
downgraded in the first budget review of 2012/2013.

Finance costs at 36.6% and depreciation at 40.8% are slightly below budget expectations with
42% of the year elapsed.

Partially offsetting the above favourable variances, total employee costs exceed budget at
46.6% with 42% of the financial year elapsed. The major overrun in employee costs is within
the Community Recovery Program with this expenditure to be funded by external grants and
subsidies.

Capital Revenue - Target $2.3 million Actual $1.1 million or 19.4%

Capital grants and subsidies revenue is well behind budget at 19.4% with 42% of the year
complete. To date just over $1.1 million has been received with $364k of this amount relating
to State Government grants for roads infrastructure, developer contributions amounting to
$464k and Grantham beautification works of $203k.

Capital Expenditure - $9.8 million Actual $4.8 million or 20.4%

Excluding loan redemption payments, total capital expenditure of just over $4.4 million is
running well below budget at 19.6% with 42% of the year elapsed.

Significant expenditure making up the capital program includes road, bridges and drainage
capital works $2.8 million, Grantham Estate Stage 2 works $537k and plant purchases $120k.

A detailed schedule of capital expenditure by program and job is attached to this report.
Policy and Legal Implications

There are no policy or legal implications associated with this report.

Financial and Resource Implications

Council’s financial results remain largely dependant upon further advance payments from the
Queensland Reconstruction Authority and completion of the capital works program.

Careful management of our operating costs is also required as our other revenue streams
come under increasing pressure.

Delegations/Authorisations
There are no delegation or authorisation issues associated with this report.
Communication

There is no communication required as a result of this report.
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Conclusion

Council’s capital expenditure and revenues are within tolerable limits. However, as operating
incomes are below budget, particularly in the areas of operating grants and subsidies,
recoverable works and fees and charges, close attention needs to be paid to ensure that
expenditures do not exceed receipted income.
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Attachment 1
Actual vs Budget

Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs
Budget to 30 November 2012

Lockyer Valley Regional Council
Actual vs. Budget -

For the year to date:
30 November 2012

Total ncil
% of Year Elapsed - 42
Budget Amended Actual to %
2012-2013 Budget 30-11-2012 | Variance

Operating Revenue

Rates and Utility Charges (Gross) 29,561,900 29,561,900 14,739 461 49.9%

Discount (1,163,000) (1,163,000) (547.581) 47 1%

Charges and Fees 5,438,600 5.438.600 1,988,322 36.6%

Interest 2,961,000 2,961,000 1,908,170 64.4%

Operating Grants and Subsidies 97,310,500 97.310.500 13,601,983 14.0%

Operating Contributions and Donations 0 0 0 0.0%

Revenue - Contract/Recoverable Works 6,300,000 6.300.000 1,586,882 25.2%

Other Revenue 0 0 904,584 0.0%
Total Operating Revenue 140,409,000 140,409,000 34,181,821 24.3%
Operating Expenses

Employee Costs 26,514,600 26,514,600 12,366,806 46.6%

Goods and Services 103,002,000 103,002,000 16,284,885 15.8%

Finance costs 1,483,200 1,483,200 543,384 36.6%

Depreciation 10,553,400 10.553.400 4,305,674 40.8%

Other Expenses 0 0 0 0.0%
Total Operating Expenses 141,553,200 141,553,200 33,500,749 23.7%
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) Before Capital Items (1,144 200) (1,144,200) 681,072 -59.5%
Capital Revenues and Expenses

Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 5,450,900 5,450,900 1,055,226 19.4%

Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Non Current Assets 0 0 0 0.0%

Other Capital Items 0 0 0 0.0%

Abnormal or Extraordinary ltems 0 0 0 0.0%
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) After Capital Items 4,306,700 4,306,700 1,736,298 40.3%
Sources and Applications of Capital Funding
Capital Funding Sources

Loans 5,100,000 5,100,000 0 0.0%

Disposal Proceeds of non Current Assets 276,000 276,000 344,804 124.9%

Funded Depreciation 10,553,400 10.553.400 0 0.0%
Total Capital Funding Sources Used 15,929,400 15,929,400 1,692,784 10.6%
Capital Funding Applications

Capital Expenditure 22,548,600 22,548,600 4,421,070 19.6%

Loan Redemption 870,000 870.000 362,500 41.7%

0
Total Capital Funding Applications 23,418,600 23,418,600 4,783,570 20.4%
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Attachment 1
Actual vs Budget

Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs Budget
to 30 November 2012

Lockyer Valley Regional Council
Actual vs. Budget -

For the year to date:
30 November 2012

Busin ni
% of Year Elapsed - 42
Budget Amended Actual to %
2012-2013 Budget 30/11/2012 Variance
Operating Revenue
Rates and Utility Charges (Gross) 3,239,800 3,239,800 1,736,168 53.6%
Discount (162.000) (162,000) (70.569) 43.6%
Charges and Fees 2,532,000 2,532,000 796,171 31.4%
Interest 0 0 0 0.0%
Operating Grants and Subsidies 788,000 788,000 283,424 36.0%
Operating Contributions and Donations 0 0 0 0.0%
Revenue - Contract/Recoverable Works 6,300,000 6,300,000 1,586,882 25.2%
Other Revenue 0 0 0 0.0%
Total Operating Revenue 12,697,800 12,697.800 4,332,076 34.1%
Operating Expenses
Employee Costs 4,881,300 4,881,300 1,300,728 26.6%
Goods and Services 6,399,600 6,399,600 2,535,359 39.6%
Finance costs 60,800 60,800 22,615 37.2%
Depreciation 409,400 409,400 107,445 26.2%
Intemal Transfers 841,600 841,600 350,667 41.7%
Other Expenses 0 0 0 0.0%
Total Operating Expenses 12,592,700 12,592,700 4,316,814 34.3%
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) Before Capital Items 105,100 105,100 15,262 14.5%
Capital Revenues and Expenses
Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 0 0 0 0.0%
Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Non Current Assets 0 0 0 0.0%
Other Capital Items 0 0 0 0.0%
Abnormal or Extraordinary ltems 0 0 0 0.0%
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) After Capital ltems 105,100 105,100 15,262 14.5%
Sources and Applications of Capital Funding
Capital Funding Sources
Loans 1,781,000 1,781,000 0 0.0%
Disposal Proceeds of non Current Assels 0 0 0 0.0%
Funded Depreciation 0 0 0 0.0%
Total Capital Funding Sources Used 1,781,000 1,781,000 0 0.0%
Capital Funding Applications
Capital Expenditure 1,834,000 1,834,000 698,937 38.1%
Loan Redemption 35,700 35,700 14 875 41.7%
Total Capital Funding Applications 1,869,700 1,869,700 713,812 38.2%
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Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs
Budget to 30 November 2012

Attachment 2
Capital Budget

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Capital Works Summary Expenditure to 30 November 2012

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL WORKS BY SUMMARY 20122013 | EXPENDITU

{Community and Development

Museums, Ante and Cultural Buikings 0 32,748

Natural Ervironment Recovery 0 3,041

Human and Social Recovery 0 0

Livranes 30,000 64,001

Art Galle: 10,000 0
[TOTAL COMMUNITY AND DEVELOPMENT 2012-2013 40,000} 99.705'
|Corporate Services

Information Technology 4.089.000 974,810
TOTAL CORPORATE SERVICES 2012-2013 4,089,000] 974,810|
|Strategy and Planning

SES 477,700 IS,SSSI

Enterpnse Buldings 210.000 84,954

Regional Development 100,000 54,501

Disaster Managemant 80,500

Tourism 76.500

Conference Rooms 31,500

Events and Marketing B,000

Visitor Informatan Centra 5.000
[TOTAL STRATEGY AND PLANNING 2012-2013 989,200'
|infrastructure Services

Assets on Reserve 0

Raw Materials 0

Infrastructure Recovery 0

Roads and Streets 4,926,900

Swimming Pools 4.515,000

Civic Halls 1,116,000

Planm Operations 1,000,000

Othar Sport & Recreational Faciitios 829,000

Urban Drainage 794,000

Bridges and Large Culverts 650,000

Administration Buidings 575,000

Public Order and Safety 220,000

Parks and Gardens 160,000

Miscellanecus 150,000

Depat Managament 100,000

Environmental Services 50,000

Community Housing 45,500

FAural Sesvices 35,000

Public Conveniencas 25,000

Cemetaries 5.000,
[TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 2012-2013 15.596,400]
|Business Units

Walghbridpa Projact 0

Gramham Land Development 0

Waste Mnimisation Facilities 1.0980,000,

Waste Disposal Facilties 430,000

Waste Management - Ganaral 210,000

Staging Post Caté / Restaurant 68,000

Kengington Grova Child Care Centra 0

Gatton Child Cawe Cantre 38.000
[TOTAL BUSINESS UNITS 2012-2013 1.834,000]
|Governance and Policy

Local Laws Review 0 )
[TOTAL GOVERNANCE AND POLICY 2012-2013 o} 0]
|Organisational Develop and Perf
TOTAL ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT & PERFORMANCE 2012-2013 o} [0 |
|Executive

Chiel Executive Office 0 0

Elacted Mambers 0 378
[TOTAL EXECUTIVE 2012-2013 Td

of
]

RAND TOTAL ALL PROGRAMS 2012.2013

248500

=

Note: Total doltar allocstions vary slightly 1o totad prog ports dollars due 1o end of the month capital processeas,
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Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs Budget

to 30 November 2012

Attachment 3

Capital Budget Detail

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Capital Works Detailed Expenditure to 30 November 2012

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL WORKS BY DETAIL MBI | | EXETIOIVNE
UL APITAL WOR . 'BUDGET 01.07.1210
: 30.06.13

|Libraries
Laidiey Library - Replace Floor 0 52,289,
Gatton Library Equipment 10,000 0
Laidiey Library Multi-screen System 15,000 0
Library WI-Fi Intemet Setup 5,000 0
"*Laidiey Library Furniture & Fittings 10,135
**Laigiey Library Equipment 1,577
Total LI 30,000 64,001
Art Gallery
|Sculptures 10,000 0
Total Art Gallery 10,000 0|
[|Museums, Arts and Cultural Buildings
Lakdley Cultural Centre - Refurbishment 0 21
Lockyer Valley Cultural Centre 0 32,407
**Artefacts 320
Total Museums, Arts and Cultural Bulldings 0 32,748|
|Natural Environment Recovery
Special Recovery Projects 0 3.041
Total Natural Environment Recovery 0 3,04
|Human and Social Recovery
Emergency Helicopter Facility 0 0

0 Dl
TOTAL COMMUNITY & DEVELOPMENT 2012-2013 40,000 99,789]
Information Technology
ERP Replacament - Business Enterprise Systems 1,600,000
Data works - Upgrade Records Management System 600,000
Disaster Recovery & Business continuity process 60,000
Mobile Device Management Software 75,000
Electronic Business Papers Delivery 25,000
Secure Large File Transfer/Intemet Bandwidth 300,000
Software Deployment & Monitoring Tools 120,000
MS Audit'Software Library Development & Managemant 150,000
Data Cantre Environmentai Monitoning 200,000
End Point Security 10,000
Website - Jookma Upgrade 20,000
Server Upgrade to 2008 50,000
ESX Upgrades 40,000
Exchange 2010 40,000
Call Centre Software 100,000
Unified Comms - Prelim Scoping 25,000
Web Filtenng / Reporting / Corporate Firewall Upgrade 100,000
Printer Strategy & Consolidation 100,000
Miscallaneous 150,000
Wireless Network 80,000
LiDAR Capture (Contours Aerial Survay) 34,000
DMZ 15,000
PDOnline 20,000
Service Desk Implementation 40,000
Back Up Process 25,000
Radius 25,000
Windows 7 350,000
GIS Consolidation - Exponaire / Mapinfo 35,000
“*Info Systems
Total Information Technology 4,089,000
[TOTAL CORPORATE SERVICES 2012-2013 4,089,000 974,810|
|Enterprise Bulldings
Gatton Donations Building 200,000 84,954
Helldon Donations Building 10,000 0
T i i 210,000 84,954
Iﬂogloml Development
Master Planning Projects Industrial Land, Warrego - GWIZ 100,000 54,591
Tolal nal 1 Buildi 100,000 54,591
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Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs
Budget to 30 November 2012

Attachment 3

Capital Budget Detail

Lockyer Valley Regional Council
Capital Works Detailed Expenditure to 30 November 2012

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL WORKS BY DETAIL RSN ] | EREEWRINIE
UL APITA Lk ] 'BUDGET 01.07.1210
) 30.06.13
Events and Marketing
Event Promotion Stands 5,000 0
3,000 0
8,000 [i]|
Pioneer Village New Bullding - Accessioning 21,500 2,815
Gatton Historical Society Viage 40,000 22,143
Refurbish Tourism Trailer 15,000 0
Total Tourism 76,500 24,958)
Conference Rooms
Addittional POS 10,000 0
Portable Staging 15,000 0|
Storage Cabinets 5,000 0)
Wedding Arch & Well 1,500 0|
Total Conference Rooms 31,500 0]
Visitor Information Centre
Display Materials 5,000 0
Total Visitor Information Centre 5,000 0
|Disaster Management
Other Equipment - WIP Disaster Management 0
Disaster Coordination Centre Generator Connectivity 4,000
Fit Out of Mobile Depot Command Centre 5,000
Gaugas x 4 20,000
Guardian Incident Management System 30,000
Hand held VHF rados 1,800
RampDeck Disaster Coordination Centre 5,000
Satellite Phones 3,500
Signage Coordination Centre 700
Smart board 2,000
Stand alone Eviro waatherprool laptop/fablet 1,500
40" Shipping Container with ventilation 7,000
**General SES
**Other Equipment - WIP Disaster Management
"*Flood Early Warming System
Total Disaster Management 80,500
SES
Block/Concrete Sand Bays 5,000
Building Improvements Forest Hill SES 20,000
Building Improvements Laidley SES 50,000
Building Signs - Repaint Laidley and Forest H#l 2,000
Fit Out of Donated Van 5,000
Flammable Liquid Cabinats 13,000
Rasponse Vehicle - Laidley 60,000
SES Flood and Storm Response/Mobile Command Centre 102,000
SES Gatton Building Extension {Inc 11/12 unspen) 220,700
SES Building Gatton 0
Total SES 477,700
[TOTAL STRATEGY AND PLANNING 2012-2013 989,200
Administration Buildings
Gatton Regional Office Refurbishment 225,000
Gatton Regional Office Renovations (incl, i) 150,000
Gatton Regional Office Chambers Renovations 100,000
Laidiey Regional Office Renovations 100,000
Total Administration Buildings 575,000
|Public Order and Safety
Upgrade Gatton CCTV Cameras 0
New Laidiey CCTV System 220,000
Total Public Order and Safety 220,000
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Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs Budget Attachment 3
to 30 November 2012 Capital Budget Detail

Lockyer Valley Regional Council
Capital Works Detailed Expenditure to 30 November 2012

DETAILED
) 30.06.13
Civic Halls
Murphys Creek Community Centre (Rotary Funded) 800,000 149,434
Murphys Creek Community Centre (Assaciated Civil Warks) 200,000 0|
Gatton Shire Hall - Door Closer & Window Repairs 6,000 0|
Gatton Shire Hall - Paint Extenor 10,000 0
Laidiey Cuttural Centre - Replace Function Room Roof 60,000 0
Laksiey Cultural Centre - Paint Exterior 40,000 0
“*Gatton Shire Hall Equipment 8,443|
Total Civic Halls 1,116,000 157,877
ommunity Housing
Frome Street Crisis Care House - Renew Bathroom/Laundry 15,000 0
Clarkes Lane Units - Renew Bathroom and Paint Landings 12,500 0
Cochrane Street Units - Install Reinforced Concrete Dran 18,000 0
i 45,500 1] |
Public Conveniences
Lake Apex Toilets 0 43,222
Glenore Grove Village Todets - Replace Dispozal Area 20,000 0|
North Street Todets - Paint 5,000 0|
Total Public Conveniences 25,000 43,222
Other Sport and Recreational Facllities
Gatton Showgrounds - Replace Show Ring Fence 0 17,204
Laidiey Recreation Resarve - Exerdse Stationg (RLCIP2} - Netbal Couns 0 87,398
Laidley Recreation Resarve - Refurbish Netball Courts 300,000 0
Lake Dyer - Bitumen Seal Access Road 15,000 0
Lake Dyer - Reinforce Concrete Slabs 12,000 0
Ropehill Community Centre Oval - Fence (Subject to grant) 150,000 0|
Springbrook Park Spors Field - New Car park 75,600 0
|Sport and Recreational Bulldings
Lake Dyer - Renovate Todets 50,000 0
Withcott Indoor Sports Centre - New Equipment 2,000 0
Cahill Park - New Storage Building 50,000 0
Cahill Park Sports Complex - New Canteen 50,000 0|
Cahill Park - Upgrade Power & Lighting to New Storage Buildng 5,000 0
Gatton Indoor Sports Centra - New Equipment 8.g.. Freezer 5,000 0
Lakfley Recreational Reserve - Multi purpose Community Centre (Design Costs) 100,000 0
Lake Dyer - Storage Shed 15,000 0
Total Other Sport and Recreational Facilities 829,000 104,692
|Swimming Pools
Laifiey Swimming Pool 0 112,198
Gatton Aguatic Centre Complex - Design 0 242 555
Gatton Aquatic Cantre - Design {(Stage 1) 250,000 0
Gatton Aquatic Cantre - Construction (Stage 1) 4,565,000 0
Laidiey Pool Complax - Refurbish Filter 100,000 0
Total Swimming Pools 4,915,000 354,752
{Cemeteries
Laidiey Cemetery - Concrete Headstone Strips 5,000 0
Total Cometeries 5,000 o
|Rural Services
Laidley Saleyards improvements - Yards and Ramp (stage 3) 35,000 0
Livestock Pound Gatton 0 5,530
Total Rural Services 35,000 5,530
|Environmental Services
Implementation of Lake Apex master plan (preliminary) 50,000 0
T vironm i 50,000 OI
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Lockyer Valley Regional Council
Capital Works Detailed Expenditure to 30 November 2012

DETAILED

) 30.06.13
Roads and Streets
Revole Roads Program:
Roadworks Renewal
Reseals
Restoration Project Reseals 408,000
Network Reseals 400,000
Forest HillBlenheim Road 0 76)
Summerholm Road 0 152
Raymonds Road 0 0
Cross Road 0 76
Manteuttels Road 0 76
Caffey Connection Road 0 76)
Petersons Road 0 76
Dry Gully Road 0 76
Ma Ma Lillydale Road 0 152
Grantham Scrub Road 0 76)
Carpendale Road 0 76
Flagstone Creek Road 0 0
Hell Hole Creek Road 0 76
Priors Road 0 19,148
Spa Water Road 0 152
Other Projects
Hannant Road Bikeway 0 1,361
Flagstone Creek Road Floodway 0 121,241
Mountain Road/Range Crescent Intersection 0 4,527
Mary Street 0 2,384
Allowance for Restoration Bettarment Cantribution 500,000 0|
Sub-Total 1,308,000 149,798
Local Roads of Regional Significance (LRRS)
Airtorce Road (0-0.25km) - 239/ LGSA/S 240,000 508
Fiftean Mile Road (0-0.62xm) - 239/LGSR7 350,000 0|
Woodlands Road {10.80-12km) - 238 LGSR/3 400,000 3,063
Brightview Road (0-12km) - 239/LGSR/8 650,000 0
Sub-Total 1,640,000 35N
Safest Transport Infrastructure Development Scheme (TIDS)
Gatton State School - 239/LGSH2 99,000 136,891
Laidley State High School Set Down 10,217,

0

Hatton Vala State School Bus Set Down 0 12,289
Lake Clarendon State School Set Down 0 23,176
Milora Street Bus Set Down 0 655
0

Thornton State Schoal Bus Turnaround 7,375
Carry Over: Murphy Creek School - 23%LGSH10 236,000 0
Glenore Grove State School - 239/L.GSHA18 66,000 3,660
Laidley District State Schoot Parking Facility 200,000 0|
Hickey Street Pathway and Lighting 16046-07-044 205,900 0
2012-13 School Bus Routes - 238/LGSH'3 110,000 0|
2012-13 School Bus Routes - 239LGSH/5 110,000 0|
Sub-Total 1,026,900 194,264|
Council Road Projects

Revote Road Program:

Fords Road Upgrade - R2R carry over 185,000 -360
Mountain Road'Range Crescent VS - Realign road reserve 40,000 0
Wiliam & Spencer Street Intersection Upgrade 50,000 0
Footpath Renewal 130,000 0
Footpaths - Tumer Street 26,100|
Footpath Renewal - Western Drive 7.578]
Gravel Road Resheot 300,000

Mountain Road 0 4,527
Fords Road 0 19,759
Coles Road 0 87,599
Woolshed Creek Road 0 12,615
Morleys Road 0 32,023)
Rockmount Road - Seal missing Link/Floodways 0 0|
Risson Road 0 55,492
Staatz Quarry and Forrest Hill - Fernvale 0 737,
Orfon Street. Laidley 0 378
Sub-Total 705,000 246,447
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Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs Budget
to 30 November 2012

Attachment 3
Capital Budget Detail

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Capital Works Detailed Expenditure to 30 November 2012

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL WORKS BY DETAIL RSN ] | EREEWRINIE
UL APITA Lk ] 'BUDGET 01.07.1210
: 30.06.13

|Roadworks Upgrade
On Street Car parks {and disabled) 50,000 0
Ambrose Street Car park {and disabled) 4,631
Victor Street - Car park 0 17,229]
Signs and Line marking 100,000
|Schultz Lookout Rd - Signs 1,836
Ambrose Street - Signs & Line marking 86
Wandin Road - Signs & Line marking 1,739]
Laidiey - Signs and Line marking 12,535
DA1873 Summer Street. Councll commitment for K&C Drainage 40,000 0
|Sub-Total 190,000 38,056
Translink Projects
Transink Bus Stops - various (4 of} 57,000 0
Sub-Total 57,000 1] |
Totai Roads and Streets 4,926,900 632,137
|Bridges/Large Culverts
Thistlethwane Bridge - requires $1.3m (flood recovery) 650,000 0|
Hogers Bridge 0 73,145

/ 650,000 73,145
Urban Drainage
Revote Program:
Flood and Urban Drainage
Total Water Cycle Management Plan 50,000
Drainage Complaint Works 100,000
Helendale Drive Drainage Upgrade 3928
Drainage - Land Acquisition 0 10,081
iEmefgency Resilience Project. Gatton 0 14,465
Forast Hill Flood Study 0 13,128
12 Airforce Road. Drain Easement 0 21,666
Sub-Total 150,000 63,269)
Flood 8 Drainage Mitigation Projects 644,000
Extension of spatial & photogrammetery 1o support TLPI & other planning
jassessment 5,250
Lakes Drive Drainage Upgrade 0 3,588
Douglas Mcinnes Dr Drainage Upgrade 0 1,000
Summer Street Drainage Upgrade 0 1 .218I
“*Purchase Drainage Land - Hayes St, Laidley 494,586
Sub-Total 644,000 505,641
Total Urban Drainage 794,000 568,910
Plant Operation
Plant Reduction 2,377,000
Plant Operation Tatal 1,377,000
Fabricate Box Trailer Plant No. 732 0 5,997
Fabricate Box Trailer Plant No. 733 0 2,566
**Plant Cperations 112,001

1,000,000 120,564|

Miscellaneous
Emergency Helipad - Gatton 0 3,357
Emergency Helipad - Lake Clarendon 0 1,135
GPS mondoring System
Fitting of GPS monitoring systems and event recorders to Jet patcher, Street
Sweeper, Wide Area Mowere X 2, Tractor and Slasher X 2, Grader, Tipper and
Two Utes (Roads Maintenance Foreman) 15,000 0|
Small Plant - Parks and Open Spaces 15,000 0
Small Plant - Infrastructure Dalivery 15,000 0
[Suppty and set up 300 KVA Diesel powered backup generator tor Gatton Office 105,000 0
**Engneering Furniure ‘ 1,266
Total Miscellaneous 150,000 5-759|
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Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs Attachment 3
Budget to 30 November 2012 Capital Budget Detail

Lockyer Valley Regional Council
Capital Works Detailed Expenditure to 30 November 2012

'SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL WORKS BY DETAIL MBI | | EXETIOIVNE
UL APITAL WOR . 'BUDGET 01.07.1210
: 30.06.13
|Depot Management
Communication Equipment
Two-way radios/UHF radios 10,000 0
Workshop Equipment
Loose 100ls and equipment 10,000 0
Depot
|Matesfal storage bays at Gatton depot 40,000 0
5000 L kero tank and bunded area 30,000 0
Gatton Depot Fuel Tank 0 28,396
Additional Covered Parking Shed. Gation 10,000 0|
Total Depot Management 100,000 28,396)
|Parks and Gardens
Community Facilities
Capital Expenditure
Springbrook Park - Facility Improvements 20,000
|Playground Improvements 50,000
Bugler Park 0 27,832
Anzac Park 27,302
Operational Expenditure
Park General Improvements 70,000 0
Gatton CBD Streetscape - Replace Lights 20,000 0
160,000 55,234
Assets on Reserve
Caoin Operated Water Dispense Units 0 0
0 [i]|
0 0
0 0]
Dongas at Gatton Depot
Contamination Cleanup
Total Infrastructure Recovery
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 2012-2013 15,596,400 2,519,936]
Child Care Centres
Kensington Grove Child Care Centre 0 0
Total Kensington Grove Child Care Centre 0 0
Gatton Child Care centre
Gatton Child Care - New Nursery Fumiture & Play Equipment 18,000
Gatton Child Care - Replace Soft fall to Climbing Equipment 18,000
**Gatton Child Care Cantre Equipment 12,245
Total Gatton Child Care Centre 36,000 12,245
Total Child Care Centres 36,000 12,2a5)
Staging Post Café ( Restaurant
Back of House Conversion 20,000 0
Convection Oven 25,000 0
New Cold Room Installation 20,000 0
Software Upgrades 3,000 0|
Total Staging Post Caté / Restaurant 66,000 of
Waste Disposal Facilities
Gatton Landiill 0 100914
Fencing of Transter Stations 50,000 0|
Gatton Landiill - Plant Storage Shed 30,000 0|
Gatton Landtill - Roadworks 250,000 0
Lockrose Transfer Station - Upgrade/Land Purchase 100,000 0
T Facil 430,000 100.916'
Waste Minimisation Facilities
Gatton Recycing Shop Alterations 50,000 0
New 2 Bin System (26,000 bins) 1,040,000 0
[Total Waste Minimisation Facilities 1,090,000 ]|
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Attachment 3

Capital Budget Detail

Lockyer Valley Regional Council

Capital Works Detailed Expenditure to 30 November 2012

DETAILED
. 20122013 EXPENDITURE
SCHEQULE OF CAPITAL WORKS BY DETAX. BUDGET 01.07.1210
30.06.13

Waste Management - General
Landscaping of Transter Stations {Stage 1) 50,000 0
LVRC Infrastructure Plan (Transfer Stations locationahours operation) 100,000 0
LVAC Signage 40,000 0
Transfer Station Upgrades 20,000 0|
Total Waste Management - General 210,000 o
Weighbridge Project
Gatton Landlill - Phone & Communication 0 3,806
Weighbridge Preparation 0 6,727
Remove & Replace Fence 0 7,026
Weighbridge Office 0 18
“*Weighbridge Software 43,364

0 60,942
Grantham Land Development

in - 7

Grantham Estate Works - Stage 2A 0 307,069
Grantham Estate Works - Stage 28 0 230,098
Total Grantham Land Development 0 537-167|
[TOTAL BUSINESS UNITS 2012-2013 1,834,000 711,267
Chief Executive Office
|Elected Members
**Equipment for Elected Members Desk 378
Total Elected Members 378|
[TOTAL EXECUTIVE OFFICE 2012-2013 0 378]
|GRAND TOTAL ALL PROGRAMS 2012-2013 22,548,600 4,603,904{

Note: Total dollar allocations vary slightly 1o total program reports dollars due to end

** Other Capital Expenditure not in WIP

of the month capital processes.
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Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs Attachment 4
Budget to 30 November 2012 Graphs

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
Progress At A Glance - Council
30 November 2012

v Budget on Track (variance of less than + 10%)
(@ Potential Budget Issue (variance of between 11 to 30%)
X Definite Budget Issue (variance greater than £ 30%)

Net Operating Result
Community & Development
Environmental Health Services
Animal Control

Community & Youth Development
Multiculturai Developrment

CDS Group Management

Rural Services

Community Services

Library Management

Arts and Culture

RADF,

Natural Environment Recovery
Human and Social Recovery

Carmrective action needed-75% of operating expenses budget spemt
No budget for expenses in this area-budget amendment required.

Carrective action needed-70% of budgeled expenses spent

: 718 1 : i
Environ al C ate Program Operating expanses at 71%-comactive action required

Community Grants

Salinity

Land for Wikdide

Land Acguisition/Conservation
Onground Waorks/Helping Hand
Herbicide Subsidy Class 3
Plumbing Sesvices

Building Regulatory

Strategic Planning

D S ik Income at 253 but expenses at 34%. Cost contral needed.

Weed Control
Development Assessment Engineering

€L € € €@ O ¢ X X< X@®e <<

Organisational Development & Performance

Organisational Development & Performance v
Executive Office

Chief Executive Office v
Elected Members v
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Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs Budget Attachment 4
to 30 November 2012 Graphs

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
Progress At A Glance - Council
30 November 2012

v Budget on Track (variance of less than + 10%)
(@ Potential Budget Issue (variance of between 11 to 30%)
X Definite Budget Issue (variance greater than £ 30%)

NGt Operting Resit

Corporate Services

Workplace Health & Safety

Financial Planning & Performance
Corporate Services Group Managemaent

Hurnan Resources
Budget amendment needed as 72% of expenses spent. Wages budge! 70%
spent,

Corporate Records Management
Financial Services
Purchasing & Stores
Rates

Accounts Payabie
Payroll

Accounts Receivable
information Services
GIS

Customer Service
QGAP Agency

(((((((((xe((((

Governance & Policy
Cerporate Communication
Governance & Policy

Legal Services
Advocacy
Corporate Governance

(SIS IR

Operating expenses at 83%-comective action required

Strategy & Planning

Community Engagemant & Communication
Recovery Co-Ordination & Management
Economic Recovery

Issue caused by no budget alocation-costing needs investigating

Regional Development v
Public Relations (® Operating expanses at 60%-corractive action required
Strategy and Planning @ Operating expenses at 65%
Tourism v
Visitor Information Centre/Conference Rooms v
X Corrective action required as budget at 169% spent. Budget amendments
State Emergency Services Management needed tor Council plant hire.
Aural Fire Brigades Management v
Other Digaster Control Management X Expenses under control but no income received to date
Qld Transport Musaum v
Volunteer Co-Ordination v
Housing Recovery X Issue caused by no budget for sewer & water at Grantham estate
v
X
v
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Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs Attachment 4
Budget to 30 November 2012 Graphs

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
Progress At A Glance - Council
30 November 2012

v Budget on Track (variance of less than + 10%)
(@ Potential Budget Issue (variance of between 11 to 30%)
X Definite Budget Issue (variance greater than £ 30%)

NGt Operting Resit

Infrastructure Services
® Gatton depot-103% of asset mantenance budget spent. Budget amendments
Depot Operations neeced.
Development Assessment
Public Order and Safety

Civic Halls Management
Community Housing

H.A.C.C. Services

Cemetery Management

Building Maintenance Management Annual insurance premium paid in July
Showgrounds Management

Swimming Pools Management

Other Sporting and Recreational Facilibes
Public Conveniences

Parks and Gardens
HReserves Management Corrective action required as budget at 81% spent
Plant Operations
Aoads and Streets
Drainage Structwres
Stormwater Drainage

Insufficient gravel recovearies-aither not all gravel has been costed out or gravel
Raw Materials Management unit prices are 100 low.
Engineenng Operations Carrective action required as budget at 131% spent
Asset Management Budget amendments required as budget &t 523 spent
Survey and Design Management

CLEAX X £ CAX <X e@®me g

Infrastructure Recovery

Business Units

Kensington Grove Child Care Centre
Gatton Chid Care Centre
Recoverable/Contract Works

Main Roads Maintenance

Staging Post Café Corrective action as income signdicantly less than expenses

Bullding Certification
Grantham Land Davelopment
Waste Collection

Waste Dsposal

Wasto Minimisation

Income at 27% but expenses at 36%. Cost control needed.

No income

C L LCEX X <
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Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs Budget

Attachment 4

(2 - Net rate and Fees and charges  Interest received  Contract and Other recurrent  Gra
utility charges recoverable works income cont
(4} -

(6)

(8}
(20} +
(22} ~
(24) +
(16} 4
(18) -
(20} -
(22}
(24) 4
(26} -
(28) -

to 30 November 2012 Graphs
LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
Operating Revenue Graphical Representations as at 30 November 2012
Operating Revenue in Smillions )
ot e, 222/2777777/777//72/7777/7/7//72/7%
Other recurrent income
Contract and recoverable
works
Interest received
@ Amended Budget
Month to Date
Fees and charges
Net rate and utility charges
0 5 10 15 20 zs 30 35 ;o )
f Operating Revenue Variances in $millions )
24
0 . — —— %
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Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs
Budget to 30 November 2012

Attachment 4
Graphs

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
Operating Expenditure Graphical Representation as at 30 November 2012

Operating Expenditure in $millions

4
Finance costs o

Materials and services

Employee benefits

@ Amended Budget
Maonth to Date

W Year to Date Actual

LR Operating Expenditure Variances in $millions
0 =
Employee benefits Mate Finance costs Depreciation
(a) -
(8)
(12) -
(16)
(20)
(24) 4
(28) -
- 7
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Attachment 4
Graphs

Summary of Council Actual Financial Performance vs Budget
to 30 November 2012

Capital Works Graphical Representation to 30 November 2012
Capital Works by Program

% of An |
e Original Capital| Current Capital | Year to date :u dx::'a
' - Budget Budget Actual
Spent
Community & Development $40,000 $40,000 $122,946 307.4%
Corporate Services 54,089,000 54,089,000 $805,195 19.7%
|Infrastructure Services $15,596,400 $15,596,400 $2,324,259 14.9%
lGovernance & Policy S0 S0 $168,574 0.0%
JOrganisational Development & Performance 50 S0 50 0.0%
[strategy & Planning $989,200 $989,200 $212,769 21.5%
|Executive Office S0 50 5378 0.0%
IBusiness Units $1,834,000 $1,834,000 $698,937 38.1%)
[Capital Process Adjustments S0 S0 $88,012 0.0%
TOTAL $22,548,600 $22,548,600 $4,421,070 19.6%
~\
Total
2012/13 Council
Capital Works Expenditure
24
22 -+
20
18 -+
16
o 14
5
= 12+
E w0
8 {
6 4
4 - —&— Current Budget 12/13
2 —l— Actuals 12/13
0 4
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nowv Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
J
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ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

At 11.30 am the order of business was amended to receive a deputation from Officers of
Queensland Health in regard to water fluoridation, to be further discussed with the Closed
Session of the Agenda.

The Meeting was adjourned for a break at 12.05 pm and resumed at 12.11 pm.

9.4 Budget Review 1, 2012/2013

Date: 13 December 2012

Author: Michael Chow, Manager Financial Operations
Responsible Officer: David Lewis, Group Manager Corporate Services
File No: 1.2/3/12 1.1/17/14.1

Summary:

The purpose of this report is to formally amend Council’'s adopted 2012/2013 Annual Budget to
recognise variations in anticipated income and expenditure to 30 June 2013.

This review is necessary to meet Council’s legislative obligations (under Section 100 of the Local
Government (Finance, Plans and Reporting) Regulation 2010), to facilitate appropriate financial
controls and ensure that Council’s financial resources are allocated in the most effective manner.

The net impact of this review is deterioration in Council’s budgeted 2012/2013 Operating Result
(excluding capital revenues) by $2.0 million and a $1.0 million reduction in Council’'s 2012/2013
Capital Works Program.

As a result of this review, there are slight movements in a number of Council’s financial ratios
however they remain within recommended target ranges.

Officer’'s Recommendation:
THAT Council resolves to amend the 2012/2013 Budget in accordance with the
attached financial statements and budget adjustment summaries.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council resolves to amend the 2012/2013 Budget in accordance with the
attached financial statements and budget adjustment summaries.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Pingel
Resolution Number: 2842

CARRIED
7/0

Report
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ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

Introduction

The purpose of this report is to amend Council’s adopted 2012/2013 Budget to recognise
variations in anticipated income and expenditure to 30 June 2013. This is necessary to meet
Council’s legislative obligations, to facilitate appropriate financial controls and to ensure that
Council’s financial resources are allocated in the most effective manner.

Background
The 2012/2013 annual budget was adopted by Council at its meeting on 30 July 2012.
Report

Section 100 of the Local Government (Finance, Plans and Reporting) Regulation 2010 allows
Council to amend its annual budget by resolution at any time before the end of the financial
year as long as the budget continues to apply with Section 99 which basically requires Council
to be presented with an updated full set of financial statements and ratios. The budget
amendment must also be consistent with Council’s long-term financial forecast, financial plan,
5-year corporate plan, annual operational plan and long-term community plan.

The net impact of this review is a net deterioration in Council’'s Operating (Deficit) of $1.9M.
The following table details a high level summary of the amendments to the 2012/2013 Original
Budget for the results of this budget review.

$ million Operating Capital Total
Projects Works Amendments

Expenditure (Increase)/Decrease | (0.9) 1.1 0.2

Revenue Increase/(Decrease) (1.2) (0.5) (1.6)

Net Adjustment 2.0 (0.6) (1.4)

The key components that make up the above amendments are as follows:

e The net adjustment of $2.0 million in operating projects mainly relates to an adjustment of
$1.8 million for prepaid Federal Assistance Grants which were receipted in late 2011/2012.
This decrease is funded from a transfer from reserves of these funds that were made as
part of Council’s end of financial year processes. There is a possibility that these grants
will again be prepaid this financial year, with the 2012/2013 Budget to be adjusted
accordingly if this occurs.

e Due to current State Government budget cuts all TIDS funding allowed for in the current
year budget has ceased. $1.0 million has been removed from capital expenditure including
state capital grants of $493k and capital reserve funding of $534k.

In addition to the above adjustments, the opportunity was also undertaken to realign a number
of budget allocations during this review. The major adjustment within this category is the
movement of $7.3 million from goods and services to employee costs within the Community
Recovery Program.
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ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

The Community Recovery Program is currently being reviewed by the Infrastructure Services
Group with any adjustments to the program to be presented to Council in a future workshop
forum.

Financial statements for the amended 2012/2013 Budget including detailed listings of all
funded and unfunded budget adjustments are given in the attachments.

As a result of this review, there is a slight movement in a number of Council’s financial ratios;
however, these continue to remain within recommended target ranges. These movements are
also outlined in the following table.

Original Amended Recommended
: : . Budget Budget Targets

S 2012/2013 | 2012/2013

Asset Consumption Ratio 62.25% 62.18% Target -
between 40%
and 80%

Asset Sustainability Ratio 129.34% 147.96% Greater Than
90%

Debt Service Ratio 1.68% 2.60% Less Than 20%

Interest Coverage Ratio -1.05% -1.64% Between 0 and
5%

Net Financial Liabilities Ratio 3.78% 3.46% Not Greater
Than 60%

Operating Surplus Ratio 3.07% 2.59% Between 0 and
10%

Operating Surplus Ratio (Excluding | -0.81% -3.47% Greater Than 0

capital revenues) %

Working Capital Ratio 2.61 2.64 Between 1.1
and 4.1

Policy and Legal Implications

There are no policy implications from this report.

The report complies with Council’s legislative obligations to amend its budget in accordance
with Sections 99 and 100 of the Local Government (Finance, Plans and Reporting) Regulation
2010.

Financial and Resource Implications

The purpose of this budget review is to ensure that anticipated expenditure and revenue for

the current year are within budget provisions and, where anticipated exceptions occur, make
amendments to the budget or reallocate existing budget provisions as required.
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ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

This budget review will deteriorate Council Operating Surplus/ (Deficit) by $2.0 million,
decrease the Capital Works Program by $1.1 million and decrease Council’s cash reserves by
$1.4 million.

Delegations/Authorisations

This review ensures that funds are provided for projects which are anticipated to be completed
by 30 June 2012.

Under Section 101 of the Local Government (Finance, Plans and Reporting) Regulation 2010,
Council must make a resolution about spending money before, or as soon as practicable after,
the money is spent.

Communication

There are no communication requirements associated with this report.

Conclusion

A budget amendment is required to Council’'s 2012/2013 Original Budget to ensure that

Council continues to comply with the requirements Local Government (Finance, Plans and
Reporting) Regulation 2010.
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Budget Review 1, 2012/2013

Attachment 1

Budget Review 1 2012/2013

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL

2012/2013 - BUDGET REVIEW 1

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSES

for the period ending 30 June 2013

TOTAL COUNCIL
ORIGINAL
Executive Sum BUDGET BUDGET
Y 2011/2012 2014/2015
S S
Operating Revenue
Rates and Utility Charges {Gross) 26,063,500 29,561,900 31,614,289| 33,327,656
éscount -2.194,000 -1,163,000 -1,072,410  -1,132,143
Charges & Fees 5.410,000 5,438,600 5,656,144 5,882,390,
Interest 2,766,200 2,961,000 28425680 2,643,581
Operating Grants and Subsidies 100,514,300 98,865,360 6,643,123
Revenue - Contract/Recoverable Works 0 7,078,680
Other Revenue 1,070,000 0
2.500
h‘omi aperaﬂng Revenue 133, 54,443,266)
Operating Expenses '
Employee Costs 25,896,945 27,151,700 27.237,768| 27,056,554
Goods and Services 99.903.455) 102,364,900 104,917,578 13,995,236
Finance costs 25,000 1,483,200/ 1,468,800 1,728,900
Depreciation 10.894.670 10,553,400 10,870,002 11,196,102
0
otal Operating Expenses 136,720,070 53.976.792'
[Operating Resut Surplus [Dear] 3 R B ERAER
Capital Revenues and Expenses
Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 20,257 400 5,450,900 -492,900| 4,958,000 5,182,900 4,215,900
Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Non Current Asse] 250,000 0 0 0 0
Other Capital ltems 1,500,000 0 0 0
Abnormal or Extraordnary ltems 0
f 4 f
Capital Funding Sources
Loans 13,480,000 5,100,000 5,000,000 0
Disposal Proceeds of non Current Assels 245,950 276,000 300,000 320,000
Depreciation utilised 6.861.670 10,553,400 1 10,870,002 11,196,102
—]
Total Capital Funding Sources Used 20,587,620 1 16,170,002] 11,516,102
Capital Funding Applications
Capital Expenditure Renewal 4,546,200 8,177,400 -1.519.WI 6,658,400 9,800,000 7,800,000
Capital Expenditure Upgrade / New 45242100 14,371,200 492,100 14,863, 11,640,000 9,540,000
Loan Redemption 122,000 870,000 870,000 1,116,411 1,179,542
Total Capital Funding Applications 49,910,300 -1, 22,556,411]  18,610.542)
otal Reserve Movements 1,402,850 !.'IE!MI 1,&&3& l,md 1.113,714] 2,421,045
= ! a 3
[Contution 1o Counan 3 o] 3 o |
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Attachment 1

Budget Review 1 2012/2013

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
2012/2013 - BUDGET REVIEW 1

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL WORKS
for the period ending 30 June 2013
TOTAL COUNCIL
SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL WORKS ORIGINAL | AMENDMENTS | AMENDED SRR | S -
$_ 3 S S $ =

JCOMMUNITY & DEVELOPMENT

Lcaries 30,000 30,000 10.000 20,000
Art Gallery 10.000 10,000 10,000
[TOTAL COMMUNITY & DEVELOPMENT 2012-2013 40,000/ 40,000} 0 10,000 30,0004
|CORPORATE SERVICES

Information Tachnology 4,088,000 4,089,000 25,000 3,599,000

TOTAL CORPORATE SERVICES 2012-2013 4,089,000 4,089,000 25,000 3,599,000

STRATEGY AND PLANNING

SES 477,700 477,700 292,700

Enterprise Buldings 210,000 210,000

Regional Davelopment 100,000 100,000

Disaster Management 80,500 80,500 9,000|

Tourism 76,500 76,500 15,000

Conderence Rooms 31,500 31,500
|Events and Marketing 8,000 8,000

Visitor Information Centra 5,000 5,000

TOTAL STRATEGY & PLANNING 2012-2013 985,200 989,200 0 316,700
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES

Roads and Streets 4,926,900 1,026,900/ 3,900,000 3,710,000 190.000

Swimming Pooks 4.915,000| -500,000; 4,415,000 100,000 4,315,000
Civic Halls 1,116,000 1,116,000 56,000 60,000 1,000.000)
Plant Operations 1.000,000| 1,000,000 1,000,000

Other Sport and Recreational Facilities 825,000 823,000 50,000 20,000 759,000
Urban Oreinage 794,000 -492,100 301,800 301,800

Land for Flood Mitgation purposes 0 492,100 492,100 0 492 100
Bridges and Large Culverts 650.000 650,000 650,000

Acrministration Buildings 575,000 575,000 425,000 150.000|

Public Order and Safety 220,000 220,000 220,000
Parks and Gardens 160,000| 160,000 20,000 140,000

Miscallaneous 150,000 150,000 150,000

Depot Management 100,000 100,000 100,000

Environmantal Servicas 50,000 50,000 50.000)
Community Housing 45,500 45,500 27.500 18.000}
Aural Services 35,000 35,000 35,000

Public Convenlences 25,000 25,000 25,000

Cemeteries 5,000 5,000

TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 2012-2013 15,596,400/ 14,069,500

BUSINESS UNITS

Waste Mnimisation Facilities 1,090,000 1,090,000

Waste Disposal Faciltles 430,000 430,000

Waste Management - General 210,000 210,000

Staging Post Caté / Restaurant 68,000 68,000

Gatton Child Care Centre 36,000 36,000

Strengthening Grantham Project 0 500,000 500,000

[TOTAL BUSINESS UNITS 2012-2013 1,834,000 2,334,000

TOTAL ALL PROGRAMS 2012-2013 ﬁ
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Budget Review 1 2012/2013

Budget Review 1, 2012/2013

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL

2012/2013 - BUDGET REVIEW 1
2011/2012 BUDGET - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period ending 30 June 2013

- TOTAL COUNCIL
MATED | Budget | AMENDED | D A
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL | POSITION BUDGET Review BUDGET ESTIMATE | BUDGET
POSITION 2011/2012 2012/2013 |Amendments| 20122013 2013/2014 | 2014/2015
$ $ $ S 3 S
Assels
|Current Assets
Cash Assets 37,485,763 33,723,263 305,000 34,028,263| 30,397,371| 29,285.409
Receivables 7,074,505 5,974, 505 5,974 505 8,274 505 5,074.505
Inventories 879,680 759,680 759,680 909,680 709,680
Other 0 0 0
45,439,948 40,457,448 305,000 40,762,448 39,581,556 35,069,594
|Non-Current Assets
Other Financial Assets 41,058,991 41,058,991 41,058,991 41,058.981| 41,058,991
Property, Plant and Equipmen| 332,333,422 344,052,622 -1,026.900| 343,025,722| 356,795,720 363,519,618
Capital Work in Progress 10,913,344 10,913,344 10,913,344 7,413,344 6,613,344
384,305,757 396,024,957 -1,026,900| 394,998,057| 405,268,055 411,191,953
y ~721 s () 261
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payables 14545255 13,145.255 13,145,255| 11,645,255 7,945,255
Interest Bearing Liabilities 122,697 2,353,200 2,353,200 2,124,300 2,519,800}
14,667,952 15,498,455 0| 15,498,455| 13,769,555| 10,465,055
|Non-Current Liabilities
Payables 3,984,792 3,584,792 3,584,792 2,784,792 2,034,792
Interest bearing fiabilities 24,688 458| 26,687,955 26,687,955 31,261,355| 30,024,455
28,673,250 30,272,747 0 30,272,747 34,046,147| 32,059,247
[TOTAL UABILITIES | 1 45,771, 771, 47,815,
Inam 711,203] ___ -721,900 ,303| 397,033,009| 403,737
Equity
Capital 298,897,822| 306,387,022 719,026] 307,106,048 315,264,368| 324,388,749
Asset Revaluation Reserve 54,837,755 54,837,755 54,837,755 54,837,755 54,837,755
Capital Reserves 32,668,926 29.486,426] -1,440926| 28045500 26,931,788 24,510,741
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Budget Review 1 2012/2013

Budget Review 1, 2012/2013

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL

2012/2013 - BUDGET REVIEW 1

20112012 BUDGET - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the pericd ending 30 June 2013

TOTAL COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN g " [ FORWERD ) . - T FORWERD | FORWERD
wmapms | PoSMON 3014 POSITION 20132014

s 2012 $ Jonanz 8| §
Batance & begnng of pedcd 97 000 55730 0 7414 560 20207 258
Nt resutt for the pencd 55730 O 0| 0

397 033/ 0 > TAL GB3| 29207 2
Tranalr ¥ Cagilil and Resers 6,70339 s o 234087 509 0
Transier bom Copiiad and Reserves o o 0 0| 113714
Transiers from Becurent Resonves of o 0 0
[Bstance at End of Paries a7, 244
Council's Capital Equity Components

$ 112012 ﬂ a2 ﬂ $
Bakince i bagnong of percd -1,161,758 54,057,755 54.037.755) 206807 822 07106048
Net resdt for the pared 0 0 0) 0

116175 54,837.755 54 837,755 208 897 822 207106 048!
Tranaler 0 Cagiin and Renerois 0 o o 0 7 044 DS
Transier bom Capital and Reserves o o 0| 1113714
Transiers from Becurent Resanves [ o 0| 0
[Baance st End of Puriea B 54237, 298,697,
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Attachment 1
Budget Review 1 2012/2013

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
2012/2013 - BUDGET REVIEW 1

2011/2012 BUDGET - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period ending 30 June 2013

TOTAL COUNCIL
ESTIMATED | AMENDED | " FORWARD |
Cash Flow POSITION BUDGET ESTIMATE BUDGET
2011/2012 20122013 201372014 20142015
S $ S S
{Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers 115,263,005 94,588,900 144,624,283 59,215,605
Payments to Suppliers and Employees -102,982,320 -82,025,600| -134,605,345 -45,301,790
Interest Received 3,149,339 2,961,000 2,842 560 2,643,581
Borrowing Costs 61,196 -1,483,200 1,468,800 1,728,900,
|Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operaling Activities 15,368,828 14,051,100 T1,392.607]  14.828.490|
ICash Flows from Investing Activities:
Payments for Property, Ptant and Equipment -29,218,367 -22,014,600 -21,440,000 -17,440,000
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 187,343 276,000 300,000 320,000
Subsidies for new capital
‘Other
[Fet Cash Inflow (Outliow) from Investing Activities 20,001,034| _ -21,738,600] _ -21,180,000] __ -17,120,000]
ICash Flow from Financing Activities:
Borrowings 24,480,000 5,100,000 5,000,000 0
Repayment of Borrowings -122,689 -870.000 1116411 1,179,542
[Nt Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities 24,357,311 4,230,000 5,116,411 179,543
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held 10,695,085 -3,457,500 -3,630,892 1,1 .962'
Cash at beginning ¢f Reporting Period 26,790,668 37,485,763 34,028,263 30,397,371
1) W) N N
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Budget Review 1, 2012/2013

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
2012/2013 - BUDGET REVIEW 1

2011/2012 BUDGET - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period ending 30 June 2013

Ten Year Projections of Financial Sustainability After Budget amendments December 2012

: ; 2011/2012 201272013  2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 20182018 2019/2020 2020:2021 2021/2022

Asset Consumption Ratio 62.36% 62.18% 62.11% 61.77% 61.38% 61.28% 61.17% 60.77% 60.46% 60,19% 59.94%!
Asset Sustainability Ratio 70.22%  147.96%  110.92%  141.72%  151.74%  122.45% 126.13%  180.02%  182.24%  167.11%  153.00%
Deobt Service Ratio 0.12% 2.60% 1.79% 5.34% 5.10% 5.57% 5.61% 5.35% 5.11% 4.87% 4.64%
Iinterest Coverage Ratio -3.03% -1.64% -0.95% -1.68% -1.29% -1.44% “1.07% -0.75% -0.95% -1.14% 1.32%]
Net Financial Liabilities Ratio -1.70% 3.46% 5.59% 13.42% 19.76% 23.91% 23.29% 21.29% 19.33% 16.67% 12.50%
Operating Surplus Ratio 10,53% 2.59% 3.656% B.60% 7.27% 9.92% 10.38% B.27% 9.49% 10.79% 11.35%
Operating Surplus Ratio (excluding capital revenues) -13.16% -3A47% 0.06% 0.86% 0.35% 1.13% 1.89% 2.16% 2.94% 3.71% 4.48%
Working Capital Ratio 3.10 264 2.89 337 3.83 a9 3.70 3.52 352 KX u.&u_
Asset Consumplion Ratio

Shows the remaining average propation of Councfis infrastruciure assets relative 1o their as new value in current dollars.

Calculation - written down value of infrastructure assets divided by gross replacement cost of infrastructure assets, expressed as a %.
replacement cost of infrastructure assels, expressed as a %.

Target - between 40°¢ and 80%.

[Asset Sustainability Ratio |

This ratio refiects the extent Lo which he infrastructure assels managed by Council are being replaced as they reach the end of their uselul lives.
Calculation - capital expenditure on the reptacement of infrastruciure assels (renewass) divided by deprecialion expenss, expressed as a %
Target > 90%.

Debt Service Ratio

Measures Council's ability to senvice is debls.

Calculation - debt sarvice cost ({loan interest and redemption) divided by total operating revenue, expressed as a %
Target - < 20%

Interest Coverage Ratio

Measures the extent to which Council's operating revenues are committed to funding the interest expense on current loan borrowings and leases.

Calculation - net interest dwided by total operating revenue, expressad as a %.
Target - between (56 and 5%.
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Budget Review 1, 2012/2013

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
2012/2013 - BUDGET REVIEW 1

2011/2012 BUDGET - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period ending 30 June 2013

Ten Year Projections of Financial Sustainability After Budget amendments December 2012

[Ret Financial Liabilitles Ratio ]

‘Measures the extent to which the net financial kabiities of Council can be repaid from operating revenues.
Calculation - (total liabilites less current assets) divided by total operating revenue, expressed as a %
Targst - not greater than 60%.

Operating Surplus Ratio

Measures the axtent to which revenues raised cover operational expenses only or are available for capital funding purposes or other purposes
Calculation - Net result divided by total operating ravenue, expressed as a %

Target - between 0% and 10%

Operating Surplus Ratio (excluding capital revenue)

A more accurate indicator to measure the extent to which revenues raised to cover operating expenses only or are available for capital funding purposes or other purposes.
Calculation - Operating resull divided by total operating revenue, expressed as a %,

Target > 0%

—So-r_an mnv:a Ratlo |

Measures the extant to which Council has hiquid assets available to meet short term financial obligations
Calculation - Current assets (CA)current liabilities (CL), expressed as X : 1 (where X « CA/CL).

Target - between 1:1 and 4:1

Page 177

9.4

Attachment 1



Attachment 1

Budget Review 1 2012/2013

Budget Review 1, 2012/2013

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
BUDGET REVIEW 1 - 2012/2013 - OPERATING

NUMBER OR EXPLANATION BUDGET BUDGET
$ $ $

EXECUTIVE OFFICE 111-3-0000 Council plant hire charge (Elected members) 0 40,000 40,000
ICORPORATE SERVICES 125-3-0000 Council Plant hire charge (Records) Pit no 12 records 0 19,000 19,000)
GOVERNANCE & POLICY 133-3-0000 Council Plant Hire charge (Gov & Policy) 0 3,000 3,000
COMMUNITY DEV SERVICES 451-3-0 Council Plant Hire charge {Library) mobile library 20,600 58,600 38,000,
STRATEGY & PLANNING 571-3-0 Council Plant Hire charge (SES) 0 257,000 257,000
|BUSINESS UNIT 714-3-0000 Council plant hire charge (Grantham Dey) Ute J Simmonds 0 18,000 18,000
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 5520-2655-0000  |Oncost Recoveries Plant Hire (Plant) -8.561,300) -8.936,300 -375,000

{Allow for full utilisation of council plant hire not included in orginal budget)
|IBUSINESS UNIT 7140-2103 Strengthening Geantham Non Council Exp {Housing business unit) 0 424,000 424,000
CORPORATE SERVICES 2110-1200-0000 Interest on Investments eamed (Finance) -900.000 -1,200,000 -300,000
CORPORATE SERVICES 2130-1080-0000 Interest on Rate Arrears -275.000 -399.000 -124,000

{ Water & sewerage costs for Grantham progect not budgeted. To

be funded from additional interest earned from investments & rate

arrears)
CORPORATE SERVICES 231-24-0000 Call Centre Costs (Customer sarvice) 0 10,000 10,000,
CORPORATE SERVICES 231-55-0000 Telephones (Customer service) 25,300 15,300 -10,000|

(Allow for BCC After hours Service costs. Funded from within

customer senvice)
CORPORATE SERVICES 125-1-0000 Records Sataries 254,000 362,000 108,000
ICORPORATE SERVICES 217-1-0000 Purchasing & Stores Salanes 342,000 260,000 -82,000)
CORPORATE SERVICES 232-1-0000 QGAP Salaries 167,000 141,000 -26,000

{allow for Records coordinator not budgsted for. To be funded from

savings in Purchasing / stores salaries)
ICORPORATE SERVICES 125-61-0000 Recoeds Temp staff 0 18,000 18,000
ICORPORATE SERVICES 221-1-0000 Information Sesv Salaries 643,000 625,000 -18,000)

[Allow for F Beatty while tempeng in records, To be lunded from

savings information Services salaries)
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LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL

BUDGET REVIEW 1 - 2012/2013 - OPERATING

$ $

EXECUTIVE OFFICE 131-31-0000 Conferences (Exec Offica) 3,000 13,000 10,000
EXECUTIVE OFFICE 131-45-0000 Meals - staff {Exec Office) 5,000 10,000 5,000
EXECUTIVE QOFFICE 131-46-0000 |Meeting expenses LVRC hosted (Exec Office) 2,000 7,000 5,000
EXECUTIVE OFFICE 131-32-0000 Consultancy 60,000 40,000 20,000

{Allowance for overexpenditure Executive Office. To be funded from

consultancy CEQ's office)
GOVERNANCE & POLICY 133-31-0000 Conferences / meetings (Gov & Palicy) 3,000 5,000 2,000
EXECUTIVE OFFICE 111-31-0000 Conferences | meatings (Elected members) 30,000 29,000 -1,000
GOVERNANCE & POLICY 136-31-0000 Conlerences (Legals) 1,500 1,000 -500)
GOVERNANCE & POLICY 137-31-0000 Conferences (advocacy) 1,500 1,000 -500

{Allowance for over expenditure Governance & Policy Conferences.

To be funded from Legals, advocacy,elected members)
GOVERNANCE & POLICY 121-39-4 General Expenses - Stall lunclions 5,000 11,000 6,000
STRATEGY & PLANNING 113-39-0 General Expenses (Regional Development) 3,000 2,500 -500
STRATEGY & PLANNING 118-38-0 General Expenses (VIC) 5,000 4,500 -500
STRATEGY & PLANNING 119-39-0 General Expenses (QTM) 3.000 2,500 -500
CORPORATE SERVICES 123-39-0 General Expenses (HA) 10,000 9,500 -500,
EXECUTIVE OFFICE 131-39-0 General Expenses (Executive office) 5,000 4,500 -500
GOVERNANCE & POLICY 132-39-0 General Expenses (Corporate Comms) 2,000 1,500 -500)
ICORPORATE SERVICES 219-38-0 General Expenses (Corpserv Group Mgt) 5.000 4,500 -500
IBUSINESS UNITS 331-39-0 Genera! Expenses (Building Cert) 5,000 4,500 -500
COMMUNITY DEV SERVICES 421-39-0 General Expenses (Environmental Health)) 3,000 2,500 -500
COMMUNITY DEV SERVICES 422-39-0 General Expenses (Animal CTRL) 2,000 1,500 -500
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 424-38-0 General Expenses (Pub Order & Safaty) 5,000 4,500 -500
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 431-39-0 General Expenses (Civic Halls) 4,000 3,500 -500)

(Allowance for Staft Xmas party 2012. To be funded from various

departments}
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LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
BUDGET REVIEW 1 - 2012/2013 - OPERATING

'NUMBER OR EXPLANATION BUDGET | BUDGET
$ $ $

CORPORATE SERVICES 125-29-0 Computer Software Mice (Records) 22,000 28,3800 5,800
STRATEGY & PLANNING 113-29-0 Computer Software Mice (Regicnal Dev) 1,000 0 1,000
STRATEGY & PLANNING 120-29-0 Computer Software Mice (Volunteer Coordination) 1,000 0 -1,000
CORPORATE SERVICES 122-29-0 Computer Software Mice (WPHAS) 1,000 0 -1,000!
ICORPORATE SERVICES 123-28-0 Computer Software Mice (HR) 1.000 0 -1,000
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 425-29-0 Computer Software Mice (CCCTV) 2,000 0 -2,000
COMMUNITY DEV SERVICES 437-29-0 Computer Software Mice (CDS Group Mgt} 2,500 1,700 -800

{ allowance for additional cost for Recfinf support)
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 713-66-0 Kildare Contract payment 0 79,000 79,000
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 6999-7955-0000  |Appropriation - General Reserve 0 79,000 -79,000

{ Allowance for Torgue Group Pty Ltd re Kildare Pastoral. To be

funded fron Self Insurance general reserve)
GOVERNANCE & POLICY 136-32-0 Consullancy (Legal unit) 300,000 450,000 150,000
GOVERNANCE & POLICY 6999-7955-0000  |Appropriation - Legal Reserve 0 -150,000 -150,000

(Allowance for increase in Legal costs. To be funded from legal

resarve)

NOTE - TOTAL OF T EQUAL ZERD, TOTALS 50
Amendment No:  1of 2

ICORPORATE SERVICES 2110-1700-0000 FAG Grant General Purpose (Finance) -2.896.900 -1,708,094 1,188,806
CORPORATE SERVICES 2996-7955-0000 Appropriation General reserve 0 -1,188.806 -1,188,806

{Allowance for Prepaid FAG Grant in 2012FY transferred from

reserne)
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 6110-1700-0001 Road Entittlement grant {Roads & Streets) -1.114,400 -657,280 557,120
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 6999-7955-000 Appropriation General reserve 0 -557,120 557,120,

[Allowance for Prepaid FAG Grant in 2012FY transterred from

resenve)
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BUDGET REVIEW 1 - 2012/2013 - OPERATING

Page 181

NUMBER OR EXPLANATION BUDGET BUDGET
$ $ $
GOVERNANCE & POLICY 1210-1100-0000 Leased Property Income (Corporate Governanca) 246,000 0 246,000
GOVERNANCE & POLICY 1210-1100-0000 Leased Property Income (Corporate Governance) 0 -246,000 -246,000

(to allow for rental Income 1o show &s other Income)

ICORPORATE SERVICES 213-42-000 Legal Recoveries {Rates) 0 212,000 212,000

CORPORATE SERVICES 2130-1080-0000  |Legal Costs Hecovered {Rates) -15,000 227,000 212,000,
{Allowance for recovery of legals on overdue rates)

INFRASTRUCTURE 7130-2180-0000  |Roads & Streets resloralion works (Labour) 0 7,300,000, 7,300,000
7130-2180-0000  |Reads & Streels restoration works (Goods & Services) 90,000,000]  82.700,000 -7,300,000
{ Allowance for revised estimate of Flood restoration to 30 June 2013)
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Budget Review 1, 2012/2013

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
BUDGET REVIEW 1 - 2012/2013 - CAPITAL

PROGRAM ACCOUNT ITEM DESCRIPTION CURRENT AMENDED !
NUMBER OR EXPLANATION BUDGET BUDGET
S $ $
INFRASTRUCTURE 9103-613-1 Purchase of land for Flood mitigaticn 0 492,100 492,100
INFRASTRUCTURE 6130-4900-902 Flood & Drainage Mitigation Proects 644,000 151,900 -492,100)
(Purchase of Land for flood mitigation not budgeted. To be funded
from other capital flood mitigation projects)
INFRASTRUCTURE 7308- TIDA Funded Road Projects 1,026,200 0 -1.026,900]
INFRASTRUCTURE TIDS Grant income -492,900 0 492,900
INFRASTRUCTURE Reserves Funding -534,000 0 534,000
(Reduction in TIDS Funding due to State gevernment decision)
BUSINESS UNITS 7140-4901-902 Strengthening Grantham Capital Works 0 500.000! 500,000
INFRASTRUCTURE 7503-135-000 Gatton Aquatic Centre 4,565,000 4,065,000 -500.000)
(Aliow for additional expendilure on Grantham Project not allowed
for in this financial year. To be funded from reduction in Gatton
Aguatic centre project which will not be spent in this financial year)
clmm EQUAL ZERO. dg ALS $0
Budget Amendment No: 1
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9.5 November Customer Statistics Report

Date: 13 December 2012

Author: Cherie Irving, Manager Customer Service
Responsible Officer: David Lewis, Group Manager Corporate Services
File No: 1.1/27/14.1 1.1/29/21

Summary:

The following report contains the November statistics from the Customer Service Centre and consists
of a breakdown of statistics for service requests, telephone calls and a QGAP transactional analysis.

Officer’'s Recommendation:
THAT Council resolves to receive and note the November 2012 Customer Statistics

report.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council resolves to receive and note the November 2012 Customer Statistics
report.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Milligan
Resolution Number: 2843

CARRIED
7/0

Report
1. Introduction

The purpose of this report is to inform Council on November 2012 customer interactions with
Council. As much information as possible from our existing systems is gathered to provide a
comprehensive view of our customer contacts and the types of transactions we engage in
across Council.

2. Background

There continues to be limited methods of gathering statistics due to the limitations of the
various systems within Council. The opening of a contact centre in Gatton (May 2012) and the
implementation of new telephony software in early November 2012 is now providing us with
basic transactional data. Complimenting this data, our interim Delta customer service request
software was implemented (late March 2012) and has enabled customer transactions to be
captured and reported on for the first time. Transaction reporting from QGAP has been
available since its initiation at the Laidley office in June 1988. Receipting data is provided via
Practical.
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During November, tasking for all inbound correspondence (including email) was moved from
DataWorks to the interim customer service request system, Delta. Additionally responding to
customers inbound emails via Council’'s main electronic address (mailbox@lvrc.gld.gov.au)
commenced on the 4™ December 2012 and replicates existing customer services provided for
via telephony enquiries.

Report

Information gathered from Councils phone system, Delta Request system, Practical and
QGAP provide the data for this report. As much information from existing systems is gathered
to provide a comprehensive view of our customer contacts and the types of transactions we
engage in across Council. Overall, November 2012 was a relatively quiet month for Council
and enabled significant on-site system training for team members to occur.

Service Requests

Data provided in this report includes:
e Service requests received for November 2012
Service requests comparisons for September, October and November 2012
Rates service request comparisons for September, October and November 2012
Service requests taken by each group
A breakdown of service requests by group
Service requests comparisons by group for September, October, November 2012
The enquiry method for service requests
Councillor service requests for November 2012
Outstanding Councillor service requests as at 30 November 2012
Outstanding group service requests as at 30 November 2012
November 2012 tasking report

Telephones

3,754 inbound calls were received into the exchange in November. Of these 75 did not
succeed in being connected. The ‘not successful’ number of calls is significantly less than last
month and is possibly due to the extra telephony lines installed in early November, although it
must also be noted that the overall number of inbound calls was also significantly reduced.

New enterprise telephony software was installed in early November and became operational
on the 15 November. The new software has the capability to provide a vast array of data and
we are working closely with COMTEL to develop a series of meaningful and informative
reports including workflows to gauge the provision of balanced and consistent customer
services.

Statistics provided include
e Total calls received January -November 2012
e Top calling exchanges by volume
e Summary usage by state
o After hour calls for November 2012

Receipting
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5,540 receipts were processed in Practical in November (all transactions, council wide).
Significantly 89% of receipts processed for the month were paid either by BPay, Direct Debit,
via Australia Post or internet banking. While this includes a variety of transactions including
Council transactions (e.g. recall from investment), it shows the large numbers of our
customers are conducting business with us by means other then direct contact.

Visitors

There were 288 and 50 visitor tags issued at Gatton and Laidley offices respectively.

QGAP

QGAP activities continue to be under close scrutiny. In November, approximately 87% of all
transactions for QGAP were for the provision of services for transport and car insurance.

Other QGAP information provided in the report includes:
e Performance Report for November 2012
e QGAP transaction count for 2010 - 2012

Policy and Legal Implications

There are no policy or legal implications associated with this report.

Financial and Resource Implications

There are no financial or resource implications associated with this report.
Delegations/Authorisations

There are no delegation/authorisation implications associated with this report.
Communication

There are no communication implications associated with this report.

Conclusion

November was a busy month including the installation of new telephony software and ongoing
process reviews. This report ensures that Council has information regarding November

customer interactions with Council and provides a comprehensive view of our customer
contacts and the types of transactions we engage in across Council.
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CUSTOMER SERVICE
November 2012 STATISTICS

The following report breaks down the statistics for the Customer Service area into:

e Service Requests (Delta)
e Telephony
e QGAP

Service Requests

Total Amount of Requests Received

for November 2903
Total Amount of Quick Completes 864
created in November

Total for month 3803

Service Requests for November 2012

864, 23%

2939, 77%

O Total Amount of Full Service Requests Received for November

B Total Amount of Quick Completes created in November

Service requests in November increased (from October) and reflect the increase in usage with all

tasking of inbound correspondence and emails.
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The following graph gives you the numbers of calls regarding rates for the last three months.

450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100

Rates Service Requests November 2012

I
¢

349 335

50

September October November

O Rates Service Request#

Service Request by Department

The following table shows the number of service requests received by each department during
November. Customer Service continues to capture all enquiries that are not specifically captured in

other areas. These are then reviewed and forwarded to the appropriate business unit.

Service requests by Department November 2012
600 532
500
425 335 291 260
400 191 335 331
300 H [ 274 125
200 H
100 — 82 82 76 47
T 73
|‘||‘||—||—| 035 28 2117 17 13 § 5 3
o3 2 e e Y B
8888228885382 882585 $58585°¢%¢
2 & £ ® £ 28 2 5 © @ § £ § 5 £E ¢ a 2 zE& L2 = E 5 £ F
s 2 83 ¥x § E 2 9 2 I € © £ 3 0 5 = = 8¢ z 2 g 3 ® £
»n o ©O L 3 g 9D = & ® T 2 o W g2 o 3= s 5 92 Q2 <2 g
5 O % R g £ 4 3 2 5 2 2280 o ¢ 5 -
S o E o S 3 x £ & 8 —8dg O v E
s 5 ¢ £ g = S 9 Ot 2258 & 0O £
2 5§ < 3 S o g 2 2 Z250 = g S
-] =1 o c E ¥ £ c a 2 (&}
o = 0 £ F S w c 2,:(/) = S £
> > = T o € E =} © =}
© c 5 = O = £
£ Woa z2 E2E 3
= w £ 0 w
S
O Service Requests taken for November

Page 187



ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

MEQISNAL COURCIL

The following graph shows the comparison of service requests taken in September, October and
November 2012.

Service Requests by Department for September,
October, November 2012
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Enquiry methods

The enquiry method most utilised by customers in November was the telephone. The increase in
November ‘tasking’ is indicative of new processes in that all inbound correspondence is tasked to
business units using the Service Request system.

Enquiry Methods for September, October,
November 2012
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Councillor requests

Forty three councillor requests were taken in November and twenty eight of these remain outstanding.

Councillor Service requests Taken in November 2012
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Outstanding Service requests

The following graph shows service requests outstanding at 30 November 2012. Please note that this
is only a snapshot as that date and continually changes each day as requests are updated, re-tasked
and completed.
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Overdue Service Requests as at November 2012
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Tasking

In November, tasking of inbound correspondence including emails moved from DataWorks into Delta,
the interim service request system as a precursor to using One Council. 692 tasks were raised within

the service requests system with 130 remaining open at 30 November 2012.

Total Number of
Department Document Tasked
Tasked To Tasks Closed Tasks Open Documents
Customer Services 4 2 6
Animal Control 7 11
Building Maintenance 3 3 6
Building Services 107 1 108
Communications 0 0 0
Community Services 7 7 14
Community Development /
Recovery 1 1 2
Corporate Services 14 10 24
Economic Development 2 3
Environmental Health 4 10
Environmental Services 1 1
Events 15 17
Executive Office 18 25 43
Facilities
Finance
Human Resources 21 1 22
Infrastructure Services 34 33 67
Mayor & Councillors 16 13 29
Planning Services 68 6 74
Plumbing 93 1 94
Rates 132 7 139
Records 0 1 1
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Total Number of
Department Document Tasked
Tasked To Tasks Closed Tasks Open Documents
Staging Post 1 0 1
Tourism / VIC 11 0 11
Waste 2 1 3
Telephones
Total Calls

The following graph demonstrates the total number of inbound telephone calls for the last 6 months.
Inbound calls continue to reduce from the high volume in August.
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The number of unsuccessful calls has also reduced as we had an additional 10 lines installed in early
November. We are now reasonably certain that the previously higher than normal number of
unsuccessful calls were due to the complete saturation of our lines.

Breakdown by state and exchanges

The following two graphs provide a breakdown by exchange and state of the origin of our inbound

calls.
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Service Phone From State Total Calls
1300005872 ACT 9
NSW 162
NT 2
QLD 3486
SA 21
TAS 2
Unknown 17
VIC 46
WA 9

After Hours Calls

The following report shows the November ‘after hours’ phone calls from Brisbane City Council. There
were a total of 126 calls for November 2012 with a spike of 22 calls on Saturday 17" November that

were split evenly between seeking customers seeking advice regarding flooding on roads and animal
control calls for lost dogs and roaming stock.

After Hours Calls November 2012
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RECEIPTING
September October November
Receipting 14,781 5,758 5,540

The above table shows the number of receipts taken by Council for November 2012. 5,540 receipts
were processed through the system and this figure includes all transactions for council for the month.

89% of receipts processed for November were paid either via BPay, Direct Debit, through Australia
Post or internet banking. This includes a variety of transactions including Council transactions (e.g.
recall from investment) and consistently demonstrates the large numbers of customers doing
business with us by means other then direct contact.

The following breakdown provides how this money was received:
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Direct
Credit debits /
Cash Cheque Eftpos Card BPAY / Total
Post Office
165 216 71 165 4,923 5,540
$44,688 $987,159 $17,612 $75,549 $11,208,154 | $12,333,165

VISITORS

The following graph indicates the number of visitors received at each office.

Visitor Numbers for November
2012

288

300 +
250 H1
200 H
150 A
100 A

S0

September October November

| 0O Gatton B Laidley

QGAP

The report on the following page indicates the volumes of traffic through QGAP for November 2012.
Once again the Department of Transport took up the majority of transactions (including NRMA and
Suncorp insurances associated with vehicle registration) and amounted to 82% of all QGAP
transactions for November.

The transaction count for QGAP for the last three years is demonstrated in the table directly below.
November 2012 was a ‘typical’ month for QGAP figures.

MONTH 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013

JUL 1328 1207 1117
AUG 1302 1414 1017
SEP 1110 1323 996
OCT 1132 1214 1104
NOV 1143 1149 1068
DEC 824 913
JAN 847 1098
FEB 880 1252
MAR 1339 1529
APR 1259 1353
MAY 1638 1132
JUN 1118 1075

TOTALS 13920 14659 5302
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MEQIONAL COURCIL

MONTHLY REPORT FOR — NOVEMBER 2012
FINANCE SECTION — LAIDLEY QGAP
(Report by Leanne Miller)

PERFORMANCE REPORT
For periods from 01/11/2012 — 30/11/2012.

GRAND TOTALS
Total collection value for all transactions 129248.05
Total Service Fee for all transactions including monthly 6510.17
grant of $1,916.67 received from Smartservice Qld
Total time taken for all transactions 143.9667
Total number of transactions 1068
Total average time for all transactions 8.08
DESCRIPTION FUNDS SERVICE TIME TRANS-
COLLECTED FEE (MINS) ACTION
Births, Deaths & Marriages 1023.75 164.71 280 49
Centrelink 56.01 84 15
Dept Of Env & Resource Man 2.67 4 1
Electoral Commission QLD 17.34 26 5
Office of Fair Trading 370.80 16.00 24 4
Medicare Australia 30.01 45 7
Housing & Homelessness 367.03 510 48
Justice 41.34 62 10
Lead Agency 906.68 1360 44
NRMA 509.70 28.14 24 4
Public Trustee 8.00 12 2
Rental Tenancies Authority 4, 6 1
Seniors Card 17.67 22 4
SPER 13.33 20 1
Suncorp Metway 2674.00 96.19 212 33
Australian Tax Office 12.67 19 2
Transport 124669.80 2811.71 5928 838
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The order of business was changed to bring forward items for discussion in the absence from
the meeting of the Group Manager Community Development Services. Item 10.1 was
deferred until he returned to the meeting.

10.0 COMMUNITY AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORTS

10.2 Allocation of Community Grants

Date: 10 December 2012

Author: Nick McGuire, Manager Community Development & Cultural Services
Responsible Officer: Leo Jensen, Group Manager Community & Development Services
File No: 1.2/9/27

Summary:

Community Grants applications were called for at the start of October 2012 and closed on 31 October
2012. In total 27 applications were received, requesting $86,568.82 in grants for projects that total
$101,334.79. All applications have now been assessed and recommended amounts to allocate to
each project included in attachment 1 (one) of this report. It is recommended that the full $50,000
available is allocated to the applicants.

Officer’'s Recommendation:
THAT Council allocate grants under ‘Category 1 — Funding’ of the Community Grants
program as recommended in this report.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council allocate grants under ‘Category 1 — Funding’ of the Community Grants
program as recommended in this report.

Organisation Recommended
Allocation
Continental Herding Club 2,000
Downs Four Wheel Drive Club 1,500
Equine Learning for Futures 2,500
Fordsdale School of Arts Assn 1,700
Forest Hill Cricket Club 1,600
Forest Hill School of Arts 1,700
Gatton & District Historical Society 1,500
Gatton Girl Guides 1,600
Gatton Tennis Assn 3,000
Helidon Progress Assn 3,000
Junction View Hall Assn 1,500
Kentville State School P & C 1,700
Laidley Agricultural & Industrial Society 1,500
Laidley Bowls Club 1,500
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Laidley Camera Club 1,700
Laidley Junior Rugby League 3,000
Laidley SHSP & C 1,700
Lions Club of Laidley 1,200
Lockyer Multicultural Assn 1,700
Lockyer Valley Landcare 4,000
Lockyer Valley Riding for the Disabled 1,880
Lockyer Valley Toastmasters 900
Mount Whitestone School P & C 1,600
Our Lady of Good Counsel 1,600
Redeemer Lutheran Church 1,300
Withcott Lions Club 1,620
Withcott Progress Assn 1,500
TOTAL $50,000
Moved By: Cr Milligan Seconded By: Cr Holstein

Resolution Number: 2844

CARRIED
7/0

Report

1.

Introduction

In 2012/13 the application based round of Community Grant funds was opened on 1 October
and closed on 31 October 2012. The interest in this funding was extremely positive with a total
of 27 applications asking for well over the budgeted amount. While this is positive it also
presents some challenges in how the funding is to be distributed.

Background

The Community Grants Policy was adopted by Council in October 2011. Within the Policy
there are a total of 9 categories, one of which is called “Funding”. In 2012/13 there is a budget
allocation of $50,000 for this category. This funding is distributed on an application basis to
organisations that are community or non profit with significant local membership in the Lockyer
Valley region and where the project or event will deliver tangible benefits to the residents, the
environment or the economy of the Lockyer Valley.

Report

Within the Community Grants budget a total of $50,000 is available to distribute via Category 1
— Funding.
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This funding was opened for applications on 1 October 2012 and closed on 31 October 2012.
From that a total of 27 applications were received from all over the community, requesting
$86,568.82 in grants for projects that total $101,334.79.

The purpose of the Community Grants program is to offer small non-recurrent grants to
community based organisations in the Lockyer Valley for projects that demonstrate that they:
e Enhance the wellbeing of the community;
Address a demonstrated need,;
Encourage community activities;
Support economic development;
Build capacity for long term sustainability and liveability; and
Strengthen social cohesion and inclusion.

All 27 of the applications received demonstrated a connection to the above mentioned criteria.

The Policy and Guidelines state that “Council will determine the grant allocations at a Council
Meeting” and indicate that Council “may allocate less than the full amount for which an
application is made.”

As previously mentioned the allocated budget for this category of the Community Grants
program is $50,000 and the total amount requested is $86,568.82. Therefore, based on the
criteria and in attempting to provide a consistent and equitable approach to the recommended
distribution of funds, each applicant will be offered partial assistance as per the attached
recommended breakdown.

Another important point to highlight is that because of the nhumber and value of applications
there will not be a second round of grants in 2012/13. This should not create any problems
though because the material on the Council website and all promotional material that has been
sent out this year has never promoted that there would be multiple rounds. This was done
deliberately in case we were confronted with this situation. Having said that it will still be
important for communication to go out to the community so that those that haven’t received the
message understand that there won’t be a second round. Also, it is important to note that there
are other categories within the Community Grants Policy that groups can continue to access
funds through for the remainder of the year.

Policy and Legal Implications

According to the Guidelines for local government administration of community grants October
2009, “...while there is no right of appeal against a decision to approve or refuse to grant,
decisions in relation to grants are still subject to the Judicial Review Act which can result in
challenges to the lawfulness of the process.”

All appeals are otherwise treated in accordance with Councils Complaints Management
Process.

Financial and Resource Implications

The total budget amount of $50,000 for “Category One — Funding” will be allocated through
this process. Based on this there will not be another round of funding through this category,
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but grants will still be available through the other categories under the Community Grants
Policy.

Delegations/Authorisations
There is no delegation implications associated with this report.
Communication

The Community Grants announcement was published in the local newspapers, on the LVRC
website and the Council Community Connect e-newsletter.

All applicants, successful or not, will be advised in writing and all successful applicants are
required to submit an acquittal within four weeks of completion of their project.

Conclusion

To ensure transparency in the assessment process, and to ensure the separation of
responsibilities between the assessors and the decision makers, the process followed has
been that Council officers have assessed the applications against the criteria, made
recommendations and Council will be the final decision makers.

At the end of this process, if endorsed by Council, 27 community organisations will be offered

funding to assist in delivering a range of projects, or to purchase equipment that is required to
build the capacity of the diverse range of groups.
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Allocation

Attachment COMMUNITY GRANTS 2012/ 2013

GRANT ALLOCATION SHEET

Values including GST

Organisation

Project Description

Total Project
Cost

Amount
Requested

Recommended
Allocation

Continental Herding Club

1 x Portable Marquee for protection on training days
10 x Stock Panels

1 x Portable BBQ. Will aliow more activities 10 be
developed. Participants use the local caravan park and the
hotels at Withcott and Murphys Creek

3,071.13

3,071.13

2,000.00

Downs Four Wheel Drive Club

Competency Based Driver Training for the rural fire
brigades in Upper Flagstone, Withcott and Iredale as well
as local community members.

3,763.63

2,000.00

1,500.00

Equine Learning for Futures

Facilitator for capacity building and resilience building
program for children affected by the 2011 fioods in
Grantham. Two similar programs in Grantham have proven
very successiul

2,730.00

2,730.00

2,500.00

Fordsdale School of Arts Assn

Vinyl floor covering in kitchen, store-room and supper
room to cover the floor boards to make the facility easier
to keep clean and provide a more accessible community
asset. The community has done their own repairs to the
rest of the area.

3,076.00

2,000.00

1,700.00

Forest Hill Cricket Club

Line marker & shade screen to assist with close line calls
at games and provide shade after 3pm when the current
shefter is fully in the sun. Helidon and Mulgowie also use
the Forest Hill facility and A-grade games are played there.

$1,781.54

$1,781,54

$1,600.00

Forest Hill School of Arts

Floor Scrubber — After the flood the floor was sanded and
lacquered and now it takes a lot of mopping to get the fioor
clean. The facility is used quite extensively, and the
scrubbing machine will save backs and hours of volunteer
work.

$2,475.00

$2,000.00

$1,700.00

Gatton & District Historical
Society

Membership Drives to create awareness of the society
and also to guarantee that there will be sufficient members
to keep the facility open all weekend for visitors and during

$1,930.00

$1,930.00

$1,500.00
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Allocation

Values including GST

Organisation

Project Description

Total Project
Cost

Amount
Requested

Recommended
Allocation

the week for school groups.

Gatton Girl Guides

Weather-proof & secure doors & floor covering over
concrete to provide safe and comfortable environment
and to secure expansion of the movement.

$3,253.00

$2.,000.00

£1.600.00

Gatton Tennis Assn

Remove & replace deck
Paint exterior and clean the roof to enhance the safety
of the venue

$13,914.89

$13,914.89

$3.000.00

10

Helidon Progress Assn

Renovate Helidon Tennis Club to make it into a tourist
information centre and pictonial museum.

$6,545.00

$6.545.00

$3,000.00

1

Junction View Hall
Association

Bushdance in conjunction with the Mount Sylvia State
School P&C Association which increases the demographic
of people attending the event and brings together people
from communities that are effectively quite isolated.

$1,818.00

$1.818.00

$1,500.00

12

Kentville State School P&C

Install basketball hoops at each end of the
multipurpose undercover area to provide more activities
in a community that is quite isolated

$3,316.28

$2,000.00

$1,700.00

13

Laidley Agricultural &
Industrial Society

Ceiling mounted data projector that can be shared with
other organisations that use the facility

$2,240.00

$2,200.00

$1,500.00

14

Laidley Bowls Club

Junior/Small Bowls - & ses al $250.00 each 10
encourage young peopie to engage in lawn bowls

$2,000.00

$2,000.00

$1.500.00

15

Laidley Camera Club

Free workshops for community members who own fancy
new cameras but don't know how to use them. The camera
club offers one of the few non-sporting activities and offers
social interaction to the non-sporting types

$2,930.00

$1,930.00

$1,700.00

16

Laidley Junior Rugby League

Commercial deep fryer & awning to provide adequate
shading and improved canteen facilities to schools and
community groups. The enhanced facility will help develop
partnerships between sporting clubs

$12,737.26

$12,137.26

$3.000.00

17

Laidley SHS P&C

Football jerseys and scientific calculators. The current
jerseys are worn and do not cater for all sizes. The
calculators will provide teachers and students with their
own equipment

$2,000.00

$2,000.00

$1,700.00
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Allocation

Values including GST

Organisation

Project Description

Total Project

Cost

Amount
Requested

Recommended
Allocation

18

Lions Club of Laidley

Freestanding gas deep fryer 1o complement their
sausage sizzles with hot chips for which they have had
numerous reguests from the community organisations they
help with fundraising initiatives

$1,888.70

$1.777.00

$1.200.00

19

Lockyer Multicultural Assn

Cultural awareness initiatives including workshops to
support ESL high and primary school students sell-esteem
and encouraging participation in multicultural shows and
entertainment. Increase the understanding and acceptance
of cultures

$2,100.00

$2,000.00

$1,700.00

Lockyer Valley Landcare

Transport mulch & rubbish, Remove lantana, turf,
Edible Garden Showcase. Merryfields is a teaching &
training centre plus a showcase of what can be achieved
by cleaning up the environment by removing lantana and
planting native vegetation

$8,250.00

$7.500.00

$4.000.00

21

Lockyer Valley Riding for the
Disabled

Used shipping container to store equipment. RDA is a
voluntary not-for-profit service providing opportunities for
physically or intellectually disadvantaged people of all
ages. The equipment is all donated and expensive to
replace and currently subject to damage and to theft. A
container would be ideal.

$1,980.00

$1,980.00

$1,880.00

Lockyer Valley Toastmasters

Projector, laptop & screen to record speeches, view
body language of participants and also to allow us to do
presentations to he community to encourage maore
participants. The equipment will be made available to any
member wishing to use it for promotional purposes.

$953.00

$953.00

$900.00

Mount Whitestone School P&C

Equipment to develop edible gardens, labour, animal
nursery learning activity to strengthen and celebrate our
liveable community with heirloom gardens/species and an
open day for the wider community to share in healthy
activities like animal farms, kitchen and garden skills

$7,306.36

$2,000.00

1,600.00

24

Our Lady of Good Counsel

Facilitator for Healthy Options workshops — ongoing for
families of the CALD community as the school has become
increasingly aware of the special needs of this group as

$2,500.00

$2,500.00

$1,600.00
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Allocation

Values including GST _
Organisation Project Description Total Project Amount Recommended
Cost Requested Allocation
regards many aspects not the least being healthy lunch
box contents
Redeemer Lutheran Church Zip water wall mounted urn to aliow the community $1,804.00 $1,804.00 $1,300.00
groups who use the hall to have instant hot water rather
than have 1o bring their own portable urns.
Withcott Lions Club Lawn mower for lawn mowing service to elderly & infirm
$1997.00 $1,997.00 $1.620.00
Withcott Progress Association | Develop community markets. Associaled costs include $2,974.00 $2,000.00 $1.,500.00
marketing, insurance, id for officials, site cleanup,
eguipment hire,
$101,334.79 | $86,568.82 | $50,000.00
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10.3 Library Amnesty

Date: 10 December 2012

Author: Nick McGuire, Manager Community Development & Cultural Services
Responsible Officer: Leo Jensen, Group Manager Community & Development Services
File No: 5.6/6/1

Summary:

The Lockyer Valley Libraries have a number of items that come under the category of “Lost” each
year because they don'’t get returned. It is recommended that Council note a planned amnesty period
in the first half of 2013 in an attempt to recover as many “lost” items as possible.

Officer’'s Recommendation:

THAT Council note the proposed Library amnesty period from Monday 4 February
2013 until Saturday 29 June 2013.

And further;

THAT Council note that an appropriate communication strategy will accompany the
amnesty period to encourage the return of all “lost” items for the Library service.

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council note the proposed Library amnesty period from Monday 4 February
2013 until Saturday 29 June 2013.

And further;

THAT Council note that an appropriate communication strategy will accompany the
amnesty period to encourage the return of all “lost” items for the Library service.

Moved By: Cr Pingel Seconded By: Cr Milligan
Resolution Number: 2845

CARRIED
7/0

Report

1. Introduction
Each year a number of items from the Library stock are categorised as “lost” due to the fact
they are not returned for an extended period of time. The purpose of this report is to
recommend a 5 month temporary amnesty period where borrowers can either return the
missing item or advise the Libraries that the item is lost, and they can do so without incurring
any cost.

2. Background
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The Libraries are an integral community service that Council provides. The Libraries are a
place where people not only borrow books and other items, but where they come for a range
of community events and activities. The amnesty concept is seen as an ideal opportunity to re-
engage with a section of the community that are currently disengaged due to the financial
implications of not returning items.

Report
Currently the Libraries have a total of 2,899 items with an approximate value of $86,970
(based on an average of $30 per item) that are long overdue and have automatically

transferred to “Lost” status on the system.

The breakdown of these figures is as follows:

Up to 2010 1,349 items $40,470 value
2011 892 items $26,760 value
2012 658 items $19,740 value
TOTAL 2,899 items $86,970 value

It is recommended that Council note the implementation of a temporary amnesty period from 4
February 2013 until 29 June 2013 where Library members who have long term unreturned
items are given the chance to either return these items or advise Library staff that the items
are in fact lost and cannot be returned without attracting the imposition of a financial penalty.

Ordinarily the cost to the borrower should they lose an item would be approximately $50,
which is $30 for the cost of the item and $20, which is charged as an invoice fee.

The benefits of this initiative include the following:
¢ the potential to fast track the return of outstanding items that are not in fact lost, but
members are not returning because they do not want to pay the $20 invoice fee;
¢ significant goodwill for Council and the Library service; and
¢ the chance for a section of the community that are currently disengaged from the
Libraries to re-engage with this service.

Once the amnesty period is complete the situation will be reassessed and a more thorough
understanding will be obtained of the actual items that are lost, which are then likely to be
written off. Beyond this, starting from the July 2013 a debt collection system will be explored
and presented to Council for approval. Such a system will seek to deter long overdue items
and ensure lost items are either recovered or reimbursed as quickly as possible.

Policy and Legal Implications
Lockyer Valley Libraries — Overdue Items Policy — states that “after a considerable length of
time has elapsed and the items remain overdue, items automatically become “lost”. This report

recommends an opportunity to address this issue.

Financial and Resource Implications
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There is approximately $86,970 worth of Library stock currently classified as “lost”. This
amnesty initiative will help to fast track the recovery of these items and ultimately provide the
Library service with an assessment on the final status of these items.
Delegations/Authorisations

There is no delegation implications associated with this report.

Communication

A Communications Strategy to support this initiative will be developed in partnership with the
Communications department. At this stage it is planned that this will include public notices in
the local papers as well as promotions in some of the other traditional mediums that Council
uses, eg. E-newsletters, Facebook.

Conclusion

The purpose of the report is to note the proposed temporary amnesty period for lost items from
the Libraries.
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The Group Manager Community and Development Services returned to the meeting and
Council resumed the order of Business with the Agenda.

10.1 Group Manager Community Development Services Monthly Update
Date: 10 December 2012

Author: Leo Jensen, Group Manager Community & Development Services
Responsible Officer: Leo Jensen, Group Manager Community & Development Services

File No: 1.1/17/14

Summary:

This report provides Council with a broad update on activities within the Community and Development
Services Group for the month of November 2012.

Officer’'s Recommendation:
THAT Council receive and note the Group Manager Community & Development
Services monthly update.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council receive and note the Group Manager Community & Development
Services monthly update.

Moved By: Cr Holstein Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2846

CARRIED
710

Council presented Mr Nick McGuire, Manager Community Development and Cultural
Services with a certificate of appreciation and acknowledged the contribution he has made to
the community in his time at Council and wished him well in his future endeavours.

Report
November saw the continued delivery of the Group’s broad operational portfolio. Portfolio
meetings were either convened or attended and the first meeting of the Laidley revitalisation
Project was convened.

Some highlights (by Unit) during the month were:

Community Development and Cultural Services

Child Care
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. A display of the children’s photography was exhibited in the Gatton Library as a follow
up to the Children’s Week —“Looking at the World through Children’s Eyes” activity
where children at the centres were given access to cameras. This was a joint initiative
between the Child Care and Library units. A montage of photos taken by the children
is attached. A remarkable and insightful display by such young children.

o The Gatton Child Care Centre hosted Sunday Ali, an African man who gave the
children an opportunity to listen, feel and play with drums as part of the “Hello Africa
Show”, which is a cultural learning experience for the children. Twelve children from
Kensington Grove came over to be involved in the show as well.

° The Gatton Child Care Centre was successful in securing a $5,000 grant from the
State Government under the Enhancement Grant for Long Day Care Services
program. Staffs at the centre are to be congratulated for this initiative.

Library - Art Gallery

o The Living Books program has been rolled out, with both community and school based
sessions being held during the month. The first community session was held on 9
November 2012 with 14 readers. A session was also held at Our Lady of Good
Counsel School, for 50 year 6 and 7 students.

o Over the course of the last month the Library team has delivered the Telstra Mobile
Phone lessons for seniors in the Murphys Creek and Withcott. This program is being
delivered under a grant secured a grant from Telstra for $5,302.00 for delivery of
mobile telephone lessons to the regions seniors.

o A new exhibition by well known local artist Dirk Blokland was displayed in the Art
Gallery during November. This exhibition featured 90 of his works and will be featured
until mid December.

Community Development — Community and Youth

o We have recently received a lot of positive feedback about the role that Council is
playing in the development of our young leaders through the Youth Council. As
reported previously some of the recent initiatives have been the Leadership
development tour to Sydney and Canberra facilitated by Cr T Milligan, Janis Hall and
Aussie Philipsen which has gone a long way towards the development of a Action Plan
for the Youth Council for the forthcoming year. The contribution by Council’s Youth
Officer Janis Hall is playing in the lives of these young people is encouraging and it is
worthy to bring to Councils attention.

Community Development — Human and Social

o Meetings have been held to discuss support around community-led Memorial Services
for January 2013. Murphys Creek Progress Association has advised they will hold an
informal gathering at 7pm on Thursday 10 January, venue to be advised. Indications
from sections of the Grantham community, suggests a similar informal gathering in the
morning. This is yet to be confirmed by the collective voice from that community.
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Agencies have been encouraged to allow events to be community-led and preferably
low-key (social rather than a service). It has also been made clear to the agencies that
Council does not have a budget but may be able to offer some shade tents and
seating, which is consistent with how we would support any other community event.

o A Movies under the Stars event was held Saturday 17 November 2012 at Ferrari Park,
Laidley. Last minute inclement weather saw a change of venue and had an impact on
numbers. This format has been quite successful.

o Ongoing meetings have been held with the Murphys Creek Community Centre
Steering Committee to discuss the current status of the buildings construction.
Arrangements have been made for the Project Manager to be involved in future
meetings to help clarify or resolve issues. An official opening has been scheduled for 9
February 2013.

o Community Grant applications have now closed with requests for $86,500 from a
$50,000 pool. A report will be presented to Council's December meeting with
recommendations on funding allocations

Multicultural

o A certificate of appreciation has been received from the Darfur Community Association
Inc of Queensland in recognition, for the work done by our multicultural staff with

Darfur Community in Lockyer Valley.

Planning and Environment

o Work has continued on the “Lockyer Reach” program with Murra Innovations
undertaking creek restoration and weed eradication works on the Somerset reaches of
Lockyer Creek and the Land Trust undertaking similar works in the LVRC area. The
devolved grants component of the project is progressing well with 18 participants
signing acceptance and condition letters. These participants will receive up to $5,000
each for creek restoration and weed eradication works.

o Powerlink GreenWorks. A submission has been lodged with the Powerlink
GreenWorks Program Manager to establish an environmental offset project for
revegetating local bush land reserves using endemic species to protect valuable
habitat and ecosystems, and provide enhanced recreational spaces at the Kentville
Bush land Reserve and Brightview Riparian Reserve. If successful the grant will
generate $225,000 towards the proposed revegetation projects.

o Temporary Local Planning Instrument (TLPI) for flooding received State endorsement
and a separate report on this matter is presented at Council’'s December meeting.

Plumbing and Building

o As previously reported, investigations have been ongoing into issues relating to
effluent systems. An internal audit commenced during the month.
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Waste, Health and Requlatory Services

o A community meeting was held with 30 landholders in the Black Duck/Mt Sylvia Area
to discuss Council’s assistance with Parthenium weed control. It was clarified that, as
their properties did not fit the strict criteria that DEEDI had set for Council to receive
funding for Green Army assistance, regretfully they could not be included in the
program. Details were provided on the free hire arrangements for the LVRC spray
trailers/equipment. An offer was made to attend future meetings of the group to
provide updates on the Pest Management Plan and Parthenium weed control. Copies
of the new Parthenium control Newsletter were also distributed to this group.

o A Wild dog baiting program was undertaken on Wednesday at the Gatton saleyards,
Saleyard Road Gaston. Council provided this service to 28 landholders, which
included providing 788 wild dog & 70 wild pig baits.

o A meeting has been held with the new Regional Wild Dogs Officer from Biosecurity
Queensland who is based in Scenic Rim on Wednesday 28 November 2012. The
meeting was to discuss the proposed regional approach to dog baiting program.

o Two officers attended Fire Ant training with Biosecurity Queensland on Wednesday 28
November 2012.

o To support the adoption and rollout of the lllegal Dumping and Litter Strategy, LVRC’s
Senior EHO attending DEHP training on the litter prevention provisions of the Waste
Reduction & Recycling Act 2011.

o As part of Council’s statutory obligations under the food licensing regime, a total of 7
food premises including 2 water samples were undertaken during the month

Group Manager Community and Development Services

o With regret | had to accept the resignation of Nick McGuire, Manager Community
Development & Cultural Services. Nick has been a wonderful and inspirational leader
of the Community Development & Cultural Services Team, and has certainly worked
very hard to get to know the business, the people, and generally built a genuine
rapport with his staff, within our Group and across Council within a very short period of
time. The Unit's team members have delivered some extraordinary and diverse
community focused programs in 2012, which has placed this Council in good standing
with its community and it's really important that we do not lose that momentum as we
move forward with recruitment of his replacement and enter 2013.

o Laidley Revitalisation Project commenced with a 2 hour workshop held on 27
November 2012. Outcomes of this session are being compiled and will be circulated
accordingly.

o Murphys Creek Community Centre is progressing — see photos.
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10.4 Temporary Local Planning Instrument to Provide Improved Flood
Regulation Based on the Identification of a Revised Flood
Inundation Area in the Laidley Shire & Gatton Shire Planning

Schemes
Date: 10 December 2012
Author: Garth Moore, Manager Planning & Environment
Responsible Officer: Leo Jensen, Group Manager Community & Development Services
File No: 1.1/17/14

Summary:

The purpose of this report is to inform Council that the Deputy Premier Minister for State Development
Infrastructure and Planning the Honourable Jeff Sweeney MP has advised Council by letter dated the
21 November 2012, that in accordance with Part 4 of Statutory guideline 02/12 Making and amending
local planning instruments, Council may adopt Temporary Local Planning Instruments (TLPI) to
provide improved flood regulation based on the identification of a revised flood inundation area in the
Laidley Shire and Gatton Shire Planning Schemes, without conditions.

Officer’s Recommendation:

THAT Council resolve to proceed to adopt the Temporary Local Planning Instruments
— Gatton Planning Scheme — Flood Regulation; and
Laidley Planning Scheme — Flood Regulation
to provide improved flood regulation based on the identification of a revised flood
inundation area in the Gatton and Laidley Planning Schemes;

and further;

THAT the Manager Planning and Environment be requested to attend to the relevant
matters outlined in Part 4 of Statutory Guideline 02/2012 Making and amending
planning instruments
(@) place a notice in the gazette, a locally circulating newspaper, and on

the local government’s website.
(b) give the chief executive as soon as possible after adopting:
(i) a copy of the notice
(ii) one certified copy of the TLPI, and
(iif) one electronic copy of the TLPI, including associated maps

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council resolve to proceed to adopt the Temporary Local Planning Instruments
— Gatton Planning Scheme — Flood Regulation; and
Laidley Planning Scheme — Flood Regulation
to provide improved flood regulation based on the identification of a revised flood
inundation area in the Gatton and Laidley Planning Schemes;

and further;

THAT the Manager Planning and Environment be requested to attend to the relevant
matters outlined in Part 4 of Statutory Guideline 02/2012 Making and amending
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planning instruments
(@) place a notice in the gazette, a locally circulating newspaper, and on
the local government’s website.
(b) give the chief executive as soon as possible after adopting:
(i) a copy of the notice
(ii) one certified copy of the TLPI, and
(ii1) one electronic copy of the TLPI, including associated maps

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Pingel
Resolution Number: 2847
CARRIED
7/0
Report
1. Introduction

This is a report prepared by the Manger Planning and Environment regarding:

(1) advice from the Deputy Premier Minister for State Development Infrastructure and
Planning the Honourable Jeff Sweeney MP that in accordance with Part 4 of Statutory
guideline 02/12 Making and amending local planning instruments Council may adopt
the TLPIs Gatton Planning Scheme — Flood Regulation and Laidley Planning Scheme
— Flood Regulation; and

(ii) to enable Council to progress to the next stage of he finalisation of the TLPIs Gatton
Planning Scheme - Flood Regulation and Laidley Planning Scheme - Flood
Regulation.

2. Background

At the Ordinary Council meeting of 13 June 2012 Council resolved:

1.

2.

3.

THAT Council resolve to adopt the Temporary Local Planning Instrument — Gatton
Shire Planning Scheme — Flooding Regulation

THAT Council resolve to adopt the Temporary Local Planning Instrument — Laidley
Shire Planning Scheme — Flooding Regulation

THAT the Temporary Local Planning Instrument — Gatton Shire Planning Scheme —
Flooding Regulation and the Temporary Local Planning Instrument — Laidley Shire
Planning Scheme — Flooding Regulation documentation be referred to the Planning
Minister for consideration of the Temporary Local Planning Instrument — Flooding to
permit Council to adopt the Temporary Local Planning Instrument — Flooding.

THAT the Manager Planning and Environment be requested to attend to all relevant
matters associated with the public notification of the Temporary Local Planning
Instrument — Gatton Shire Planning Scheme — Flooding Regulation and the Temporary
Local Planning Instrument — Laidley Shire Planning Scheme — Flooding Regulation
THAT Council delegate to the Chief Executive Officer the implementation of the
Temporary Local Planning Instrument — Gatton Shire Planning Scheme - Flooding
Regulation and the Temporary Local Planning Instrument - Laidley Shire Planning
Scheme - Flooding Regulation
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6. THAT Council endorse the ongoing liaison by the Group Manager Infrastructure
Services and the Manager Planning and Environment with State Agencies to resolve
the allocation of the Urban Footprint as defined in the South East Queensland
Regional Plan 2009-2031 as a consequence of the implication of the implementation of
the Temporary Local Planning Instrument — Gatton Shire Planning Scheme - Flooding
Regulation and the Temporary Local Planning Instrument — Laidley Shire Planning
Scheme - Flooding Regulation.

And Further;

THAT Council adopt the attached schedules of the Temporary Local Planning
Instrument Documentation only on the basis that the schedules are to reflect the
habitable floor level as being a minimum of 300mm above the defined flood level.

Report

As requested by Council, the Temporary Local Planning Instruments — Gatton Planning
Scheme — Flood Regulation and Laidley Planning Scheme — Flood Regulation were amended
and forwarded to the Department of State Development Infrastructure and Planning for review
and referral to State Agencies.

State interest review comments to the Lockyer Valley TLPI and the manner in which these
issues were addressed and are set out in the table below.

State interest review comments Officers response

1. issues of grammar and punctuation Issues of grammar and punctuation have

been addressed

2. a request for a definition for | A definition for “vulnerable persons” has
“vulnerable persons” been provided

3. clarification of the definition of | A definition of “Defined Flood Level” has
“Defined Flood Level” been provided

4. clarification of the use of the term 1 | The term ‘1 in 100 year rainfall event’ has
in 100 year rainfall event’ as against | been replaced with the term ‘Defined Flood
‘Defined Flood Event’ Event’ to avoid this potential conflict.

5. In accordance with the draft | The terms ‘buildings’ and ‘development’ in
Queensland Planning Provisions | the Reconfiguration of a lot code have been
User Guide — Building work regulated | deleted and replaced with the term ‘new
under a planning scheme (which has | lots’.
not yet been released) Suggest
avoiding references to ‘buildings’ in
the Reconfiguration of a lot code and
instead refer to ‘new lots’; and avoid
using wording that relates to
development

6. In order to avoid confusion with the | The term ‘flood free’ has been removed
intent of inundation by the Probable
Maximum Flood suggest removing
the term ‘flood free’

7. Suggest inserting a ‘note’ within the | The following note has been included into
Code, similar to the Qld | the TLPIs
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Reconstruction  Authority's  Model

Code: Note: The relevant building assessment
Note: The relevant building assessment | provisions under the Building Act 1975
provisions under the Building Act 1975 | apply to all building work within flood
apply to all building work within flood | inundation areas. New buildings within the
inundation areas. New buildings within | flood inundation area should be capable of
the flood inundation area should be | withstanding the static and dynamic loads.
capable of withstanding the static and
dynamic loads.

The amended TLPIs were referred back to DSDIP from where they were referred to the
Minister for his consideration. The Minister has subsequently given his approval for Council to
adopt the TLPIs Gatton Planning Scheme — Flood Regulation and Laidley Planning Scheme —
Flood Regulation.

Policy and Legal Implications

A TLPI may suspend or otherwise affect the operation of a planning scheme for up to one
year, but does not amend a planning scheme and is not a change to a planning scheme under
section 703 of the SPA. Where the factors which created the need for the TLPI are expected
to continue, a planning scheme amendment should be progressed and completed prior to the
TLPI ceasing to have effect.

The Minister has advised that he is aware that Council is preparing a new planning scheme for
the Lockyer Valley region and that Council will prepare and include a longer term planning
solution for the regulation of development in flood prone areas.

Financial and Resource Implications
There is no financial or resource implications arising from this report.

Delegations/Authorisations
No new or altered requirements are requires to existing delegations or authorisations.

Communication

Under Part 4 of Statutory Guideline 02/2012 Making and amending planning instruments
Council is obliged to place a notice in the gazette, a locally circulating newspaper, and on the
local government’s website.

Conclusion

The proposed amendments to the TLPIs suggested by DSDIP have not substantially amended
the intent or objectives of the TLPIs as submitted. Further, the amendments have contributed
to the clarity and implementation of the TLPIs within the Lockyer Valley.

In order to bring the TLPIs into effect it is necessary that:

0] Council resolve to proceed to adopt the Temporary Local Planning Instruments —
Gatton Planning Scheme — Flood Regulation; and Laidley Planning Scheme — Flood
Regulation, to provide improved flood regulation based on the identification of a
revised flood inundation area in the Gatton and Laidley Planning Schemes; and

(i) that the Manager Planning and Environment be requested to attend to the relevant
matters outlined in Part 4 of Statutory Guideline 02/2012 Making and amending
planning instruments
(a) place a notice in the gazette, a locally circulating newspaper, and on
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the local government’s website; and
(b) give the chief executive as soon as possible after adopting:

0] a copy of the notice
(ii) one certified copy of the TLPI, and
(iii) one electronic copy of the TLPI, including associated maps

Page 214



ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

10.5 Council of Mayors Environment & Sustainability Committee of 2
November 2012

Date: 10 December 2012

Author: Garth Moore, Manager Planning & Environment

Responsible Officer: Leo Jensen, Group Manager Community & Development Services
File No: 1.1/17/14

Summary:

The third meeting of the Council of Mayors Environment and Sustainability Committee was held on
Friday 2 November 2012.

The Committee reviewed

Committee Work Plan

Strategic Regional Corridors

Waterways Position Statement

Update and Role for Committee — Koalas

Cr Jim McDonald and Garth Moore represented Lockyer Valley Regional Council.

Officer’s Recommendation:
THAT the Council of Mayors Environment & Sustainability Committee report be
received and the contents noted.

RESOLUTION:
THAT the Council of Mayors Environment & Sustainability Committee report be
received and the contents noted.

Moved By: Cr Holstein Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2848

CARRIED
7/0

1. Introduction
The Council of Mayors Environment and Sustainability Committee met on Friday 2 November
2012. Cr Jim McDonald and Garth Moore attended the meeting.

The principle function of the Committee is to promote collaboration between Mayors and their

administrations to ensure that environmental and sustainability issues that have cross boarder
implications are addressed with a strong SEQ focus.

Page 215




ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

Following on from previous meetings the Committee there is a continuing theme that the
Committee would facilitate reduction in ‘red tape’ and ‘green tape’ between the administration
and assessment of environmental and sustainability issues.

Background
The focus on the committee meeting was a clarification of the strategies that were to be
supported by the Committee and the key activities and work plan to support these.

Report

Committee Role, Priorities and Work Plan

Members briefly discussed each of the activities in the Work Plan nominated which ‘action

teams’ they would like to be involved in.

LVRC members were nominated for the following working groups:

0] Integration of social, economic and environmental outcomes in planning decisions.

(i) Trial and document cross-council collaborative river and creek management

(iii) Trial and document cross-council collaborative management of invasive species

(iv) Promote an integrated approach to regional environmental and nutrient offsets; and

()] Collaborate to coordinate SEQ Local Government investment and to prepare strategic
corridors investment prospectus.

Strategic Regional Corridors

Ipswich City Council, updated members on progress towards development of the Strategic
Regional Corridors Investment Prospectus. The Working Group has identified the key regional
corridors (draft map tabled) and a process for prioritizing projects that Councils may consider
collaborating on within the Corridors.

Members discussed the proposed corridors and slight amendments were suggested.
Members agreed that the prioritization matrix would be suitable high level tool for use by the
Working Group in developing projects for further discussion and endorsement.

Options for investment governance models were discussed and it was agreed that the most
appropriate model would be one whereby a bi or multi-lateral arrangement between interested
councils is established with Council of Mayors (SEQ) potentially involved on a non-financial
basis by attending meetings and reporting as required to Council of Mayors (SEQ).

Council of Mayors (SEQ) will have a role in advocating and marketing projects for investment
at State and Federal government levels and assisting the formation of suitable alliances with
interested NGO’s.

Next steps will involve officers progressing potential projects internally and liaising with their
respective Councillors from the Committee for in-principle support or obtaining of the
necessary mandate to progress further. During this process, Councils may identify an activity
that they can collaborate with other Councils. These priority projects will be collated by the
Working Group and discussed at the first Committee meeting in February 2013.

Position Statement — Waterways
Warren Mortlock raised some items for consideration in the development of a position
statement on waterways management.

Members discussed the position statement and provided feedback.
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The Committee felt that the statement should be positive and include what the Council of
Mayors (SEQ) wants to achieve.

It was decided that Diana Dawson would work with the Chair and Deputy Chair to revise the
wording of the position statement. The position statement would then be sent out to members
for final comment before being put to the Council of Mayors (SEQ) Board for final approval in
December.

Update and Role for Committee — Koalas

Paul Eagles, Deputy Director General DSDIP, has given LGAQ and Council of Mayors (SEQ)
a commitment to view and provide feedback on a draft letter from Deputy Premier to the
Commonwealth regarding the Queensland Government’s position in relation to the listing of
Koalas under the EPBC Act.

The Commonwealth is likely to be reviewing the koala guideline next year and the Queensland
Government would like them to acknowledge the significant amount of work done in
Queensland, in particular SEQ, regarding protection of koalas and to possibly include
exemptions in some instances of Commonwealth assessment of developments where the
impact is not significant or catered for under Queensland or Local Government processes.

EHP is providing input into the draft letter and it should be available next week. The Koalas
Working Group will need to provide feedback in a timely fashion once the letter is received.

General Business

Dorean Erhart provided an update on the Flying Fox bill (Land Protection Legislation (Flying-
fox Control) Amendment Bill 2012). The parliamentary Agriculture, Resources and
Environment Committee discussed the proposal this week and LGAQ’s feedback to the
Committee was that the damage mitigation permitting should remain under the Nature
Conservation Act 1992 but ensure that the implementation process is cost and time effective
as well as being regionally effective.

Policy and Legal Implications
At this point in time there is no policy or legal implication arising from the Council of Mayors
Environment and Sustainability Committee.

Financial and Resource Implications

Other than in-kind from nominated Councillors and support staff there are no financial or
resource implications arising from the Council of Mayors Environment and Sustainability
Committee.

Delegations/Authorisations
No new or altered requirements are requires to existing delegations or authorisations.

Communication

There are no communications proposed from the meeting of the Council of Mayors
Environment and Sustainability Committee. Future communications will be dependant on the
work program and outcomes of the Committee.

Conclusion
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The meeting of the Council of Mayors Environment and Sustainability Committee was
essentially a forum in which to discuss the purpose, objective and potential outcomes of the
Committee. Future meetings of the Committee may produce recommendations, work

programs and objectives that may have policy, legal, financial or resource implication that may
require ratification of Council.
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10.6 Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Assessment)
for Industry, Caretaker's Residence & Environmentally Relevant
Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage Property Description: Lot 1
SP189215 (formerly Lot 1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road,

Helidon

Date: 10 December 2012

Author: Tanya Herberich, Planning Assistant/Cadet

Responsible Officer: Leo Jensen, Group Manager Community & Development Services

File No: R24263-0; DA6496

Summary:

Applicant: Maxime (Shanna Blasting Services Pty Ltd)

Property Address: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Real Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1 RP60010)

Site Area: 128.9ha

SEQRP Designation: Regional Landscape and Rural Production

IPA Scheme Zoning: Rural General

Use at Time of Application: Vacant

Proposed Use: Industry, Caretaker's Residence and Environmentally
Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage.

Plan Nos: Plan of development Site Plan, Project No. 11101,
prepared by ComCept Designs and dated 14 September
2012.

Officer’s Recommendation:

THAT Council resolve to endorse the recommendation of the Report and approve a
Development Permit for Material Change of Use (Impact Assessment) for Industry,
Caretaker’s Residence and Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical
Storage on land described as Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1 RP60010) at Warrigal
Road, Helidon in accordance with the Schedule of Conditions.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council approves a Development Permit for a Material Change of Use for
Industry, Caretaker’s Residence and Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 Chemical
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Storage on lands described as Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1 RP60010) Lot in
accordance with the following conditions;

Scope of the development approval

1. The approval of a Development Permit is for the use of the subject land for
Industry, Caretaker’s Residence and Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for
Chemical Storage in accordance with the following plans:

° Plan of development Site Plan, Project No. 11101, prepared by ComCept
Designs and dated 14 September 2012.

2. This approval of the Development Permit for Material Change of Use does not
approved any works on land the subject of this approval or the placing of
advertising devices on the premises. An approval for Operational Works shall be
obtained before any works occur on the land subject of this approval or any
signage is placed on the premises.

Conditions to be satisfied prior to the commencement of the use

3. Conditions 3 to 10 need to be complied with prior to acceptance of works on
maintenance.

4. The on site sewerage treatment and disposal systems from any new installations
within this development shall be sustainable and in accordance with the current
legislative requirements relating to plumbing, drainage, on site sewerage and any
applicable applied provisions.

5. Development Application for Building Works is required to be lodged for all
proposed structures on site. The building application will require referral to
Queensland Fire and Rescue Service (QFRS).

6. The site shall be internal and external fenced around all boundaries with a
minimum 1.8m high chance wire security fence.

7. Where possible the site is to be landscaped with native vegetation to contribute to
further landscape buffering. Additional security measures will be assessed in
accordance with Queensland Explosives Regulations 2003, Council of Australian
Governments (COAG) SSAN Principles 2004 and AS2187.1 1998 outside of this
development application.

8. A Bushfire Management Plan addressing proposed fire fighting measures in the
event of a bushfire for the whole site shall be prepared to the satisfaction of the
Queensland Fire and Rescue Service.

9. Payment of Infrastructure charges in accordance with the Adopted Infrastructure
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10.

Charges Notice issued by Lockyer Valley Regional Council. The amount of the
charge may be reduced by entering into an Infrastructure Agreement which
Council to offset the cost of construction of Warrigal Road against the
infrastructure charge.

Compliance with conditions from Department of Natural Resources and Mines as
a Concurrence Agency as provided in their correspondence of 10 October 2012
(Reference ICO509BEEO008_LV13020).

Conditions to be satisfied prior to the lodgement of an application for operational

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

works

Conditions 11 to 20 need to be complied with prior to acceptance of works on
maintenance.

The developer must upgrade the intersection of Airforce Road and Warrigal Road
to include a Channelised Right Turn lane (CHR) on Airforce Road.

The developer must make an application to Council to have the existing 60km/h
speed sigh moved to approximately 100m west of the intersection.

The developer must construct Warrigal Road to a formed 8.7 metre wide
pavement formation with a 7 metre wide, 2 coat bitumen seal.

The supervising engineer must submit to Council the road pavement design
details and test results of all external works for approval. The pavement design
shall be wundertaken in accordance with Austroads Guide to Pavement
Technology Part 2: Pavement Structural Design.

The supervising engineer must ensure that plans and specifications for all works,
or any works required on Council infrastructure, shall be prepared and certified
by a Registered Professional Engineer in Queensland (RPEQ). Upon completion
of the works, a certificate signed by an RPEQ certifying that the works have been
constructed in accordance with the approved plans and specifications and in
compliance with Council’s construction standards must be provided. It is
expected that the RPEQ will undertake the necessary inspections to make this
certification.

The developer must provide all necessary internal and external stormwater
drainage to service the development. Such drainage works must be designed and
constructed in accordance with Queensland Urban Drainage Manual (QUDM),
Austroads Guide to Road Design Part 5 — Drainage Design and the Gatton Shire
Council Planning Scheme such that the overall drainage system within the
development caters for a storm event with an ARI of 100 years.

The developer shall be responsible for obtaining approval and bearing all costs
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19.

20.

associated with registering in favour of Council all necessary stormwater
drainage easements in order for drainage path to reach a satisfactory point of
legal discharge. This is required within and external to the subject land.

The developer must ensure that all habitable rooms in the caretaker’s residence
and all storage areas (magazines) to be a minimum 300mm above the Q100 flood
level of flow paths crossing the subject land. A plan shall be submitted that
indicates the Q100 flood lines for the flow paths.

The developer shall engage the services of a Registered Professional Engineer in
Queensland (RPEQ) to design stormwater drainage systems in accordance with
QUDM, Austroads Guide to Road Design Part 5 — Drainage Design and the Gatton
Shire Council Planning Scheme. The RPEQ can liaise with Council’s Engineering
Assessment Officers for further information on stormwater system requirements.

Conditions to be satisfied in an application for operational works

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Conditions 21 to 28 need to be complied with prior to acceptance of works on
maintenance.

The developer must provide for all vehicles to enter and exit the site in forward
gear.

The developer shall provide vehicular access to the development in accordance
with Council’s Property Access & Access Crossings: Design, Construction &
Maintenance policy.

The developer must provide a vehicle turn around facility near the entrance of the
development to cater for 25m B-Doubles.

The developer must provide a total of six (6) car parking and two (2) AV spaces in
accordance with the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme.

The developer shall ensure all driveways, car parking spaces and manoeuvring
areas are imperviously sealed and linemarked in accordance with AS/NZS 2890.1
(cars), AS 2890.2 (heavy vehicles)

The developer must provide an imperviously sealed standing area for the loading,
unloading and parking of delivery vehicles within the development and
linemarked to indicate that it is to be used only for this purpose.

The developer will ensure that no ponding or redirection of stormwater shall
occur onto adjoining land unless specifically conditioned to do so.

Conditions to be satisfied prior to the issue of an approval for operational works

29.

Conditions 29 to 30 need to be complied with prior to the issue of an approval for
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30.

operational works.

Building approval shall not be granted until a development application for
Operational Works has been approved by Council.

Conditions to be satisfied prior to any prestart meeting

31.

32.

Conditions 31 to 32 need to be complied with prior to any prestart meeting.

The developer must pay an Inspection Fee based on Council’s estimated cost of
the works should any works associated with the development be carried out by
agencies other than Council. This fee is valid for six months from the date of this
approval. Refer to Lockyer Valley Regional Council current Fees and Charges for
calculation.

Conditions to be satisfied prior to the acceptance of works on maintenance

33.

34.

Conditions 33 to 34 need to be complied with prior to acceptance of works on
maintenance.

The developer must pay a maintenance bond equal to 10% of the construction
cost (minimum of $1,000.00) must be retained by Council for a minimum period of
twelve months, or until such time as the works are accepted "Off Maintenance" by
Council. Municipal works must be accepted "On Maintenance" prior to
commencement of use.

Conditions to be satisfied during construction

35.

36.

37.

38.

Conditions 35 to 40 need to be complied with prior to acceptance of works on
maintenance.

Provision at the building site, for use by employees, toilet facilities in accordance
with the requirements of the Environmental Protection (Waste Management)
Regulation 2000, Part 2, Chemical, Composting and Incinerating Toilets.

Provision of suitable waste removal services and suitable number and type of
waste containers, in accordance with the Environmental Protection (Waste
Management) Regulation 2000 and to the satisfaction of Council, for the storage
of:

a. papers, plastics, cardboard, food scraps, used food containers and like
wastes generated by workers on the site; and
b. building construction and/or demolition wastes.

All wastes collected on site during constructions shall be taken to an approved
Waste Disposal Facility for disposal in accordance with current acceptance
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39.

40.

criteria and relevant fees and charges.

All wastes collected on the site during construction shall be transported by a
waste transporter approved by the Lockyer Valley Regional Council under the
Environmental Protection Act 1994, or taken by the builder or owner builder
concerned.

Builders and subcontractors shall comply with section 440R of the Environmental
Protection Act 1994 for the duration of construction.
Environmentally Relevant Activity Conditions to be satisfied on an ongoing basis

The standard conditions are set out below. Please note contravention of any standard
condition is an offence and may incur prosecution proceedings. All the conditions
printed ** either side of the condition can attract an infringement notice (on-the-spot
fine) if contravened

41.

42.

General conditions

(@8 Environmental harm is not authorised by this Authority except to the extent
that the harm is expressly authorised by a condition of this Authority.

(b) The Holder must not change, replace or operate any plant or equipment
installed at the Premises if the change, replacement or operation increases,
or is likely to substantially increase, the risk of environmental harm.

(c) **The Holder must keep a copy of this Authority in a location readily
accessible to personnel carrying out this activity**.

(d) **The Holder must keep all records and documents required to be kept by a
condition of this Authority at the premises for a period of not less than 12
months and make the records and documents available for examination by
an Authorised Person immediately upon request.**

(e) The Holder must at all times install plant and equipment necessary to comply
with the conditions of this Authority.

(f) **The Holder must at all times maintain plant and equipment in proper
working order**.

Air

(@ A noxious or offensive odour must not be emitted beyond the boundaries of
the Premises.

(b) No particulate matter or visible contaminant, including dust, smoke, fumes
and aerosols likely to cause environmental harm is to emanate beyond the
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boundaries of the Premises.

(c) Light sources at the Premises must be positioned and shielded to prevent

light spillage outside the boundaries of the Premises.
43.  Water

(@ **Contaminants or contaminated water must not be directly or indirectly
released from the Premises or to the ground or groundwater at the Premises
except for:

(i)  Uncontaminated Overland Stormwater flow;

(i)  Uncontaminated Stormwater to the stormwater system**;

(b) **Releases to water must not cause any visible oil slick or other visible
evidence of oil or grease, nor contain visible, grease, scum, litter or floating
oil**,

(c) The Holder must ensure that:

(i) **Maintenance and cleaning of equipment (including vehicles and plant)
is carried out in an area where contaminants cannot be released into
stormwater drainage, a roadside gutter, a water or onto unsealed
ground**;

(i) ** Any spillage of contaminants is cleaned up immediately by a method
other than hosing, sweeping or otherwise releasing the contaminants
into stormwater drainage, a roadside gutter or a water**,

(iii) Incident rainfall and overland flow of stormwater does not contact
contaminants (for example, areas with contaminants should be roofed
or be protected by diversion drains).

44, Waste

(@ **Nothing is to be burned at the Premises and nothing is to be removed from
the Premises and burnt elsewhere**.

(b) **Where regulated waste is removed from the Premises, records must be
kept of the following:

(i) The date, quantity and type of waste removed;

(i) The name of the waste transporter and/or disposal operator that
removed the waste; and

(iii) The intended treatment/disposal destination of the waste**.

(c) **A contaminant (including a waste) must not:

(i) Beburied at the Premises; or

(i) Bein contact with soil at the Premises; or

(iti)  Directly or indirectly seep or penetrate into the soil or groundwater at
the Premises**.
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45, Release monitoring and registers

(@ **A complaints register must be kept at the Premises and all complaints
received about the Activity must be recorded in the register with the
following details:

(i) Time, date and nature of complaint;

(i) Type of communication (telephone, letter, personal, etc);

(i)  Name, contact address and contact phone number of the complainant
(if the complainant does not wish to be identified then ‘not identified’ is
to be recorded);

(iv) Response and investigation undertaken in response to the complaint;

(v) Name of the person responsible for investigating the complaint; and

(vi) Action taken as a result of the complaint and the investigation and the
signature of or under the authorisation of the Holder**.

(b) **An incidents register must be kept at the Premises and it must record any
incidents including but not limited to:
(1) Any fire at the premises;
(i) Any release not in accordance with this Authority**.

46. Definitions

‘Activity’ means the environmentally relevant activity of [insert full description of the
ERA from the Environmental Protection Regulation 1998.

ERA 8 (3) (a) Chemical Storage - storing between 10m3 and 500m3 of chemicals of
Class C1 or C2 combustible liquids under AS 1940 or Class 3 dangerous goods.

‘Adjusted Maximum Sound Pressure Level’ means the average maximum A-weighted
sound pressure level, adjusted for noise character and measured over a time period of
not less than 15 minutes, using fast response.

‘Administering Authority’ means Lockyer Valley Regional Council.

‘Authorised person’ means an authorised person authorised under the Environmental
Protection Act 1994.

‘Authority’ means this environmental authority or development approval as the case
may be.

‘Background Noise Level’ means the LA90,T being the A-weighted sound pressure
level exceeded for 90 percent of the time period not less than 15 minutes using fast
response.

‘Commercial Place’ means a place that is used as an office or for business or
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commercial purposes.

‘Holder’ means operator of the activity and includes the Executive Officers, actual and
apparent agents, employees and contractors of the Holder.

‘Noise Sensitive Place’ means any of the following places—
(a) a dwelling;
(b) a library, childcare centre, kindergarten, school, college, university or other
educational institution;
(c) a hospital, surgery or other medical institution;
(d) a protected area, or an area identified under a conservation plan as a critical
habitat or an area of major interest, under the Nature Conservation Act 1992;
(e) a marine park under the Marine Parks Act 1982;
(f) a park or garden that is open to the public (whether or not on payment of
money) for use other than for sport or organized entertainment.

‘Premises’ means [insert real property description of the premises].

‘Uncontaminated Overland Stormwater Flow’ and ‘Uncontaminated Stormwater’ refer
to stormwater that does not contain contaminants.

Conditions to be satisfied on an ongoing basis

47. Conditions 47 to 50 need to be complied with during the operation of the use.

48. There shall be no interference with the amenity of the locality as a result of traffic
generation, hours of operation, appearance or the emission of noise, vibration,
light, odours, fumes, steam, soot, ash, dust, waste products, electrical
interference or otherwise.

49. Any on-site lighting is to be in accordance with AS1158.1.11997 — Road lighting
and AS42821997 — Control of the Obtrusive Effect of Outdoor Lighting.

50. Hours of business of the use are to be 24 hours a day 7 days a week.

REASON FOR APPROVAL

The proposal is generally in accordance with the provisions of the Gatton Shire
Council Planning Scheme 2007, including:

- Desired Environmental Outcomes of the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme
2007,

- Rural General Zone Code,

- Extractive/Mineral Resources and Transportation Route Overlay,

- Biodiversity Overlay,

- Medium and High Potential Bushfire Overlay,
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Steep and Unstable Land Overlay,

Advertising Devices Code,

Landscaping Code,

Lighting Code,

Services and Infrastructure Code,

Vehicle Access, Parking and On Site Movement Code,
Building Works Code,

Caretakers Residence.

Council officers have not identified any planning issues during the assessment of this
proposal that would warrant refusal of the application.

Subject to the above conditions, the proposal complies with the provisions of the
Planning Scheme.

FURTHER ADVICE TO THE APPLICANT

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

The development must not commence until all conditions of this approval are
complied with. To ensure you are compliant with all the conditions listed above,
it is recommended that prior to starting the use; you request Council officers
undertake a compliance inspection.

All works associated with this approval may not start until all subsequent
approvals have been obtained, and their conditions complied with.

It is considered essential that any consultants engaged to prepare any
subsequent reports, plans or applications, liaise with the relevant Council
Officers to ensure they are prepared in accordance with the conditions of
approval and all relevant standards.

Any additions or modifications to the approved use (not covered in this approval)
may be subject to further application for development approval. To make this
determination, please contact Council's Planning and Environment Section.

The Relevant Period for this Development Permit is four (4) years. After the
Relevant Period expires, if the use has not commenced, your approval will no
longer be current.

Section 3.5.21 of the Integrated Planning Act 1997 outlines the relevant periods
for Development Approvals.

Each further Development Permit (e.g. for Operational works or Building Works)
required as a result of this approval, must be made to a local government or
private certifier within the relevant period.

(viii) All proposed structures and works should be positioned clear of any Council
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services which traverse the subject land. To determine where existing services
are located, please contact council's Engineering Services Department.

(viiii) Regqistration Certificate

Upon completion of works, the premises will require registration under the
Environmental Protection Regulation 2008. Registration will be required if the activity
to be conducted on the premise is contained in Schedule 2 of the Environmental
Protection Regulation 2008 and the administration and enforcement has been
devolved to local government.

Further information regarding Registration Certificate is available at
www.lgtoolbox.gld.gov.au or by contacting Environmental Health Unit on 1300 005
872.

(x) ERA Reqistration

All development involving an Environmentally Relevant Activity as defined by the
Environmental Protection Regulation 2008, requires that an application for registration
for the Environmentally Relevant Activity be submitted to the administering authority,
Lockyer Valley Regional Council, in accordance with the Environment Protection Act
1994. If the application for registration is submitted to Lockyer Valley Regional Council
within 30 business days of the development approval, then no fee will be required for
the registration.

(xi) Contaminated Land

Pursuant to the Environmental Protection Act 1994 Part 8 - Contaminated Land-“371(1)
If the owner or occupier of land becomes aware a notifiable activity is being carried
out on the land, the owner or occupier must, within 22 business days after becoming
aware the activity is being carried out, give notice to the administering authority in the
approved form.”

The administering authority for contaminated land matters is the Department of
Environment and Heritage Protection.

Please note: The above information has been provided to the applicant as an advice
only, and does not form part of the Development Approval conditions. This advice has
been provided to the applicant to inform them of other obligations they may have to
comply with (under state legislation or local laws) prior to their activity commencing.

(xii)  Eire Ants
In accordance with the Plant Protection Act 1989 and the Plant Protection Regulation

2002, a quarantine notice has been issued for the State of Queensland to prevent the
spread of the Red Imported Fire Ant (ant species Solenopsis invicta) and to eradicate
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it from the State.

It is the legal obligation of the land owner or any consultant or contractor employed by
the land owner to report the presence or suspicion of Fire Ants to Biosecurity
Queensland on 13 25 23 or completing Biosecurity Queensland/ Department of
Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry online form at www.daff.qld.gov.au within 24 hours
of becoming aware of the presence or suspicion.

It should be noted that the movement of Fire Ants is prohibited, unless under the
conditions of an Inspectors Approval. More information can be obtained from the
Queensland Biosecurity Queensland/ Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and
Forestry online form at www.daff.qld.gov.au website www.daff.qld.gov.au.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Milligan
Resolution Number: 2849

CARRIED
7/0

Report

1. Introduction

This is a report by the Manager for Planning and Environment regarding an application by
Shanna Blasting (DA6469) for an Industry, Caretaker's Residence and Environmentally
Relevant Activity No. 8 Chemical Storage.

2. Background

It understood that the site has been previously been utilised as an extractive industry and the
current development proposal intends on sitting the structures in areas cleared as a
consequence of this former use.

3. Report
3.1 Subject Land

The subject land is located north west of the Helidon township to the east of the Helidon
Magazine area. The site is currently vacant and slopes towards the south with a number of
natural gullies located near the entrance of the subject site. The site is zoned Rural General
under the Gatton Shire Planning Scheme 2007 and triggers a number of overlays, these being
the Biodiversity, Slope greater than 15 precent and Medium and High Bushfire overlays. The
site also contains remnant and High Value Regrowth Vegetation mapped by the Department of
Environment and Heritage Protection. The site is accessed via an unformed road reserve which
extends north of Warrigal Road into the subject site. The site does not contain any easements
and is not mapped on the Contaminated Land Register.

Page 230



http://www.daff.qld.gov.au/
http://www.daff.qld.gov.au/
http://www.daff.qld.gov.au/

ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

Proposal

The applicant is seeking development approval for a Material Change of Use — Development
Permit for the purpose of Industry, Caretaker’s Residence and Environmentally Relevant Activity
No. 8 for Chemical Storage.

The applicant is proposing to establish a High Impact Industry (Explosives Storage Facility) and
Caretaker’s Residence on part of the subject site with the balance of the site area remaining in
its current form. The development is proposed in stages with Stage one establishing the
security, office, internal access and some of the storage. When fully completed the facility will
include a:

e Security sensitive ammonium nitrate storage facility,
o ANFO (Ammonium nitrate and fuel oil) bagging plant,
¢ Detonator assembly plant and storage facility; and

¢ Booster storage facility.

Use Gross Floor Area
Caretakers Residence 150m?

Office 200m*

Anfo Storage 3,869m°
Explosives Magazine x 5 512m?

Detonator Magazine x 2 512m?

Container Pad 576m°

Portable Magazine x 2 29.28m°

Anfo Production 29.28m°

TOTAL 8,466.84m’

The site will be fenced on all boundaries with an additional enclosure at the entry for security
checking. Suitable drought tolerant landscaping will be will be provided along the Warrigal Road
frontage. However, there will be minimal signage and other methods of identification for security
reasons.

The office and Caretaker's Residence which will be located at the front of the property for
surveillance reasons, will have rain water tanks as will the sheds.

The building materials will be consistent with the buildings in the surrounding areas which are
generally steel incorporating Colorbond for the office and/or sheds and industry standard
magazine containers as well as a house for the Caretaker's Residence. The vegetation on the
site mans the building on the land will not be visible from public roads.
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3.3 Assessment

3.3.1 Legislative Requirements

The application was lodged in April 2009 and so is required to be assessed and determined
under the Integrated Planning Act 1997 (IPA) as this was the legislation is force when the
application was made.

In accordance with the IPA and the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme 2007, Industry,
Caretaker’'s Residence and Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage is
assessable development. The application requires an Impact Assessable Development Permit
for a Material Change of Use to be lodged and assessed in accordance with the requirements of
the Gatton Shire Planning Scheme 2007.

Council issued an Information Request on 26 May 2009 in association with the
Acknowledgement Notice and the applicant responded to Council’s Information Request on 27
May 2010.

3.3.2 Public Notification

The application was publicly advertised for thirty (30) business day from the 16" June 2010 to
the 30™ July, as required under the Integrated Planning Act 1997. Notification was carried out
the following ways;

. A notice was maintained on site from the 14 June 2006 to the 1 July 2006;

o A notice was published in the Gatton, Lockyer and Brisbane Valley Star on 16" June 2010;
and

o A letter was sent to all adjoining land owners on the 16" June 2010.

During the notification stage, there were two (2) properly made submissions received by
Council. The submitter’s concerns and the assessment manager’s response is listed below;

Submission Issues

Council Officer Comment

Separation distances for sites 10, 11 and 12
do not appear to meet the AS2187 separation
distances.

Compliance with the Australian Standard
AS2187 will occur through relevant State
Government licensing. This will be
addressed relevant State Government
licensing and is outside if Council's
development assessment parameters.

On Site Effluent Disposal System for the
Caretakers Residence has appropriate waste
disposal to prevent soil and ground water
contamination.

The requirement for an appropriate On
Site  Effluent Disposal has been
conditioned by Council’s Plumbing and
Building Unit.
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Any waste is disposed of by on site burial or
burning, it is likely to result that significant

This will be addressed relevant State
Government licensing and is outside if

contamination will occur. Council's  development  assessment
parameters.
The storage, blending and manufacture of | This will be addressed relevant State

ammonium nitrate and fuel products may

Government licensing and is outside if

result in spillages into the ground, which could | Council's  development  assessment
lead to the contamination of soil and/or | parameters.

stormwater.

Layout of internal roads which will not create | This will be addressed relevant State

an unacceptable risk and a considerable

Government licensing and is outside if

hazard to the environment and the safety of | Council's  development  assessment

personnel. parameters.

Facility Risk as it relates to site design and | This will be addressed relevant State

facility layout adequately minimises all | Government licensing and is outside if

potential risks. Council's  development  assessment
parameters.

The future of the remnant vegetation located
on site.

The potential removal of mapped remnant
vegetation has been addressed by the
Department of Natural Resources and
Mines through their Concurrence Agency
response.

Does the man proof fencing surround the
whole development site.

Section 4.6 of the Planning Report
prepared by Maxime Consulting Planners
and Development Managers dated
September 2008 Version 3 indicates that
there will be an internal and external
fence on all boundaries of the property at
a minimum of 1.8m chain wire security
fence. The front (southern) boundary will
be double fenced to provide a security
enclosure for security checking prior to
actually entering the facility. Landscaping
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is also proposed along the primarily on
the front (southern) boundary along the
fence.

3.3.4 Referral Agencies

The application was referred to the following agencies:

o The Department of Natural Resources and Mines (Concurrence)

o Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning (Concurrence)

o Department of Employment, Economic Development and Innovation and Department of
Justice and Attorney General (Concurrence)

o The Chief Executive Officer of the Nature Conversation Act 1992 (Advice)

o The Department of Transport and Main Roads (Third Party Advice)

The application was referred to the Department of Natural Resources and Mines (DNRM) for the
clearing of native vegetation; land in or near a wetland and land in or near a conversation estate.
Considerable negotiation occurred between the applicant and DNRM regarding protection of
vegetation. This delayed progress on the application for two years from August 2010 to August
2012. DNRM provided conditions to Council on 12 October 2012 addressing all of the referral
agency triggers.

The application was referred to the Department of State Development, Infrastructure and
Planning (DSDIP) for the South East Queensland Regional Plan 2005 — 2031 for comment
based on the proposed use being defined as an ‘Urban Activity’. The Department issued an
Information Request on 24 June 2009 and provided subsequent advice to Council on 6 October
2010 that it had no objection to the proposal.

The Department of Transport and Main Roads (DTMR) was referred the application on 17 June
2009 for Third Party input and the Department indicated on 8 July 2009 that it had no objection
to the proposal.

The Department of Employment, Economic Development and Innovation (DEEDI) and
Department of Justice and Attorney General (DJAG) did not provide comment within the
statutory timeframes allowed under the Integrated Planning Act 1997.

3.3.5 Further Approvals

The approval of this development application is only an initial approval to facilitate use of the site
for explosives storage. Subsequent State Government Licensing will address:

What is stored on the property, how it is stored and how much is stored;

On Site safety, emergency services and security matters;

Expertise of operator and capacity of operator to safely store explosives; and

Impact on adjacent properties — the licence will limit what can be stored and where it can
be stored on the site based on the use of surrounding properties.

o Their licensing will be far more stringent and comprehensive than the requirements
Council could impose.

3.3.6 Assessment - South East Queensland Regional Plan
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Regional Plan requirements.

3.3.7 Assessment - Planning Scheme Assessment

Desired Environmental Outcomes of the Gatton Shire Planning Scheme 2007

Desired Environmental

Outcome

Assessment

DEO No.1

Environment

The proposed use is considered to have a low impact on the land as
the desirable that the structures are predominately embedded and
nestled within the bushland to reduce visibility and to increase
separation from other activities. The remnant vegetation is proposed
to be excluded from the development area as well as any lands that
may be considered potentially unstable. This will allow the structures
to be sited to provide better outcomes for accessibility, amenity and
security.

DEO No.2

Character and Change

The development is consistent with the site characteristics and does
not propose to remove remnant vegetation or impact on, alter water
catchments as the proposal’s structures are to be nestled into the
land without impacting on the natural environment where possible.

DEO No.3

Settlement
Amenity and Safety

Pattern,

The proposed use is to be located in a rural area adjoining the
existing Government Explosives Facility. Furthermore, the scale and
density of the development does not exceed the site capacity nor
adversely affect the amenity of the area. The development has been
specifically designed to support the types of uses proposed and as
such is does not compromise the settlement pattern, amenity and
safety of the area.

DEO No.4

Access to Services,
Facilities and Employment
Opportunities

The proposed use will not have any adverse environmental impact
on the land as the site is well drained and has services and
infrastructure similar to rural areas. The site is well located in
proximity to other similar uses and on an existing high standard
connector road suitable for the freight vehicles. The development
will generate jobs locally and with growth will potentially employ
several people on site in several shifts.

DEO No.5

Cultural Heritage

The subject site is not listed on Schedule 2 — Register of Heritage
Places and Precincts under the Gatton Shire Council Planning
Scheme 2007.

DEO No.6

The proposed development is for a combined High Impact Industry
(Explosives Storage Facility) and Caretakers Residence on part of
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Economic Development | an allotment within the Rural General zone within the Helidon

Management outcomes to locate like land uses together but within reasonable

Natural Resource | Magazine Safety Zone. It supports the desired environmental

proximity of the supporting activities. It provides support for the
economic development of the region and will provide local
employment opportunities.

3.3.8 Applicable Codes

The proposal has been assessed under the following codes of the Gatton Shire Council
Planning Scheme 2007:

o Rural General Zone Code

o Extractive/Mineral Resources and Transportation Route Overlay,
Biodiversity Overlay,

Medium and High Potential Bushfire Overlay,

Steep and Unstable Land Overlay,

Advertising Devices Code,

Landscaping Code,

Lighting Code,

Services and Infrastructure Code,

Vehicle Access, Parking and On Site Movement Code,
Building Works Code,

o Caretaker’s Residence.

3.3.9 Assessment - Rural General Zone Code

The site is in Rural General zone under the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme 2007. As
the use is not defined in the Rural General zone, the application is required to be assessed
against the Desired Environmental Outcomes of the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme
2007 as provided above. The Caretakers Residence use in association with the proposed
Industrial use within the Rural General zone under the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme
2007 is consistent with the intent of the zone.

3.3.10 Assessment - Extractive/Mineral Resources and Transportation Route Overlay

The site triggers the Extractive/Mineral Resources Transportation Overlay from the Gatton Shire
Council Planning Scheme 2007. The purpose of the overlay is to prevent inappropriate
development and use of premises which could sterilise those resources from future extraction
and the transportation routes to transport resources. The proposal is for the storage of material
associated with uses already occurring with the locality and therefore the use is not inconsistent
with the overlay.

3.3.11 Assessment - Biodiversity Overlay

The site triggers the Biodiversity Overlay from the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme 2007.
The proposed use proposes to retain as much of the existing biodiversity as possible to assist in
providing security for the proposed use. The development does not impact on waterways and is
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not intended to occur within an ecological corridor. The development is only proposed within
areas which are already disturbed and any necessary clearing will be minimized to ensure
buffers are maintained. Where landscaping is required, native vegetation will be utilised to
assist in integration with the existing landscape. The limited amount of clearing of remnant
vegetation on site has been approved by the Department of Natural Resources and Mines.

3.3.12 Assessment - Medium and High Potential Bushfire Risk Overlay

The site triggers the Potential Bushfire Risk Overlay from the Gatton Planning Scheme 2007 for
Medium and High Bushfire. However the development area triggers only Medium Bushfire Risk
therefore the self assessable criteria of the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme 2007 will
need to be addressed.

A Bushfire Management Plan has been submitted in response to the Information Request in
accordance with AS3959 — 2009 the report however does not address any border risk
assessment or mitigation measures in respect to the Explosives Act 1999, the Dangerous
Goods and Safety Management Act 2001, AS 2187 — 1998 Explosives, Storage, Transport and
Use. It is proposed to provide a 20 metre wide cleared bushfire trail around the development
site. The development application has been conditioned to require a Bushfire Management Plan
which addresses the whole site to the satisfaction of the Queensland Fire and Rescue Service.

3.3.13 Assessment - Steep and Unstable Land Overlay

The site triggers the Steep and Unstable Land Overlay from the Gatton Shire Council Planning
Scheme 2007 however the proposed development area does not impact on the area identified
as Steep and Unstable Land. Therefore, no further assessment against this code is required.

3.3.14 Assessment - Helidon Explosives Magazine

The site is located within the Helidon Explosives Magazine under the Gatton Shire Planning
Scheme 2007. The proposed use is for the storage of explosives which is consistent with the
operation of the Magazine.

3.3.15 Assessment - Advertising Devices Code

No advertising signage has been applied for as part of this development application. Any future
proposed signage will require the lodgement of an Operational Works application in accordance
with the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme 2007.

3.3.16 Assessment - Landscaping Code

The proposal has indicated internal and external fencing; all boundaries of the property will have
a minimum 1.8m high chance wire security fence. The front (southern) boundary will be double
fenced to provide a security enclosure for security checking prior to actually entering the facility.
Landscaping is proposed primarily on the front (southern) boundary along the fencing in addition
to the existing native vegetation will remain were possible to contribute to further landscape
buffering.  Additional security measures will be assessed by the State Government in
accordance with Queensland Explosives Regulations 2003, Council of Australian Governments
(COAG) SSAN Principles 2004 and AS2187.1 1998 which are outside the scope of this
development application.
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3.3.17 Assessment - Lighting Code

The application will be conditioned that the lighting is in accordance with Australian Standards
AS1158.1.1 Series and AS1158.3.1 Series for adequate security lighting for the development.

3.3.18 Assessment - Services and Infrastructure Code

The site already has access to telecommunications and electricity supply. The site also has the
ability to have on site portable water supply provided at 45kl or an extension to the existing
water main from Airforce Road, which would require approval from Queensland Urban Utilities.
An on site effluent disposal system will be provided on site for the proposed office and
Caretakers Residence in accordance with the current Plumbing and Drainage Legislation. The
site does not contain any registered easements.

3.3.19 Assessment - Vehicle Access, Parking and On Site Movement Code

Council’'s Technical Officer Development Assessment has undertaken an assessment of the
proposal and provides the following assessment.

The developer has been conditioned to construct a Channelised Right turn lane (CHR) in
Airforce Road for safety reasons. The warrants for the number of right turning vehicles into
Warrigal Road does not require a right turning lane, however:

o Similar establishments with similar traffic in the vicinity of this development have auxiliary
right turn lanes (AUR) constructed;

o AUR turning lanes are generally no longer approved by the Department of Transport and
Main Roads as a CHR provides a safer turning environment for little additional cost. An
AUR was recommended in the submitted Traffic Impact Assessment prepared by Cambray
Consulting Pty Ltd;

o As this development is closer to the township of Helidon and given the nature of the freight
transported to this development from Airforce Road, a CHR turning lane is desirable.

The existing 60km/h speed sign will need to be moved to approximately 100m west of the
intersection so that the intersection is within the 60km/h zone and to ensure appropriate sight
distance to the west.

The developer has been conditioned to construct Warrigal Road with a formed 8.7 metre wide
pavement formation with a 7 metre wide seal. These are the recommended requirements of
Austroads Guide to Road Design Part 3 — Geometric Design, for a single carriageway rural road
(3.7m traffic lane + 2 x 2.5m shoulders) with an AADT that contains more than 15% heavy
vehicles (Table 4.5). This width of seal allows two trucks to pass safely without having to leave
the seal or fret the edges of the seal.

A vehicle turn around facility has been conditioned to be constructed near the entrance to the
development site. All internal driveways and manoeuvring areas are to be imperviously sealed.
In accordance with the parking requirements for a Caretakers Residence and Industry, 6
carparking spaces are required for staff on site in addition to two AV spaces.

3.3.20 Assessment - Building Works Code
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The proposed Caretaker’s Residence, Office and bunkers are to be setback in accordance with
the Queensland Development Code and are under the 8.5m building height requirements
identified in the Building Works Code for structures in the Rural General zone.

3.3.21 Assessment - Caretaker’s Residence

Council’'s Technical Officer Development Assessment has undertaken an assessment of the
proposed Caretakers Residence and applied a condition which imposes the developer to ensure
that all habitable rooms in the caretaker’s residence and all storage areas (magazines) are a
minimum 300mm above the Q100 flood level for flow paths crossing the subject land.

This condition results from the proposed location for the caretaker's residence being in an
“Investigation Area” on the TLPI Flood Extents overlay and that there are two distinct flow paths
highlighted on this overlay crossing the subject land.

The Caretaker’s Residence will have a gross floor area of 150m?®. The dwelling is being sited to
allow privacy but elevated to also provide the opportunity for surveillance of the entry. The
applicant has indicated that due to the nature of the use on site it is inappropriate to have
children on site. The residence will use the same entrance into the property as the Industrial
use for security reasons. However, it will have separate internal driveway and carparking areas.

3.3.22 Adopted Infrastructure Charges
The development is subject to the Adopted Infrastructure Charges as per Council’s Resolution.

The calculations below indicated that Adopted Infrastructure Charges of $243,054.68 are
payable for this development to the Lockyer Valley Regional Council.

CINEMmE Description De_mand Rate TOTAL
Type Units
charge | Caretaker’s Residence 1 12,500 12,500.00
High Impact Industry 8,316.84 | 27 224,554.68
Impervious Sealed 600 10 6,000
$
TOTAL PROPOSED DEMAND 243,054.68
EXISTING
DEMAND
credit -
0
0
TOTAL EXISTING DEMAND CREDIT $ -
TOTAL
PAYABLE $243,054.68

As the only relevant infrastructure charges will be for the trunk road network and the applicant
will need to construct Warrigal Road, the condition for infrastructure charges will enable the
applicant to enter into an Infrastructure Agreement to offset the cost of the road construction
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against the infrastructure charge.
4. Policy and Legal Implications

Approval of the application will not have any policy or legal implications.
5.  Financial and Resource Implications

Approval of the application will not have any financial or resource implications.
6. Delegations/Authorisations

There will be no implications for delegations or authorisations as a result of approval of this
application.

7. Communication

There are no communication implications. Advice of the decision will be provided to the
applicant and submitter in accordance with statutory requirements.

8. Conclusion

The Material Change of Use application for an Industry, Caretaker's Residence and
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage be approved subject to conditions.

ASSISTANT PLANNING OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

Council approves a Development Permit for a Material Change of Use for Industry, Caretaker’s
Residence and Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 Chemical Storage on lands described
as Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1 RP60010) Lot in accordance with the following conditions;

Scope of the development approval

1. The approval of a Development Permit is for the use of the subject land for Industry, Caretaker’s
Residence and Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage in accordance with
the following plans:

o Plan of development Site Plan, Project No. 11101, prepared by ComCept Designs and
dated 14 September 2012.

2. This approval of the Development Permit for Material Change of Use does not approved any
works on land the subject of this approval or the placing of advertising devices on the premises.
An approval for Operational Works shall be obtained before any works occur on the land subject
of this approval or any signage is placed on the premises.

Conditions to be satisfied prior to the commencement of the use

3. Conditions 3 to 10 need to be complied with prior to acceptance of works on maintenance.
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The on site sewerage treatment and disposal systems from any new installations within this
development shall be sustainable and in accordance with the current legislative requirements
relating to plumbing, drainage, on site sewerage and any applicable applied provisions.

Development Application for Building Works is required to be lodged for all proposed structures
on site. The building application will require referral to Queensland Fire and Rescue Service
(QFRS).

The site shall be internal and external fenced around all boundaries with a minimum 1.8m high
chance wire security fence.

Where possible the site is to be landscaped with native vegetation to contribute to further
landscape buffering. Additional security measures will be assessed in accordance with
Queensland Explosives Regulations 2003, Council of Australian Governments (COAG) SSAN
Principles 2004 and AS2187.1 1998 outside of this development application.

A Bushfire Management Plan addressing proposed fire fighting measures in the event of a
bushfire for the whole site shall be prepared to the satisfaction of the Queensland Fire and
Rescue Service.

Payment of Infrastructure charges in accordance with the Adopted Infrastructure Charges Notice
issued by Lockyer Valley Regional Council. The amount of the charge may be reduced by
entering into an Infrastructure Agreement which Council to offset the cost of construction of
Warrigal Road against the infrastructure charge.

Compliance with conditions from Department of Natural Resources and Mines as a
Concurrence Agency as provided in their correspondence of 10 October 2012 (Reference
ICO509BEEO008_LV13020).

Conditions to be satisfied prior to the lodgement of an application for operational works

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Conditions 11 to 20 need to be complied with prior to acceptance of works on maintenance.

The developer must upgrade the intersection of Airforce Road and Warrigal Road to include a
Channelised Right Turn lane (CHR) on Airforce Road.

The developer must make an application to Council to have the existing 60km/h speed sign
moved to approximately 100m west of the intersection.

The developer must construct Warrigal Road to a formed 8.7 metre wide pavement formation
with a 7 metre wide, 2 coat bitumen seal.

The supervising engineer must submit to Council the road pavement design details and test
results of all external works for approval. The pavement design shall be undertaken in
accordance with Austroads Guide to Pavement Technology Part 2: Pavement Structural Design.

The supervising engineer must ensure that plans and specifications for all works, or any works
required on Council infrastructure, shall be prepared and certified by a Registered Professional
Engineer in Queensland (RPEQ). Upon completion of the works, a certificate signed by an
RPEQ certifying that the works have been constructed in accordance with the approved plans
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and specifications and in compliance with Council’s construction standards must be provided. It
is expected that the RPEQ will undertake the necessary inspections to make this certification.

The developer must provide all necessary internal and external stormwater drainage to service
the development. Such drainage works must be designed and constructed in accordance with
Queensland Urban Drainage Manual (QUDM), Austroads Guide to Road Design Part 5 —
Drainage Design and the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme such that the overall drainage
system within the development caters for a storm event with an ARI of 100 years.

The developer shall be responsible for obtaining approval and bearing all costs associated with
registering in favour of Council all necessary stormwater drainage easements in order for
drainage path to reach a satisfactory point of legal discharge. This is required within and
external to the subject land.

The developer must ensure that all habitable rooms in the caretaker’s residence and all storage
areas (magazines) to be a minimum 300mm above the Q100 flood level of flow paths crossing
the subject land. A plan shall be submitted that indicates the Q100 flood lines for the flow paths.

The developer shall engage the services of a Registered Professional Engineer in Queensland
(RPEQ) to design stormwater drainage systems in accordance with QUDM, Austroads Guide to
Road Design Part 5 — Drainage Design and the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme. The
RPEQ can liaise with Council’'s Engineering Assessment Officers for further information on
stormwater system requirements.

Conditions to be satisfied in an application for operational works

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Conditions 21 to 28 need to be complied with prior to acceptance of works on maintenance.
The developer must provide for all vehicles to enter and exit the site in forward gear.

The developer shall provide vehicular access to the development in accordance with Council’s
Property Access & Access Crossings: Design, Construction & Maintenance policy.

The developer must provide a vehicle turn around facility near the entrance of the development
to cater for 25m B-Doubles.

The developer must provide a total of six (6) car parking and two (2) AV spaces in accordance
with the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme.

The developer shall ensure all driveways, car parking spaces and manoeuvring areas are
imperviously sealed and linemarked in accordance with AS/NZS 2890.1 (cars), AS 2890.2
(heavy vehicles)

The developer must provide an imperviously sealed standing area for the loading, unloading and
parking of delivery vehicles within the development and linemarked to indicate that it is to be
used only for this purpose.

The developer will ensure that no ponding or redirection of stormwater shall occur onto adjoining
land unless specifically conditioned to do so.

Conditions to be satisfied prior to the issue of an approval for operational works
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Conditions 29 to 30 need to be complied with prior to the issue of an approval for operational
works.

Building approval shall not be granted until a development application for Operational Works has
been approved by Council.

Conditions to be satisfied prior to any prestart meeting

31.

32.

Conditions 31 to 32 need to be complied with prior to any prestart meeting.

The developer must pay an Inspection Fee based on Council’s estimated cost of the works
should any works associated with the development be carried out by agencies other than
Council. This fee is valid for six months from the date of this approval. Refer to Lockyer Valley
Regional Council current Fees and Charges for calculation.

Conditions to be satisfied prior to the acceptance of works on maintenance

33.

34.

Conditions 33 to 34 need to be complied with prior to acceptance of works on maintenance.

The developer must pay a maintenance bond equal to 10% of the construction cost (minimum of
$1,000.00) must be retained by Council for a minimum period of twelve months, or until such
time as the works are accepted "Off Maintenance" by Council. Municipal works must be
accepted "On Maintenance" prior to commencement of use.

Conditions to be satisfied during construction

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Conditions 35 to 40 need to be complied with prior to acceptance of works on maintenance.

Provision at the building site, for use by employees, toilet facilities in accordance with the
requirements of the Environmental Protection (Waste Management) Regulation 2000, Part 2,
Chemical, Composting and Incinerating Toilets.

Provision of suitable waste removal services and suitable number and type of waste containers,
in accordance with the Environmental Protection (Waste Management) Regulation 2000 and to
the satisfaction of Council, for the storage of:

a. papers, plastics, cardboard, food scraps, used food containers and like wastes generated
by workers on the site; and
b.  building construction and/or demolition wastes.

All wastes collected on site during constructions shall be taken to an approved Waste Disposal
Facility for disposal in accordance with current acceptance criteria and relevant fees and
charges.

All wastes collected on the site during construction shall be transported by a waste transporter
approved by the Lockyer Valley Regional Council under the Environmental Protection Act 1994,
or taken by the builder or owner builder concerned.

Builders and subcontractors shall comply with section 440R of the Environmental Protection Act
1994 for the duration of construction.
Environmentally Relevant Activity Conditions to be satisfied on an ongoing basis
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The standard conditions are set out below. Please note contravention of any standard condition is an
offence and may incur prosecution proceedings. All the conditions printed ** either side of the
condition can attract an infringement notice (on-the-spot fine) if contravened

41. General conditions

@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Environmental harm is not authorised by this Authority except to the extent that the harm is
expressly authorised by a condition of this Authority.

The Holder must not change, replace or operate any plant or equipment installed at the
Premises if the change, replacement or operation increases, or is likely to substantially
increase, the risk of environmental harm.

**The Holder must keep a copy of this Authority in a location readily accessible to
personnel carrying out this activity**.

**The Holder must keep all records and documents required to be kept by a condition of
this Authority at the premises for a period of not less than 12 months and make the records
and documents available for examination by an Authorised Person immediately upon
request.**

The Holder must at all times install plant and equipment necessary to comply with the
conditions of this Authority.

()  **The Holder must at all times maintain plant and equipment in proper working order**.
42. Air
(@) A noxious or offensive odour must not be emitted beyond the boundaries of the Premises.
(b) No particulate matter or visible contaminant, including dust, smoke, fumes and aerosols
likely to cause environmental harm is to emanate beyond the boundaries of the Premises.
(c) Light sources at the Premises must be positioned and shielded to prevent light spillage
outside the boundaries of the Premises.
43. Water
(a) **Contaminants or contaminated water must not be directly or indirectly released from the
Premises or to the ground or groundwater at the Premises except for:
()  Uncontaminated Overland Stormwater flow;
(i)  Uncontaminated Stormwater to the stormwater system**;
(b) **Releases to water must not cause any visible oil slick or other visible evidence of oil or
grease, nor contain visible, grease, scum, litter or floating oil**.
(c) The Holder must ensure that:

(i) **Maintenance and cleaning of equipment (including vehicles and plant) is carried out
in an area where contaminants cannot be released into stormwater drainage, a
roadside gutter, a water or onto unsealed ground**;
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(i) ** Any spillage of contaminants is cleaned up immediately by a method other than
hosing, sweeping or otherwise releasing the contaminants into stormwater drainage,
a roadside gutter or a water**,

(i)  Incident rainfall and overland flow of stormwater does not contact contaminants (for
example, areas with contaminants should be roofed or be protected by diversion
drains).

44, Waste

@)

**Nothing is to be burned at the Premises and nothing is to be removed from the Premises
and burnt elsewhere**.

(b) **Where regulated waste is removed from the Premises, records must be kept of the
following:
() The date, quantity and type of waste removed;
(i) The name of the waste transporter and/or disposal operator that removed the waste;
and
(i) The intended treatment/disposal destination of the waste**.
(c) **A contaminant (including a waste) must not:
() Be buried at the Premises; or
(i) Be in contact with soil at the Premises; or
(i) Directly or indirectly seep or penetrate into the soil or groundwater at the Premises**.
45, Release monitoring and registers
(a) **A complaints register must be kept at the Premises and all complaints received about the
Activity must be recorded in the register with the following details:
(i) Time, date and nature of complaint;
(i) Type of communication (telephone, letter, personal, etc);
(iii) Name, contact address and contact phone number of the complainant (if the
complainant does not wish to be identified then ‘not identified’ is to be recorded);
(iv) Response and investigation undertaken in response to the complaint;
(v) Name of the person responsible for investigating the complaint; and
(vi) Action taken as a result of the complaint and the investigation and the signature of or
under the authorisation of the Holder**.
(b) **An incidents register must be kept at the Premises and it must record any incidents

including but not limited to:
() Any fire at the premises;
(i) Any release not in accordance with this Authority**.

46. Definitions

‘Activity’ means the environmentally relevant activity of [insert full description of the ERA from the
Environmental Protection Regulation 1998.

ERA 8 (3) (a) Chemical Storage — storing between 10m3 and 500m3 of chemicals of Class C1 or C2
combustible liquids under AS 1940 or Class 3 dangerous goods.
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‘Adjusted Maximum Sound Pressure Level’ means the average maximum A-weighted sound
pressure level, adjusted for noise character and measured over a time period of not less than 15
minutes, using fast response.

‘Administering Authority’ means Lockyer Valley Regional Council.

‘Authorised person’ means an authorised person authorised under the Environmental Protection Act
1994,

‘Authority’ means this environmental authority or development approval as the case may be.

‘Background Noise Level’ means the LA90,T being the A-weighted sound pressure level exceeded
for 90 percent of the time period not less than 15 minutes using fast response.

‘Commercial Place’ means a place that is used as an office or for business or commercial purposes.

‘Holder’ means operator of the activity and includes the Executive Officers, actual and apparent
agents, employees and contractors of the Holder.

‘Noise Sensitive Place’ means any of the following places—
(a) a dwelling;
(b) a library, childcare centre, kindergarten, school, college, university or other educational
institution;
(c) a hospital, surgery or other medical institution;
(d) a protected area, or an area identified under a conservation plan as a critical habitat or an
area of major interest, under the Nature Conservation Act 1992;
(e) a marine park under the Marine Parks Act 1982;
(f) a park or garden that is open to the public (whether or not on payment of money) for use
other than for sport or organized entertainment.

‘Premises’ means [insert real property description of the premises].

‘Uncontaminated Overland Stormwater Flow’ and ‘Uncontaminated Stormwater’ refer to
stormwater that does not contain contaminants.

Conditions to be satisfied on an ongoing basis

47. Conditions 47 to 50 need to be complied with during the operation of the use.

48. There shall be no interference with the amenity of the locality as a result of traffic generation,
hours of operation, appearance or the emission of noise, vibration, light, odours, fumes, steam,
soot, ash, dust, waste products, electrical interference or otherwise.

49. Any on-site lighting is to be in accordance with AS1158.1.11997 — Road lighting and
AS42821997 — Control of the Obtrusive Effect of Outdoor Lighting.

50. Hours of business of the use are to be 24 hours a day 7 days a week.

REASON FOR APPROVAL

The proposal is generally in accordance with the provisions of the Gatton Shire Council Planning
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Scheme 2007, including:

Desired Environmental Outcomes of the Gatton Shire Council Planning Scheme 2007,
Rural General Zone Code,

Extractive/Mineral Resources and Transportation Route Overlay,
Biodiversity Overlay,

Medium and High Potential Bushfire Overlay,

Steep and Unstable Land Overlay,

Advertising Devices Code,

Landscaping Code,

Lighting Code,

Services and Infrastructure Code,

Vehicle Access, Parking and On Site Movement Code,

Building Works Code,

Caretakers Residence.

Council officers have not identified any planning issues during the assessment of this proposal that
would warrant refusal of the application.

Subject to the above conditions, the proposal complies with the provisions of the Planning Scheme.

FURTHER ADVICE TO THE APPLICANT

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

(Vi)

(viii)

The development must not commence until all conditions of this approval are complied with. To
ensure you are compliant with all the conditions listed above, it is recommended that prior to
starting the use; you request Council officers undertake a compliance inspection.

All works associated with this approval may not start until all subsequent approvals have been
obtained, and their conditions complied with.

It is considered essential that any consultants engaged to prepare any subsequent reports,
plans or applications, liaise with the relevant Council Officers to ensure they are prepared in
accordance with the conditions of approval and all relevant standards.

Any additions or modifications to the approved use (not covered in this approval) may be subject
to further application for development approval. To make this determination, please contact
Council's Planning and Environment Section.

The Relevant Period for this Development Permit is four (4) years. After the Relevant Period
expires, if the use has not commenced, your approval will no longer be current.

Section 3.5.21 of the Integrated Planning Act 1997 outlines the relevant periods for
Development Approvals.

Each further Development Permit (e.g. for Operational works or Building Works) required as a
result of this approval, must be made to a local government or private certifier within the relevant
period.

All proposed structures and works should be positioned clear of any Council services which
traverse the subject land. To determine where existing services are located, please contact
council's Engineering Services Department.

Page 247



ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

(viiii)  Regqistration Certificate

Upon completion of works, the premises will require registration under the Environmental Protection
Regulation 2008. Registration will be required if the activity to be conducted on the premise is
contained in Schedule 2 of the Environmental Protection Regulation 2008 and the administration and
enforcement has been devolved to local government.

Further information regarding Registration Certificate is available at www.lgtoolbox.qld.gov.au or by
contacting Environmental Health Unit on 1300 005 872.

(x) ERA Reqistration

All development involving an Environmentally Relevant Activity as defined by the

Environmental Protection Regulation 2008, requires that an application for registration for the
Environmentally Relevant Activity be submitted to the administering authority, Lockyer Valley
Regional Council, in accordance with the Environment Protection Act 1994. If the application for
registration is submitted to Lockyer Valley Regional Council within 30 business days of the
development approval, then no fee will be required for the registration.

(xi) Contaminated Land

Pursuant to the Environmental Protection Act 1994 Part 8 - Contaminated Land-“371(1) If the owner
or occupier of land becomes aware a notifiable activity is being carried out on the land, the owner or
occupier must, within 22 business days after becoming aware the activity is being carried out, give
notice to the administering authority in the approved form.”

The administering authority for contaminated land matters is the Department of Environment and
Heritage Protection.

Please note: The above information has been provided to the applicant as an advice only, and does
not form part of the Development Approval conditions. This advice has been provided to the applicant
to inform them of other obligations they may have to comply with (under state legislation or local laws)
prior to their activity commencing.

(xii)  Fire Ants

In accordance with the Plant Protection Act 1989 and the Plant Protection Regulation 2002, a
guarantine notice has been issued for the State of Queensland to prevent the spread of the Red
Imported Fire Ant (ant species Solenopsis invicta) and to eradicate it from the State.

It is the legal obligation of the land owner or any consultant or contractor employed by the land owner
to report the presence or suspicion of Fire Ants to Biosecurity Queensland on 13 25 23 or completing
Biosecurity Queensland/ Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry online form at
www.daff.gld.gov.au within 24 hours of becoming aware of the presence or suspicion.

It should be noted that the movement of Fire Ants is prohibited, unless under the conditions of an
Inspectors Approval. More information can be obtained from the Queensland Biosecurity Queensland/
Department of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry online form at www.daff.qld.gov.au website
www.daff.qld.gov.au.
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 1
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence & Plan
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage

Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1

RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact

Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical
Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot

1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Attachment 2

Notice

Referral Agency Response

This notice is tssued by the Deparlment of Nalural Resources and Mines (ONRM) pursuant to seclions 3.3.16 of the

Integrated Plarting Act 1997 (the Acl’).

Chief Executive Officer

Lockyer Valley Regional Council
PO Box 82

GATTON QLD 4343
Attention: Tracy Ryan

Reference: DAG496_RA263-0

1 Application Details

Date application referred to DERM:

Development approval applied for:

Development descriptions:

DERM Jurisdiction(s):

Properly/Location description:

Page 1 of 4 » 120501

Dapartment of Natural Resources and Minos
www . dnrm.qid.gov.au ABN 53 020 247 661

ce. Maxime Consuiting Pty Ltd

PO Box 302
TOOWOOMBA QLD 4350
Attention: Amanda Flint

Reference: SBS/Warr/0703_AAF.TW

Our reference: ICOS08BEE000S_LV13020

11 June 2009
Development Permit

Material Change of Use - Industty and Caretlakers
Residence

Material Change of Use - Clearing vegelation - Integraled
Planning Regulation 1998 - Schedule 2, Table 3, Item 11

Material Change of use — Land in or near a wetland —
Integrated Planning Regulation 1998 — Schedule 2, Table
3, ltem 20

Material Change of Use — Land In or near & conservation
eslale - Infegrated Planning Regulation 1998 - Schedule 2,
Table 3, Item 21

Warrigal Road, Helidon — Lot 1 RP60010 (now part of Lot 1
SP189215)

@ Queensland Government

Attachment 2

10.6
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &

Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage

Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1

RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Notice
Referral Agency Response

2. The Chief Exacutive, Department of Natural Resources and Mines (DNRM), as a concurrence
agency for the application advises that a response for the concurrence agency jurisdiction has been
made and is attached o {his Notice.

2.1 Concurrence Agency Jurisdiction
211 Clearing Vegetation
(Infegrated Planning Reguiation 1998 - Schedule 2, Table 3, ltem 11)

Conditions must atlach to any development approval, and those conditions are
altached lo this Nofice,

3. The Chief Executive, administering the Environmental Protection Act 1994, as an advice agency for
the application advises that a response for the advice agency jurisdiction has been made and is
altached to this Notice.

3.1 Advice Agency Jurisdiction
311 Land In or near a wetland
{integrated Planning Regulation 1998 - Schadule 2, Table 3, Item 20)

-~ Recommendations {o the Assessment Manager have been made, and those
recommendations are attached to this Notlcs.

4. The Chief Executive, administering the Nature Conservation Act 1992, as an advice agency for the
application advises thal a response for the advice agency Jurisdiction has been made and is
attached to this Nolice.

4.1 Advice Agency Jurisdiction
411 Land in or near a conservation estate
(Integrated Planning Regulation 1998 - Schedule 2, Table 3, Item 21)

Recommendations to the Assessment Manager have been made, and those
recommendations are attached to this Notice.

5. General advice to assessment manager

Pursuant to section 3.5.15 of the Act, 8 copy of & decision notice or negotiated decision notice
Issued by the assessment manager must be forwarded to DNRM as a referral agency for the
relevant application at PO Box 1164, BEENLEIGH QLD 4207 gnd an elecironic copy lo

palm@ehp.qld gov.au.

The State's Native Title Work Procedures provide that responsibility for assessment of native title
issues for an IDAS application rests with the assessment manager. Therefore, DNRM as a referral
agency for the relevant application has not provided nolification to native ftitle parties.

Page 2 of 4 + 120501
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact

Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical
Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot
1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Attachment 2

Notice
Referral Agency Response

Additional comments or advice about the application for Assessment Manager
Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003

DNRM also takes this opportunity to advise the Assessment Manager of the responsibilities of
applicants under the Aboriginal Cullural FHeritage Act 2003. The Assessment Manager may wish (o
include this Information as an Advisory Note on the Declslon Notice issued for (he application

Under section 23 of the Abariginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003 a person who carries oul an activity

must take all reasonable and practicable measures to ensure the aclivity does not harm Aboriginal
cultural heritage (the “cultural heritage duty of care"). Maximum penalties for breaching the duty of
care are $1,000,000 for a corporation and $100,000 for an individual.

Applicants will comply with the duty of care in relation to Aboriginal cultural heritage if they are acting
in accordance with cultural heritage duty of care guidelines gazetied under the Abonginal Cultural
Heritage Act 2003, available on the website, or in accordance with an agreement with the Aboriginal
party for the area or a cultural heritage management plan approved under part 7 of the Aboriginal
Cultural Heritage Act 2003.

Applicanlts are also encouraged to undertake a search of the Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Database
and the Aboriginal Cullural Heritage Register, administered by the Department of Aboriginal and
Torres Strail Isfander and Multicultural Affairs. Application forms to undertake a free search of the
Cutturat Heritage Register and the Database may be obtained by contacling (07) 3238 3647 or on
the website hito/iwww datsima.qld.gov.aulatsis/aboriginal-torres-strait-islander-peoplesfindigenous-
cultyral-heritage.

Additional Information for applicants
Notifiable Activities under the Environmental Protection Act 1994

It is a requirement of Section 371 of the Environmental Protection Act 1994 that if the owner or
occupier of this site becomes aware (hat a Notifiable Activity (as defined under Schedule 3 of the
Envirommental Protection Act 1994) is being carried out on this land or that the land has been
affected by a hazardous conlaminant they must, within twenty-two (22) days after becoming aware
the aclivily is being carried out, give notice to the Department of Environment and Heritage

Protection. A list of Notifiable Activities Is provided within Schedule 3 of the Environmental Profection

Act 1994. Failure to give the required notice, except where notice has akeady been given, may give
rise 16 an offence.

%" Enquiries:
7 Taylor Edwards

Graduate Planning Officer

Delegate: South Region, Land Services
Jillyan Kelly Department of Natural Resources and Mines
AfSenior Planning Officer 32 Tansey Street, BEENLEIGH QLD 4207
Reglonal Planning and Coordination PO Box 1164, BEENLEIGH QLD 4207
South Region (Beenleigh) Phone: 07 3884 8041
Fax: 07 3884 8024
10 October 2012 Email:
PACoordinationSEQSouth@dnem.qld.gov.au
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &

Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage

Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1

RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Notice
Referral Agency Response

Attachments

- Concurrence Agency Response (Vegetation Clearing), Permit: 2008/004851 ;
- Advice Agency Response (Land In or near a wetland), Permit: ICO509BEE0008 ‘
- Advice Agency Response (Land in or near a conservation estate), Permit: I(COS09BEEQ008
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact

Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical
Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot
1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Attachment 2

DNRM Permit ' number:

Integrated Planning Act 1997

eL.VAS 2009/004851 Trackjob IC0509BEE0008

Assessment manager reference:
Date application recelved:
Permit type:

Property/Location description:

Date of decislon:

Decision:

Relevant laws and policies:

Jurisdiction:

DAG4SE_RA263-0
11 June 2009
Concurrence Agency Response

Lot 1/5P188215 (formerly Lot 1/RPS0010) — Warrigal Road,
Helidon — Lockyer Valley Reglonal Council

9 October 2012

DNRM recommends approval with conditions, The conditions
included in this Notice must attach te any development approval
given by the Assessment Manager

Integrated Planning Act 1997,

Vegetation Managemen! Act 1999,

Concurrence Agency Policy for Material Change of Use, dated 23
August 2007.

Regional Vegetation Management Code fer Southeast
Queensland Bicreglon, dated 20 November 2008,

State Policy for Vegelation Management.
Concurrence—Material Change of Use — Clearing vegetation -

inlegrated Planning Regulation 1998 - Schedule 2, Table 3, ltem
11

Reason(s) for inclusion of conditions

The conditions are included pursuant to section 3.3.18 of the infegrated Planning Act 1997

In accordance with section 3.3.18 of the Infegrated Planning Acl 1997, the reason(s) for inclusion of conditions
stated in this permit required by the concurrence agency response for the application are detailed below In the

Statement of Reasons.

 Perml Inchudes Boences, approvals, permits, suthorsations, certificates, sanctions or equivadentisimilar as required by legisiation
administered by the Department of Envicanment and Resoweos Managemant

Page 10f 11+ 120501
Department of Natural Resources and Mines
wyew.dnra.qid.gov.nu ABN 59 020 847 561

@ Queensland Government

Attachment 2

10.6

Page 255



Application for:

Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage
Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1
RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

DNRM Permit ' number:  eLVAS 2009/004851 Trackjob IC0509BEE0008

Words underlined In the conditions are defined in the section below entitied 'Cefinitions’.

10.

1.

CONDITIONS

The material change of use (MCU) must be generally consistent with submilted plan "Warriga! Reserve,
Helidon — Proposed Building Locations — ComCept Designs ~ Projoct No. 111101 - Scale 1:5000 - 13
Seplember 2012°, except where inconsistent with the conditions of this permit.

To ensure biological diversity is not lost and ecological processes are maintained no clearing as a resuit of

the MCU of Lot 1 on SP188215 is to occur In mapped remnant vegetation with the exception of the

foliowing:

2.1, Clearing as a result of the MCU is permitted in Area A (A1 to A14) identified on Referral Agency
Response (Vegetation) Plan RARP 2008/004851.

2.2, Clearing is permitted in Area B (B1 to B7) identified on RARP 2009/004851 to maintain the areas
cleared previous to the submitted MCU.

No clearing is permitted in Area C (C1 to C7) identified on RARP 2009/004851 with the exception of the
following:

3.1, InArea C1, clearing is permitied to establish and maintain the site entry compound shown on
submilted plan ‘Proposed Development at Wairigal Road, Helidon ~ Site Plan - Aspect Dasign
Studies — Project No. 09-0422 ~ Drawing No. A.001 — 28 Apnil 2009',

Within Area C, except where the site entry compound is located, restorative revegetation works must occur
using species and al a denslily consistent with the existing regional ecosystem,

4.1. Rehablitated sites must be maintained {including bul not limited to watering, weeding, fertilising) until
plant communities are self-maintaining.

4.2. With respect to the area where the track/road crosses the watercourse in the vicinity of the site entry
compound in Area C1, water must be either directed across or under the track/road so thal It remains
passable and vehicular usage does not cause erosion and sedimentation,

Clearing of mapped remnant vegetation must not occur until all relevant development approvals have been
given,

Any clearing or activilies associated with clearing adjacent to areas not approved 1o be cleared must not
adversely Impact on native vegetation in areas not approved 1o be cleared.

Clearing must only commence once the clearing area has been clearly defined.

Where excavation is undertaken adjacent to areas not approved to be cleared the edge of excavation must
be stabilised to ensure soll levels in areas nol approved to be cleared are maintained,

Measures used to stabilise excavation areas must nol encroach into areas not approved to be cleared.

Measures used to slabilise excavation areas must be of sufficient depth andlor lateral distance from areas
not approved 1o be cleared to ensure ool systems of vegetation are not impacted adversely.

Prior to, during and post construction, any clearing or land disturbing activities must be underiaken in
accordance with the ‘Ausfrafla Standard for the Protection of Trees on Development Sites (AS4970-2009)"
and any amendments to ensure biological diversity is not lost and acological processes are maintained.
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Application for:

Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical
Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot
1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

DNRM Permit ' number: eLLVAS 2009/004851 Trackjob ICO509BEE0008

12

13,

14.

15.

16.

17.

16,

19.

20,

Except where inconsistent with the conditions of this permit, fire management must occur in accordance
with the decument entitied ‘Bushfire Management Plan — Warrigal Road, Helidon - EASystems - Report
No. 22499.34272 — Prepared for Shanna Blasting Services Ply Ltd - 21 September 2009",

Clearing and land disturbing activities must not occur until a site-specific erosion, sediment and drainage
control ptan (ESDCP) Is prepared In accordance with the following:

13.1. 'Best Practice Erosion and Sediment Control, International Erosion Contral Assoclation (Australasia),
November 2008',

13.2. The ESDCP must contain the following information:

13.2.1.  Wentification of site-specific erosion and sedimentation risks (including bulk earthworks and
geo-technical structures), and measures o be used to mitigate the impact,

13.2.2. Engineering specifications and cross-sections.

1323, Measuwes used to manage matters such as, but not limited to, stockpiles and hazardous
material, pollutants and monitoring of water quality.

1324,  Details of rehabilitation or revegetation plan envisaged as pan of the mitigation of the
impact of the development.

13.25.  The ESDCP must encompass both the construction and operational phase of the
devalopment,

13.26. Ifthe above-required information is distributed across several decuments, these must be
clearly referenced and included in the ESDCP

Prior to the commencement of the proposed works the Applicant must document a specific list of personnel
that details the "chain of command’ in relation to the implementation, modification, and maintenance of the
site erosion, sediment and drainage control (ESDCP) measures. This document will, as a minimum, detail
the ESDC-related responsibiiities and accountabllifies of personnel, and must be updated to reflect any
changes in staffing arrangements.

All erosion, sediment and stormwater controls must be instalied and working effectively prior to, during and
after any site disturbance, vegetalion clearing and grubbing, services installation and consiruction, to
ensure biological diversity is not lost and ecological processes are maintained.

Any soil disturbance must be scheduled where possible for the least erosive periods of the year |.e. during
periods of low rainfall volume and intensity to prevent sali erosion, maintain water quality and protect
adjacent habital.

Clearing must be staged to reduce both the time that soll is exposed and the total area of soil exposed at
any given time,

Land clearing debris must not be pushed info gullies, watercourses, other drainage lines or waterlogged
areas

Al disturbed soll and excavated soil must either be contained within the construction boundary or
alternatively securely stockpiled or respread in a location where its placement will not result in the clearing
of vegetation that is regulated under the Vegetation Management Act 1999

The Applicant must ensure a copy of the development approval conditions, development permil, erosion,
sediment and drainage control plan and any other documents required for the management of oil erosion,
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Application for:

Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage
Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1
RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

DNRM Permit ' number:  eLVAS 2009/004851 Trackjob ICO509BEE0008

21,

sediment and drainage control, are provided lo the principal contractor prior to the commencement of land-
distwbing activities,

The Applicant must ensure that any and all employees, contractors, subcontractors, agents or any other
person engaged or employed to carry out the clearing of any vegetation under this permit comply at all
times with the requirements of this parmit and do not clear any vegetation that Is not approved to be cleared
under this permil.

END OF CONDITIONS

Definitions

¢ “Clear", "Cleared”, “Clearing" for vegetation means clear as defined under the Vegetafion
Management Act 1999 and as amended from time {o time.

« “Clearing as a result of the MCU" means clearing as a result of MCU as defined in the current
Concurrance Agency Poficies.

* “Remnant vegetation” means remnant vegetalion as defined under the Vegetation Management
Act 1999 and as amended from time to fime.

* “Vegetation" means vegelation as defined under the Vegelation Management Ac! 1999 and as
amended from time to time,

Statement of Reasons

The foliowing Statemen! of Reascns is provided pursuant to section 3.3.18 of the Infegrated Planning Act 1997,

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Depariment of Natural Resources and Mines {formerly Department of Environment and
Resource Management) received an application from Maxime Consulting on 11 June 2009,

1.2 The application is for a Material Change of Use for Industrial Premises (Explosive Storage Facilily)
and caretaker's residence on Lot 1/SP189215 (formerly Lot 1/RPS0010) — Lockyer Valley Regional
Coungil.

1.3 Auto-extension to Information Requesl (IR) period issued 18 June 2009.

14  Information request issued 9 July 2009.

1.5 Response to IR received 16 June 2010.

1.6 Auto-extension to Referral Agency Response (RAR) period issued 8 July 2010,

1.7 Negotiated (Neg) extension to RAR period 9 August 2010 until 11 November 2010.

1.8  Further information received 9 November 2010.

1.9 Neg. extension of RAR period;
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact

Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical
Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot
1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Attachment 2

DNRM Permit ' number:  eLVAS 2009/004851 Trackjob IC0509BEE0008

1.10

1.8.1 11 November 2010 until 31 March 2011

1.9.2 31 March 2011 until 3 May 2011,

1.8.3 3 May 2011 untit 3 August 2011

1.94 3 August 2011 until 26 October 2011

1.95 26 October 2011 until 8 Decamber 2011.

1.96 8 December 2011 until 24 January 2012,

1.9.7 24 January 2012 untid 24 April 2012,

1.9.8 24 April 2012 untii 24 July 2012,

1.8.9 24 July 2012 until 21 August 2012
Further information recelved 7 August 2012,

1.11 Neg. extension of RAR period:
1.11.1 21 August 2012 untdl 13 September 2012,
1.11.2 13 September 2012 until 5 Oclober 2012,
1.12 Further information received 14 and 19 September 2012,
1.13 Neg. extension of RAR period 2 October 2012 until 10 Oclober 2012,
1.14 Delegate determined the RAR for Vegetation Management Act 1999 matters on 9 October 2012,
2. EVIDENCE
21 Application received from Maxime Consulling 11 June 2008.
22 Smarimap.
2.3 Vegetation Information Network (VIN)
24 Electronic Land & Vegelation Administration System (eLVAS),
2.5  Vegstlation Management Act 1999.
26 Integrated Planning Act 1997,
27 Concumrence Agency Follcy for Malerial Change of Use, dated 23 August 2007 (the poficy).
2.8 Regional Vaegetation Management Codea for southeast Queensland Bioregion, dated 20 November
2006 (the code),
29 Lockyer Vailey Regional Councll {formerly Galton Shire Council) planning scheme.
2.10 Natural Resource (IPA) Delegation (No. 2) 2010.
2.11 Regional Ecosystem (RE) map Version 6.0,
212 DNRM dalasets.
213 Information Request issued to applicant.
214 Applicant’s response lo the Information Request
215 Site inspection by Departmental officers Daryl Baumgartner and Patrina Birt, and proponent
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &

Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage

Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1

RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

DNRM Permit ' number:  oLVAS 2009/004851 Trackjob ICO509BEE0008

Amanda Flint on 20 July 2011,

2.16 Further information received from applicant 9 November 2010, 7 August 2012, 14 and 19
September 2012,

2.47 Aerial photography dated 1955, 1999, 2002, 2005, 2009 and 2010.

3. FINDINGS OF FACT

3.1  Application indicates clearing is for Material Change of Use for Industial Premises (Explosive
Storage Facility) and caretaker’s residence.

3.2 Smartmap indicates the land tenwe for Lot 1/SP189215 Is Freehold.
3.3  VIN and eLVAS indicate a PMAV (2009/003601) has been certified on Lot 1/5P 188215,

331 The PMAV reflects the RE Mapping Version 6.0, and as such does not impact on the
assessment of the MCU application,

3.4 RE mapping indicates that aimost all of the subject lot is mapped with remnant vegetation
containing the fellowing:

34.1 Subdominani Of Concern RE12.8-10.2/12.9-10.5/12.9-10.7 (80/30/10).
342 Subdominant Of Concern RE12.9-10.5/12.3.2 (70/30)
343 Subdominant Of Concern RE12.3.7/12.3.2 (80/40).
344 Least Concern RE12.3.7/12.12.9-10.2 (60/40)
345 |Least Concern RE12.9-10.5
346 Least Concern RE12.9-10.6/12.5.1(8020)
3.4.7 Essential habitat for the following species:
a. Koala (Phascolarctos cinereus), and
b. Grevilloa guadricauda.

35 Cerified Regional Ecosystem mapping Version 6.0 overlayed vith the deveiopment layout plan
indicates clearing of mapped remnant of concern and least concern regional ecosystems
containing Essential habitat will eccur as a result of the MCU.

3.6 The subject land is zoned as Rural General and Rural Uplands in the planning scheme.

3.7 The application was determined to be for ‘any other relevant purpose’ as per Assessment Table 1,
Columns 1(b), 2{(h), 3(h) of the MCU policy.

3.7.1 Assessment Table 1 of the policy directs that an application for a PMACU for any other
relevant purpose must be assessed against Criteria Table H if clearing as a result of the
MCU involves the clearing of remnant vegetation.

37.2 For clearing as a result of the MCU to be approved, Criteria Table H directs that the
application must meet Performance Requirements PRs H1, H2 and H3 of Criteria Table
H-1and PRs H1 and H2 of Criteria Table H-2 if clearing an of concern or |east concern
regional ecosyslem, respectively.

373 PR H3 of Criteria Table H-1 and PR H2 of Criteria Table H-2 refer to PRs 2 to 10 of Part
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact

Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical
Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot
1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Attachment 2

Qt‘l_Rf_\'I_Pe!rmit1 number:  eLVAS 2009/004851 Trackjob ICO509BEE0008

P of the Regional Code for Southeast Queensland Bioregion.

3.8 Allclearing as a result of the MCU Is taken into consideration during assessment (refer pages 3/4
of the MCU palicy for further details)

3.8.1 This includes, bul is not limited 1o potential and proposed dearing for firebreaks, fence
lines, roads and utility sarvices. Where buildings are located close lo alloiment
boundaries, assessment of potential clearing for firebreaks on adjoining zllotments will be
undertaken.

382 Clearing of remnant vegetation as a result of the MCU that may occur through soil
erosion and sediment runoff, bulk earthworks and batters, geo-technical struclures, and
inadequate management of stormwater quantity and quality prior, during and post-
construction is also taken into consideration,

3.9 Based on the Information provided in the application, the response to the Information request and
information submitied throughout the assessment process, as well as DNRM's internal datasets
and data collected during a site Inspection of the subject land, the assessing officer finds clearing
as a result of the MCU complies with the PRs of the policy basad on the following:

3.9.1  Thereis no alternalive site or configuration for the proposed development (PR H1 of
Criteria Table H-1 and H-2):

Buildings and infrastruciure have been predominantly located in areas already
cleared of vegetation,

Aerial photographs and data collected during a site inspection of the subject land
confirmed there had been hislorical clearing of vegetation in several of the areas
where proposed buikdings and infrastructure are to be located, primarily existing
tracks, logging sites and gravel scrapas/borrow pits.

Aerial photographs and data collected during the site inspection also identified
several cleared areas not supported by historical clearing or valid exemptions or
permits. There has also been clearing of remnant vegetation for fire trails post-
submission of lhe MCU application. The fire trails are in excess of the 10m width
permitted for fire management lines pursuant to Schedule 24 SPR exempticns.
These clearing areas will be addressed elsewhere In this document.

The development (explosive magazine storage facility) has been located on land
that is adjacent to land already containing a similar facifity. The area is located
away from sensitive use areas such as residential and busy roads. The topography
and dense vegetation of the subject land acts as & combined deterrent and buffer,
screening the faciity from public view.

There are a limited number of suitable sites available to establish explosive
magazine storage facilities

There is a clearance requirement between each of the magazines and associated
structures on the subject land, hence why they are required to be dislribited
throughout the remnant vegetation.

3.9.2 The level of conservation and biodiversity outcomes of the development significantly
exceed lhe extent and value of the area proposed to be cleared and the requirements of
the Vegetation Management Offsets Policy (PR H2 of Criteria Table H-1).
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage
Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1
RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Attachment 2

DNRM Permit ' number:  eLVAS 2009/004851 Trackjob ICO509BEE0008

a. There wili be no clearing of Of Concern RE12.3.2 as a result of the MCU.

b, Clearing of approximately 0.25 heclares of Of Concern RE12.9-10.2/12.6-
10.5/12.9-10.7 (60/30/10) will occur as a result of the MCU which equates to
approx. 0.025 hectares of RE12.9-10.7 as it comprises only 10% of the mixed
polygon. {Note that 0.5 hectares of the mixed polygon has been previously cleared
and Is one of the areas identified above where previous clearing is not supperted
by historical clearing or valid exemplions/permits). Excluding the areas required for
the development, the remainder of the previously cleared area will be subject to
conditions requiring restorative revegstation,

393 The application complies with PR P.2 to PR P.10 of Part P of the Regional code (PR H3
of Criteria Table H-1 and PR H2 of Cniteria Table H-2)

&. Clearing as a resull of the MCU will not occur in vegetalion assaciated with a
natural or significant wetland (PR P.2).

i. Least Concern RE12.3.7 may contain a wetland, however aerial pholographs
and data coflecled during site inspection did not identify any wetland
features.

b. The development will maintain bank stability, water qualily and aquatic and
terrestrial habitats (PR P.3).

i. The proposed development will occur in accordance with a soll erosion,
sadimenl and drainage control ptan that is compliant with the 'Best Practice
Erosion and Sediment Control. Intemnational Erosion Conlrol Association
(Australasia), November 2008'.

ii. There is no requirement to clear vegetation associated with a watercourse in
addition to that which has already been undertaken,

iil, Historically, a track/unformed road had been established through the
watercourse in the vicinity of ihe area identified now as the site entry
compound, However, {urther clearing in the surrounding area has occurred
such that a substantial area of the watercourse vegetalion has been
removed. This further clearing is not supporied by evidence of historical
clearing or a valid exemption/permit, The area will be restoratively
rehabilitated as part of the conditions of approval.

v, With respect to the area where the track/road crosses the walercourse in the
vicinity of the site entry compound, the proposed development will ensure
water is either directed across or under the track/road so that it remains
passable and vehicular usage does not cause erosion and sedimentation.

c. Retained areas of remnant vegetation will be of a size and configuration to
maintain ecosystem funclion and remain In the landscape despile threatening
processes, and will be contiguous with remnant vegetation on adjacent lots (PR

P.4).
I The subject lot contains approx. 126 hectares mapped with remnant
vegelation.
I, The remnant vegetation is contiguous with extensive areas of mapped
Page 8 of 11 * 120601 Depardnront of Natural Resources and Mines
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Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical
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1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Attachment 2

DNRM Permit ' number:

Vi,

ik

remnant vegelation on adjacent lots which are idenlified as protected areas
under the Nature Conservalion Act 1992 (NCA).

The area of clearing (historical, unaccounted for, and proposed), excluding
the fire lrail and existing tracks is approx. 13 hectares, which comprises a
small portion of the total area of mapped remnant vegetation on site.

Most of the area requirad to establish the development is already cleared.

Tracks/Reads will be restricted to 10 metres In width and reslricled lo areas
already identified as exisling tracks/roads,

Soll erosion, sediment and drainage contrels will be implemented so that
land degradation does not ccour and therefore does not impact on adjacent
remnant vegetation, particularly in areas downhill of tracksfroads,

Areas previously cleared, including watercourse and essential habitat, will be
restoratively rehabllitated.

d. Land degradation will not occur as a result of clearing vegetation (PR P.5).

iif,

Most of the areas required for the proposed development have already been
historicaily cleared, particularly the tracks/roads.

The proposed development will occur in accordance with a seil erosion,
sediment and drainage control plan that Is compliant with the ‘Best Praclice
Erosion and Sediment Controf. Intemational Erosion Control Association
(Australasia), November 2008",

With respect to the area where the track/road crosses the watercourse In the
vicinity of the site entry compound, the proposed development will ensure
water is either directed across or under the track/road so that it remains
passable and vehicular usage does not cause erosion and sedimentation,

e. Clearing of assessable vegetation will not contribute to waterlagging; or the
salinisation of groundwater, surface water or soil (PR P.6),

Although the area has been identified as having a low to mederate salinity
hazard, the clearing of vegetation required is minimal as most of the areas
have already been cleared. Further, the clearing areas are spread
throughout the subject land rather than concentrated in one large area.

Bore data of the surrounding environs indicate the groundwater depth is 30
to 60 metres. Groundwater depths less than six (6) metres are considered to
be a risk factor for salinity.

f.  The extent of Of Concern regional ecosystems will be maintained (PR P.7),

Paga 9 of 11+ 120501

There will be no clearing of Of Concern REs listed in Table 1 of the Regional
code.

The area of clearing of Of Concern RE12.9-10.7 (within the mixed palygen of
RE12.9-10.2/12.9-10.5/12 9-10.7) as a result of the MCU Is less than 0.5
hectares (0.025hectares). Other areas of RE12.9-10.7 that were cleared
vithout supportive evidence of historical clearing of valid exemplion/permit
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will be restoratively revegetated.

g. The extent of essential habitat will be maintasined (PR P.8).

I

vi.

iv. The clearing will maintain the extent of the essential habitat by maintaining

The majority of areas required for the propesed development that contain
essantlal habitat have already been cleared, There are two distinct areas;
one that has been historically cleared, while the other has been cleared
without supportive evidence of hislorical clearing or a valid exemption/permit

The area of clearing of essential habitat is approx. 1.5 hectares. The clearing g
areas occur generally on the periphery of the essential habital polygon, ;

The essenlial habitat on the subject site Is contiguous with an extensive area
of essential habitat on adjacent lots, most of which are identified as protected
area estate under the NCA

the structure and function of the RE in which clearing will occur. The REs are
describad as open forest wilh grassy/shrubby understorey (RE12.9-10.5;
RE12.9-10.5/12.5.1; RE12,9-10.2/12.9.10.5/12.9-10.7), as such the removal
of & small number of trees and understorey at each storage area on the
subject site will not impact significantly on the struclure of the REs.

While there will be local digturbance In areas where clearing has not already
occurrad, the removal of vegetation will not have a long term impact on the
landscape or internal ecosystem function {microcimate, hydrologic
pracesses, sead dispersal, pollination, fauna and flora movement,
connectivity and nulrient pathways) of the REs. [

Some of the areas cleared without supportive evidence of histarical clearing
but which are not required for the proposed development will be restoratively
rehabilitated.

h. There will be no clearing of remnant regional ecosystems listad in Table 2 of the
Regional code (PR P.9).

i. Clearing of remnant vegetation will not occur in landzone 1, 2 or 3 below 5 AHD
{PRP.10).

3.4 Clearing will be undertaken in accordance with the conditions stated elsewhere in this

document.

3.10 Assessing officer finds the application complies (with conditions) with the Concurrence Agency
Policy for Material Change of Use dated 23 August 2007, and as such achleves the purposes of
the Vagelation Managemenl Act 1939,

3.11 Based on the above findings DNRM recommends approval.
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Delegate, Chief Executive administering the Vegetation Management Acl 1999.

Department of Natural Resources and Mines

9 October 2012
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical
Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot
1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &

Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage

Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1

RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &

Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical

Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot

1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon
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Application for:

Development Permit for MCU (Impact

Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage
Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1

RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &

Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical

Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot

1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

0500
e
o
%

O

Vi

N

s,

o

=
]
N
S
-
=
Sttt
X
o
)l
5
3

S
s

N
3
»
b
o

1 3 : |
SP189215 W % !

£

ADDITIONAL SHEET
REFERRAL AGENCY RESPONSE
(Vegetation) PLAN

LEGEND
. Denved Coordisslo Paint

[ subjectian.

[BRE] Miveash. SpecicCondtens Apply.

U/ #iess B- Speot Condtens Apgiy.

- 000851 ks Defiss.
[ AAveas G - Speofo Contions Aeply

Scale 1:1000 at A papar skze
0 10 20 W A S0m
| 1 1 1 J

Projoction UTH (MGAS4 Zone §6)  Datam - GDAM

Note: Derived Coovdinate Fonts am prowdod (e 44 in 5 1oood2s of the Reforra! Agoncy Respones hoondeiss
Reapoadilly Rir Lxcafing tase 2oindenes fos soledy wih Mo lancholder avmf gt cldanag convaclon's)

461 Desivad Coonsate Foinfs Cnvmut stuenbaly When fbels o aissig RARP 2009/004851

feode. Plon scolos are AT poper tiee  TIve Iy @ 00 plan #ndd 5200 ondy Do repiochioed M coloor hoof.
Note: This plan must be read in conjunction with Referral Agency Response 2009/004851. Sheel 5 of 7 Sheels

Attachment 2 10.6 Page 271



Application for:

Development Permit for MCU (Impact
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage
Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1
RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &

Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical

Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot

1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon
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Attachment 2

Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &

Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage
Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1

RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2

Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical
Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot
1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Notice

Advice Agency Response - Referable Wetland - IC0509BEE0008

This notice is issued by the administering authority pursuant to seclion 3.3.16 and 3.3.19 of the integrated Fianiing Act

1997 (“the Act”).

Chief Exacutive Officer cC. Maxime Consuiting Pty Lid
Lockyer Valley Regional Council PO Box 302

PO Box 82 TOOWOOMBA QLD 4350

GATTON QLD 4343
Attention: Amanda Flint

Attention: Tracy Ryan
Reference: SBS/MWarr/0703_AAFTW
Reference: DAS4¢5_RA263-0

Our Reference: ICOS09BEEN008_LV13020

Re: Advice Agency Response

G & Application Detaiis

Date properly referred to DERM: 11 June 2009

Development approval applied for: Devetopment permit

Aspect of developmenl: Malerial Change of use — Land in or near a wetiand ~ infegraled
Planning Regulation 1998 ~ Schedule 2, Table 3, ltem 20

Development description: Material Change of Use — Indusiry and Caretakers Residence

Property/Localion description: Warrigal Road, Helidon — Lot 1 RPS0010 (now part of Lot 1
SP189215)

Recommendation

The Chief Executive, administering the Environmental Protection Act 1994, makes the following
recommendation (o the assessment manager:

The assessmenl manager should consider {he potential impacts of the proposed development on wetland
values, including the water qualily, natural hydrolegical flows and ecological functioning of the wetland.
Davelopment should meet the following culcomes:

«  Malntain ecological values of the wetland. There is no loss of wetland habitat and adverse impacts on
the funclioning and integrity of a wetland from development are avoided. A report prepared and
certified by an appropriately qualified professional may assist the assessment manager to consider the
impacts of the development on the ecolagical values and functioning of the wetland. If adverse impacts
are unavoidable, the assessment manager is encouraged to ensure that the values lost are offset in
order to achieve an environmental cutcome equal or better than the wetland values (hat are impacted.
Refer to section 81A of the Environmental Protection Regulation 2008 for the list of welland values.

Page 1 of 3+ 120801 '
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &

Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage

Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1

RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Notice
Advice Agency Response

Where a wetland management area is mapped as being of "high ecological significance under the
Queensiand Coastal Plan it should be assessed against State Planning Policy 3/11:Coastal Protection
(SPP3/11). Refer to policy 3 Naluire Conservallon In SPP 3/11,

+ Maintaln wetland water quality. The water quality of any waters in and linked to the wetland Is
maintained and managed to protect the environmental values of the wetland, and to ensure that the
water quality objectives listed under Schedule 1 of the Environmental Protection (Water) Policy 2009 are
achieved.

= Maintain wetland water regime. The existing water regime (Including surface and groundwater) within
and linked to the welland is maintained and managed to protect existing natural hydrological processes
within the wetland ecosystem. This includes safeguarding natural fluctuations in size and location of the
wetland, and retaining and allowing for regeneration of native vegetation,

To ensure that the proposed development is able to meet Lhe above cutcomes, the assessment
manager is encouraged to consider the requirement for a buffer area between any proposed works and
the wetland. A wetland buffer has two components:

« asupport area adjacent to the wetland that maintains and supports the environmental values of the
wetland, and

« aseparation area around the support area that protects the wetiand from external threats such as
sediment and nulrient discharge from surreunding landuse.

Buffer distances should be maximised In order to maintain existing blodiversity valuas, habitat
connectivity and to minimise edge effects. Unless otherwise determined by a suitably qualified
professional, the following buffer widths are accepted by EHP as precautionary buffer widths likeley to
absorb impacts from external uses,

* within urban areas, & minimum 50m buffer to wetiand

« oulside of urban areas a minimum 200m buffer to wetland

Note: The Queensland Wetland Buffer Planning Guideline {2011) should be referred to when planning
detalled buffer design to position development, determine any alternative buffer widihs and establish
operaling measures that avoid adverse impacts on a wetland.

Where required, revegelation of the buffer is recommended using nafive species representative of the pre-
clearing regional ecesystem, with preference given to endemic species. Plants should be of local
provenance where possible, A rehabilitation/ revegetation management plan including weed management
stralegies may assist in determining the rehabilitiation requirements for the development. Conditioning of any
approval with building or development envelope(s) may also be a useful way to give formal effect to any
required buffer area.

The assessment manager should consider requiring applicants to provide a Stormwater Management Plan
to demonstrale how stormwater, sediment and other run-off from the site {associated wilh the consltruction
and operational phases of davelopment) will be effectively managed to prevent adverse impacts on wetiand
values. Potential impacts are to be addressed Ihrough water sansitive urban design including compliance
with Soulh East Queenstand Regional Plan 2009-2031 Implementation Guideline No. 7; Water sensilive
urhan design - design objectives for urban stommvater managemont. For areas oulside of the South-east
Queensland Regional Plan area any approval should recognise the requirements of The Urban Stormwater
Quality Planning Guidelines 2010.

Page 2 of 3 + 120501 Dapartment of Environment and Horitage Protection
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2

Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical
Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot
1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Notice

Advice Agency Response

General information for assessment managers

Should you have any questions about the above, please contact Taylor Edwards on telephone (07) 3884
8041, quoting the above reference number.

(1 Enquirles:
/,/f—/ Tayfor Edwards
Graduate Planning Officer
Delegate: South Region, Land Services
Jrllyan_ Keily ; N Department of Natural Resources and Mines
AfSenior Planning Officer 32 Tansey Slreet, BEENLEIGH QLD 4207
Regional Ptanning and Coordination PO Box 1164, BEENLEIGH QLD 4207
South Region (Beenleigh)

Phone: 07 3884 8041

Fax: 07 3884 8024

10 October 2012 Emalt:
DACoordinationSEQSouth@dnrm.qld, gov.ay

Page 3 of 3+ 120501 Dopartment of Environment and Heritage Protection
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact Attachment 2
Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &

Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical Storage

Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot 1

RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Notice

Advice Agency Response - Conservation Estate - ICO509BEE0008

This notice is issued by the administering authonty pursuan! lo section 3.3 16 and 3 3.19 of the integraled Planning Acl
1997 ("the Act").

Chiaf Executive Officer cC Maxime Caonsulting Pty Ltd
Lockyer Valley Regional Council PO Box 302
PO Box 82 TOOWOOMBA QLD 4350

GATTON QLD 4343
Attention: Amanda Flint

Attention: Tracy Ryan
Reference: SBS/MWarr/0703_AAFTW

Reference: DAB496_RA263-0

Our reference: ICOS09BEEQQ08_LV13020

Re: Advice Agency Response

1. Application Details
Date application referred; 11 June 2009
Development approval applied for: Development permit
Aspect of development Material Change of Use — Land in or near a conservation
eslate - Integraled Planning Regulation 1998 - Schedule 2,
Table 3, ltem 21
Development description: Material Change of Use — Industry and Caretakers
Residence
Property/l.ocation description: Warrigal Road, Helidon — Lot 1 RP80010 (now part of Lot 1
EP189215)
Recommendation

The Chief Exacutive, Dapartment of National Parks, Recreation, Sport and Racing (NPRSR), makes the
following recommendation to the assessment manager:

The Assessment Manager should consider the petential impacts of the proposed development on both the
habltats and environmental values contained within the conservation estate, as well as to the management
intent of the conservation estate,

Development should ensure the following outcomes;
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Application for: Development Permit for MCU (Impact

Assessment) for Industry, Caretaker's Residence &
Environmentally Relevant Activity No. 8 for Chemical
Storage Property Description: Lot 1 SP189215 (formerly Lot
1 RP60010) situated at: Warrigal Road, Helidon

Attachment 2

Notice

Advice Agency Response

+ Maintain habitat and blodiversity values: development avokis or minimises and miligates adverse
impacts on the functicning and integrity of habitats and environmental values contained within the
conservation estate

» Development demonsirates there will be no adverse impacts on the ecological values and
funclioning of the conservation estate. An ecological report prepared by a suitably qualified
professional may be one way that the Assessment Manager may choose lo assess this outcome.

= Development maintains, conserves and enhances the current extent and connectivity within
and between consarvation estate areas

« Development does not compromige the management intent of the conservation eslate,

The Assessment Manager should ensure that there is a sufficient buffer distance between any proposed
works including access tracks and roads and the conservation estate boundary In order to maintain the
ecological funclioning and integrily of the conservation estate. Buffer distances should be maximised in order
to maintain existing biodiversity values, habitat connectivily and to avold edge effects. The buffer may also
assist In ensuring that slormwater, wastewater, dust and erosion from the development site can be
appropriately managed to avoid adverse impacls on the conservation estate. A stormwater and wastewater
management plan may ba one way the assessment manager may choose {o ensure off-site impacts of
development are ameliorated. Revegetation of buffer zones using native species representative of the pre-
clearing reglonal ecosystem is recommended,

Establishing building or development envelope(s) may also be a useful way to give formal effect to any
required buffer area.

Neighbours to the conservation estate have a responsibility to keep dwellings and other infrastructure near
Queensland Parks and Wildlife Service (QPWS) managed lands in a condition that minimises fire risk to
themselves and their praperty as well as the protected estate and to appropriately ameliorate light and noise
Issues. Consultation with QPWS officers is recommended to ensure management objectives of the
conservation estate including fire management, emergency services access and pest controls are met. A
QPWS ‘Good Neighbour Pelicy’ may be of assistance and Is available on the web at:

hittp:/; .derm.qld.qov.al i 1 f

General Information for assessment managers

Should you have any queslions about the above, please contact Taylor Edwards on telephone (07) 3884
8041, quoting the above reference number.

Enguiries:
[/‘;//” Taylor Edwards
Graduale Planning Officer
Delegate: South Reglon, Land Services
Jillyan'Kelly : . Depariment of Natural Resources and Mines
A/Senior Planning Officer ) 32 Tansey Street, BEENLEIGH QLD 4207
Reglonal Planning and Coordination PO Box 1164, BEENLEIGH QLD 4207
Solh Reglon (Baankeioh) Phone: 07 3884 8041
Fax: 07 3884 8024
10 Octaber 2012 Email:
DACoordinationSEQSouth@dnrm qid, gov.au
-F"auo 2of2¢ 133567_ R Dopartment of Naticnal Parks, Recroation, Sport and Racing
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ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

10.7 Request for Road Name for Un-Named Road off Petersens Road,
Ma Ma Creek

Date: 12 December 2012

Author: Kate Watson, Planning Assistant

Responsible Officer: Leo Jensen, Group Manager Community & Development Services

File No: 1.1/17/14 2.4/10/14

Summary:

It is requested that Council approve the naming of an un-named road reserved off Petersens Road,
Ma Ma Creek.

Officer’s Recommendation:
THAT Council resolves to approve the following road name as shown on the map
provided by the Planning and Environment Unit, dated 11 December 2012:

Old Pitch Lane, Ma Ma Creek (Tenthill)

2. That Council advises the affected landholder, Department of Environment and
Heritage Protection and all other necessary agencies; and,

3. That Council advise the affected land holder that in naming the road reserve,
Council does not confer maintenance of the road reserve in accordance with
constructed gazetted roads. The purpose of the name is for identification and
emergency purposes.

RESOLUTION:
THAT Council resolves to approve the following road name as shown on the map
provided by the Planning and Environment Unit, dated 11 December 2012:

Old Pitch Lane, Ma Ma Creek (Tenthill)

2. That Council advises the affected landholder, Department of Environment and
Heritage Protection and all other necessary agencies; and,

3. That Council advise the affected land holder that in naming the road reserve,
Council does not confer maintenance of the road reserve in accordance with
constructed gazetted roads. The purpose of the name is for identification and
emergency purposes.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Pingel
Resolution Number: 2850

CARRIED
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ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

7/0

5.

Introduction

A request from a landholder of a property off Petersens Road, Ma Ma Creek to have a road
name and number assigned for the purposes of identification for new building work and
emergency services.

Background

This is a request to name an un-named road reserve off of Petersens Road, Ma Ma Creek.
The resident is currently preparing a new building application and in order to meet building
requirements, requires the lot to be identified with an official street address. The access to the
property is gained from an un-named and unformed road off Petersens Road.

Report

The road names provided have been suggested by the landholder in addition to the
responsible officer for Road Naming.

The landholder has requested that the road reserve be named “Voltage” in reference to the
high voltage powerlines over the property in addition to “Voltage” being an amalgamation of
the applicant’s first and last names.

In accordance with Item 20 of the Gatton Shire Council Naming of Roads Policy 2004, which
states that “...places should not be named after living persons. They are named for posterity,
not the present” the suggested road name contravenes the Council Policy.

In addition, it is understood that referring to high voltage powerlines is not in keeping with the
overarching theme of the Lockyer Valley.

Further, and of particular note, a dwelling is proposed for the site of the former Fordsdale
Cricket Club. An opportunity to pay reference to a former well regarded community sporting
group is identified by this application.

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Un-named Voltage Lane Old Pitch Lane* Third Lane”
Road

* in reference to what was formally the home of the Fordsdale Cricket Club

A the number of un-named road reserves Council has provided an address for in 2012

Policy and Legal Implications

The suggested road names do not exist within the former Gatton or Laidley Shires and are not
in conflict with the former Gatton ‘Naming of Roads and Streets Policy’ or ASNZ Standard
4819:2011.

Financial and Resource Implications
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Following the outcome of this request, Infrastructure Services will be engaged to install
signage at the intersection of the un-named road and Petersens Road. This road naming
request is for identification purposes and Infrastructures Services will not maintain the reserve
in accordance with gazetted roads contained within the region.

Delegations/Authorisations

The Unit Manager or Group Manager do not have delegations to process Road Naming
Applications.

Communication

The applicant has contacted Council (Delta enquiry 26358) requesting a property number as
required to complete an application to construct a two new dwellings. The responsible officer
for this request has taken a road name request from the landholder. This report to name the
un-named road reserve is in response to this request.

Conclusion
Council has investigated the request and assessed that the naming of the road reserve off
Petersens Road is required for property identification and community safety purposes in

addition to being a necessity for a building approval to be enacted. The suggested road name
is in keeping with the overarching theme of the Lockyer Valley.
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11.0 INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES REPORTS

111

Date:

Author:

Responsible Officer:
File No:

Summary:

Infrastructure Services Acting Group Manager's Report

12 December 2012

Anthony Trace, Acting Group Manager Infrastructure Services
Anthony Trace, Acting Group Manager Infrastructure Services
1.1/17/28

This report is to update Council on the emerging matters arising since Council last met in regards to
the Infrastructure Services Group.

Officer’s Recommendation:

That Council receive and note the Acting Group Manager Infrastructure Services Report.

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council receive and note the Acting Group Manager Infrastructure Services

Monthly Report.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Holstein

Resolution Number: 2851

CARRIED
710

This Report is to provide an update to Council on current matters arising since the last

Report

1. Introduction
meeting.

2. Background

Previous Infrastructure Services reports to Council, up to and including November 2012.

3. Report

General Infrastructure Services Matters:

Lockyer Valley Regional Aquatic and Sports Centre Project:
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A tour of similar type facilities located throughout Brisbane was conducted on 23 November
2012, with several Councillors attending. The tour provided a good insight into the functions of
similar type facilities and the opportunity to ask questions in relation to layout, running and
coordination of the facility. The second meeting of the Project Steering Group was conducted
on Tuesday 11 December 2012, the main outcome of this meeting was that a further review of
scope project and agreement of master plan was to be conducted and that a report would be
generated for Council adoption. A separate report has been tabled at this Council meeting.

Reconstruction Work has recently been completed on the following roads:

- Flagstone Creek Road

- Stockyard Creek Road

- Back Ma Ma Road

- Black Duck Creek Road
- Lester Road

- Greenswamp Road East
- Morton Vale School Road
- Mount Berryman Road

- Carpendale Road

- Ingoldsby Road

- Thomas Street — Laidley
- Paroz Road - Laidley

Helidon Rest Area:

Council is undertaking the reconstruction of the Helidon Rest Area on Warrego Highway, also
known as Norman Hedges Park. Civil works on this project are scheduled for completion by
week ending 14 December 2012 and the entire project should be completed before Christmas.

Infrastructure Forward Planning:

Laidley Recreation Reserve Multi-Purpose Building:

The master plan options for the multi-purpose building at Laidley Recreation Reserve were
discussed with members of the community, the outcome of this was the provision of another
option for consideration.

Local Government and Grants and Subsidies Submissions:

Council received notification 29 November 2012 that the funding submissions for the following
applications were successful:

o Regency Downs Local Flood and Flood Risk Management

e Forest Hill Levee

e Gatton Creek Capacity Improvements at Withcott

e Laidley Breakout Levee.

Helipads for Gatton and Lake Clarendon:
Design work for both helipads is continuing, these are being undertaken for the Strategy and
Planning area.

Infrastructure Operations/Delivery:

The programming of restoration day labour of works has been undertaken and a schedule of
works has been arranged up to and including May 2013, further input and details will be
undertaken to the program as it progresses.
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Council’s day labour program is proceeding within the estimate of work and is on schedule.
Work crews are undertaking various types of work including re-sheeting of roads, cement
stabilising and repairing large failures and drainage components.

Rotary Funded Projects:

Murphys Creek Community Centre:

Infrastructure Services are project managing the construction process of this Community and
Development project. The access and car parking sealing has now been completed. The
building contractor is continuing with site works and internal fit out of the building.

Grantham Butter Factory:
The design for the car park is being reviewed to avoid clashes with services already installed.
Once this has been overcome works will be rescheduled.

Helidon Progress Park:

The Memorandum of Understanding between Council and the Rotary Clubs has been finalised
and is in the process of being signed off by all parties. A Council report for ratification of this
project has been tabled at this meeting. The project will refurbish the facilities at Progress
Park and provide a sporting club with an enhance facility. Once this project has been
approved by Council material can be order and works can commence. A working bee has
been scheduled for the 13 January 2013 for this park and is being coordinated by Council’s
Parks and Open Spaces Foreman, Mr Brendan Sippel. Councillors are invited to attend and
participate in this working bee.

Customer and Councillor Requests Received by Infrastructure Services for November 2012

Customer Requests Councillor Requests

Requests Taken: 425 Requests Taken: 14

Requests Inspected: 187 Requests Inspected: 22

Completed Requested: 343 Requests Completed: 13

Requests Outstanding: 220 Requests Outstanding: 13

Customer and Councillor Requests Received by Infrastructure Services for December 2012
Building Maintenance Facilities Infrastructure Services

Requests Taken: 38 38 136

Councillor Requests: 2 1 8

Inspected: 38 5 69

Completed: 16 32 123

Outstanding: 31 14 77

Policy and Legal Implications

Policy and legal implications will be addressed in future reports on matters that arise before
Council.

Financial and Resource Implications

Budget impacts will continue to be addressed through existing allocation and re-prioritisation
as required.
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Delegations/Authorisations
No further delegations are required to manage the issues raised in this report.

Communication

The matters arising from this report that require further communication will be addressed
through existing communication channels.

Conclusion

That the Acting Group Manager of Infrastructure Services report be received and noted.
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11.2 Helidon Progress Park Project - Rotary Breathing New Life into
Progress Park

Date: 12 December 2012

Author: John Keen, Manager Asset Management

Responsible Officer: Anthony Trace, Acting Group Manager Infrastructure Services

File No: 5.5/23/16

Summary:

The project “Rotary Breathing News Life into Progress Park” is a great outcome for both council and
the community. The project will refurbish the facilities at Progress Park at Helidon as well as provide a
local sporting club with an enhanced facility. The Helidon Progress Association and the Helidon
Cricket Club have partnered with Council to develop this project for the betterment of the community
facilities. Progress Park at Helidon has the potential to be a centrally located facility that more and
more community groups can use for their various activities throughout the year.

Officer’s Recommendation:

THAT with respect to the Memorandum of Understanding between Council and Rotary
that Council approve the signing of the Memorandum of Understanding with Rotary to
allow the project to be undertaken.

RESOLUTION:

THAT with respect to the Memorandum of Understanding between Council and Rotary
that Council approve the signing of the Memorandum of Understanding with Rotary to
allow the project to be undertaken.

Moved By: Cr Holstein Seconded By: Cr Milligan
Resolution Number: 2852

CARRIED
710

Report
1. Introduction

The impetus for this project has been driven by an offer of funding from the combined Redland
City Rotary and Rotoract Clubs and the Toowoomba East Rotary Club in response to the
catastrophic events of the January 2011 flooding. Through the Mayor and public consultation
with the residents of Helidon it has been decided that improvements to this area would provide
a high level of benefit to the community and would be a visible project that has been accepted
by Rotary as a recipient of their funding. The Memorandum of Understanding has been
developed in response to a request from Rotary for a formal document so that both parties
understand their responsibilities in relation to this project.
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Corporate Plan Reference: “Provide services, facilities and opportunities that enables people to
gather together and connect with each other”.

2. Background

The Rotary Clubs of Redland City through Steve Haughtey approached Council with the offer
of funding of approximately $96k to do a project at Helidon. The money was raised by Rotary
after the events of January 2011. Council set up a meeting with the Helidon Progress
Association and the Helidon Cricket Club and discussed various options to provide the most
benefit for the community. From these meetings Council officers prepared a project brief and
agreed with the Progress Association and the Helidon Cricket Club on a list of priorities for the
refurbishment of the facilities at Progress Park. The project brief was presented to the Rotary
Clubs of Redland City through Steve Haughtey and they accepted Council’s proposal, Steve
Haughtey was able to get a further funding commitment from the Toowoomba East Rotary
Club of approximately $22k which would allow the project team to complete the majority of the
refurbishment at Progress Park at Helidon.

3. Report

Council will need to accept the project proposal and endorse the Memorandum of
Understanding so that this project can be initiated as soon as possible. This is a low risk
project for Council and will enable Council to effectively refurbish the facilities at Progress Park
at Helidon from external funds. Public consultation has been effective with both the Helidon
Progress Association and the Helidon Cricket Club partnering with Council to deliver this
project for the community. A working bee is being held at Progress Park on January 12, 2013.
Council officer Brendan Sippel is coordinating the day with Steve Haughtey from the Redlands
City Rotary Clubs. The Mayor and Councillors are invited to attend the working bee and details
will be provided as soon as these have been confirmed with Rotary.

4. Policy and Legal Implications

Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding with Redlands City Rotary and Rotoract Clubs
and Toowoomba East Rotary Club.

5. Financial and Resource Implications
Council will need to fund the purchase of the requirements for this project which will be
reimbursed to Council from the Rotary Clubs. There may be other minor in kind support
needed from Council to ensure that this project is completed to the satisfaction of both parties.
Council officers have been working on the development of the project brief and memorandum
of understanding as part of their normal duties.

6. Delegations/Authorisations

Council will need to authorise the CEO to sign the memorandum of understanding on behalf of
the Council.

7. Communication
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This project has been flagged with Corporate Communications and it would be advantageous
for an article to be written on the project and the details of the working bee advertised in the
local community so that we can get as much buy in from the community as possible.

Conclusion
This project has the potential to be a win — win situation for both the Council and community.

The community groups of Helidon have been extremely supportive of Council and have helped
to ensure a smooth passage for Council’s ideas into a worthwhile project for the community.
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into Progress Park Memorandum of Understanding Helidon

Progress Park

Lockyer
Valley

NESIONAL COUNTIL

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
between
Lockyer Valley Regional Council
And the combined

Redlands City Rotary and Rotoract Clubs and Toowoomba East
Rotary Club

Established between:

Lockyer Valley Regional Council ("Council")
And
The Combined Redlands City Rotary and Rotoract Clubs and Toowoomba East Rotary Club

Date of Effect: From 15/11/2012 to 1/04/2013

Signatures:

l. Flint S. Haughtey

Chief Executive Officer, Chairperson, of the combined

Lockyer Valley Regional Council Rotary and Rotoract Clubs of Rediand City
Monster Garage Sale Flood Relief
Committee
President

Rotary Club of Toowoomba East Inc.
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Attachment 1

Memorandum of Understanding
Helidon Progress Park

1. Background

11

1.2.

1.3.

1.4,

15.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

Progress Park is located at 34 Arthur Street Helidon, and is an extremely important
community asset in maintaining the social interaction and fabric of the Helidon
community. This facility is the focal point for many community run activities, festivals as
well as sport and recreation pursuits. As such, the community takes great pride in this area
and are very active in supporting council to operate and maintain the area,

The facility includes a cricket oval, children’s playground with shade structure, storage
shed, enclosed shade structure with internal seating, a toilet facility, drink fountain and
cricket practice wickets (2). The area adjoins the tennis club which has a club house and
two tennis courts (synthetic courts).

The area was used extensively during the flooding event of January 2011 as an emergency
helicopter landing site.

The impetus for the project has been driven by an offer of funding from the combined
Redland City Rotary and Roteract Clubs and Toowoomba East Rotary Club in response to
the catastrophic events of the January 2011 flooding. Through the Mayor, Steve Jones and
public consultation with the residents of Helidon it has been decided that improvements
to this area would provide a high level of benefit to the community and would be a visible
project that the Rotary Clubs may support.

The ongoing issues with vandalism were highlighted as a key concern of the community as
well as providing sport and recreational opportunities for the residents of Helidon.

Without the offer of funding from the combined Redlands City Rotary and Rotoract Clubs
and Toowoomba East Rotary Club it is unlikely that this project would have been initiated
as it has to compete with all the other community facilities across the regional council area
for a limited funding source. The Helidon community is very resilient and has an active
Progress Association that has initiated many community benefit projects that have been
funded from their own fundraising efforts. The Helidon Progress Association are fully
supportive of the desirable outcomes contained in the project brief and look forward to
working with the combined Redlands City Rotary and Rotaract Clubs and Toowoomba East
Rotary Club to provide an outstanding outcome for the Helidon community. Council is
extremely happy to be involved in supporting this project as a way of recognising the
Helidon community for its resilience and pride in the town and its facilities.

Together with Community and the combined Redlands City Rotary and Rotoract Clubs and
Toowoomba East Rotary Club, LVRC has developed concepts and a detailed project brief
that addresses the issue of vandalism and renews the facility to an acceptable standard to
provide the greatest social benefit to the community of Helidon for the available funding.

The theme of this project is “Rotary Breathing new life into Progress Park”.

2. MOU Aims and Objectives

2.1

To clearly define the working relationship between the Council and the combined Redland
City Rotary and Rotoract Clubs and Toowoomba East Rotary Club, in providing the
community with a revitalised facility at 34 Arthur Street Helidon, to meet and engage in

Attachment 1
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social and recreational activities, helping the Helidon community to return to a state of
normality after the horrific events of January 2011.

2.2.  The revitalisation of the park is being funded by donations from the combined Redland
City Rotary and Rotoract Clubs Monster Garage Sale Flood Relief Funds and Toowoomba
East Rotary Club and the Lockyer Valley Regional Council as a community flood recovery
initiative.

2.3. This document is not intended to be of a binding legal effect.

3. Management of MOU

3.1. This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") will be managed by the Lockyer Valley
Regional Council's Group Manager Infrastructure Services on behalf of Council and the
Board of Directors of the Redlands City and East Toowoomba Rotary Clubs.

4. Obligations of Rotary Clubs.

4.1. Inrecognition of the major funding activity, the combined Redland City Rotary and Rotoract
Clubs and Toowoomba East Rotary Club will be recognised with a plague and signage
acknowledging their participation and sponsorship to be provided by Council. The funding
will cover the costs associated with the refurbishment of community assets at Progress
Park, Helidon.

4.2. The total package will only be covered in accordance with this agreement up to an estimated
$118,822 exclusive of GST. {$96,822 by Redland Clubs, $22,000 by Toowoomba East Club)

5. Obligations of Council

5.1, LVRC will appoint a Project Manager who will consult with the combined Redland City Rotary
and Rotoract Clubs and Toowoomba East Rotary Club and all reasonable other community
stakeholders, and provide regular reports on the progress and status of the project.

5.2. Inthe event that the package for the project exceeds the indicated budget, the project will
be re-scoped in order to realign with available budget and sustainable community
outcomes. The re-scoping will be undertaken in consultation with all key stakeholders,

5.3. Council will ensure that the facilities are maintained to an acceptable standard in perpetuity.

6. Workplace Health and Safety Obligations

6.1. Ensure all workers have completed Councils Workplace Health and Safety Induction before
commencing works;

6.2. ensure that all workers are competent and properly trained;

6.3. ensure the provision of safe plant, equipment, appliances and personal protection;

6.4. minimize the risks to works in regard to their health and safety as a result of performing
construction functions;

6.5. enter Into a contract of insurance for workplace health and safety to ensure all workmen on
site are insured.
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Helidon Progress Park

7. Costs

7.1,

7.2,

The parties agree that expenses associated with the implementation of this Memorandum
of Understanding and compliance with legisiative requirements remains the responsibility of
each party.

The exiting financial arrangements between the parties will continue,

8. Confidentiality

8.1.

8.2.

The parties shall not, except as expressly authorized by the parties or required by law,
reveal to any person any of the confidential operations, dealings, or affairs of the other
which may come to its knowledge through carrying out the Memorandum of Understanding,
an without limitation to the foregoing, shall not use or attempt to use any information or
knowledge aforesaid in any manner which may injury or cause loss either directly or
indirectly to the other.

The parties shall ensure that their employees, contractors, servants and agents also observe
the provisions of this clause

9. Privacy & Disclosure of Personal Information

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

Where the parties have access to personal information in order to fulfill its obligation under

this Memarandum of Understanding, they must:-

9.1.1.ensure that personal information is protected against loss and against unauthorized
access, use, modification or disclosure and against other misuse;

9.1.2.not use personal information other than for the purpose of this Memorandum of
Understanding, unless required or authorized by law;

9.1.3.not disclose personal information without the written agreement of Council or any
other persons authorized in writing by Council, unless required by law to do so;

9.1.4.ensure that only authorized personnel have access to personal information;

9.1.5.immediately notify the Council if it becomes aware that disclosure of personal
information is, or may be required or authorized by law, and

9.1.6.comply with such other privacy and security measures as Council reasonably advises
the Clubs in writing from time to time.

The parties must immediately notify each other upon becoming aware of any breach of this

clause,

“Personal Information” means information ar any opinion (Iincluding information or an

opinion forming part of a database), whether true or not and whether recorded in material

form or not, about an individual whose identify is apparent or can reasonably be

ascertained, from the information or opinion.

10.Variation & Termination

10.1. The Terms and Conditions of this MOU can be varied by agreement in writing of both

parties.

10.2. Either party may terminate this agreement by providing 30 days written notice to the

other party. To promote organisational learning, feedback on the causes for termination
of the agreement should be provided within the notice.
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11.Dispute Resolution

11.1.

11.2.

Itis the intent of all parties to this protocol to exercise professional judgement and
practice and to work towards consensus and agreement at all times. Progression of
unresolved matters will in the first instance be discussed with the Project Manager and a
nominated Rotary delegate. If the matter is not able to be resolved then it will be
escalated to the Lockyer Valley Regional Council's Group Manager Infrastructure Services
and the President of RCRC.
Principles for handling disputes are:
o To deal with them promptly but with due care and consideration.
o Resolve disputes keeping in mind the best interests of community members and
key stakeholders as a whole,
o Treat individuals and organisations involved with respect
o Maintain transparency so that people understand how decisions are made and
who has responsibility for steps in the process.
@ Put accountability mechanisms in place to ensure that the resolution procedure
operates effectively.

Attachment 1

11.2
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Helidon Progress Park Project - Rotary Breathing New Life into Attachment 1
Progress Park Memorandum of Understanding
Helidon Progress Park

SIGNED for and on behalf of

LOCKYER VALLEY REGIONAL COUNCIL
by its authorised representative in the
presence of:

------

Witness

Print name below

............

SIGNED for and on behalf of the combined
ROTARY and ROTORACT CLUBS of REDLAND CITY
by its authorised representative in the
presence of:

Witness

Print name below

------------

SIGNED for and on behalf of

ROTARY CLUB OF TOOWOOMBA EAST
by its authorised representative in the
presence of:

Witness

Print name below

Contact Officer: Group Manager Infrastructure Services
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11.3 Management of Murphys Creek Community Centre

Date: 12 December 2012

Author: Brad Domrow, Manager Community Facilities

Responsible Officer: Anthony Trace, Acting Group Manager Infrastructure Services
File No: 5.5/25/4

Summary:

The new Murphys Creek Community Centre (MCCC) is due to commence operating in early 2013 and
Council needs to approve an appropriate management arrangement to handle bookings, payments,
issue keys, show hirers the facilities and to arrange cleaning and maintenance of the building.

Officer’s Recommendation:

THAT Council approve a joint management arrangement for the Murphys Creek
Community Centre where Council’s Customer Service Unit takes the bookings and
payments and a suitable local individual is engaged to clean the premises, show the
facility to hirers and issue keys for the facility.

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council approve a joint management arrangement for the Murphys Creek
Community Centre with the Murphys Creek Progress Association and delegate to the
Chief Executive Officer to finalise the necessary management arrangements.

Moved By: Cr Milligan Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2853

CARRIED
710

Report
1. Introduction

The new MCCC is due to commence operating in early 2013 so suitable management
arrangements need to be finalised.

There are a number of options which are reviewed in this report with a recommendation made.
2. Background
As the new Centre is being constructed at Murphys Creek and is some distance from the

Regional Gatton Office, arrangements need to be put in place for the management of the
facility. ldeally, the keys should be issued locally to avoid the need to travel to Gatton and for
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someone to show hirers the Centre eg kitchen facilities, seating arrangements, lighting and
sound systems.

It is possible that bookings may be made by phone to the Gatton Regional Office and
payments either made by Direct Debit or by phone.

Report
There are a number of options available as outlined below —
= Council Management — provides the greatest control but would require hirers to collect
keys from Gatton Regional Office and for staff to travel to Murphys Creek to show
hirers the facility.
=  Community Group/Individual Management - in the past, the local community has been
heavily involved in the management of community facilities and may be interested in
managing the Centre. Could be an economical option but could cause issues between
different groups or individuals.

Council has less control of quality of service and it could be more difficult to rectify
complaints.

= Joint Council/Individual Management — appears the best way to control bookings and
payments while allowing convenient collection of keys and someone local to show
hirers through the facility.
This option is also in line with a review of the Region’s facilities management
arrangements to give Council greater control of bookings and payments while
maintaining convenient access to keys and cleaning arrangements.
Policy and Legal Implications

An Agreement/Memorandum of Understanding would need to be prepared if Council were to
enter into a Local Community Group/Individual or Joint Management arrangement.

Financial and Resource Implications

Procedures and Policies for the maintenance and operation of the Centre will need to be
drafted.

An allocation will need to be made in future Budgets for the operation and maintenance of the
facility.

Delegations/Authorisations
The Council decision is to be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer or his delegate.
Communication

A press release/promotion should be undertaken to advise that the Murphys Creek Community
Centre is operational and available for hire.
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Conclusion
It is considered that the preferred management option is for Council to enter a joint
arrangement with a local individual where Council’s Customer Service Unit take bookings and

a local individual is engaged to clean the facility, issue keys as well as show potential hirers
through the facility.

Council will also maintain the building and pay operational costs eg, electricity, insurance etc
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114 Public Conveniences in Laidley Township

Date: 13 December 2012

Author: Brad Domrow, Manager Community Facilities

Responsible Officer: Anthony Trace, Acting Group Manager Infrastructure Services
File No: 7.3/3/3

Summary:

To continue to provide public access to privately owned facilities in the township of Laidley.

Officer’s Recommendation:

THAT Council approves the payment of the annual fee being $13,221.89 for the rental
and cleaning of the facilities owned by Laidley Village Shopping Mall to retain public
access to these facilities.

And further;

THAT arrangements are made with the Laidley Village Shopping Mall Committee to
have the facilities signed indicating Council’s assistance in the provision of these
facilities.

And further;

THAT the Chief Executive Officer be delegated authority to formalise the rental and
other arrangements in regards to the public access and usage of these facilities.

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council approves the payment of the annual fee being $13,221.89 for the rental
and cleaning of the facilities owned by Laidley Village Shopping Mall to retain public
access to these facilities.

And further;

THAT arrangements are made with the Laidley Village Shopping Mall Committee to
have the facilities signed indicating Council’s assistance in the provision of these
facilities.

And further;

THAT the Chief Executive Officer be delegated authority to formalise the rental and
other arrangements in regards to the public access and usage of these facilities.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Pingel
Resolution Number: 2854

CARRIED
7/0

Report

1. Introduction
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An invoice for the amount of $13,221.89 has been received by Council for the 2012/13
financial year to provide public use of privately owned facilities in the Laidley Village Shopping
Mall.
Background
The previous Laidley Shire Council had an agreement with the Laidley Village Shopping Mall
Committee to pay an annual fee for the rental and cleaning of the toilets to provide these
facilities for public use.
Report
As discussed at the Councillors’ workshop held on 12" December 2012, Council has 3 options
(as offered by the owners), being:

% Council pay the annual fee

% Council take over the cleaning of the toilets for an approx cost of $10,000 annually.

« Revert to staff only access with no public access allowed.

There are Council owned and maintained public toilets located a short distance away from
these facilities adjacent to Das Neumann Haus.

Policy and Legal Implications

None identified.

Financial and Resource Implications

Annual rental of $13,500 has been included in Council’s 2012-13 Budget.
Delegations/Authorisations

That the Chief Executive Officer be delegated authority to formalise the rental arrangements of
the privately owned facilities for use as public conveniences with the Laidley Village Shopping
Mall Committee.

Communication

Council will need to negotiate a formal arrangement with the Laidley Shopping Mall
Committee.

Conclusion

Public access to the privately owned facilities is maintained.
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115 Removal of Public Convenience at Glenore Grove

Date: 13 December 2012

Author: Brad Domrow, Manager Community Facilities

Responsible Officer: Anthony Trace, Acting Group Manager Infrastructure Services
File No: 7.3/3/3

Summary:

Request Number 24402 was received by Council on the 26 October 2012, requesting that public
conveniences (maintained by Council) located on Lot 175 CC1692 be removed.

Officer’s Recommendation:

That Council approve the removal of the public conveniences from Lot 175 CC1692.
And further;

THAT a budget amendment be made at the next budget review to allocate funds to
undertake the works.

And further;

THAT arrangements be made with the Glenore Grove Queensland Country Women'’s
Association for the removal of these facilities, the disposal/removal of the water tank
and the dis-connection of the town water supply.

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council approve the removal of the public conveniences from Lot 175 CC1692.
And further;

THAT a budget amendment be made at the next budget review to allocate funds to
undertake the works.

And further;

THAT arrangements be made with the Glenore Grove Queensland Country Women'’s
Association for the removal of these facilities, the disposal/removal of the water tank
and the dis-connection of the town water supply.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Pingel
Resolution Number: 2855

CARRIED
7/0

Report
1. Introduction

Request Number 24402 was received by Council on the 26th October 2012, requesting that
public conveniences (maintained by Council) located on Lot 175 CC1692 be removed.

2. Background
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The public toilet is described as Lot 175 CC1692. It is sited approximately 50m off Forest Hill -
Fernvale Road and within 10m of the boundary of a private dwelling. The nearest side road is
Mullet Road also approximately 50m away. The building is described as besser block in
construction. It is not painted externally or internally. The toilet consists of 1x male and 1x
female closet. They both have 1x pedestal and sink. The internal floors are of natural concrete.
The facility does not allow wet weather access as the access driveway is natural earth. The
toilet is in generally good condition but prone to vandalism due to it's off road location. The
closest alternative public toilet is situated approximately 700m away at Glenore Grove.

In 1999 the Laidley Shire Council waivered the town water supply charges of this facility for the
Glenore Grove Queensland Country Women’s Association (QCWA) if the toilets were to be
signed as public toilets. It was also noted in the minutes that a formal agreement would need
to be made between Council and the QCWA in relation to maintenance of the toilets and there
surrounding area. A copy of such agreement has not been located.

These toilets were adjoining to a tennis court and small building/clubhouse that have now
been removed.

Report

Council received a request from the President of the Glenore Grove Queensland Country
Women’s Association to demolish/remove these facilities. These facilities are under-utilised
due to removal of the previous adjoining tennis court and small building/clubhouse, as well as
Council facilities being located in a nearby park at Glenore Grove.

Policy and Legal Implications

Lot Plan 175 CC1692 is not owned by Council, but the public conveniences have been
maintained by Council for several years.

Financial and Resource Implications

It is estimated that the demolition of the Public Convenience would cost Council approximately
$5000.00 due to the facilities being connected to a septic system. There is no allocation for
this in the 2012/13 Budget.

Delegations/Authorisations

None required.

Communication

Council will need to discuss the disposal/relocation of the water tank, dis-connection of town
water supply and other arrangements with the Glenore Grove Queensland Country Women
Association.

Conclusion

These facilities are under-utilised due to removal of the previous adjoining tennis court and
small building / clubhouse, as well as Council facilities being located in a nearby park at

Glenore Grove.
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The meeting adjourned for lunch at 1.00 pm and resumed at 2.15pm

The Mayor was not present at the recommencement of the meeting. The Deputy
Mayor chaired the meeting in the absence of the Mayor.

12.0 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION

No Information Items reports

ltem Number: 13.1

File Number: 1.1/17/10
Councillor: Cr Steve Jones
SUBJECT: CLOSED SESSION

That Council move into Closed Session at 2.30 pm for discussion in accordance with
section 72 (1), (c), (d), (e) & (h) of the Local Government (Operations) Regulations
2010, (d), (e) & (f) of the Local Government Act 2009, as the matters involve the local
government’s budget; rating concessions; contracts proposed to be made by it and
other business for which a public discussion would be likely to prejudice the interests
of the local government or someone else.

In addition to the confidential matters listed in the agenda for Closed Session
discussion, the following items were resolved to also be included in the Closed
Session discussion:

e Motel Tender Legal Update

e Matters pending update

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Pingel
Resolution Number: 2856

CARRIED
6/0

Councillor Cr Jim McDonald left the meeting, the time being 02:56 PM
Councillor Cr Jim McDonald returned to the meeting, the time being 02:57 PM

Councillor Cr Steve Jones returned to the meeting, the time being 03:10 PM

Councillor Cr Janice Holstein left the meeting, the time being 03:26 PM
Councillor Cr Janice Holstein returned to the meeting, the time being 03:29 PM

Councillor Cr Steve Jones left the meeting, the time being 04:20 PM
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Item Number: 13.2

File Number: 1.1/17/10
Councillor: Cr Steve Jones
SUBJECT: OPEN SESSION

THAT Council move into Open Session at 4.20 pm.
Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Friend
Resolution Number: 2857

CARRIED
6/0

At 4.20 pm Cr Jones declared a Conflict of Interest in Item 13.3, Lockyer Information &
Neighbourhood Centre Gatton - Relocation Proposal - Lot 11 on CC807888 and left the
chambers while Council considered this item.

13.0 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

13.3 Lockyer Information & Neighbourhood Centre Gatton - Relocation
Proposal - Lot 11 on CC807888

Date: 11 December 2012

Author: Caitlan Natalier, Solicitor

Responsible Officer: Mark Piorkowski, Executive Manager Strategy & Planning
File No: 1.1/13/1

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council resolves to write to the Department of Communities and advise that
Council does support their proposal to relocate to part of 23 East Street, Gatton
described as Lot 11 on CC807888 based on land use and social planning and
recreation requirements, subject to the retention of appropriate open and recreation
space, and provision of site management for the transition.

Moved By: Cr Pingel Seconded By: Cr Friend
Resolution Number: 2858

CARRIED
6/0

Councillor Cr Steve Jones returned to the meeting, the time being 04:23 PM
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13.4 Pioneer Village Personal Injury Claim - Legal Update

Date: 11 December 2012

Author: Caitlan Natalier, Solicitor

Responsible Officer: lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer; Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager
Governance & Policy

File No: 1.1/14/6-5

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council resolves to note the Legal Update and authorise the Chief Executive
Officer to instruct MacDonnells Law to:-

(1) consent to the Section 59(2)(b) Application;
(i)  reject the Claimant’s offer to settle;
(iii)  attend the Compulsory Conference on a date to be set.

Moved By: Cr Friend Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2859

CARRIED
7/0
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13.5 Gatton Saddlery - Termination of Lease for Breach
Date: 11 December 2012

Author: Caitlan Natalier, Solicitor

Responsible Officer: Jason Bradshaw, Executive Manager Governance & Policy
File No: 1.1/13/3-27

RESOLUTION:

THAT with respect to the periodic monthly lease of the Gatton Saddlery, Council
endorses the actions of the Chief Executive Officer in serving on the Lessees of a
Form 7 Notice to Remedy Breach of Covenants requiring compliance by no later than
27 December 2012;

And further;

THAT should the Lessees fail to remedy the breaches in accordance with the Form 7
Notice to Remedy Breach of Covenants, then the Chief Executive Officer be granted
delegated authority to formally terminate the lease by serving a Notice to Quit in the
approved form and doing all other things necessary to finalise the lease, including
filing a Complaint and Summons before the Magistrates Court pursuant to Section 143
of the Property Law Act 1974 if necessary to re-enter and take back possession of the

property.

Moved By: Cr Milligan Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2860

CARRIED
7/0
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13.6Ex Gratia Payment - Council Rates Concessions - Natural Disaster

Date: 12 December 2012

Author: David Lewis, Group Manager Corporate Services
Responsible Officer: David Lewis, Group Manager Corporate Services
File No: 1.2/16/1 1.1/17/14.1

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council enter into a confidential ex gratia agreement and payment arrangement
with the applicant in consideration of their concession claims under the now
rescinded “Rates Concessions Policy — 2011 Natural Disaster”.

Moved By: Cr Holstein Seconded By: Cr McLean
Resolution Number: 2861

CARRIED
7/0
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13.7Lockyer Valley Sports and Aguatic Centre Project

Date: 13 December 2012

Author: Ben Lusk, Acting Manager Capital Delivery

Responsible Officer: Anthony Trace, Acting Group Manager Infrastructure Services
File No: 8.3/1/65

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council endorse the Lockyer Valley Sports and Aquatic Centre Project;

And further;

THAT Council endorse the selected site of Lot 166 RP105598 for the construction of
the new aquatic centre;

And further;

THAT Council endorse the master plan AWD101 Revision P8 prepared by Fulton
Trotter Architects and engage with the relevant stakeholders prior to finalisation;

And further;

THAT Council approve the project budget of $10.7 Million for the identified phase 1 of
the project;

And further;

THAT Council commits to funding the full difference between the project costs and the
State Government funding of $2.5 Million over the 2012/13 and 2013/14 financial years;
And further;

THAT Council approves the project steering committee recommendation to defer the
construction of the water slide/s and splash pads to subsequent budgets.

Moved By: Cr McDonald Seconded By: Cr Friend
Resolution Number: 2862

CARRIED
710
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13.8Construction of Fairway Drive to connect with Teak Street/Walnut Drive

Date: 14 December 2012

Author: Quentin Underwood, Acting Manager Infrastructure Planning
Responsible Officer: Anthony Trace, Acting Group Manager Infrastructure Services
File No: DA2012/0036, 8.3/1/1 & 2.4/10/40

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council adopt incentive proposal 1 being that the developer of Fairways Estate
construct Fairways Drive along the frontage of Stage V and X and construct Walnut
Drive (between Lot 203 sPR128026 and Lot 204 SP128026) from Fairway Drive to Teak
Street/Walnut intersection.

Further;

THAT Council will lobby State Government to amend the State Regional Plan to allow
Lot 2 RP198473 to rezone for residential development.

And further;

THAT Council delegate to the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer to negotiate the

option most beneficial to Council.

Moved By: Cr Holstein Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2863

CARRIED
7/0
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13.9 Tender Approval for NDRRA Lake Clarendon Way Projects
Date: 14 December 2012

Author: Tony Robbins, IRU Program Officer

Responsible Officer: Anthony Trace, Acting Group Manager Infrastructure Services
File No: 2.4/27/1-3

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council resolves to accept the tender from Brittwood Constructions Pty Ltd for
the amount of $1,977,567.39 plus GST for the Lake Clarendon Way reconstruction

projects;

Moved By:

Cr Milligan McDonald
Resolution Number: 2864

CARRIED
7/0
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13.10 Australia Day Awards Nominations

Date: 14 December 2012

Author: Michelle Brown, Events & Marketing Coordinator
Responsible Officer: Mark Piorkowski, Executive Manager Strategy & Planning
File No: 1.1/17

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council endorse the category winners of the Australia Day Awards in
accordance with nominations assessed and voting determined. It is to be noted that
the Australia Day Achievement Award will not be presented this year.

Moved By: Cr Pingel Seconded By: Cr Holstein
Resolution Number: 2865

CARRIED
7/0
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Update on Fluoridation

Date: 14 December 2012

Author: lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer
Responsible Officer: lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer
File No: 1.1/17/14

RESOLUTION:

THAT Council prior to making a final decision on fluoridation in the water supply,
undertake the following actions:

1. Forward correspondence to Somerset Regional Council seeking
confirmation on their position in regard to fluoridation.

2. Investigate the real costs of de-fluoridation of the water supply
acknowledging these costs are to be borne by Council.

& Forward correspondence to the State Government’s Chief Medical Officer

seeking written confirmation on the public health risks of fluoridation in
water supplies.

4. Undertake sample testing across the existing water supply network to
confirm the current fluoride dosage across the region.

Moved By: Cr Pingel Seconded By: Cr McDonald
Resolution Number: 2866

CARRIED
7/0

Page 313




ORDINARY COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES
19 DECEMBER 2012

13.12 Motel Tender - Legal Update

Date: 20 December 2012

Author: Jamie Simmonds, Executive Strategy Advisor
Responsible Officer: lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer

File No: 1.1/13/3-28

RESOLUTION:

THAT with respect to the tender for the development of the Lakeview Accommodation
Precinct, Council resolves to:-

@) reject the letter of offer in its current form of Veldene Pty Ltd on the basis that
Council cannot meet the requirements of the Section 185(1)(a) Local
Government (Finance, Plans & Reporting) Regulation 2010; and

(b) delegate to, and authorise, the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer the power to
negotiate the purchase price of Lots 1 and 2 with the developer in order to meet
Council’s legal obligations.

Moved By: Cr Friend Seconded By: Cr Holstein

Resolution Number: 2867
CARRIED
7/0

Item Number: 13.13

File Number: 1.1/17/14

Responsible Officer: lan Flint, Chief Executive Officer

SUBJECT: MATTERS PENDING UPDATE

THAT Council note and acknowledge the updates and advice provided in relation to:

Legal matters pending including - Helidon Spa Caravan Park (Supreme Court
action to be defended and threats against Council and Officers being referred
for Police action), Effluent Systems (Legal and insurance advices to be
actioned), Asbestos related land identification (Legal and Health and Safety
issues to be addressed).

Organisational matters pending — a structural review of the organisation is to be
undertaken in view of vacancies at executive and management levels and after a
reassessment of requirements to meet the Lockyer Valley Restoration Program
in accordance with the Council/Queensland Reconstruction Authority
arrangements. A report on these matters is to be provided to Council in early
2013.

There being no further business the meeting closed at 4.28 pm
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